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In the opinion of Nixon Peabody LLP, Bond Counsel, under existing law and assuming compliance with the tax covenants described herein, and the
accuracy of certain representations and certifications made by the City and the Authority described herein, interest on the Series 2009B Bonds is excluded
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$634,940,000
PUBLIC FACILITIES FINANCING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SAN DIEGO
SENIOR SEWER REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2009B

(Payable Solely From Installment Payments
Secured by Wastewater System Net Revenues)

Dated: Date of Delivery Due: May 15, as shown on the inside cover page

The $634,940,000 Public Facilities Financing Authority of the City of San Diego Senior Sewer Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2009B (Payable Solely From
Installment Payments Secured by Wastewater System Net Revenues) (the “Series 2009B Bonds”) are being issued by the Public Facilities Financing Authority of the
City of San Diego (the “Authority”) pursuant to the provisions of the Joint Exercise of Powers Act (commencing with Section 6500) of the Government Code of the
State of California (the “State”) and an Indenture, dated as of May 1, 2009, as supplemented by a First Supplemental Indenture dated as of June 1, 2009 (collectively,
the “Indenture”), each by and between the Authority and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as trustee (the “Trustee”). The proceeds of the Series
2009B Bonds will be used to refund a portion of the Outstanding Parity Bonds (herein defined), fund the Reserve Fund and pay costs of issuance with respect to the
Series 2009B Bonds. The Series 2009B Bonds constitute the second series of Bonds issued under the Indenture, the first being the $453,775,000 aggregate principal
amount of Senior Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 2009A (Payable Solely From Installment Payments Secured by Wastewater System Net Revenues) issued to, among
other things, acquire certain capital improvements to the Wastewater System (as defined herein), pay in full the Authority’s Subordinate Sewer Revenue Notes,
Series 2007, refund a portion of the Authority’s Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 1997A and Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 1997B and fund the Reserve Fund.

THE SERIES 2009B BONDS SHALL BE LIMITED OBLIGATIONS OF THE AUTHORITY AND SHALL BE PAYABLE SOLELY FROM THE
REVENUES OF THE AUTHORITY AND AMOUNTS ON DEPOSIT IN THE FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS ESTABLISHED UNDER THE INDENTURE
(OTHER THAN AMOUNTS ON DEPOSIT IN THE REBATE FUND). EXCEPT AS AFORESAID, THE SERIES 2009b BONDS DO NOT CONSTITUTE A
DEBT OR LIABILITY OF THE AUTHORITY, THE CITY OR THE STATE AND NEITHER THE FAITH NOR CREDIT OF THE AUTHORITY, THE CITY
OR THE STATE ARE PLEDGED TO THE PAYMENT OF THE PRINCIPAL OF OR INTEREST ON THE SERIES 2009b BONDS. THE AUTHORITY HAS
NO TAXING POWER.

The Series 2009B Bonds are limited obligations of the Authority primarily secured by Revenues (herein defined) of the Authority, which consist primarily
of 2009B Installment Payments (herein defined) to be made by the City to the Authority, pursuant to the Master Installment Purchase Agreement, dated as of
September 1, 1993, as amended and supplemented (the “Master Installment Purchase Agreement”), including as supplemented by the 2009-2 Supplement dated
as of June 1, 2009 to the Master Installment Purchase Agreement (the “2009-2 Supplement” and, together with the Master Installment Purchase Agreement, the
“Installment Purchase Agreement”), each by and between the City and the Authority, and amounts on deposit in the funds and accounts established under the
Indenture (other than amounts on deposit in the Rebate Fund). The City has pledged Net System Revenues (herein defined) of the Wastewater System pursuant to
the Installment Purchase Agreement to the payment of the Installment Payments (herein defined), including the 2009B Installment Payments. The City’s pledge and
assignment of and lien on the Net System Revenues securing the 2009B Installment Payments are, in all respects, on parity with the City’s pledge and assignment of
and lien on the Net System Revenues securing the other Parity Obligations (as described herein) under the Installment Purchase Agreement. The principal of and
interest on the Series 2009B Bonds and any premium upon the redemption of any thereof are not a debt of the City nor a legal or equitable pledge, charge, lien or
encumbrance upon any of its property or upon any of its income, receipts or revenues but are secured by and payable solely from the Revenues of the Authority and
amounts on deposit in the funds and accounts established under the Indenture (other than amounts on deposit in the Rebate Fund).

Pursuant to the Installment Purchase Agreement, the City may incur additional Obligations, payments with respect to which will be on parity with or subordinate
in priority to the City’s obligation to make 2009B Installment Payments, subject to satisfaction of the conditions specified in the Installment Purchase Agreement.
As of June 9, 2009, upon the incurrence of the 2009B Installment Payments and the defeasances described herein, there will be Outstanding Parity Obligations in
the aggregate principal amount of $1,267,490,000 and Subordinated Obligations (as defined herein), consisting only of Existing SRF Loans (herein defined), in the
aggregate principal amount of $71,925,170. See “SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE SERIES 2009B BONDS — Outstanding Obligations” herein.

The Series 2009B Bonds will accrue interest from their date of delivery and interest thereon will be payable on May 15 and November 15 of each year,
commencing on November 15, 2009. The Series 2009B Bonds will bear interest at the respective rates per annum set forth on the inside cover page hereof. See
“DESCRIPTION OF THE SERIES 2009B BONDS - General” herein and Appendix C — “SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL LEGAL DOCUMENTS” attached hereto.

The Series 2009B Bonds will be issued only in fully-registered form in denominations of $5,000 and any integral multiple thereof, and when issued, will be
registered in the name of Cede & Co., as the nominee of The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York (“DTC”). DTC will act as securities depository for the
Series 2009B Bonds. Ownership interests in the Series 2009B Bonds may be purchased in book-entry form only. So long as DTC or its nominee is the Owner of the
Series 2009B Bonds, principal and redemption premium, if any, of and interest on the Series 2009B Bonds will be made as described in Appendix F — “INFORMATION
REGARDING THE BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM” attached hereto.

The Series 2009B Bonds are subject to optional redemption and mandatory sinking fund redemption prior to maturity as described herein. See
“DESCRIPTION OF THE SERIES 2009B BONDS - Redemption” herein.

This cover page contains information for general reference only. Potential purchasers are advised to read the entire Official Statement to
obtain information essential to making an informed investment decision.

The Series 2009B Bonds are offered when, as and if issued, subject to the legal opinion of Nixon Peabody LLP, Los Angeles, California, Bond Counsel. Certain
legal matters will be passed upon for the Authority by Hawkins Delafield & Wood LLP, Los Angeles, California, Disclosure Counsel, for the Authority and the City by
Jan I. Goldsmith, City Attorney, and for the Underwriters by their counsel, Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth, A Professional Corporation, Newport Beach, California.
It is anticipated that the Series 2009B Bonds will be available for delivery through the facilities of DTC in New York, New York on or about June 9, 2009.

Citi
Banc of America Securities LLC J.P. Morgan
Fidelity Capital Markets Wedbush Morgan Securities

Dated: May 14, 2009



$634,940,000
PUBLIC FACILITIES FINANCING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SAN DIEGO
SENIOR SEWER REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2009B
(Payable Solely From Installment Payments
Secured by Wastewater System Net Revenues)

MATURITY SCHEDULE
Maturity Date Principal Interest

(May 15) Amount Rate Yield Price CcusIP’
2010 $36,510,000 3.000% 0.420% 102.400 79730AGM4
2011 35,545,000 4.000 1.740 104.277 79730AGN2
2012 5,920,000 3.000 2.220 102.202 79730AGP7
2012 23,750,000 5.000 2.220 107.851 79730AGQS5
2013 3,685,000 4.000 2.510 105.546 79730AGR3
2013 27,345,000 5.000 2.510 109.269 79730AGS1
2014 2,450,000 4.000 2.900 105.020 79730AGT9
2014 30,095,000 5.000 2.900 109.586 79730AGU6
2015 5,275,000 3.000 3.170 99.085 79730AGV4
2015 28,875,000 5.000 3.170 109.825 79730AGW2
2016 5,215,000 4.000 3.370 103.864 79730AGX0
2016 30,535,000 5.000 3.370 110.001 79730AGYS8
2017 1,365,000 4.000 3.570 102.946 79730AGZS5
2017 36,120,000 5.000 3.570 109.801 79730AHA9
2018 1,075,000 4.000 3.770 101.728 79730AHB7
2018 48,245,000 5.000 3.770 109.253 79730AHCS
2019 6,575,000 4.000 3.960 100.323 79730AHD3
2019 45,200,000 5.000 3.960 108.469 79730AHE1
2020 1,535,000 4.000 4.140 98.776 79730AHF8
2020 52,760,000 5.000 4.140 106.943 79730AHG6
2021 600,000 4.250 4.280 99.719 79730AHH4
2021 56,395,000 5.000 4.280 105.773" 79730AHJO
2022 1,050,000 4.375 4.410 99.655 79730AHK7
2022 58,795,000 5.000 4.410 104.701" 79730AHLS
2023 275,000 4.500 4.550 99.485 79730AHM3
2023 62,550,000 5.500 4.400 108.771° 79730AHNI1
2024 13,270,000 5.000 4.680 102.515" 79730AHP6
2025 13,930,000 5.250 4.730 104.080" 79730AHQ4

Priced to call at par on May 15, 2019.

T Copyright, American Bankers Association. CUSIP data is provided by Standard & Poor’s CUSIP Service
Bureau, a Division of the McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc., and is set forth herein for convenience of reference
only. The City, the Authority and the Underwriters do not assume responsibility for the accuracy of such data.



No dealer, broker, salesperson or other person has been authorized by the City or the Authority to
give any information or to make any representations other than those contained herein and, if given or
made, such other information or representations must not be relied upon as having been authorized by the
City or the Authority. This Official Statement does not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an
offer to buy nor shall there be any sale of the Series 2009B Bonds by a person in any jurisdiction in which
it is unlawful for such person to make an offer, solicitation or sale.

This Official Statement is not a contract with the purchasers of the Series 2009B Bonds.
Statements contained in this Official Statement which involve estimates, forecasts or matters of opinion,
whether or not expressly so described herein, are intended solely as such and are not to be construed as a
representation of facts.

The information set forth herein has been furnished by the City and by other sources which are
believed to be reliable. The Underwriters have provided the following sentence for inclusion in this
Official Statement: the Underwriters have reviewed the information in this Official Statement in
accordance with, and as part of, their responsibility to investors under the Federal securities law as
applied to the facts and circumstances of this transaction, but the Underwriters do not guarantee the
accuracy or completeness of such information. The information and expressions of opinion herein are
subject to change without notice and neither the delivery of this Official Statement nor any sale made
hereunder shall, under any circumstances, create any implication that there has been no change in the
affairs of the City, the Authority or any other parties described herein since the date hereof. All
summaries of the Series 2009B Bonds, the Indenture, the Installment Purchase Agreement, the 2009-2
Supplement and other documents summarized herein, are made subject to the provisions of such
documents respectively and do not purport to be complete statements of any or all of such provisions.

This Official Statement is submitted in connection with the execution and delivery of the Series
2009B Bonds referred to herein and may not be reproduced or used, in whole or in part, for any other

purpose.

The City maintains a website with investor information at
http://www.sandiego.gov/investorinformation. However, the information presented there is not part of
this Official Statement, is not incorporated by reference herein and should not be relied upon in making
an investment decision with respect to the Series 2009B Bonds.

IN CONNECTION WITH THIS OFFERING, THE UNDERWRITERS MAY OVERALLOT
OR EFFECT TRANSACTIONS WHICH STABILIZE OR MAINTAIN THE MARKET PRICE OF THE
SERIES 2009B BONDS AT A LEVEL ABOVE THAT WHICH MIGHT OTHERWISE PREVAIL IN
THE OPEN MARKET. SUCH STABILIZING, IF COMMENCED, MAY BE DISCONTINUED AT
ANY TIME. THE UNDERWRITERS MAY OFFER AND SELL THE SERIES 2009B BONDS TO
CERTAIN DEALERS AND DEALER BANKS AND BANKS ACTING AS AGENT AT PRICES
LOWER THAN THE PUBLIC OFFERING PRICE STATED ON THE COVER PAGE HEREOF AND
SAID PUBLIC OFFERING PRICE MAY BE CHANGED FROM TIME TO TIME BY THE
UNDERWRITERS.
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OFFICIAL STATEMENT

$634,940,000
PUBLIC FACILITIES FINANCING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SAN DIEGO
SENIOR SEWER REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2009B
(Payable Solely From Installment Payments
Secured by Wastewater System Net Revenues)

INTRODUCTION

This introduction is not a summary of this Official Statement. It is only a brief description of and
guide to, and is qualified by, more complete and detailed information contained in the entire Olfficial
Statement, including the cover page and appendices hereto, and the documents described herein. All
statements contained in this introduction are qualified in their entirety by reference to the entire Official
Statement. References to and summaries of the laws of the State of California and any documents referred
to herein do not purport to be complete and such references are qualified in their entirety by reference to
the complete provisions. All capitalized terms used in this Official Statement and not otherwise defined
herein have the meanings set forth in the Indenture and the Installment Purchase Agreement.

General

The $634,940,000 Public Facilities Financing Authority of the City of San Diego Senior Sewer
Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2009B (Payable Solely From Installment Payments Secured by
Wastewater System Net Revenues) (the “Series 2009B Bonds™) are being issued by the Public Facilities
Financing Authority of the City of San Diego (the “Authority”) pursuant to the provisions of the Joint
Exercise of Powers Act (commencing with Section 6500) of the Government Code of the State of California
(the “State”) and an Indenture, dated as of May 1, 2009, as supplemented by First Supplemental Indenture
dated as of June 1, 2009 (collectively, the “Indenture’), each by and between the Authority and The Bank of
New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as trustee thereunder (the “Trustee”). The proceeds of the Series
2009B Bonds will be used to refund a portion of the Outstanding Parity Bonds (herein defined), fund the
Reserve Fund and pay costs of issuance with respect to the Series 2009B Bonds. The Series 2009B Bonds
constitute the second series of Bonds issued under the Indenture, the first being the $453,775,000 aggregate
principal amount of Senior Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 2009A (Payable Solely From Installment
Payments Secured by Wastewater System Net Revenues) (the “Series 2009A Bonds”) issued to, among
other things, acquire certain capital improvements to the Wastewater System (as defined herein), pay in full
the Authority’s Subordinate Sewer Revenue Notes, Series 2007 (the “Series 2007 Notes”), refund a portion
of the Authority’s Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 1997A (the “Series 1997A Bonds”) and Sewer Revenue
Bonds, Series 1997B (the “Series 1997B Bonds”) and fund the Reserve Fund.

The Series 2009B Bonds

The Series 2009B Bonds will accrue interest from their date of delivery and interest thereon will
be payable on May 15 and November 15 of each year, commencing on November 15, 2009 (each, an
“Interest Payment Date”). The Series 2009B Bonds will bear interest at the respective rates per annum set
forth on the inside cover page hereof. See “DESCRIPTION OF THE SERIES 2009B BONDS — General”
herein and Appendix C — “SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL LEGAL DOCUMENTS” attached hereto.

The Series 2009B Bonds will be issued only in fully-registered form in denominations of $5,000
and any integral multiple thereof, and when issued, will be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as the



nominee of The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York (“DTC”). DTC will act as securities
depository for the Series 2009B Bonds. Ownership interests in the Series 2009B Bonds may be purchased
in book-entry form only. So long as DTC or its nominee is the Owner of the Series 2009B Bonds, the
principal and redemption premium, if any, of and interest on the Series 2009B Bonds will be made as
described in Appendix F — “INFORMATION REGARDING THE BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM”
attached hereto.

Security and Sources of Payment for the Series 2009B Bonds

The City of San Diego (the “City”) owns the Wastewater System and operates such system
through its Metropolitan Wastewater Department (the “MWWD”). The City has expanded the
Wastewater System from time to time to satisfy its mission statement, which is to provide wastewater
collection, treatment, discharge and disposal. See “THE WASTEWATER SYSTEM - Wastewater
System Management”, “— Metropolitan Sub-System Facilities” and “— Municipal Sub-System Facilities”
herein.

The Series 2009B Bonds are limited obligations of the Authority primarily secured by Revenues
(herein defined) of the Authority consisting primarily of 2009B Installment Payments (herein defined) to
be made by the City, pursuant to the Master Installment Purchase Agreement, dated as of September 1,
1993, as amended and supplemented (the “Master Installment Purchase Agreement”), including as
supplemented by the 2009-2 Supplement dated as of June 1, 2009 to the Master Installment Purchase
Agreement (the “2009-2 Supplement” and, together with the Master Installment Purchase Agreement, the
“Installment Purchase Agreement”), each by and between the City and the Authority, and amounts on
deposit in the funds and accounts established under the Indenture (other than amounts on deposit in the
Rebate Fund). The City has pledged Net System Revenues (herein defined) of the Wastewater System
pursuant to the Installment Purchase Agreement to the payment of the Installment Payments, including
the 2009B Installment Payments. The pledge and assignment of and lien on the Net System Revenues
securing the 2009B Installment Payments are, in all respects, on parity with the pledge and assignment of
and lien on the Net System Revenues securing the other Parity Obligations (as defined in the Installment
Purchase Agreement; the bonds secured by such Parity Obligations are referred to herein as “Parity
Bonds”) under the Installment Purchase Agreement. See “SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT
FOR THE SERIES 2009B BONDS” herein.

THE SERIES 2009B BONDS SHALL BE LIMITED OBLIGATIONS OF THE
AUTHORITY AND SHALL BE PAYABLE SOLELY FROM THE REVENUES OF THE
AUTHORITY AND AMOUNTS ON DEPOSIT IN THE FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS
ESTABLISHED UNDER THE INDENTURE (OTHER THAN AMOUNTS ON DEPOSIT IN THE
REBATE FUND). EXCEPT AS AFORESAID, THE SERIES 2009B BONDS DO NOT
CONSTITUTE A DEBT OR LIABILITY OF THE AUTHORITY, THE CITY OR THE STATE
AND NEITHER THE FAITH NOR CREDIT OF THE AUTHORITY, THE CITY OR THE
STATE ARE PLEDGED TO THE PAYMENT OF THE PRINCIPAL OF OR INTEREST ON
THE SERIES 2009B BONDS. THE AUTHORITY HAS NO TAXING POWER.

Redemption of the Series 2009B Bonds
The Series 2009B Bonds are subject to optional redemption and mandatory sinking fund

redemption prior to maturity as described herein. See “DESCRIPTION OF THE SERIES 2009B BONDS
— Redemption” herein.



Rate Covenant

The City has covenanted in the Installment Purchase Agreement to fix, prescribe and collect rates
and charges for the Wastewater Service (defined herein) which will be at least sufficient (i) to pay during
each Fiscal Year all Obligations (other than Parity Obligations) payable in such Fiscal Year, and (ii) to
yield during each Fiscal Year Net System Revenues equal to 120% of the Debt Service (defined in the
Installment Purchase Agreement generally to mean the aggregate amount of principal, sinking fund
payments and interest payable in respect of all Parity Obligations for such Fiscal Year) for such Fiscal
Year. The Wastewater Service rendered by the City includes services relating to the Metropolitan Sub-
System (herein defined), of which the Participating Agencies are a part. See “THE WASTEWATER
SYSTEM - Participating Agencies” for a description of the rates and charges paid and to be paid by the
Participating Agencies. See also “SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE SERIES
2009B BONDS — Rate Covenant”, “WASTEWATER SYSTEM FINANCIAL OPERATIONS — Rate
Stabilization Fund and Other Reserves”, “RISK FACTORS — Rate-Setting Process Under Proposition
218”7 and “CONSTITUTIONAL LIMITATIONS ON TAXES AND WASTEWATER RATES AND
CHARGES - Articles XIIIC and XIIID” herein and Appendix C — “SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL
LEGAL DOCUMENTS?” attached hereto.

Reserve Fund

The Indenture requires the Authority to establish and maintain a Reserve Fund and the Authority
must maintain therein or have credited thereto an amount of money equal to the Reserve Requirement.
“Reserve Requirement” is defined to be, as of any date of calculation, the least of (i) 10% of the proceeds
(within the meaning of Section 148 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”)) of
the Series 2009A Bonds, the Series 2009B Bonds and any Additional Bonds (defined herein) issued under
the Indenture (collectively, the “Bonds™); (ii) 125% of average annual debt service on the then-
Outstanding Bonds; or (iii) the Maximum Annual Debt Service for that and any subsequent Fiscal Year.
See “SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE SERIES 2009B BONDS — Reserve Fund”
herein for a description of the Reserve Fund.

Outstanding Obligations

As of June 9, 2009, upon the incurrence of the 2009B Installment Payments and the refundings
described herein, there will be outstanding $1,267,490,000 aggregate principal amount of Parity
Obligations (the “Outstanding Parity Obligations”) and $71,925,170 aggregate principal amount of
Existing SRF Loans (herein defined), which constitute all of the Subordinated Obligations (the
“Outstanding Subordinated Obligations”). The Outstanding Parity Obligations and the Outstanding
Subordinated Obligations were incurred to finance the costs of certain improvements relating to the
Wastewater System. The Outstanding Parity Obligations consist of Installment Payments relating to
seven series of bonded indebtedness (reflecting the issuance of the Series 2009B Bonds and the
defeasance of all the Series 1993 Bonds (herein defined)). The Outstanding Subordinated Obligations
consist of eleven State Revolving Fund Loans (each, an “Existing SRF Loan” and collectively, the
“Existing SRF Loans”). See “PLAN OF FINANCE” and “SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT
FOR THE SERIES 2009B BONDS — Outstanding Obligations” herein. The City also expects to incur
additional Obligations from time to time to finance a portion of the capital improvements to the
Wastewater System, as described under the caption “Wastewater System Capital Improvement Program —
Background” herein.



Incurrence of Additional Obligations

Pursuant to the Installment Purchase Agreement, the City may incur additional Obligations,
payments with respect to which will be on parity with or subordinate in priority to the City’s obligation to
make 2009B Installment Payments, subject to satisfaction of the conditions specified in the Installment
Purchase Agreement. The MWWD applied for an additional State Revolving Fund Loan in the principal
amount of $40 million in calendar year 2008 (the “Additional SRF Loan”) to finance a grit processing
project at the Point Loma Plant (herein defined), which is a part of the Wastewater System CIP (herein
defined). The Additional SRF Loan, if received and approved by the City Council, is expected to
constitute a Parity Obligation under the Installment Purchase Agreement. The City also expects to incur
additional Obligations from time to time to finance a portion of the capital improvements to the
Wastewater System, as described under the caption “WASTEWATER SYSTEM CAPITAL
IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM - Background” herein. See “SECURITY AND SOURCES OF
PAYMENT FOR THE SERIES 2009B BONDS — Incurrence of Additional Obligations” herein.

Continuing Disclosure

The City has agreed to provide, or cause to be provided, in accordance with Rule 15¢2-12(b)(5),
promulgated by the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission under the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended (the “Rule”), certain annual financial information and operating data and, in a timely
manner, notice of certain material events. These covenants have been made in order to assist the
Underwriters in complying with the Rule. Beginning in March 2004 and continuing through Fiscal Year
2009, the City failed to comply with various filing deadlines for a number of undertakings due to the
unavailability of audited financial statements for the City. Each required annual report and audited
financial statement was subsequently filed. The City is current with its filings and is in compliance with
its continuing disclosure obligations. See “CONTINUING DISCLOSURE” herein.

Feasibility Study for the Series 2009A Bonds

Malcolm Pirnie, Inc., Carlsbad, California (the “Feasibility Consultant), was retained to prepare
the “Feasibility Study for 2009 Series Wastewater Revenue Bonds”, dated April 23, 2009 (the
“Feasibility Study”), in connection with the Series 2009A Bonds, which were issued on May 13, 2009.
The Feasibility Study was prepared prior to the pricing of the Series 2009A Bonds and included
assumptions regarding the amount of Series 2009A Bonds to be issued to finance certain capital
improvements to the Wastewater System (the “New Money Portion™) and repay the Series 2007 Notes
(the “2007 Notes Repayment Portion”). The Feasibility Study has not been revised to reflect actual
annual debt service associated with the New Money Portion and 2007 Notes Repayment Portion of the
Series 2009A Bonds, which is lower in every year than the assumed annual debt service for the Series
2009A Bonds in the Feasibility Study. In addition, the Feasibility Study does not reflect any debt service
savings resulting from the issuance of the Series 2009A Bonds and the Series 2009B Bonds and the
refundings in connection therewith. The Feasibility Consultant has consented to the inclusion of the
Feasibility Study in this Official Statement as Appendix B.

Subject to the qualifications set forth therein, the Feasibility Study states that the projections of
revenues and expenses reviewed in comparison with historical data were found to be reasonable and
consistent with the stated assumptions. The Feasibility Study also states that, with the anticipated annual
rate increases described herein and in the Feasibility Study, those already adopted by the City for Fiscal
Years 2009 and 2010 and those included in the last three years of the forecast period (which are subject to
City Council approval), the assumptions utilized for the forecast period are reasonable. Further, the
Feasibility Consultant determined that both the MWWD forecast and the sensitivity analyses prepared
demonstrate the reasonableness of the expected financial results including the 1.20x Debt Service



Coverage requirement on Parity Obligation debt, the 1.10x Debt Service Coverage requirement on
Existing SRF Loans, and established internal cash reserve targets. See “THE FEASIBILITY STUDY”
herein and Appendix B — “FEASIBILITY STUDY FOR 2009 SERIES WASTEWATER REVENUE
BONDS?” attached hereto.

Recent Events Regarding the City

There have been various investigations regarding the City and certain of its financial statements.
Such investigations led to the restatement of the City’s financial statements for the Fiscal Year 2002,
including portions relating to the City’s wastewater utility enterprise fund. However, the investigations,
including the investigations of the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) into the City
did not, to the knowledge of the City, specifically relate to the security for or sources of payment of any of
the City’s Senior Sewer Revenue Bondls.

Investigations Regarding Misleading Disclosures

In early 2004, the City filed three voluntary disclosure filings with the Nationally Recognized
Municipal Securities Information Repositories. The first two filings, on January 27, 2004, revised prior
disclosure regarding the unfunded accrued actuarial liability of the City’s pension system (see
“WASTEWATER SYSTEM FINANCIAL OPERATIONS — San Diego City Employees’ Retirement
System” herein), and described certain errors discovered in the comprehensive annual financial report (the
“CAFR?”) of the City as of June 30, 2002 and the financial statements of the Metropolitan Wastewater
Utility as of June 30, 2002 and 2001. A subsequent filing, on March 12, 2004, described numerous errors
in the notes of the City’s audited annual financial reports for Fiscal Year 2002 (the City’s fiscal year,
beginning on July 1 and ending on June 30 of the following year, is referred to herein as “Fiscal Year”).

As a result of the January 27 filings, on February 13, 2004, the SEC began an investigation into
the City’s disclosure practices relating to the funding of the San Diego City Employees’ Retirement
System (“SDCERS”). At the same time, the United States Attorney’s office for the Southern District of
California began its own investigation into the same matters. In addition, over the course of calendar
years 2004 and 2005, the City hired various consultants to conduct investigative reports and to make
appropriate recommendations to the City Council.

On November 14, 2006, the City entered into a cease-and-desist order (the “Order””) with the SEC
relating to violations of the antifraud provisions of the Federal securities laws in connection with the offer
and sale of municipal securities in calendar years 2002 and 2003, and other related public financial
disclosures concerning its pension and retiree health care liabilities. The SEC concluded that the “City,
through its officials, acted with scienter,” because “City officials acted recklessly in failing to disclose
material information regarding [pension and retiree health care] liabilities.” The Order imposed certain
remedial sanctions, including the retention of an independent consultant to review and assess the City’s
policies, procedures and internal controls with respect to bond offerings, including disclosures made in its
financial statements. On January 16, 2007, the City retained Stanley Keller of the law firm of Edwards
Angell Palmer & Dodge, LLP to serve as Independent Consultant. The Independent Consultant is
required to conduct annual reviews of the City’s policies, procedures and internal controls for a three year
period, and provide copies of such annual reports to the SEC. The reports provided to date, including the
Independent Consultant’s second annual report issued on April 24, 2009, have included recommendations
with respect to, among other things, finalizing and providing for the staffing needs attendant to the City’s
internal audit function, completing the formation of the City’s Audit Committee improving as necessary
such committee’s review of the City’s CAFR, adopting an improper influence ordinance, implementing
internal controls remediation and financial reporting enhancements, coordinating and integrating such
efforts with the City’s overall business processes, continuing to improve the quality of the City’s financial



disclosure and adopting any necessary modifications to the communication process and information flow
between the City and representatives of the City’s pension system. The Mayor and the City Council have
begun to implement the recommendations and continue to work towards establishing a policy of best
practices in the City’s financial reporting and disclosure.

The City established in 2004 its Disclosure Practices Working Group (“DPWG”), a collaborative,
consensus-based group formed to address the City’s disclosure requirements. The purpose of DPWG is
to ensure the compliance by the City (including the City Council, City officers, and staff) with Federal
and State securities laws and to promote the highest standards of accuracy in disclosures provided by the
City relating to securities issued by the City or by its related entities. DPWG consists of five voting
members (the Chief Operating Officer, the Chief Financial Officer, the City Director of Debt
Management, the City Attorney and the Deputy City Attorney for Finance and Disclosure) and two non-
voting members (the City’s outside Disclosure Counsel and the City Auditor). The City’s Independent
Budget Analyst or, from time to time, that official’s designee, is an ex officio participant of DPWG. The
Independent Budget Analyst is appointed by majority vote of the City Council. The Office of the
Independent Budget Analyst was created in 2006 to assist the City Council in the conduct of budgetary
inquiries and in the making of budgetary decisions, which includes providing budget oversight on
legislative initiatives that have policy and financial impacts. The Office of the Independent Budget
Analyst was made a permanent component of the City’s governance structure pursuant to voter-approved
amendments to the City Charter in June 2008. These amendments to the City Charter also created a
separate Office of the City Auditor whose purpose is to advance open and accountable government
through accurate, independent, and objective audits that seek to improve the economy, efficiency, and
effectiveness of City government.

The City understands that other investigations by the SEC or other government agencies may still
be ongoing as to entities or individuals other than the City. On December 11, 2007, the Commission filed
a settled civil fraud action against the City’s Independent Auditor, Thomas J. Saiz and his firm Calderon,
Jaham & Osborn, in connection with the City’s false and misleading financial statements in five bond
offerings in calendar years 2002 and 2003. On April 7, 2008, the SEC filed securities fraud charges
against five former City officials, including the former City Manager, former Auditor and Comptroller,
former Assistant Auditor and Comptroller, former Deputy City Manager and former City Treasurer for
allegedly giving false and misleading statements regarding City bond offerings in calendar years 2002 and
2003. On December 19, 2008, however, the SEC notified four former members of the City Council, the
former Mayor and a current City Councilmember that it had concluded its investigation into their
involvement in the five bond offerings in years 2002 and 2003 and did not intend to recommend charges
against them.

Audited Financial Reports

As a result of the investigations into the City, the completion and release of the City’s audited
financial statements were substantially delayed. The City issued its CAFRs for Fiscal Years 2003
through 2007 during the period from June 2007 through December 2008 and released the Fiscal Year
2008 CAFR on March 26, 2009 which was received and filed by the City Council on April 13, 2009.

City Ratings

A further consequence of the City’s voluntary disclosures and the ensuing investigations was a
series of actions taken by the rating agencies. Beginning in 2004, Moody’s Investors Service, Inc.
(“Moody’s”), and Fitch Ratings (“Fitch”) began to downgrade the credit ratings on the City’s obligations
and changed the outlook on those ratings to negative. Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services, a division of
The McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc. (“S&P”), placed the City’s credit rating, including the credit rating of



Bonds secured by Net System Revenues of the Wastewater System, on negative outlook and subsequently
suspended its credit ratings on all City obligations. The City’s credit ratings were reinstated in May 2008
in connection with the release of its CAFRs for Fiscal Years 2003 through 2006. The City currently
maintains ratings on its bonds and other City debt obligations, including ratings on the Bonds secured by
Net System Revenues of the Wastewater System, from all three rating agencies. See “RATINGS” herein
for a description of the ratings assigned to the Series 2009B Bonds.

The Authority

The Authority is a California joint exercise of powers authority established pursuant to a Joint
Exercise of Powers Agreement by and between the City and the Redevelopment Agency of the City of
San Diego. The Authority was organized, in part, to finance, acquire, construct, maintain, repair, operate
and control certain capital facilities improvements for the City.

Forward-Looking Statements

Certain statements included or incorporated by reference in this Official Statement constitute
“forward-looking statements.” Such statements are generally identifiable by the terminology used such as
“plan,” “expect,” “estimate,” “budget,” “projected” or other similar words. The achievement of certain
results or other expectations contained in such forward-looking statements involve known and unknown
risks, uncertainties and other factors which may cause actual results, performance or achievements
described to be materially different from any future results, performance or achievements expressed or
implied by such forward-looking statements. Although such expectations reflected in such forward-
looking statements are reasonable, there can be no assurance that such expectations will prove to be
correct in whole or in part. Neither the City nor the Authority is obligated to issue any updates or
revisions to the forward-looking statements if or when expectations, or events, conditions or
circumstances on which such statements are based do or do not occur.

LR I3 LIRS

Tax Matters

In the opinion of Nixon Peabody LLP, Bond Counsel, under existing law and assuming
compliance with the tax covenants described herein, and the accuracy of certain representations and
certifications made by the City and the Authority described herein, interest on the Series 2009B Bonds is
excluded from gross income for Federal income tax purposes under Section 103 of the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”). Bond Counsel is also of the opinion that such interest is not
treated as a preference item in calculating the alternative minimum tax imposed under the Code with
respect to individuals and corporations. Interest on the Series 2009B Bonds is, however, included in the
adjusted current earnings of certain corporations for purposes of computing the alternative minimum tax
imposed on such corporations. Bond Counsel is further of the opinion that interest on the Series 2009B
Bonds is exempt from State of California personal income taxes. See “TAX MATTERS” herein
regarding certain other tax considerations.

Miscellaneous

Copies of the Indenture, the Installment Purchase Agreement, the 2009-2 Supplement, other
financing documents and additional information may be obtained upon request from the Trustee at The
Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., 700 S. Flower Street, 5th Floor, Los Angeles,
California 90017.



PLAN OF FINANCE

A portion of the proceeds of the Series 2009B Bonds will be used to refund all or a portion of the
Authority’s Outstanding Bonds, which consist of the Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 1993 (the “Series
1993 Bonds”), Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 1995 (the “Series 1995 Bonds”), Series 1997A Bonds,
Series 1997B Bonds, Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 1999A (the “Series 1999A Bonds”) and Sewer
Revenue Bonds, Series 1999B (the “Series 1999B Bonds”; the refunded portions thereof are collectively
referred to herein as the “Refunded Bonds™ and consist of the maturities set forth in the following table).

With respect to the refunded portions of the Series 1995 Bonds, the Series 1997A Bonds and the
Series 1997B Bonds, the City intends to deposit with The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company,
N.A., in its capacity as trustee for each series of Refunded Bonds, a portion of the proceeds of the Series
2009B Bonds equal to the amount sufficient to pay the principal thereof plus accrued but unpaid interest
to the respective redemption dates therefor. With respect to the refunded portions of the Series 1999A
Bonds and the Series 1999B Bonds, the City intends to deposit with The Bank of New York Mellon Trust
Company, N.A., in its capacity as trustee for each series of Refunded Bonds, a portion of the proceeds of
the Series 2009B Bonds equal to the amount sufficient to pay the principal and redemption premium
thereof plus accrued but unpaid interest to the respective redemption dates therefor. With respect to the
refunding of the Series 1993 Bonds, the City intends to deposit into an escrow fund (the “Escrow Fund”)
established under the Escrow Agreement, dated as of June 1, 2009, by and between the Authority and The
Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as escrow agent (the “Escrow Agent”), moneys which,
when invested in direct, noncallable obligations of the United States Treasury (“Government
Obligations™) or held uninvested in cash, and such amounts, together with the earnings thereon, if any,
will be sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on, the Series 1993 Bonds on their respective
payment and redemption dates. See “VERIFICATION OF MATHEMATICAL COMPUTATIONS”
herein. Proceeds of the Series 2009B Bonds will also be used to fund the Reserve Fund and pay costs of
issuance with respect to the Series 2009B Bonds.



REFUNDED BONDS

Maturity Principal Prepayment Redemption/
Series Date(s) Amount Price Payment Date CUSIP'
Series 1993 Bonds May 15, 2010 $ 8,115,000 100% July 14,2009 797304EC2
May 15,2013 26,830,000 100 July 14, 2009 797304EDO
May 15, 2020 80,840,000 100 July 14, 2009 797304EG3
May 15, 2023 44,435,000 100 July 14,2009 797304EH1
$160,220,000
Series 1995 Bonds May 15, 2010 $ 10,730,000 100% June 9, 2009 79730AANS
May 15, 2011 11,270,000 100 June 9, 2009 79730AAP3
May 15, 2012 11,850,000 100 June 9, 2009 79730AAQ1
May 15, 2013 12,460,000 100 June 9, 2009 79730AAU2
May 15, 2014 13,105,000 100 June 9, 2009 79730AAV0
May 15, 2015 13,790,000 100 June 9, 2009 79730AAR9
May 15, 2020 80,000,000 100 June 9, 2009 79730AAS7
May 15, 2025 58,250,000 100 June 9, 2009 79730AATS
$211.455,000
Series 1997A Bonds May 15, 2010 $ 4,835,000 100% June 9, 2009 79730ABK3
May 15, 2011 5,080,000 100 June 9, 2009 79730ABL1
May 15, 2022 40,540,000 100 June 9, 2009 79730ABT4
May 15, 2027 29.800,000 100 June 9, 2009 79730ABU1
$_80,255,000
Series 1997B Bonds May 15, 2010 $ 1,770,000 100% June 9, 2009 79730ACH9
May 15, 2011 1,860,000 100 June 9, 2009 79730ACIS
May 15, 2022 14,845,000 100 June 9, 2009 79730ACR7
May 15, 2027 10,910,000 100 June 9, 2009 79730ACS5
$_29.385,000
Series 1999A Bonds May 15, 2010 $ 5,000,000 101% June 9, 2009 79730ADK1
May 15, 2011 5,260,000 101 June 9, 2009 79730ADL9
May 15, 2012 5,530,000 101 June 9, 2009 79730ADM7
May 15, 2013 5,810,000 101 June 9, 2009 79730ADNS
May 15, 2014 6,080,000 101 June 9, 2009 79730ADPO
May 15, 2015 6,380,000 101 June 9, 2009 79730ADQ8
May 15, 2016 6,700,000 101 June 9, 2009 79730ADR6
May 15, 2017 7,035,000 101 June 9, 2009 79730ADS4
May 15, 2018 7,370,000 101 June 9, 2009 79730ADT2
May 15, 2019 7,740,000 101 June 9, 2009 79730ADU9
May 15, 2029 34,940,000 101 June 9, 2009 79730ADV7

$_97.845,000



Series 1999B Bonds May 15, 2010 $ 2,750,000 101% June 9, 2009 79730AEG9
May 15, 2011 2,890,000 101 June 9, 2009 79730AEH7
May 15, 2012 3,040,000 101 June 9, 2009 79730AEJ3
May 15, 2013 3,195,000 101 June 9, 2009 79730AEKO
May 15, 2014 3,355,000 101 June 9, 2009 79730AELS
May 15, 2015 3,525,000 101 June 9, 2009 79730AEM6
May 15, 2016 3,700,000 101 June 9, 2009 79730AEN4
May 15, 2017 3,885,000 101 June 9, 2009 79730AEP9
May 15, 2018 4,070,000 101 June 9, 2009 79730AEQ7
May 15, 2019 4,270,000 101 June 9, 2009 79730AERS5
May 15, 2029 19,335,000 101 June 9, 2009 79730AES3
$_54,015,000
Total $633,175,000

¥ Copyright, American Bankers Association. CUSIP data is provided by Standard & Poor’s CUSIP Service Bureau, a Division of the McGraw-Hill

Companies, Inc., and is set forth herein for convenience of reference only. The City, the Authority, the Corporation and the Underwriters do not
assume responsibility for the accuracy of such data.

ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS

The proceeds of the Series 2009B Bonds and their expected uses are set forth below:

SOURCES:

Principal Amount of the Series 2009B Bonds $634,940,000.00

Net Original Issuance Premium 44.140,201.00
Total Sources $679,080,201.00

USES:

§ 38,155,136.24
161,546,116.00

Deposit into Reserve Fund

Deposit into Escrow for Refunding of Series 1993 Bonds

Refunding of Series 1995 Bonds, Series 1997A Bonds,

Series 1997B Bonds, Series 1999A Bonds, Series 1999B Bonds  476,070,609.68

Costs of Issuance'” 3.308,339.08
Total Uses $679.,080,201.00

" Includes Underwriters’ discount, trustee fees, financial advisor fees, rating agency fees, escrow agent fees, bond
counsel fees and expenses, disclosure counsel fees and expenses, verification agent fees, printing costs and
other miscellaneous expenses.

DESCRIPTION OF THE SERIES 2009B BONDS
General

The Series 2009B Bonds will be issued as fully-registered bonds in denominations of $5,000 and
any integral multiple thereof and when issued, will be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as the
nominee of The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York (“DTC”). DTC will act as securities
depository for the Series 2009B Bonds. Ownership interests in the Series 2009B Bonds may be purchased
in book-entry form only. So long as DTC or its nominee is the Owner of the Series 2009B Bonds,
principal of redemption premium, if any, and interest on the Series 2009B Bonds will be made as
described in Appendix F — “INFORMATION REGARDING THE BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM”
attached hereto.
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The Series 2009B Bonds will accrue interest from their date of delivery and interest thereon will
be payable on May 15 and November 15 of each year, commencing on November 15, 2009. The Series
2009B Bonds will bear interest at the respective rates set forth on the inside cover page hereof. See
Appendix C — “SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL LEGAL DOCUMENTS” attached hereto.

Interest on the Series 2009B Bonds shall be calculated on the basis of a 360-day year, comprised
of twelve thirty-day months. Interest coming due on a date which is not a Business Day shall be payable
on the immediately following Business Day. Each Series 2009B Bond shall bear interest from the
Interest Payment Date next preceding the date of authentication thereof, unless such date of authentication
is during the period commencing after a Record Date through and including the next succeeding Interest
Payment Date, in which event it shall bear interest from such Interest Payment Date, or unless such date
of authentication is on or before the first Record Date, in which event it shall bear interest from its dated
date; provided, however, that if on the date of authentication of any Series 2009B Bonds, interest is then
in default on the Outstanding Series 2009B Bonds, such Series 2009B Bonds shall bear interest from the
Interest Payment Date to which interest has previously been paid or made available for payment on the
Outstanding Series 2009B Bonds. Payment of interest on the Series 2009B Bonds due on or before the
maturity or prior redemption thereof shall be made to the Owner or Owners of record as of the Record
Date preceding the applicable Interest Payment Date, on the registration books kept by the Trustee, such
interest to be paid by check mailed by first class mail on such Interest Payment Date to such Owner at his
address as it appears on such books; provided, that in the event the ownership of such Series 2009B
Bonds is no longer maintained in book-entry form by the Depository, such payment shall be made by
wire transfer to any Owner of at least $1,000,000 in aggregate principal amount of Series 2009B Bonds,
in immediately available funds to an account in the continental United States designated in writing by
such Owner to the Trustee prior to the applicable Record Date.

Redemption

Optional Redemption. The Series 2009B Bonds maturing on and before May 15, 2019 are not
subject to optional redemption prior to their stated maturities. The Series 2009B Bonds maturing on and
after May 15, 2020 shall be subject to optional redemption, in whole or in part, at the option of the
Authority (upon the direction of the City), at any time on or after May 15, 2019, from and to the extent of
prepaid Series 2009B Installment Payments paid pursuant to the Indenture, at a redemption price equal to
the principal amount of Series 2009B Bonds called for redemption, together with interest accrued thereon
to the date fixed for redemption, without premium.

Notice of Redemption. Pursuant to the Indenture, each notice of redemption will be mailed to the
Owners not more than 60 days nor less than 30 days prior to the redemption date and will state the date of
such notice, the redemption price (including the name and appropriate address of the Trustee), and, in the
case of Series 2009B Bonds to be redeemed in part only, the respective portions of the principal amount
thereof to be redeemed. Each such notice will also state that on said date there will become due and
payable on each of said Series 2009B Bonds thereof and in the case of a Series 2009B Bond to be
redeemed in part only, the specified portion of the principal amount thereof to be redeemed, together with
interest accrued thereon to the redemption date, and that from and after such redemption date, interest
thereon will cease to accrue, and will require that such Series 2009B Bonds be then surrendered at the
address of the Trustee specified in the redemption notice. Notice of redemption may be conditioned upon
the occurrence of one or more events and may be revoked prior to the redemption date. Notice of
redemption may be conditioned upon the occurrence of future events, including but not limited to the
issuance of refunding bonds, and may be given and rescinded by the Trustee prior to the redemption date,
upon written instruction of the Authority.
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Effect of Redemption. 1f notice of redemption has been duly given as provided in the Indenture
and money for the payment of the redemption price of the Series 2009B Bonds called for redemption is
held by the Trustee, then on the redemption date designated in such notice, the Series 2009B Bonds will
become due and payable, and from and after the date so designated, interest on the Series 2009B Bonds so
called for redemption will cease to accrue, and the Owners of such Series 2009B Bonds will have no
rights in respect thereof except to receive payment of the redemption price thereof. A deficiency in any
such notice will not affect the sufficiency of the proceedings for redemption. All Series 2009B Bonds
redeemed pursuant to the provisions of the Indenture will be cancelled by the Trustee and will not be
reissued, and the Trustee will thereupon deliver a certificate of cancellation to the Authority.

SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE SERIES 2009B BONDS
Source of Payment; Priority of Pledge of Net System Revenues

The Series 2009B Bonds shall be limited obligations of the Authority payable solely from the
Revenues of the Authority and amounts on deposit in the funds and accounts established under the
Indenture (other than amounts on deposit in the Rebate Fund). “Revenues” means all amounts received
by or due to be paid to the Authority pursuant to or with respect to the Installment Purchase Agreement in
connection with the Bonds and all interest or gain derived from the investment of money in any of the
funds (other than the Rebate Fund) established under the Indenture. The 2009B Installment Payments are
secured by and payable solely from Net System Revenues and are required to be paid by the City to the
Authority. See “SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE SERIES 2009B BONDS — Net
System Revenues” herein for a description of Net System Revenues.

The pledge and right of payment from Net System Revenues securing the 2009B Installment
Payments (which, in turn, secure the Series 2009B Bonds) is on parity with the pledge and right of
payment from Net System Revenues securing the Installment Payments represented by the Authority’s
Outstanding Parity Obligations, which will be outstanding in the aggregate principal amount of
$1,267,490,000 as of June 9, 2009 upon the incurrence of the 2009B Installment Payments, and any other
Parity Obligations that may be issued from time to time in accordance with the Installment Purchase
Agreement. See “PLAN OF FINANCE” and “SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE
SERIES 2009B BONDS - Incurrence of Additional Obligations” and “— Parity Obligations” herein. All
Parity Obligations, including Parity Installment Payment Obligations, shall be secured by a first priority
lien on and pledge of Net System Revenues. All Parity Obligations shall be of equal rank with each other
without preference, priority or distinction of any Parity Obligations over any other Parity Obligations.

The pledge and right of payment from Net System Revenues securing the 2009B Installment
Payments (which, in turn, secure the Series 2009B Bonds) is senior to the pledge and right of payment
from Net System Revenues securing the Subordinated Obligations, consisting of the eleven Existing SRF
Loans that will be outstanding in the aggregate principal amount of $71,925,170. All Subordinated
Obligations shall be secured by a second priority lien on and pledge of Net System Revenues that are
junior and subordinate to the lien on and pledge of Net System Revenues securing Parity Obligations. All
Subordinated Obligations shall be of equal rank with each other without preference, priority or distinction
of any Subordinated Obligations over any other Subordinated Obligations. The Installment Purchase
Agreement provides that, subject to satisfaction of the requirements set forth therein for the incurrence of
additional Obligations of the City, nothing therein shall limit the ability of the City to grant liens on and
pledges of Net System Revenues that are subordinate to the liens on and pledges of Net System Revenues
for the benefit of Parity Obligations and Subordinated Obligations contained in the Installment Purchase
Agreement. See Appendix C — “SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL LEGAL DOCUMENTS” attached hereto.
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The Additional SRF Loan in the principal amount of $40 million applied for by the City, if
received and approved by the City Council, and any other State Revolving Fund Loans subsequent thereto
are expected to constitute Parity Obligations. See “SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR
THE SERIES 2009B BONDS — Outstanding Obligations” herein.

Sewer Revenue Fund

The City accounts for its wastewater operations through an enterprise fund known as the “Sewer
Revenue Fund” (also referenced as the “Sewer Utility Fund” in the City’s CAFRs). The Sewer Revenue
Fund was established by an amendment to the Municipal Code of the City (the “City Municipal Code”)
on August 2, 1956. All System Revenues are deposited in the Sewer Revenue Fund.

All moneys in the Sewer Revenue Fund must first be used to pay: (1) directly or as otherwise
required all Maintenance and Operation Costs of the Wastewater System; (2) to the Trustee amounts due
in respect of Parity Installment Obligations for deposit in the Payment Fund for Parity Installment
Obligations, the amounts specified in any Issuing Instrument, as payments due on account of Parity
Obligations; (3) to the obligee specified therein, any payment due as to any Parity Obligation that is not a
Parity Installment Obligation (including any Credit Provider Reimbursement Obligations designated as
Parity Obligations), other than (A) payments due on account of Qualified Take or Pay Obligations and
(B) payments due by the City under a Qualified Swap Agreement; (iv) to the obligee specified therein,
any payment due as to Qualified Take or Pay Obligations; and (v) to the counterparty specified in any
Qualified Swap Agreement, the amounts or payments due under such Qualified Swap Agreement as
Parity Obligations. In the event there are insufficient Net System Revenues to make all of the payments
contemplated by clauses (2), (3), (4) and (5) of the immediately preceding sentence, then said payments
shall be made as nearly as practicable, pro rata, based upon the respective unpaid principal amounts of
said Parity Obligations. After such payments have been made, any remaining Net System Revenues must
be used to make up any deficiency in the Reserve Funds or Reserve Accounts for Parity Obligations.

Notwithstanding anything in the Installment Purchase Agreement to the contrary, no payments
from the Sewer Revenue Fund will be made in respect of any Subordinated Obligations unless the
following conditions are met: (1) all Maintenance and Operation Costs of the Wastewater System are
being and have been paid and are then current and (2) all deposits and payments contemplated by the
Installment Purchase Agreement have been made in full and no deficiency in any Reserve Fund or
Reserve Account for Parity Obligations shall exist, and there shall have been paid, or segregated within
the Sewer Revenue Fund, the amounts payable during the current month pursuant to the Installment
Purchase Agreement; provided, however, that if the amounts payable during any month pursuant to the
Installment Purchase Agreement are not able to be determined at the time of the payment of any
Subordinated Obligation due to periods in which the actual interest rate accruing in respect of any Parity
Obligations cannot yet determined, then no payments from the Sewer Revenue Fund shall be made in
respect of any Subordinated Obligations unless there shall have been made segregated within the Sewer
Revenue Fund the maximum amount that may be payable in that month under the Installment Purchase
Agreement as specified in the Issuing Instruments of the Parity Obligations and in accordance with
applicable law.

Subject to the Installment Purchase Agreement, the City will apply any amounts thereafter
remaining in the Sewer Revenue Fund (A) to the payment of Subordinated Credit Provider Expenses and
(B) to the obligee specified therein, any payment due as to any Subordinated Obligations. In the event that
there are insufficient Net System Revenues remaining in the Sewer Revenue Fund after the payments
described in the Installment Purchase Agreement to make all payments contemplated by clause (B) of the
immediately preceding sentence, then said payments shall be made as nearly practicable, pro rata based
on the respective unpaid principal amounts of said Subordinated Obligations.

13



There are no Outstanding Qualified Take or Pay Obligations or Qualified Swap Agreements and
there will be no such obligations or agreements as of the date of issuance of the Series 2009B Bonds.

Net System Revenues

“Net System Revenues” means, for any Fiscal Year, System Revenues for such Fiscal Year less
Operation and Maintenance Costs of the Wastewater System for such Fiscal Year.

The term “System Revenues” is defined in the Installment Purchase Agreement to include all
income, rents, rates, fees, charges and other moneys derived from the ownership or operation of the
Wastewater System, including, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, (1) all income, rents,
rates, fees, charges (including standby and capacity charges), or other moneys derived by the City from
the wastewater services, facilities, and commodities or byproducts sold, furnished or supplied through the
facilities of or in the conduct or operation of the business of the Wastewater System, and including,
without limitation, investment earnings on the operating reserves to the extent that the use of such
earnings is limited to the Wastewater System by or pursuant to law, earnings on any Reserve Fund for
Obligations, but only to the extent that such earnings may be utilized under the Issuing Instrument for the
payment of debt service for such Obligations; (2) the proceeds derived by the City directly or indirectly
from the lease of a part of the Wastewater System; (3) any amount received from the levy or collection of
taxes which are solely available and are earmarked for the support of the operation of the Wastewater
System; and (4) amounts received under contracts or agreements with governmental or private entities
and designated for capital costs; and (5) grants received from the United States of America or from the
State of California; provided, however, that System Revenues shall not include: (a) in all cases,
customers’ deposits or any other deposits or advances subject to refund until such deposits or advances
have become the property of the City; and (b) the proceeds of borrowings. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, there shall be deducted from System Revenues any amounts transferred, into a Rate
Stabilization Fund as contemplated by the Installment Purchase Agreement, and there shall be added to
System Revenues any amounts transferred out of such Rate Stabilization Fund to pay Maintenance and
Operation Costs of the Wastewater System.

“Maintenance and Operation Costs of the Wastewater System” is defined in the Installment
Purchase Agreement to include: (a) a Qualified Take or Pay Obligation and (b) the reasonable and
necessary costs spent or incurred by the City for maintaining and operating the Wastewater System,
calculated in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, including (among other things)
the reasonable expenses of management and repair and other expenses necessary to maintain and preserve
the Wastewater System in good repair and working order, and including administrative costs of the City
attributable to the Project and the Installment Purchase Agreement, salaries and wages of employees,
payments to employees retirement systems (to the extent paid from Wastewater System Revenues),
overhead, taxes (if any), fees of auditors, accountants, attorneys or engineers and insurance premiums,
and including all other reasonable and necessary costs of the City or charges required to be paid by it to
comply with the terms of the Obligations, including this Installment Purchase Agreement, including any
amounts required to be deposited in the Rebate Fund pursuant to the Tax Certificate, fees and expenses
payable to any Credit Provider (other than in repayment of a Credit Provider Reimbursement Obligation),
and expenses incurred or accrued incident to the formation of an entity to which the City may transfer
substantially all of the Metropolitan Sub-System pursuant to the Installment Purchase Agreement, but
excluding in all cases (i) depreciation, replacement and obsolescence charges or reserves therefor, (ii)
amortization of intangibles or other bookkeeping entries of a similar nature, (iii) costs of capital additions,
replacements, betterments, extensions or improvements to the Wastewater System which under generally
accepted accounting principles are chargeable to a capital account or to a reserve for depreciation, (iv)
charges for the payment of principal and interest on any general obligation bond heretofore or hereafter
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issued for Wastewater System purposes, and (v) charges for the payment of principal and interest on any
debt service on account of any obligation on a parity with or subordinate to the Installment Payments.

Obligation of City under Installment Purchase Agreement

Pursuant to the Installment Purchase Agreement, the City commits, absolutely and
unconditionally, to make Installment Payments (including the 2009B Installment Payments) to the
Authority solely from Net System Revenues until such time as the Purchase Price has been paid in full (or
provision for the payment thereof has been made pursuant to the Installment Purchase Agreement). The
City will not discontinue or suspend any 2009B Installment Payments required to be made by it under the
Installment Purchase Agreement when due, whether or not the Project or any part thereof is operating or
operable or has been completed, or its use is suspended, interfered with, reduced or curtailed or
terminated in whole or in part, and such 2009B Installment Payments will not be subject to reduction
whether by offset or otherwise and will not be conditioned upon the performance or nonperformance by
any party of any agreement for any cause whatsoever.

Under the Installment Purchase Agreement, the City has retained the right to transfer ownership
of substantially all of the Metropolitan Sub-System, including amounts in the Sewer Revenue Fund
attributable to the Metropolitan Sub-System and any amounts in the Rate Stabilization Fund agreed upon
by the City and the transferee as being attributable to the Metropolitan Sub-System, to the MWWD or any
other governmental agency whose primary purpose is to provide wastewater treatment and disposal
services upon the satisfaction of certain conditions. See “WASTEWATER SYSTEM — General” herein
and Appendix C — “SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL LEGAL DOCUMENTS — Master Installment Purchase
Agreement — Covenants of the City — Transfer of Metropolitan Sub-System Components” attached hereto.

Rate Covenant

The City has covenanted in the Installment Purchase Agreement to fix, prescribe and collect rates
and charges for Wastewater Service, which will be at least sufficient (i) to pay during each Fiscal Year all
Obligations (other than Parity Obligations) payable in such Fiscal Year, and (ii) to yield during each
Fiscal Year Net System Revenues equal to 120% of the Debt Service (defined in the Installment Purchase
Agreement generally to mean the aggregate amount of principal, sinking fund payments and interest
payable in respect of all Parity Obligations for such Fiscal Year) for such Fiscal Year (the “Rate
Covenant”). See Appendix C — “SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL LEGAL DOCUMENTS -
DEFINITIONS” attached hereto. The Wastewater Service rendered by the City includes services relating
to the Metropolitan Sub-System, of which the Participating Agencies are a part. See “THE
WASTEWATER SYSTEM - Participating Agencies” for a description of the rates and charges paid and
to be paid by the Participating Agencies. Obligations include Subordinated Obligations and other
obligations. The City may make adjustments from time to time in such rates and charges and may make
such classification thereof as it deems necessary to the fullest extent permitted by law, but the City will
not reduce the rates and charges then in effect unless the Net System Revenues from such reduced rates
and charges will at all times be sufficient to meet the requirements of Installment Purchase Agreement.
Pursuant to the Installment Purchase Agreement, from time to time the City may deposit into the Rate
Stabilization Fund, from current System Revenues, such amounts as the City shall determine and the
amount of available current System Revenues shall be reduced by the amount so transferred. Amounts
may be transferred from the Rate Stabilization Fund solely and exclusively to pay Maintenance and
Operation Costs of the Wastewater System, and any amounts so transferred will be deemed System
Revenues when so transferred. All interest or other earnings upon amounts in the Rate Stabilization Fund
may be withdrawn therefrom and accounted for as System Revenues. See “WASTEWATER SYSTEM
FINANCIAL OPERATIONS — Rate Stabilization Fund and Other Reserves” herein and Appendix C —
“SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL LEGAL DOCUMENTS” attached hereto. See also “RISK FACTORS -
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Rate-Setting Process Under Proposition 218” and “CONSTITUTIONAL LIMITATIONS ON TAXES
AND WASTEWATER RATES AND CHARGES — Articles XIIIC and XIIID” for a description of State
Constitutional limits upon the City’s rate-setting process.

Reserve Fund

The Indenture requires the Authority to establish and maintain in the Reserve Fund an amount of
money which, together with the amount already on deposit therein, including the stated amount of a
Surety Bond, if any, then on deposit, is equal to the Reserve Requirement. The “Reserve Requirement” is
defined to be, as of any date of calculation, the least of (i) ten percent (10%) of the proceeds (within the
meaning of Section 148 of the Code) of the Bonds; (ii) 125% of average annual debt service on the then-
Outstanding Bonds; or (iii) the Maximum Annual Debt Service for that and any subsequent Fiscal Year.
The Authority may fund the Reserve Requirement by depositing into the Reserve Fund cash from a
portion of the proceeds of Bonds issued under the Indenture or a Surety Bond. The Authority anticipates
that in connection with the issuance of the Series 2009B Bonds it will initially fund the Reserve Fund
through a deposit of $38,155,136.24 from proceeds of the Series 2009B Bonds.

Outstanding Obligations

As of June 9, 2009, upon the incurrence of the 2009B Installment Payments and the refundings
described herein, there will be outstanding $1,267,490,000 aggregate principal amount of Outstanding
Parity Obligations and $71,925,170 aggregate principal amount of Outstanding Subordinated Obligations.
The Outstanding Parity Obligations and the Outstanding Subordinated Obligations were issued to finance
the costs of certain improvements relating to the Wastewater System. The Outstanding Parity Obligations
will consist of Installment Payments relating to seven series of bonded indebtedness. The Outstanding
Subordinated Obligations consist of the Existing SRF Loans which will be outstanding in the aggregate
principal amount of $71,925,170 as of June 9, 2009.

Table 1 below sets forth the Outstanding Parity Bonds (herein defined) and Existing SRF Loans

secured by Net System Revenues of the Wastewater System as of June 9, 2009 upon the incurrence of the
Series 2009B Installment Payments and the refundings described herein.
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CITY OF SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN WASTEWATER DEPARTMENT

TABLE 1

OUTSTANDING PARITY BONDS AND EXISTING SRF LOANS

As of June 9, 2009
Remaining Scheduled
Original Principal Interest Total Principal Final
Name of Issue Issue Size Outstanding(l) Payments'"’ and Interest" Maturity
1995 Bonds"” $ 350,000,000 $ 43,850,000 $ 34,010,500 $ 77,860,500  May 15,2025
1997A and B Bonds'” 250,000,000 30,825,000 28,341,075 59,166,075  May 15, 2027
1999A and B Bonds"” 315,410,000 104,100,000 91,827,000 195,927,000  May 15, 2029
2009A Bonds 453,775,000 453,775,000 404,733,620 858,508,620  May 15, 2039
2009B Bonds 634,940,000 634,940,000 276,681,932 911,621,932  May 15, 2025
Existing SRF Loans® 98,991,000 71.925.170 10,192,334% 82.117.504  April 30, 2026
TOTAL $2.103,116,000 $1,339.415,170  $845,786.461  $2,185,201,631

Source: Metropolitan Wastewater Department.

M

@
3)

@)

Reflects use of a portion of the proceeds of the Series 2009B Bonds to refund all the Outstanding 1993 Bonds in the aggregate
principal amount of $160,220,000, a portion of the Series 1995 Bonds in the aggregate principal amount of $211,455,000, a portion of
the Series 1997A Bonds in the aggregate principal amount of $80,255,000, a portion of the Series 1997B Bonds in the aggregate
principal amount of $29,385,000, a portion of the Series 1999A Bonds in the aggregate principal amount of $97,845,000 and a portion
of the Series 1999B Bonds in the aggregate principal amount of $54,015,000. See “PLAN OF FINANCE” herein.

Data reflects the aggregate amount of the eleven Existing SRF Loans which are currently outstanding.

Reflects aggregate interest payments required to be paid under the Existing SRF Loans, regardless of the date of payment or
prepayment by the City. See Note 6 - “Business-Type Activities Long-Term Liabilities” contained in Appendix A-1 - “BASIC
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION FROM THE COMPREHENSIVE
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT OF THE CITY OF SAN DIEGO FOR FISCAL YEAR 2008 attached hereto for a schedule of the
Existing SRF Loans and their effective interest rates.

April 30, 2026 is the final scheduled maturity date for the existing SRF Loan with the furthest scheduled maturity date.

Incurrence of Additional Obligations

Pursuant to the Installment Purchase Agreement, the City may incur additional Obligations,
payments with respect to which will be on parity with or subordinate in priority to the City’s obligation to
make 2009B Installment Payments, subject to satisfaction of the conditions specified in the Installment
Purchase Agreement.

Parity Obligations. The City may not create any Obligations the payments of which are senior or
prior to the pledge and right of payment from Net System Revenues securing the Parity Obligations. The
City may at any time and from time to time issue or create any other Parity Obligations, so long as there
shall not have occurred and be continuing (i) an Event of Default under the Installment Purchase
Agreement or any Issuing Instrument or (ii) an Event of Default or Termination Event (as defined in any
Qualified Swap Agreement) under any Qualified Swap Agreement; and the City obtains or provides a
certificate or certificates, prepared by the City or at the City’s option by a Consultant, showing that:

() the Net System Revenues as shown by the books of the City for any 12
consecutive month period out of the 18 consecutive months ending immediately prior to the
incurring of such additional other Parity Obligations shall have amounted to at least 1.20 times
the Maximum Annual Debt Service on all Parity Obligations Outstanding during such period; and

2) the estimated Net System Revenues for the next 12 months following the date of
issuance of such other Parity Obligations will be at least equal to 1.20 times the Maximum
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Annual Debt Service for all Parity Obligations which will be Outstanding immediately after the
issuance of the proposed Parity Obligations.

The certificate or certificates described above in clause (2) above will not be required if the Parity
Obligations being issued are for the purpose of refunding (i) then-Outstanding Parity Obligations if at the
time of the issuance of such Parity Obligations a certificate of an Authorized City Representative is
delivered showing that the sum of Debt Service in each Fiscal Year on all Parity Obligations Outstanding
after the issuance of the refunding Parity Obligations will not exceed Debt Service in each corresponding
Fiscal Year on all Parity Obligations Outstanding prior to the issuance of such refunding Parity
Obligations; or (ii) then-Outstanding Balloon Indebtedness, Tender Indebtedness or Variable Rate
Indebtedness, but only to the extent that the principal amount of such indebtedness has been put, tendered
to or otherwise purchased by a standby purchase or other liquidity facility relating to such indebtedness.
For additional information relating to the terms and conditions for the issuance of the Parity Obligations
under the Installment Purchase Agreement, see Appendix C — “SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL LEGAL
DOCUMENTS?” attached hereto.

Subordinated Obligations. The City may at any time issue or create Subordinated Obligations
that are payable from Net System Revenues on a basis subordinate to the payment by the City of the
Installment Payments securing the Outstanding Parity Bonds (as defined in the Installment Purchase
Agreement), so long as no Event of Default has occurred and is continuing and no event of default or
Termination Event (as defined in any Qualified Swap Agreement) under any Qualified Swap Agreement
has occurred and is continuing, and provided the City obtains or provides a certificate or certificates,
prepared by the City or at the City’s option by a Consultant, showing that:

(D the Net System Revenues as shown by the books of the City for any 12-
consecutive month period out within the 18-consecutive months ending immediately prior to the
incurring of such additional other Subordinated Obligations shall have amounted to at least 1.00
times the Maximum Annual Debt Service on all Obligations Outstanding immediately after the
issuance of the proposed Subordinated Obligations; or

(2) the estimated Net System Revenues for the five Fiscal Years following the earlier
of (a) the end of the period during which interest on those Subordinated Obligations is to be
capitalized or, if no interest is to be capitalized, the Fiscal Year in which the Subordinated
Obligations are issued; or (b) the date on which substantially all new facilities financed with such
Subordinated Obligations are expected to commence operations, will be at least equal to 1.00
times the Maximum Annual Debt Service on all Obligations which will be Outstanding
immediately after the issuance of the proposed Subordinated Obligations.

The certificate or certificates described above in clause (2) above will not be required if the
Subordinated Obligations being issued are for the purpose of refunding (i) then-Outstanding Parity
Obligations or Subordinated Obligations if at the time of the issuance of such Subordinated Obligations a
certificate of an Authorized City Representative is delivered showing that the sum of Debt Service for all
remaining Fiscal Years on all Parity Obligations and Subordinated Obligations Outstanding after the
issuance of the refunding Subordinated Obligations will not exceed the sum of Debt Service for all
remaining Fiscal Years on all Parity Obligations and Subordinated Obligations Outstanding prior to the
issuance of such refunding Subordinated Obligations; or (ii) then-Outstanding Balloon Indebtedness,
Tender Indebtedness or Variable Rate Indebtedness, but only to the extent that the principal amount of
such indebtedness has been put, tendered to or otherwise purchased by a standby purchase or other
liquidity facility relating to such indebtedness. For additional information relating to the terms and
conditions for the issuance of the Subordinated Obligations under the Installment Purchase Agreement,
see Appendix C — “SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL LEGAL DOCUMENTS” attached hereto.
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The obligation of the City to make all payments required by the Existing SRF Loans to the State
Water Board is a Subordinated Obligation under the Installment Purchase Agreement and payable solely
from Net System Revenues. Pursuant to the Existing SRF Loans, the City may incur additional Parity
Obligations (the payments of which are senior or prior in right to the payment by the City of its
obligations required by the Existing SRF Loans, and all other contracts between the City and the State
Water Board that, by their terms, expressly provide therefor), including the 2009B Installment Payments,
provided that (1) all Parity Obligations (including the Parity Obligations proposed to be incurred) shall
have an “A” rating (without regard to any refinement or gradation of such rating category by a numerical
modifier or otherwise) or better by at least two nationally recognized rating agencies; and (2) the City
fixes, prescribes and collects rates and charges for Wastewater Service which will be sufficient to ensure
that Net System Revenues to pay the obligations required by the Existing SRF Loans are at least 1.10
times the current year’s debt service on the Existing SRF Loans.
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Annual Debt Service Requirements on Parity Bonds

Table 2 below sets forth the amounts required in each Fiscal Year for the payment of principal of
and interest on the Outstanding Parity Bonds and amounts payable on the Series 2009B Bonds. See
“SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE SERIES 2009B BONDS” herein.

TABLE 2
DEBT SERVICE ON ALL PARITY BONDS"®

Outstanding Parity Bonds

Series 2009B Bonds

Fiscal Year Total Principal Total Principal Total Debt
ending June 30 Principal Interest and Interest Principal Interest and Interest Service®
2010 $ 6,810,000 $ 31,183,932 $ 37,993,932 $ 36,510,000 $ 28,516,682  $ 65,026,682 $ 103,020,614
2011 7,075,000 30,925,256 38,000,256 35,545,000 29,458,288 65,003,288 103,003,544
2012 14,560,000 30,730,694 45,290,694 29,670,000 28,036,488 57,706,488 102,997,182
2013 15,090,000 30,210,794 45,300,794 31,030,000 26,671,388 57,701,388 103,002,182
2014 15,740,000 29,556,294 45,296,294 32,545,000 25,156,738 57,701,738 102,998,032
2015 16,385,000 28,911,744 45,296,744 34,150,000 23,553,988 57,703,988 103,000,732
2016 17,125,000 28,166,519 45,291,519 35,750,000 21,951,988 57,701,988 102,993,507
2017 17,925,000 27,372,569 45,297,569 37,485,000 20,216,638 57,701,638 102,999,207
2018 8,990,000 26,522,719 35,512,719 49,320,000 18,356,038 67,676,038 103,188,757
2019 9,435,000 26,073,219 35,508,219 51,775,000 15,900,788 67,675,788 103,184,007
2020 9,835,000 25,672,231 35,507,231 54,295,000 13,377,788 67,672,788 103,180,019
2021 10,230,000 25,278,831 35,508,831 56,995,000 10,678,388 67,673,388 103,182,219
2022 10,745,000 24,767,331 35,512,331 59,845,000 7,833,138 67,678,138 103,190,469
2023 11,270,000 24,242,231 35,512,231 62,825,000 4,847,450 67,672,450 103,184,681
2024 48,525,000 23,678,731 72,203,731 13,270,000 1,394,825 14,664,825 86,868,556
2025 50,955,000 21,252,481 72,207,481 13,930,000 731,325 14,661,325 86,868,806
2026 44,935,000 18,704,731 63,639,731 -- - - 63,639,731
2027 47,215,000 16,420,431 63,635,431 -- -- - 63,635,431
2028 32,980,000 14,020,169 47,000,169 -- - - 47,000,169
2029 34,635,000 12,371,169 47,006,169 -- -- - 47,006,169
2030 15,875,000 10,620,544 26,495,544 -- - - 26,495,544
2031 16,710,000 9,785,169 26,495,169 -- - - 26,495,169
2032 17,590,000 8,905,844 26,495,844 -- - - 26,495,844
2033 18,515,000 7,980,213 26,495,213 -- - - 26,495,213
2034 19,485,000 7,005,900 26,490,900 -- -- -- 26,490,900
2035 20,515,000 5,980,538 26,495,538 -- - - 26,495,538
2036 21,590,000 4,903,500 26,493,500 -- - - 26,493,500
2037 22,725,000 3,770,025 26,495,025 -- - - 26,495,025
2038 23,915,000 2,576,963 26,491,963 -- - - 26,491,963
2039 25,170,000 1,321,425 26,491.425 - - - 26.491.425
Total® $632,550,000 $558,912,195  $1,191,462,195  $634,940,000 $276,681,932 $911,621,932 $2,103,084,126

Source: Department of Debt Management, City of San Diego.
Reflects use of a portion of the proceeds of the Series 2009B Bonds to refund all the Outstanding Series 1993 Bonds in the
aggregate principal amount of $160,220,000, a portion of the Series 1995 Bonds in the aggregate principal amount of
$211,455,000, a portion of the Series 1997A Bonds in the aggregate principal amount of $80,255,000, a portion of the Series
1997B Bonds in the aggregate principal amount of $29,385,000, a portion of the Series 1999A Bonds in the aggregate
principal amount of $97,845,000 and a portion of the Series 1999B Bonds in the aggregate principal amount of $54,015,000.

1

2

3)

See “PLAN OF FINANCE” herein.

Reflects annual debt service requirements on the Outstanding Parity Bonds subsequent to the Authority’s May 15, 2009
payments of principal of and interest on such Outstanding Parity Bonds.

Amounts may not total due to rounding.
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THE FEASIBILITY STUDY

The Feasibility Consultant was retained by the City to prepare the Feasibility Study in connection
with the Series 2009A Bonds, which were issued on May 13, 2009. The Feasibility Consultant is a
consulting engineering firm specializing in partnering with clients to deliver major environmental capital
projects and providing utility management services. The Feasibility Study contains a review and analysis
of technical, economic and environmental aspects of the Wastewater System and other related matters.
The review presented in the Feasibility Study is an assessment of current and recent actions, plans and
approaches to the management and operation of the Wastewater System, taking into account future
conditions that could impact the management and operation of the Wastewater System. The estimates,
opinions and conclusions expressed in the Feasibility Study are based upon certain assumptions,
calculations and qualifications set forth therein, and the Feasibility Study should be read in its entirety.
While the Feasibility Consultant believes these assumptions to be reasonable for purposes of the
Feasibility Study, the assumptions may vary significantly from actual future conditions due to
unanticipated events and circumstances. To the extent that actual future conditions vary from those
assumed in the Feasibility Study, the actual results will vary from those contained in the Feasibility
Study.

The Feasibility Study was prepared prior to the pricing of the Series 2009A Bonds and included
assumptions regarding the New Money Portion and the 2007 Notes Repayment Portion. The Feasibility
Study has not been revised to reflect actual annual debt service associated with the New Money Portion
and 2007 Notes Repayment Portion of the Series 2009A Bonds, which is lower in every year than the
assumed annual debt service for the Series 2009A Bonds in the Feasibility Study. In addition, the
Feasibility Study does not reflect any debt service savings resulting from the issuance of the Series 2009A
Bonds and the Series 2009B Bonds and the refundings in connection therewith. The Feasibility
Consultant has consented to the inclusion of the Feasibility Study in this Official Statement as
Appendix B.

The following sets forth the summary and conclusions of the Feasibility Consultant set forth in
the Feasibility Study (see Appendix B — “FEASIBILITY STUDY FOR 2009 SERIES WASTEWATER
REVENUE BONDS — Executive Summary — Summary of Conclusions” attached hereto) prepared by the
Feasibility Consultant and attached as Appendix B hereto. A full review should be made of the entire
Feasibility Study. The City, the Authority and the Underwriters do not accept any responsibility for the
accuracy or completeness of the following information.

Based on information gained by the Feasibility Consultant through site visits, discussions with
the MWWD’s engineering, administrative, and operating personnel, reviews of planning documents,
reports, and studies prepared by external consultants for the MWWD, reviews of regulatory requirements
and performance documents, and financial forecasts, including the five-year Wastewater System CIP:

1. The MWWD is organized in a manner which provides satisfactory and reliable
wastewater management services that meet public needs. The organizational structure provides for
appropriate delegation of management authority. Positions are staffed with qualified and trained
personnel.

2. The technology employed by the MWWD at its wastewater treatment facilities meets or

exceeds that of most other comparable utilities, is appropriate for its application, and results in adequate
wastewater treatment.

21



3. Together with the Engineering and Capital Projects Department, the MWWD has the
requisite staffing, experience and qualifications to plan and execute and to operate the Wastewater System
projects within the projected Wastewater System CIP.

4. Generally, facilities were found to be well-maintained and properly staffed.

5. The Wastewater System satisfies current Federal, State, regional, County of San Diego
and City regulations. However, future regulations may require operational modifications and additional
capital improvements. The Wastewater System CIP has provisions for planned and unplanned
improvements to meet these regulations. The Wastewater System CIP also incorporates projects that will
allow MWWD to meet the requirements of the Final Consent Decree (as further described under the
caption entitled “WASTEWATER SYSTEM REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS — Collection of
Sewage” herein) related to sanitary sewer overflows. MWWD has obtained or has applied for the
required wastewater system permits. MWWD also has an outstanding environmental compliance record
for effluent quality.

6. The wastewater treatment facilities have adequate capacity to meet customer
requirements and anticipated future requirements through the planning period. Furthermore, the
Wastewater System CIP incorporates projects to improve effluent quality from the water reclamation
facilities, thus providing for future customer requirements.

7. The MWWD is addressing the near-term physical needs of the Wastewater System
during the Wastewater System CIP planning process as well as planning for future needs. The
Wastewater System CIP planning process represents a prudent capital planning process that reflects
industry standards.

8. The Wastewater System CIP is reasonable to address near and long-term capacity
objectives of the Wastewater System, effecting necessary rehabilitation and replacement work, and
general compliance with regulatory standards.

9. Projections of revenues and expenses reviewed in comparison with historical data were
found to be reasonable and consistent with the stated assumptions.

10. With the anticipated annual rate increases, being those already adopted by the City for
Fiscal Year 2009 and Fiscal Year 2010 and those proposed by the MWWD in the last three years of the
forecast (which are subject to City Council approval); the assumptions utilized for this forecast period are
reasonable. Further, both the MWWD forecast and the sensitivity analyses prepared demonstrate the
reasonableness of the expected financial results including the 1.20x Debt Service Coverage requirement
on Parity Obligation debt, the 1.10x Debt Service Coverage requirement on current State Revolving Fund
Loans, and established cash reserve targets.

11. Application of the additional bonds test requirements to the Series 2009B Bonds as stated

in the Installment Purchase Agreement and the Rate Covenant, indicate that Net System Revenues are
sufficient to achieve a debt service coverage ratio of 1.20x on Parity Obligation debt.

THE WASTEWATER SYSTEM
General

The “Wastewater System” consists of two sub-systems, the Municipal Sub-System (the
“Municipal Sub-System”) and the Metropolitan Sub-System (the “Metropolitan Sub-System”). The
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Municipal Sub-System is a municipal sewage collection system for the City’s residents and consists of all
elements required for the collection and conveyance of wastewater generated by the service area. The
Municipal Sub-System consists of the piping and pumping facilities that service the City and ultimately
discharge into the Metropolitan Sub-System. The Metropolitan Sub-System is a regional sewage
treatment and disposal system that serves the City and various other public agencies, including cities
situated within common drainage areas. The Metropolitan Sub-System includes all the facilities
associated with treatment and disposal within the San Diego metropolitan area. The Metropolitan Sub-
System treats and disposes of the wastewater generated by the City and certain amounts from 15 other
cities and districts near the City. The Metropolitan Sub-System was designed to provide sufficient
capacity to accommodate a regional population in excess of 2.5 million. As of June 30, 2008, the
Wastewater System had approximately 275,000 customers, 15 Participating Agencies and approximately
$325 million in sewer service charge revenues. The Wastewater System is managed by the MWWD and
covers approximately 450 square miles, including most of the City, and stretches from Del Mar and
Poway to the north, Alpine and Lakeside to the east, and south to San Ysidro, California. The service area
within the City is serviced by the Municipal Sub-System and the service area for the Participating
Agencies is serviced by the Metropolitan Sub-System. The communities and agencies served by the
Wastewater System form the third largest integrated metropolitan area in the State, surpassed only by the
Los Angeles and San Francisco metropolitan areas. The map that follows the Table of Contents of this
Official Statement sets forth the sewer service area boundaries of the Wastewater System.

The City, as operator of the Wastewater System, is the holder of two National Pollutant
Discharge Elimination System (“NPDES”) permits, one for the discharge of sewage at the Point Loma
Wastewater Treatment Plant (the “Point Loma Plant”) (the NPDES permit relating to the Point Loma
Plant is referred to herein as the “Point Loma Discharge Permit”) and the other for the discharge of
sewage at the South Bay Water Reclamation Plant (the “South Bay Plant) (the NPDES permit relating to
the South Bay Plant is referred to herein as the “South Bay Discharge Permit”). As the holder of such
permits, the City is responsible for complying with the discharge requirements under Federal law,
including the Clean Water Act (the “Clean Water Act”). The Metropolitan Sub-System provides
advanced primary treatment of sewage at the Point Loma Plant. See “WASTEWATER SYSTEM
REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS — Treatment of Sewage” herein for information regarding the waiver
from secondary treatment standards of the Clean Water Act and the City’s current application to renew
such waiver. The South Bay Plant and the North City Plant are designed to treat sewage to the tertiary
level and filter effluent to the secondary level. The North City Plant is also capable of providing treatment
beyond the tertiary level through the demineralization of a portion of the effluent, which is reclaimed
water, to reduce total dissolved solids. Reclaimed water from the South Bay Plant is not required to
undergo a demineralization process because the concentration of total dissolved solids from the plant is
below the City’s established limit of 1,000 milligrams per liter.

Wastewater System Management

General. The MWWD is a part of the City’s Public Utilities Group which reports to the City’s
Chief Operating Officer. The MWWD is led by the Public Utilities Director, who is responsible for the
MWWD and the City of San Diego Water Department (the “Water Department”). Five deputy directors
divide the organizational responsibilities of the MWWD and report to the Assistant Director of MWWD,
who reports to the Director of Public Utilities. In addition to the five Deputy Directors, there is an
Assistant Deputy Director in two of the divisions, Wastewater Collection and Wastewater Treatment and
Disposal, who share management responsibilities. The Water Department and the MWWD are examining
the feasibility of combining certain common services through the reorganization of certain of their
respective departments that support such activities as safety, long-range planning, engineering programs,
regulatory liaisons, training, human resources capabilities, administrative support, internal control and
financial services. The MWWD is considering the consolidation of components of the following
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wastewater divisions with corresponding divisions of the Water Department by Fiscal Year 2010: the
Administrative Services Division, the Engineering and Program Management Division, the
Environmental Monitoring and Technical Services Division. There are no plans to merge the Water
Department’s Water Utility Fund and the MWWD’s Sewer Revenue Fund.

Divisions. The MWWD consists of five divisions, the Administrative Services Division (“AS”),
the Environmental Monitoring and Technical Services Division (“EMTS”), the Engineering and Program
Management Division (“EPM”), Wastewater Collection Division (“WWC”) and the Wastewater
Treatment and Disposal Division (“WWTD”). The WWTD is the first publicly-owned wastewater
treatment operation in the nation to receive ISO 14001 Certification, which provides a structure for
environmental management systems that ensures commitment to regulatory compliance, pollution
prevention and continual improvement. Subsequently, EMTS, WWC, all of the MWWD’s treatment
facilities and the City’s major pump stations have received ISO 14001 Certification for their continuing
commitment to the standards of the International Organization for Standardization in Geneva,
Switzerland.

AS administers the MWWD’s finances, including budgeting and rate-setting, grant development,
safety and training, human resources, information technology, and the collection and analysis of sewage
flow data. AS also administers all contracts with the Participating Agencies (defined herein) and manages
billing with the Participating Agencies. In addition, AS manages MWWD’s strategic planning and
programs to facilitate MWWD’s mission.

EMTS operates several programs in support of the treatment and disposal of wastewater. These
include the Industrial Wastewater Control Program, which regulates industrial discharges to the sewers
and a comprehensive ocean monitoring program that evaluates the effect on the ocean environment of the
discharges from the Point Loma Plant and the South Bay Plant. Additionally, EMTS produces all
required regulatory discharge reports, acts as a liaison with regulatory agencies, and performs laboratory
testing for process control and regulatory reporting purposes to ensure compliance with all regulatory
permits.

EPM provides engineering services for the Metropolitan Sub-System and the Municipal Sub-
System to ensure new facilities, repairs and upgrades are planned and implemented in a fiscally-sound
manner to meet regulatory and environmental standards. Specifically, EPM provides long-range master
planning, condition assessment, sewer modeling, planning and pre-design for infrastructure, energy
management, environmental support, and oversight of the implementation of the Wastewater System’s
Capital Improvement Program (the “Wastewater System CIP”).

WWC is responsible for safe and effective wastewater conveyance throughout the Municipal
Sub-System. WWC provides ongoing preventive cleaning, maintenance, and repair of the system,
emergency removal of sewer line stoppages, equipment overhaul and repair and on-site facility
inspections. WWC repairs and replaces sewer laterals in the public rights-of-way as well as sewer mains
throughout the collection system, operates and maintains 75 sewer pump stations and administers the
MWWD’s Food Establishment Waste Disposal Program.

WWTD is responsible for the operation and maintenance of all wastewater treatment facilities,
including treatment and water reclamation facilities, a bio-solids processing facility and major pump
stations providing regional wastewater treatment and disposal services for the City and the Participating
Agencies.
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Officers. The current officers of the MWWD and their respective biographies are as follows:

Jim Barrett. Mr. Jim Barrett currently serves as the City’s Director of Public Utilities and
oversees the MWWD and the Water Department. Mr. Barrett holds an undergraduate degree in
Architecture from the University of Virginia and a graduate degree in Civil Engineering from Stanford
University. He is a licensed Professional Civil Engineer in the State of California and has been with the
City for approximately three years. Mr. Barrett is an appointed member on the Board of Directors for both
the San Diego County Water Authority and the Metropolitan Water District of Southern California. He
also serves as a member of the Association of California Water Agencies Federal Affairs Committee.
Prior to joining the City, Mr. Barrett served as Vice President of Federal Programs with Earth Tech,
Incorporated. He retired from the United States Navy with extensive experience in infrastructure, contract
and utilities management after more than twenty years of service.

Robert Ferrier. Mr. Robert Ferrier currently serves as the Assistant Director of the MWWD. In
his capacity as Assistant Director, Mr. Ferrier oversees the day-to-day operations of the MWWD. Mr.
Ferrier’s responsibilities also include operation and maintenance of the sewage collection system. Prior to
becoming Assistant Director in November 2001, Mr. Ferrier served in the unclassified service as the
Deputy Director of the Refuse Disposal Division, Environmental Services Department; Park
Development Division, Park and Recreation Department; Systems Division, Water Utilities Department
and as a Labor Relations Manager with the Office of the City Manager. Mr. Ferrier began his career with
the City of San Diego in 1968. He holds both a Bachelor of Arts and a Master’s Degree in Public
Administration from San Diego State University.

Darlene Morrow-Truver. Ms. Darlene Morrow-Truver is the Deputy Director for the MWWD’s
Administrative Services Division. Ms. Morrow-Truver has an active Certified Public Accountant license
in the State of California. Ms. Morrow-Truver began her career with the City of San Diego in 1981 as an
accountant in the Auditor and Comptroller Office and subsequently held various positions in the
Accounting Division and Financial Systems Division. Ms. Morrow-Turner served as a Payment Services
Division Manager beginning in 1996, the Audit Division Manager beginning in 2001 and served as the
Acting Assistant Director from July 2004 — July 2005. Ms. Morrow-Truver earned a Bachelor of Science
Degree in Business Administration with an emphasis in Accounting from San Diego State University in
1980 and a teaching credential from United States International University in 2000.

Alan Langworthy. Mr. Alan Langworthy currently serves as the Acting Deputy Director for the
MWWD’s Environmental Monitoring and Technical Services Division. Mr. Langworthy is responsible
for the regulation of industrial discharges to the Municipal Sub-System, regulatory permitting, monitoring
and compliance, and laboratory process control support to operating wastewater treatment facilities. Prior
to retiring from his position as a Deputy Director of the MWWD in December 2008, Mr. Langworthy had
worked with the City for 31 years including 15 years with the Water Department in which he occupied
various positions with respect to wastewater research, water filtration and operations and maintenance. He
is a member and past chairman of the Board of Directors (Commission) for the Southern California
Coastal Water Research Project and has participated on the Environmental Engineering Curriculum
Advisory Committee for San Diego State University. Mr. Langworthy holds a Bachelor of Science degree
in Chemistry from San Diego State University. MWWD expects to hire a Deputy Director for the
Environmental Monitoring and Technical Services Division to succeed Mr. Langworthy by the end of
summer 2009.

Ann Sasaki. Ms. Ann Sasaki is the Deputy Director for the MWWD’s Engineering and Program
Management Division. In this capacity, Ms. Sasaki is responsible for planning, developing and overseeing
projects for the Wastewater System CIP, Energy Management, Environmental Review and Development
Review. Ms. Sasaki was appointed to the position of Deputy Director in August 2001 after serving for
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two years as an Assistant Deputy Director. Ms. Sasaki began her career with the City of San Diego in
1986, as a Junior Engineer in the Water Utilities Department and later served as a Senior Civil Engineer.
Ms. Sasaki earned a Bachelor of Science degree in Civil Engineering from California State University,
Long Beach and a Masters in Business Administration from the University of San Diego. She is a
licensed Professional Civil Engineer in the State of California.

Christopher Toth. Mr. Christopher Toth is the Deputy Director for the MWWD’s Wastewater
Collection Division. Mr. Toth is responsible for a field organization of 241 positions with an operating
budget of $48.7 million for Fiscal Year 2009. Mr. Toth has spent 25 years with the City of San Diego.
For more than seventeen years, he has managed both wastewater treatment and wastewater collection
system infrastructure. Mr. Toth has particular expertise in managing large, municipal government field
organizations. Mr. Toth holds a Bachelor of Science Degree in Chemical Engineering from Oregon State
University and a Master of Science Degree in Civil Engineering from San Diego State University. He is a
licensed Professional Civil Engineer in the State of California.

William Denhart. Mr. William Denhart is the Assistant Deputy Director for MWWD’s
Wastewater Collection Division. He has served as an Assistant Deputy Director since September 2002,
after serving for eleven years as a District Refuse Collection Supervisor in the Collection Services
Division of the Environmental Services Department. Mr. Denhart’s current management responsibilities
include assisting the Deputy Director of the Wastewater Collection Division oversee its 241 budgeted
positions. Mr. Denhart began his career with the City of San Diego in 1972 as a seasonal summer worker
while attending San Diego State University. He joined the City on a full-time basis in 1977 after earning
his Bachelor’s Degree in Social Science from San Diego State University. Mr. Denhart received his
Masters Degree in Public Administration in 1983 from San Diego State University.

Jesse Pagliaro. Mr. Jesse Pagliaro is the Deputy Director for the MWWD’s Wastewater
Treatment and Disposal Division. Mr. Pagliaro holds a Grade V Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator
Certificate issued by the State of California and is a credited contributor to the sixth edition of the Water
Environment Federation’s Operation of Municipal Wastewater Treatment Plants Manual of Practice 11.
In his capacity as Deputy Director, Mr. Pagliaro is responsible for management of the Point Loma Plant,
the Metropolitan Biosolids Center, the North City Plant, the South Bay Plant and eight large pump
stations. Mr. Pagliaro began his career with the City of San Diego in 1988 as a Wastewater Plant Operator
and subsequently served in progressively responsible positions. Prior to his appointment as Deputy
Director of WWTD in 2008, Mr. Pagliaro served as Assistant Deputy Director of WWTD.

Christopher McKinney. Mr. Christopher McKinney is the Assistant Deputy Director for the
WWTD. Mr. McKinney was appointed Assistant Deputy Director of WWTD in February 2009. Mr.
McKinney has been an employee of the MWWD since 2002. Prior to his appointment as Assistant
Deputy Director of WWTD, Mr. McKinney worked for six years as an Electrical Engineer in the Energy
Group of the Engineering and Program Management Division. Beginning in 2007, Mr. McKinney has
served as an MWWD Asset Management Coordinator. Mr. McKinney holds both a Bachelor of Science
degree and a Masters of Engineering in Electrical Engineering and Computer Science from the
Massachusetts Institute of Technology.

Oversight. The Independent Rates Oversight Committee (“IROC”) was established by ordinance
in 2007 to assume and expand upon the oversight previously undertaken by the Public Utilities Advisory
Commission, which no longer exists. There are 11 members on the IROC, all of whom are appointed by
the Mayor and confirmed by the City Council. The membership of IROC consists of representatives of
each rate class and professional experts in such fields as finance, engineering, construction and the
environment. IROC serves as an official advisory body to the Mayor and the City Council on issues
relating to the oversight of the MWWD and the Water Department operations including, but not limited
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to, resource management, planned expenditures, service delivery methods, public awareness and outreach
efforts, efforts to achieve high quality and affordable utility services provided by the MWWD and the
Water Department. IROC’s duties and functions include reviewing reports from staff and an independent
audit organization on rates and bond proceed expenditures, advising on the efficiency and performance of
the Wastewater System and Water System, advising on future cost allocation models and the preparing an
annual public report on such issues to the Mayor and City Council. Adjustments to sewer service charges
and rates are not subject to approval by IROC. IROC meets at least every other month to review activities
and issues for the MWWD and the Water Department.

On February 10, 2009, IROC issued its “Annual Report on the San Diego Water Department
(SDWD) and Metropolitan Wastewater Department (MWWD) for the Fiscal Year 2008” (the “2008
IROC Report”). The 2008 IROC Report included a series of recommendations related to water
conservation and wastewater reuse, including recommendations that the MWWD and the Water
Department begin planning the upgrade of certain water treatment processes to fully implement indirect
potable reuse strategies, develop additional capacity for such reuse and facilitate the transportation of the
resulting purified water. The 2008 IROC Report also recommended adopting rate structures that
encourage reuse of wastewater and reduced water consumption, and disclosing to ratepayers the potential
financial impact of a failure to reduce water usage. With respect to capital improvements, the 2008 IROC
Report recommended that the MWWD and the Water Department develop capital improvement programs
that account for the risks associated with deferred maintenance and suboptimal rates of capital investment
and exclude revenue constraint considerations to the extent possible, with a view towards reviewing and
modifying their respective approaches to capital projects as risks and revenue constraints are realized.
The 2008 IROC Report also recommended that the MWWD and the Water Department begin to fully
fund a set of reserves based on risks to ratepayers posed by any deferred maintenance and suboptimal
investments. See “WASTEWATER SYSTEM FINANCIAL OPERATIONS — Rate Stabilization Fund
and Other Reserves” herein for a description of the recommendations relating to the Dedicated Reserve
for Efficiency and Savings.

In addition, the 2008 IROC Report recommended that, should the 2008 Tentative Order (defined
herein) with respect to the Point Loma Plant be approved, the MWWD continue to pursue reasonable
alternatives to ensure the granting of future variances or develop cost-effective alternatives to meet the
requirements currently waived under the terms of the Modified Permit (defined herein). Further, the
IROC recommended that the MWWD continue to monitor, clean, rehabilitate and replace portions of the
Wastewater System on a priority basis to minimize the conditions that lead to sewer spills. The MWWD
is currently considering the recommendations set forth in the 2008 IROC Report.

Participating Agencies

Regional Wastewater Disposal Agreement. The Metropolitan Sub-System provides “wholesale”
treatment services, including some sewage transportation, treatment and disposal operations, to the cities
of Chula Vista, Coronado, Del Mar, EI Cajon, Imperial Beach, La Mesa, National City and Poway, and
the East Otay Sewer Maintenance District, the Lakeside/Alpine Sanitation District, Lemon Grove
Sanitation District, the Otay Water District, the Padre Dam Municipal Water District, the Spring Valley
Sanitation District and the Winter Gardens Sewer Maintenance District (such cities and districts are
collectively referred to as the “Participating Agencies”) pursuant to the Regional Wastewater Disposal
Agreement, effective June 24, 1998 (the “Regional Wastewater Disposal Agreement”). The Regional
Wastewater Disposal Agreement replaced separate sewage disposal agreements between the City and the
Participating Agencies (other than the East Otay Sewer Maintenance District) that were entered into as
early as 1960 and applies to all facilities of the Metropolitan Sub-System required to comply with the
Clean Water Act and the Ocean Pollution Reduction Act of 1994 (“OPRA”). See “WASTEWATER
SYSTEM REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS - Treatment of Sewage” herein. The Regional
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Wastewater Disposal Agreement expires on December 31, 2050. On or before December 31, 2040, the
parties will begin discussions on an agreement to provide wastewater treatment services beyond the year
2050. See “WASTEWATER SYSTEM FINANCIAL OPERATIONS — Management’s Discussion and
Analysis” herein. The City has full ownership of the Metropolitan Sub-System, including all additions to
the Metropolitan Sub-System and facilities constructed pursuant to the Regional Wastewater Disposal
Agreement. In addition, the City has the authority to sell the Metropolitan Sub-System to a governmental
entity or divest a portion of the Metropolitan Sub-System, subject to the Participating Agencies’ right of
first refusal and the provisions of the Installment Purchase Agreement. See Appendix C — “Summary of
Principal Legal Documents — Master Installment Purchase Agreement” attached hereto.

Pursuant to the Regional Wastewater Disposal Agreement, the Participating Agencies are
required to pay their respective share of planning, design and construction of Metropolitan Sub-System
facilities and costs relating to the operation and maintenance of the Metropolitan Sub-System by the City.
The amount to be paid by the Participating Agencies is calculated based on a Sewer System Charge and a
New Contract Capacity Charge (each as herein defined). The “Sewer System Charge” is a charge that is
calculated annually, billed quarterly and based on flow and strength coming into the Metropolitan Sub-
System. The “New Contract Capacity Charge” is an amount to be paid by any Participating Agency for
the right to discharge any new or additional capacity into the Metropolitan Sub-System beyond its
existing allotted capacity. The New Contract Capacity Charge is not expected to generate revenues in the
near future because the Participating Agencies have not expressed any recent interest in new or additional
capacity. Pursuant to the Regional Wastewater Disposal Agreement, the Participating Agencies pay their
proportionate costs of the Metropolitan Sub-System, including operation and maintenance costs of all
Metropolitan Sub-System facilities, based on flow and strength for all facilities, including water
reclamation facilities (but excluding any water reclamation distribution pipelines) necessary to expand the
Wastewater System as specified in the Regional Wastewater Disposal Agreement, and Wastewater
System CIP costs, the aggregate costs of which constituted approximately 32% of the total Metropolitan
Sub-System’s operation and maintenance costs and Wastewater System CIP costs for the Fiscal Year
2008.  Annual costs attributable to the Participating Agencies include those associated with
administration, operation, maintenance, replacement, annual debt service costs and other periodic
financing costs and charges, capital improvement, insurance premiums, claims payments and claims
administration costs of the Metropolitan Sub-System.

The MWWD and the Participating Agencies are currently reviewing the Participating Agencies’
obligation to pay their proportionate share of the cost of the Metropolitan Sub-System’s share of
maintaining the operating reserve and debt coverage pursuant to the City’s current rate case projections.
The MWWD is working with the Participating Agencies through the Metropolitan Commission (the
“Metropolitan Commission”), a coalition comprised of the Participating Agencies that was formed in
1998, to clarify that the Metropolitan Sub-System’s share of maintaining the operating reserve and debt
coverage pursuant to the City’s current rate case projections is included in the operation and maintenance
costs payable under the Regional Wastewater Disposal Agreement. The MWWD expects the
modification to result in approximately $15 million to $20 million in additional operation and
maintenance charges from the Participating Agencies. However, such increased charges are expected to
be revenue-neutral because the increase will correspond with decreased collections from customers of the
Municipal Sub-System. The City plans to deposit any such collections into the DRES (defined herein).
See “SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE SERIES 2009B BONDS - Rate
Covenant”, “WASTEWATER SYSTEM FINANCIAL OPERATIONS - Rate Stabilization Fund and
Other Reserves” herein and “THE WASTEWATER SYSTEM — Metropolitan Sub-System Facilities”
herein.
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The Participating Agencies have historically paid charges due and payable under the Regional
Wastewater Disposal Agreement in a timely manner. Further, the Participating Agencies may only
dispute amounts owed after payment of the amounts set forth in their respective invoices from the City.

Transportation Agreements. The Participating Agencies and the City are responsible for the
retail collection operations within their respective jurisdictions. The Participating Agencies also transport
collected sewage through large municipal trunk lines to the Metropolitan Sub-System. The collection
systems and many of the transport trunk lines outside City limits are owned by the individual
Participating Agencies. Transportation of wastewater through the Municipal Sub-System to the
Metropolitan Sub-System is facilitated by 13 separate transportation agreements (each, a “Transportation
Agreement” and, collectively, the “Transportation Agreements”) each between the City and a
Participating Agency. The City is in the process of negotiating eleven of the Transportation Agreements,
which have expired. The City and the Participating Agencies with expired Transportation Agreements
have agreed to continue their operations pursuant to mutually acceptable terms until new agreements are
executed. All parties have, however, agreed upon an updated rate for the transportation of sewage. Such
rate is calculated at the unit transportation rate per million gallons of flow for each mile the flow is
transported in the Municipal Sub-System and by calculating the Participating Agency’s respective share
of any Wastewater System CIP costs incurred for municipal infrastructure utilized by its flow. Over the
last five fiscal years, revenues from such transportation charges, which cover maintenance and operations
costs, have varied from $77,000 in Fiscal Year 2008 to $641,000 in Fiscal Year 2007. The MWWD
expects revenues from transportation charges to range from $200,000 to $366,000 for Fiscal Years 2009
to 2013. The City and the Participating Agencies expect to adjust this rate annually for inflation in
accordance with the California Consumer Price Index as determined by the State of California’s
Economic Forecast Index. The City expects to finalize all Transportation Agreements during calendar
year 2009. The Transportation Agreement by and between the City and the City of Del Mar is scheduled
to expire in 2013. The Transportation Agreement by and between the City and the East Otay Sewer
Maintenance District is scheduled to expire in 2011. The City does not and will not have Transportation
Agreements with the Spring Valley Sanitation District or the Otay Water District because such entities do
not transport collected sewage through the Municipal Sub-System.

The City is also in negotiations with many of the Participating Agencies for payment of past
capital improvement projects on portions of the Municipal Sub-System through which wastewater from
such Participating Agencies flows. The Participating Agencies contribute to capital improvements for the
Metropolitan Sub-System on a pay-as-you-go basis and by making annual debt service payments on
Outstanding Obligations payable from the Sewer Revenue Fund based upon their respective allocable
share of benefits derived from such improvements. Participating Agencies are only obligated to contribute
to capital projects on portions of the Municipal Sub-System’s infrastructure they use. The City expects to
receive between $20 million and $30 million from the Participating Agencies through periodic payments
from Fiscal Year 2010 to Fiscal Year 2014 for their respective shares of the past municipal infrastructure
costs pursuant to the Transportation Agreements.

For the Fiscal Year 2008, of a total average daily sewage flow of approximately 170 million
gallons per day (“mgd”), the total City flow through the Metropolitan Sub-System was approximately 110
mgd, which is 65% of the total average flow. None of the Participating Agencies are currently utilizing all
of their capacity rights for sewage treatment and disposal. The City of Chula Vista expects that it will
exceed its capacity rights in 2013. The MWWD expects the proportion of sewage flow from the City and
the Participating Agencies to continue at their current levels.

The Participating Agencies in the Metropolitan Sub-System, their respective estimated

population, current capacity rights and the percentage of total capacity represented by the capacity rights
are set forth in the Table 3 below.
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TABLE 3
METROPOLITAN SUB-SYSTEM

CITY AND PARTICIPATING AGENCIES FLOW AND CAPACITY RIGHTS

Fiscal Year 2008
(Unaudited)
Capacity Average % of Total

Estimated Rights % of Total Flow Average
Participating Agencies Population  (in mgd) Capacity (mgd) Flow
City of Chula Vista 233,903 19.843 8.268% 16.765 9.855%
City of Coronado 16,650 3.078 1.283 2.004 1.178
City of Del Mar 4,548 0.821 0.342 0.614 0.361
City of El Cajon 98,000 10.260 4.275 9.116 5.358
City of Imperial Beach 28,300 3.591 1.496 2.180 1.281
City of La Mesa 57,375 6.634 2.764 5.278 3.102
City of National City 57,900 7.141 2.975 4.521 2.657
City of Poway 46,076 5.630 2.346 3.444 2.024
East Otay Mesa Sewer Maintenance
District!" 2,875 1.000 0.417 0.000 0.000
Lakeside/Alpine Sanitation District 41,250 4.586 1.911 3.198 1.880
Lemon Grove Sanitation District 26,000 2.873 1.197 2.156 1.267
Otay Water District 4,800 1.231 0.513 0.274 0.161
Padre Dam Municipal Water District 72,000 5.882 2.451 3.103 1.824
Spring Valley Sanitation District 83,125 9.808 4.087 6.159 3.620
Winter Gardens Sewer Maintenance
District 11,688 1.241 0.517 0.885 0.520
SUBTOTAL 784,490 83.619 34.841 59.697 35.088
City of San Diego 1,297,000 156.381 65.159 110.427 64.910
TOTAL®: 2,081,490 240.000  100.000% 170.124%  100.000%

Sources: County Facility Plan for population figures for the Lakeside/Alpine Sanitation District, the Spring Valley Sanitation
District and the Winter Gardens Sewer Maintenance District; the San Diego Association of Governments for all other

population figures; the Metropolitan Wastewater Department, City of San Diego for capacity rights and flow data.
This Participating Agency completed its wastewater facilities in 2008. Average flow data is not available.

(O]
@
3)

Amounts may not total due to rounding.

Excludes flow through plants that are not part of the Metropolitan Sub-System - Escondido Plant (defined herein) and Solana

Beach (which is serviced by the San Elijo Plant (defined herein)), and flow of reclaimed water through the North City Plant

(defined herein).

The City has the right to make all decisions with respect to the planning, design, construction,
operation and maintenance of the Metropolitan Sub-System. Decisions on issues that impact the
Participating Agencies are made with the advice of the Metropolitan Commission. The Metropolitan
Commission consists of one representative from each Participating Agency and advocates for fair rates
and other issues of importance to the Participating Agencies. Although the Metropolitan Commission
may make recommendations to the City, the City retains ownership and decision-making authority over
all elements of the Metropolitan Sub-System, including the capital improvements for the Metropolitan

Sub-System.
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Metropolitan Sub-System Facilities

General. The current Metropolitan Sub-System infrastructure, with the exception of the South
Metropolitan Interceptor Pipeline, is located within the jurisdictional boundaries of the City and is
concentrated along a kidney-shaped corridor running from Mission Bay to the north, and along the
perimeter of the San Diego Bay to the south. The map that follows the Table of Contents of this Official
Statement shows the geographic concentration of the Metropolitan Sub-System’s infrastructure and
identifies the major trunk lines that service the Participating Agencies. The Metropolitan Sub-System’s
infrastructure currently consists of three wastewater treatment plants, two ocean outfalls, a biosolids
center, four pump stations and force mains and gravity flow interceptors. The Metropolitan Sub-System
infrastructure also includes two interceptors, which collect and route wastewater to the Point Loma Plant
from the Municipal Sub-System and the Participating Agencies. See Appendix B — “FEASIBILITY
STUDY FOR 2009 SERIES WASTEWATER REVENUE BONDS” attached hereto. The Wastewater
System CIP is dependent upon maintaining certain permits and waivers with respect to the Wastewater
System under Federal and State law. If existing permits and waivers are not maintained, the City could
incur costs in addition to those currently included in the City’s budgets and projections. See
“WASTEWATER SYSTEM REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS — Treatment of Sewage” herein. The
following is a summary description of the Metropolitan Sub-System’s current facilities and their
respective primary functions.

Point Loma Plant. The Point Loma Plant began operation in 1963. The site is part of the Fort
Rosecrans military reservation and was acquired by the City from the U.S. Department of the Interior,
Bureau of Land Management. The Point Loma Plant is the principal treatment facility in the Metropolitan
Sub-System, with a permitted treatment capacity of 240 mgd flow with 432 mgd peak wet weather flow.
During Fiscal Year 2008, the Point Loma Plant had an average daily flow rate of 163 mgd, including
return flows from the Metropolitan Biosolids Center, North City Plant and South Bay Plant. The average
daily flow rate at the Point Loma Plant accounted for approximately 92.4% of the wastewater flow
generated within the Metropolitan Sub-System. Almost all the inflow to the Point Loma Plant is conveyed
through the Metropolitan Sub-System’s Pump Station No. 2, which is the terminus for the North
Metropolitan Interceptor Pipeline and South Metropolitan Interceptor Pipeline. Flow from the North City
Plant which is not distributed to reclaimed water users is returned to the sewage conveyance system and is
treated at the Point Loma Plant. In addition, the Point Loma Plant serves as a standby facility for the
North City Plant and the South Bay Plant in the event one or both of these facilities is taken off-line for
maintenance purposes. See Appendix B — “FEASIBILITY STUDY FOR 2009 SERIES WASTEWATER
REVENUE BONDS?” attached hereto.

The Point Loma Plant currently provides advanced primary treatment of sewage in accordance
with a waiver from the secondary treatment standards of the Clean Water Act, which was originally
received by the City in 1995, and renewed on September 13, 2002 for the period through June 2008. The
City applied for an extension of the waiver and, in December 2008, the City received a tentative decision
from the United States Environmental Protection Agency (the “U.S. EPA”) that the Point Loma Plant and
Point Loma Ocean Outfall (defined herein) be granted a renewed waiver. A final determination is
expected in mid-2009. The Point Loma Plant continues to operate under the current waiver through the
consideration and public comment process. See “WASTEWATER SYSTEM REGULATORY
REQUIREMENTS — Treatment of Sewage” herein. Treated wastewater from the Point Loma Plant is
discharged through the Point Loma Ocean Outfall (“Point Loma Outfall”), which was built in 1963. In
1993, the Point Loma Outfall was extended 2.0 miles from its original length, which resulted in the
present length of 4.5 miles. See “— Point Loma Ocean Outfall” herein. Ongoing capital improvements to
the Point Loma Plant are included in the Wastewater System CIP. See “WASTEWATER SYSTEM
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM” herein.
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Operations at the Point Loma Plant are monitored and controlled from a distributed, computer-
based control system located in the Point Loma Plant’s control center. Local control stations are also
strategically located around the Point Loma Plant and can be used to access the entire plant control
system. See Appendix B — “FEASIBILITY STUDY FOR 2009 SERIES WASTEWATER REVENUE
BONDS?” attached hereto.

Presently, the Point Loma Plant is capable of removing 85% to 90% of total suspended solids
(“TSS”). The Point Loma Plant has increased its TSS removal rates through operational improvements of
its chemical treatment processes. The wastewater treatment process currently employed at the Point Loma
Plant consists of advanced primary treatment and a digester gas utilization facility. Dewatering of sludge
is provided at the Metropolitan Biosolids Center (described below). Methane gas produced during the
digestion is fed to a City-owned cogeneration plant where it is converted to electricity and used to provide
power to operate the plant. Excess energy is sold back to the local electrical power grid. See “ —
Metropolitan Biosolids Center” herein.

North City Water Reclamation Plant. The North City Water Reclamation Plant (the “North
City Plant”) is a sewage treatment facility that is capable of processing sewage to both secondary and
tertiary treatment levels. The North City Plant commenced operations in 1997 and is located adjacent to
Interstate 805 and Miramar Road in the northwestern quadrant of the City. The North City Plant operates
pursuant to a “Waste Discharge and Water Recycling Requirements for the Production and Purveyance of
Recycled Water”, Order No. 97-03, Addendum No. 1, which was adopted by the California Regional
Water Quality Board (the “Regional Water Board”) on June 11, 2003 (the “North City Plant Permit”).
The North City Plant Permit, as amended, is effective until it is revoked or further modified.

The North City Plant receives influent through the North City Tunnel Connector and from the
Penasquitos Pump Station. The North City Plant process includes screening, grit removal, settling, flow
equalization, activated sludge processing, tertiary filtration and effluent disinfection. The Metropolitan
Biosolids Center (described below) digests and dewaters the sludge that is produced at the North City
Plant. Support facilities of the North City Plant include an administration building, operation and
maintenance building and chemical building. The North City Plant has a permitted capacity of 30 mgd
average daily flow and operated at a flowrate of approximately 23 mgd during Fiscal Year 2008. The
North City Plant is producing an average of 6 mgd of reclaimed water each day that is distributed to users
through the Water Department’s Northern Water Distribution System. The North City Plant limits its
production of reclaimed water to the amount the Water Department expects to sell. Sewage that is treated
at the North City Plant for conversion to reclaimed water flows to the Water Department’s Northern
Water Distribution System and sewage that is treated at the North City Plant for discharge into the ocean
flows to the Point Loma Plant. Approximately 13 mgd of return flow to the Wastewater System results
from excess secondary effluent from the North City Plant, which is returned to the collection system for
disposal via the Point Loma Plant. See “ — Point Loma Plant” herein. The solids that are removed during
the sewage treatment process, either by sedimentation or biological oxidization, are pumped to the
Metropolitan Biosolids Center for further treatment. See “— Metropolitan Biosolids Center” herein and
Appendix B — “FEASIBILITY STUDY FOR 2009 SERIES WASTEWATER REVENUE BONDS”
attached hereto.

In March 2006, an independent advisory panel authorized by the City Council published its “City
of San Diego Water Reuse Study” (the “Water Reuse Study”), which concluded that indirect potable
reuse is a viable method to maximize reclaimed water use at the lowest unit cost to the City. Revenues
from the sale of reclaimed water are collected by the Water Department for deposit in the Water Utility
Fund and used to pay for the cost of the reclaimed water distribution system and then operations and
maintenance costs for the distribution system. The North City Plant currently produces water that serves
approximately 440 retail end users and 2 wholesale users that resell the reclaimed water for landscape
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irrigation. Reclaimed water is also used for dual plumbing. The City has initiated a pilot indirect potable
reuse demonstration project to determine the feasibility of using highly treated reclaimed water to
augment the City’s drinking water supply; such project is not expected to materially affect the
Wastewater System in the near future.

South Bay Water Reclamation Plant. The South Bay Plant commenced operations in 2002.
This plant, located on Dairy Mart Road west and north of the International Border with Tijuana, Mexico,
is a sewage treatment facility that is capable of processing sewage to both secondary and tertiary
treatment levels. The South Bay Plant operates under an NPDES permit for the treatment and disposal of
wastewater through the shared South Bay Ocean Outfall and Reclaimed Water Permit No. 2000-203 (the
“Reclaimed Water Permit”), which authorizes water reclamation from the South Bay Plant. The
Reclaimed Water Permit, as previously amended, is effective until it is revoked. See “WASTEWATER
SYSTEM REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS — General” herein.

Untreated wastewater is pumped to the South Bay Plant’s headworks from the Otay River Pump
Station and the Grove Avenue Pump Station, which divert flow from the South Metropolitan Interceptor
Pipeline. The average influent flows treated during 2008 were approximately 8.7 mgd with 2.8 mgd
discharged to ocean outfall and 4.8 mgd reclaimed water distributed. The South Bay Plant has a rated
capacity of 15 mgd and operated at approximately 9 mgd during Fiscal Year 2008. The South Bay Plant
uses a phased tertiary process that allows the tertiary portion of the plant to be bypassed when reclaimed
water is not being produced, which increases efficiency and reduces plant operations and maintenance
costs. The South Bay Plant discharges all of its flows to the reclaimed water system or to the South Bay
Ocean Outfall. Accordingly, it does not treat its own solids and cannot discharge its solids to the
Metropolitan Biosolids Center directly. Primary sludge is pumped to the South Metropolitan Interceptor
Pipeline and conveyed to the Point Loma Plant for further treatment and from there to the Metropolitan
Biosolids Center for processing. See “ — Point Loma Plant” and “ — Metropolitan Biosolids Center”
herein. The Metropolitan Biosolids Center returns centrate streams to the Point Loma Plant for treatment,
which causes an increase in the solids measured at the Point Loma Plant. Flows from the South Bay Plant
are treated to secondary effluent requirements and discharged through the South Bay Ocean Outfall. See
“— South Bay Ocean Outfall” herein.

The South Bay Plant limits its production of reclaimed water to the amount the Water Department
expects to sell. The City is seeking to increase use of reclaimed water generated by the South Bay Plant
and has entered into an agreement with the Otay Water District pursuant to which the Otay Water District
may purchase up to 6 mgd of reclaimed water for resale by the Otay Water District for landscape
irrigation. During 2008, 54% of the treated sewage was beneficially reused by the Otay Water District,
the International Wastewater Treatment Plant, a federally owned and operated treatment facility in the
Tijuana River Valley, or used for in-plant purposes. During warmer periods of the year, almost the entire
amount of wastewater treated at the South Bay Plant is reused.

The Participating Agencies have asserted that under the terms of the Regional Wastewater
Disposal Agreement they should be apportioned a percentage of the capacity fees and revenues from the
sale of reclaimed water from the South Bay Plant. The current amount in dispute is approximately
$2 million. The capacity fees and revenues from the sale of the reclaimed water are being held by the City
pending resolution of this matter. See “— Participating Agencies; Regional Wastewater Disposal
Agreement; Transportation Agreements” herein.

Operations at the South Bay Plant are monitored and controlled from a distributed, computer-

based control system located in the South Bay Plant’s control center. Local control stations are also
strategically located around the South Bay Plant and can be used to access the entire plant control system.
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Point Loma Ocean Outfall. The Point Loma Ocean Outfall was constructed in 1963 to provide
a method for disposal of all Point Loma Plant effluent. The original capacity of the 2.5 mile long, 108-
inch diameter outfall has been estimated at 390 mgd under the original design configuration. The Point
Loma Ocean Outfall Extension, a 2.0 mile extension of the original outfall, was completed in 1993,
resulting in a 4.5-mile long outfall discharging treated sewage effluent at an approximate depth of 320
feet of water at the discharge point and a capacity of 432 mgd. The Point Loma Ocean Outfall uses a Y-
shaped diffuser to provide for a wide dispersal of effluent into the ocean. It is one of the longest, deepest
ocean outfalls in the United States. The MW WD believes that the length, depth, design and location of the
Point Loma Ocean Outfall facilitates protection of ocean water beneficial uses.

South Bay Ocean Outfall. The South Bay Ocean Outfall discharges flows from the City’s South
Bay Plant and the International Boundary and Water Commission’s International Treatment Plant. The
South Bay Ocean Outfall consists of a land portion running 3.3 miles and an ocean portion discharging
3.5 miles off the coast at a depth of 95 feet. The outfall is jointly owned by the City and the International
Boundary and Water Commission. The City has a 40% ownership interest in the South Bay Ocean
Outfall, or approximately 133 mgd of the peak flow capacity of 333 mgd.

Metropolitan Biosolids Center. The Metropolitan Biosolids Center commenced operations in
1998 on a 39-acre site leased from the United States Navy within the Miramar Marine Corps Air Station
located off Highway 52 in the north central portion of the City. The Metropolitan Biosolids Center is
regulated under the Point Loma Plant’s Modified Permit (hereinafter defined) because all waste streams
from the Metropolitan Biosolids Center are sent to the Point Loma Plant for treatment. See
“WASTEWATER SYSTEM REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS — Treatment of Sewage” herein. The
lease with the United States Navy (the “Prime Lease”) expire in 2045. The United States Navy may
terminate the Prime Lease during its term without the payment of any compensation to the City without
cause only in the event of a national or military emergency or with cause if the City fails to cure any
breach of the lease within 30 days notice from the United States Navy. In the event the Prime Lease is
terminated during its term by the United States Navy, the City would be obliged to vacate the site and
relocate this facility elsewhere.

The Metropolitan Biosolids Center discharges side streams (centrate) from the raw sludge
thickening and biosolids (digested sludge) dewatering centrifuges as well as effluent from other internal
processes to the Point Loma Plant. The Metropolitan Biosolids Center is an essential part of the Modified
Permit described under the caption “WASTEWATER SYSTEM REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS —
Treatment of Sewage — Relief From Secondary Treatment Requirements” herein. The facility consists of
anaerobic digestors, storage tanks, screening and degritting systems, polymer injection systems, eight
dewatering centrifuges, five thickening centrifuges, a state of the art odor control facility, chemical
building, operations and maintenance building, and a privately operated cogeneration facility serving the
energy needs of the Metropolitan Biosolids Center. The facility thickens and digests sludge from the
North City Plant that is received through the 5-mile North City Raw Sludge Pipeline. In addition, the
facility mechanically dewaters the North City Plant’s digested sludge as well as the sludge that is digested
at the Point Loma Plant. The digested sludge from the Point Loma Plant is pumped to the Metropolitan
Biosolids Center through the 17-mile Miramar Pipeline.

Once sludge is thickened, digested and dewatered at the Metropolitan Biosolids Center, the
MWWD disposes of biosolids through landfill disposal, direct land application, or alternate daily cover.
See “WASTEWATER SYSTEM REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS - Grant and Loan-Related
Regulatory Requirements” herein. Due to the nature of operations at the Metropolitan Biosolids Center,
the facility employs extensive odor control facilities to treat the foul air from the major treatment
processes.
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The Metropolitan Biosolids Center and North City Plant have privatized cogeneration plants
which are owned and operated by Minnesota Methane San Diego, LLC (“MMSD”), a subsidiary of
Fortistar Methane Group, LLC. The City has subleased methane gas rights from the adjacent landfill (the
“Miramar Landfill”’) and the Metropolitan Biosolids Center’s digester gas to MMSD (the “Landfill Gas
Lease”), which burns the fuel in its cogeneration plants to produce electricity and heat. The City has
purchase contracts (the “Cogeneration Facility Agreements”) with MMSD to buy electricity for
operations at the Metropolitan Biosolids Center and the North City Plant. The Cogeneration Facility
Agreements are scheduled to expire in June 2019. Any excess power that is generated is sold by MMSD
to the power grid. This arrangement allows the Wastewater System, including portions used by the
Participating Agencies, to decrease its dependence on external sources of power and reduces energy
expenditures. The Participating Agencies do not receive revenues with respect to the Cogeneration
Facility Agreements. Under the Landfill Gas Lease and the Cogeneration Facility Agreements, the City
bears the risk of a possible termination of the Prime Leases. The Prime Leases allow the Federal
government to terminate such lease in the event the City breaches the terms thereof or, in some instances,
without breach by the City. If the United States Navy terminates the Prime Leases for its convenience, it
will owe the City an equitable adjustment of the City’s rent on the parcels on which the Miramar landfill
and the Metropolitan Biosolids Center stand. If the United States Navy terminates the Prime Leases for
any reason, then the City must purchase MMSD’s facilities, including the landfill gas collection system
installed by MMSD and the cogeneration plants at the Metropolitan Biosolids Center and the North City
Plant at a purchase price equal to the greater of a “stipulated purchase price” (provided by formula in the
contract, which takes into account such factors as initial and depreciated values) or the “fair market
value” of the facilities, as each of these terms is defined in the agreements with MMSD. The maximum
amount of exposure to the City for the loss of these facilities is estimated to be $28 million. Such a loss
would only arise upon the occurrence of a default by the City or termination by the United States Navy
for its convenience. The City believes that it is unlikely that the United States Navy will terminate the
Prime Leases for any reason other than an uncured breach by the City or in the event of a national or
military emergency in part because of the United States Navy’s reliance on the landfill and the City’s
substantial investments in placing regionally crucial wastewater infrastructure, such as the Metropolitan
Biosolids Center at Miramar. See “RISK FACTORS — Utility Costs” herein.

Pump Stations. There are four pump stations that service the Metropolitan Sub-System. Two
pump stations, Pump Station No. 1 and Pump Station No. 2, began operation in 1963. A third pump
station, the Grove Avenue Pump Station, began operations in 2002 to pump wastewater to the South Bay
Plant. The Otay River Pump Station was added to the Metropolitan Sub-System in 2003 to pump
wastewater to the South Bay Plant. In addition, the Metropolitan Sub-System is serviced by the East
Mission Gorge Pump Station, Sewage Pump Station No. 64, Sewage Pump Station No. 65 and
Penasquitos Pump Station, which are part of the Municipal Sub-System.

Interceptors. The Metropolitan Sub-System interceptors consist of two major branches, the
South Branch and the North Branch, which meet at Pump Station No. 2. Interceptor capacities are
adequate for current peak flows and the City models capacity consistent with all current regulations. Due
to capacity limitations at Pump Station No. 2, the MWWD initiated the Wet Weather Storage Facility
Project which is expected to be needed by 2011 in order to minimize the risk of sewage spills. The Wet
Weather Storage Project will include the construction of an underground storage tank with a capacity of
seven million gallons near Pump Station No. 2 to store excess wastewater flow during the peak wet
weather flow period to relieve the capacity constraint at Pump Station No. 2. An alternative to the Wet
Weather Storage Facility Project is the Wet Weather Intermittent Stream Discharge Project which the
MWWD is currently studying. The Wet Weather Intermittent Stream Discharge Project will include a
study of the feasibility of disposing the tertiary treated reclaimed water from the North City Plant to the
streams or canyons during the peak wet weather flow period to relieve the capacity constraint at Pump
Station No. 2. If MWWD deems that this project is feasible, the Wet Weather Intermittent Stream
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Discharge Project will require the acquisition of an NPDES permit from the Regional Water Board and
the modification of existing reclaimed water and sewer facilities. The Wet Weather Storage Project can be
deferred to 2015 if the Wet Weather Intermittent Stream Discharge Project is implemented.

Municipal Sub-System Facilities

The Municipal Sub-System consists of approximately 3,000 miles of trunk and collector mains,
79 sewer pump stations, including East Mission Gorge Pump Station, Sewage Pump Station No. 64,
Sewage Pump Station No. 65, and Penasquitos Pump Station, serving approximately 275,000 accounts
with connections to the sanitary sewer system. Approximately 83% of these connections are from
accounts relating to single family dwellings, 11% are from accounts relating to multifamily dwellings and
the remaining 6% are from accounts relating to commercial and industrial customers (these percentages
include multiple accounts at some locations). On average, these accounts generate 110 mgd of wastewater
which is conveyed by the Municipal Sub-System to the Metropolitan Sub-System for treatment and
disposal. The Municipal Sub-System also includes 54 permanent flow monitoring stations which are
utilized for multiple purposes, including strength-based billing, facility planning, sewer modeling,
criticality evaluation, infiltration/inflow analysis and spill detection.

Additional Contractual Capacity to the Escondido Plant and the San Elijo Plant

MWWD does not connect the Rancho Bernardo sewer service area to pipelines within the
Municipal Sub-System. Pursuant to a sewage disposal agreement with the City of Escondido entered into
in 1972, up to five mgd of sewage emanating from the Rancho Bernardo sewer service area of the City
may be treated at Escondido’s Hale Avenue Treatment Plant (the “Escondido Plant”). The Escondido
Plant is not owned by the City and is not part of the Municipal Sub-System. This agreement is scheduled
to terminate in 2022, fifty years from the date on which sewage flow commenced through the Escondido
Plant and may be extended at the City’s option for an unlimited number of ten-year periods. The
Escondido Plant, which can process up to 18 mgd of sewage, currently has capacity to treat approximately
3 mgd of flow from the City. The City of Escondido is considering options to increase its treatment
capacity to accommodate expected population growth.

Pursuant to a sewage disposal agreement with the Solana Beach Sanitation District entered into in
1974, as amended and supplemented in 1975, the City has the right to connect to sewer lines within the
Solana Beach Sanitation District. Pursuant to such agreement, the City may permit the connection to the
Solana Beach Sanitation District of up to 300 EDUs, or 84,000 gallons per day, of sewage emanating
from the portion of the City contiguous to Del Mar and Solana Beach may be treated at the San Elijo
Water Reclamation Plant (the “San Elijo Plant”). Sewage treated at the San Elijo Plant is disposed
through the San Elijo Ocean Outfall, which is owned by the City of Solana Beach and the Cardiff
Sanitation District and operated by the Solana Beach Sanitation District, the Cardiff Sanitation District
and the City of Escondido. The San Elijo Plant and the San Elijo Ocean Outfall are not owned by the City
and they are not part of the Municipal Sub-System. This sewage disposal agreement terminates in 2025
and contains no provisions for extension or renewal.
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Historical Wastewater System Flow

Table 4 below sets forth total annual system flow through the Wastewater System (including the
Point Loma Plant and the South Bay Plant) and through the City of Escondido to the Escondido Plant and
the City of Solana Beach to the San Elijo Plant, and total annual reclaimed water flow through the North

City Plant for Fiscal Years 1999 through 2008.

TABLE 4

WASTEWATER SYSTEM

TOTAL ANNUAL FLOW

(In Million Gallons)

Fiscal Year 1999 through Fiscal Year 2008

Participating Reclaimed
Fiscal City Flow Agency Flow City Flow  City Flow Water City Flow
Year Through Through Through Through Through Through Total Average
Ended Point Loma  Point Loma Escondido  San Elijo  North City  South Bay  System MGD For
June 30 Plant Plant Plant"” Plant” Plant Plant Flow The Year
1999 45,117 20,934 1,319 0 745 0 68,115 187
2000 44,771 21,489 1,401 0 1,267 0 68,928 189
2001 44,735 21,437 1,412 0 879 0 68,463 188
2002 43,395 21,326 1,316 0 958 0 66,995 184
2003 42,567 22,188 1,353 0 1,201 1,637 68,946 189
2004 40,665 21,688 1,342 32 1,182 1,702 66,611 182
2005 43,817 23,124 1,439 32 522 1,726 70,660 194
2006 42,240 22,270 1,279 32 1,259 1,632 68,712 188
2007 38,295 21,886 1,106 32 1,544 2,949 65,812 180
2008 37,207 21,849 1,096 32 1,749 3,210 65,143 178

Source: Metropolitan Wastewater Department, City of San Diego.
The City does not treat flows through the Escondido Plant or the San Elijo Plant.

1

WASTEWATER SYSTEM REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

General

Wastewater System operations are subject to Federal, State, and local environmental regulations

that primarily address the quality of effluent that may be discharged from the Wastewater System, the
disposal of sludge generated by the Wastewater System, and the nature of waste material (particularly
industrial waste) discharged into the collection system. The Federal regulations that have the most
significant effect on the Wastewater System are the Clean Water Act, which is administered by the U.S.
EPA, the State Water Board and the Regional Water Board, the Federal Clean Air Act, and the Federal
Resource Conservation and Recovery Act. The Wastewater System is in compliance with the major
elements of each of the foregoing regulations and other programs managed by the Federal government
and the State. See Appendix B — “FEASIBILITY STUDY FOR 2009 SERIES WASTEWATER
REVENUE BONDS — Section 5 — Regulatory Requirements” attached hereto.

In addition to the general compliance mandates under the applicable Federal regulations, the City

is subject to the specific requirements of the Final Consent Decree (herein defined) among the U.S. EPA
and two environmental groups in connection with sewer spills from December 1996 to April 2001. See
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“— Collection of Sewage — The Municipal Sub-System Collection System” herein. To date, the City has
met the targets established as part of the Final Consent Decree. See Appendix B — “FEASIBILITY
STUDY FOR 2009 SERIES WASTEWATER REVENUE BONDS - Section 5 — Regulatory
Requirements” attached hereto.

Collection of Sewage

General. The Clean Water Act and the NPDES permit system, including the Point Loma
Discharge Permit and the South Bay Discharge Permit issued thereunder, set effluent limitations on the
discharge of pollutants at treatment plants and generally prohibit the discharge of pollutants into
navigable waterways. Such prohibited discharges from the collection system are also subject to
injunctive or penalty proceedings by the Regional Water Board.

The Municipal Sub-System Collection System. The Clean Water Act prohibits the discharge of
wastewater to surface waters, including discharges as a result of sanitary sewer overflows (“SSOs”) into
the collection system, except as authorized under an NPDES permit. The California Water Code has a
broader interpretation of SSOs, to include waste discharges that could affect the quality of State waters,
both surface and groundwater.

To provide a consistent, statewide regulatory approach to address SSOs, the State Water Board
adopted the Statewide General Waste Discharge Requirements for Sanitary Sewer Systems, Water
Quality Order No. 2006-0003 on May 2, 2006 (the “Sanitary Sewer Order”). The Sanitary Sewer Order
requires public agencies that own or operate sanitary sewer systems to develop and implement a Sewer
System Management Plan (“SSMP”’) and report all SSOs to the State Water Board’s SSO database. The
SSMP must include an operation and maintenance program, a current map of the sanitary sewer system, a
rehabilitation and replacement plan, a training plan and an inventory of equipment and replacement parts.

In March 2001, two environmental groups filed suit against the City alleging that the Municipal
Sub-System’s collection system was deficient as a result of sewer spills which had occurred since
December 1996. The U.S. EPA and the State filed similar suits against the City in July 2003. The
resulting settlements were memorialized in a Partial Consent Decree (the “Partial Consent Decree”)
which expired on June 30, 2006 and a Second Partial Consent Decree (the “Second Partial Consent
Decree”), which expired on June 30, 2007. Under the Partial Consent Decree and the Second Partial
Consent Decree, the City agreed to rehabilitate or replace 200 miles of sewer pipeline by June 30, 2007.
In 2007, the City, the United States, the EPA, the environmental groups entered into a final Consent
Decree (the “Final Consent Decree” and, together with the Partial Consent Decree and the Second Partial
Consent Decrees, the “Consent Decrees”).

The Final Consent Decree requires, among other things, increased sewer spill response and
tracking, increased root control and replacement or rehabilitation of an additional 250 miles of pipeline
between July 1, 2007 and June 30, 2013. The Final Consent Decree provides that the City will replace or
rehabilitate 30 miles of pipeline in Fiscal Year 2008, 45 miles of pipeline per year from Fiscal Year 2009
to Fiscal Year 2012, and 40 miles of pipeline in Fiscal Year 2013. The City has replaced or rehabilitated
approximately 41.2 miles of sewer pipeline, including 13.98 miles banked in Fiscal Year 2008, between
July 1, 2007 and January 31, 2009 and has awarded contracts for the completion of an additional 30.26
miles. The City may assert its right to extend the deadline to replace or rehabilitate 45 miles of sewer
pipeline during Fiscal Year 2009. The Final Consent Decree states that if more than the specified miles
of pipeline are replaced, rehabilitated or permanently repaired in one year, the City may apply the excess
amount against the requirement to replace, rehabilitate, or permanently repair pipeline in any future year.
In addition, the Final Consent Decree requires an analysis of the feasibility of relocating sewer lines out
of certain canyons by March 1, 2009, which has been completed. Further, the Final Consent Decree
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requires upgrades or replacement of more than 20 pump stations and force main upgrades, and court
supervision of these upgrades at least through July 2013. The costs for bidding, constructing and
completing the required work will depend on variables such as the cost of materials and labor. No civil
penalty payment was required under the Consent Decrees. However, the Final Consent Decree provides
that the City may be subject, at the discretion of the Federal government, to various stipulated penalties
for subsequent violations of the provisions relating to, among other things, reporting and plan
submissions, compliance milestone and SSOs. To date, the City has not been subject to any penalties
resulting from alleged violations of the Final Consent Decree. See Appendix A-1 — “BASIC FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION FROM THE
COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT OF THE CITY OF SAN DIEGO FOR FISCAL
YEAR 2008 attached hereto.

Based on the Rate Model as of March 26, 2009, the estimated average annual cost of the Final
Consent Decree for Fiscal Years 2009 through 2013 is $117 million for capital projects, including
pipeline repair and replacement and $48.7 million (based on the projected expenditures for WWC for
Fiscal Year 2009) for operations and maintenance, including increased cleaning of Wastewater System
facilities and funding for video-monitoring. Such estimated average annual costs are included in the
Wastewater System’s budget and the fiscal information set forth in Table 5 and Table 17. See
“WASTEWATER SYSTEM CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM” and “WASTEWATER
SYSTEM FINANCIAL OPERATIONS — Financial Projections” herein. Some of the upgrades required
by the Final Consent Decree are under construction. Upgrades required by the Final Consent Decree will
be financed through the Wastewater System CIP, as described under “WASTEWATER SYSTEM
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM - Background” herein, including with a portion of the
proceeds of the Series 2009A Bonds. See “WASTEWATER SYSTEM CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT
PROJECTS — Capital Improvement Projects — Municipal Sub-System Projects” herein.

In 2001, the MWWD initiated a program to reduce SSOs by maintaining a system-wide cleaning
schedule, video monitoring and assessing the condition of the oldest and most problematic sewer lines in
the Wastewater System and increasing the number of miles of sewer lines replaced or rehabilitated
annually. See Appendix B — “FEASIBILITY STUDY FOR 2009 SERIES WASTEWATER REVENUE
BONDS?” attached hereto. The MWWD has reduced sewer spills by 80% between calendar year 2000 and
calendar year 2008. During calendar year 2008, there were 62 SSOs in the Municipal Sub-System.

Treatment of Sewage

The Clean Water Act generally requires that all wastewater treatment plants provide secondary
treatment for sewage before it is discharged into waterways. The Clean Water Act allows wastewater
treatment plants to apply for a waiver from the secondary treatment standards for certain ocean discharges
(a “Treatment Waiver”). The Clean Water Act grants the U.S. EPA the discretion to grant or deny any
Treatment Waiver. The South Bay Plant complies with the secondary treatment requirements of the Clean
Water Act and therefore does not need a Treatment Waiver to operate. The City operates the Point Loma
Plant subject to a Treatment Waiver from the U.S. EPA that must be renewed every five years.

The City first applied for a Treatment Waiver for the Point Loma Plant in 1979. In July 1988,
subsequent to unsuccessful efforts by the City to obtain a Treatment Waiver, the United States of
America, acting through the Department of Justice and the EPA, and the State sued the City for alleged
violations of the Clean Water Act and the Point Loma Discharge Permit due to sewer overflows, failure to
meet the secondary treatment requirements of the Clean Water Act and alleged irregularities in the City’s
pretreatment program that regulates industrial waste. As a result of this lawsuit, the City paid a penalty of
$500,000, enacted a low flow toilet ordinance as a credit project, and agreed to a stipulated final order
(the “Final Order”) that required certain improvements to the Wastewater System, all of which the City
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has completed. The Final Order was eligible for termination on June 30, 2003, but has not been
terminated because additional compliance orders were subsequently issued to address sewer spills. See
“— Collection of Sewage” herein.

In 1994, at the request of the City, the United States Congress adopted OPRA, amending the
Clean Water Act to allow the City to apply for a Treatment Waiver, subject to certain conditions. These
conditions required, among other things, that the City achieve a system capacity of 45 mgd of reclaimed
wastewater per day by January 1, 2010, remove not less than 80% of TSS (on a monthly average) in the
discharge of the Point Loma Plant, remove not less than 58% of the biochemical oxygen demand
(“BOD”) (on an annual average) in the discharge of the Point Loma Plant, and reduce the quantity of TSS
discharged by the Wastewater System into the Pacific Ocean during the period of modification.

The City applied for and was granted the Point Loma Plant Treatment Waiver on November 9,
1995 (such Treatment Waiver, granted pursuant to OPRA, is referred to herein as a “Modified Permit”).
The City must seek a renewal of its Modified Permit every five years if it seeks to renew the Point Loma
Discharge Permit without implementing secondary treatment. The City has satisfied the OPRA
requirements to achieve a system capacity of 45 mgd of reclaimed wastewater per day by constructing the
North City Plant, which has a capacity of 30 mgd, and the South Bay Plant, which has a capacity of 15
mgd. The Point Loma Plant has consistently met or exceeded the 80% removal requirement for TSS and
the 58% removal of BOD. The quantity of TSS discharged into the Pacific Ocean has conformed to
OPRA requirements and all other permit requirements. The City, the U.S. EPA and certain environmental
groups disagree on how the OPRA requirements may apply to future Modified Permits. Currently, there
are no active lawsuits or appeals with respect to the OPRA requirements.

The City filed a renewal application for a Modified Permit and received a Tentative Decision and
Tentative Order (the “2002 Tentative Order”) on February 11, 2002. Initially, the California Coastal
Commission objected to the consistency certification submitted by the City in connection with its request
for a Modified Permit. The California Coastal Commission noted three areas of concern that it believed
needed to be addressed in order for the discharges to be consistent with the applicable California Coastal
Management Plan standards: (1) reduction in permitted levels of mass emissions; (2) commitments for
water reclamation; and (3) additional monitoring provisions. Subsequently, the Regional Water Board
modified its staff-recommended permit conditions and (1) reduced the total permitted mass emission
loadings; (2) requested annual reports from its staff of the City’s progress towards implementing water
reclamation, which would be independent of the NPDES permit, and noted that it could impose future
reclamation requirements if adequate progress was not forthcoming; and (3) instructed its staff to review
and prepare for future adoption by the Regional Water Board modifications to the monitoring program,
including specific provisions for deep ocean receiving stations, human pathogens, and long term trends,
which would also be independent of the NPDES permit.

In separate proceedings, the City successfully appealed the actions of the California Coastal
Commission and the Regional Water Board. In May 2002, the City resubmitted its consistency
certification to the California Coastal Commission and appealed the Commission’s consistency
certification objection to the Secretary of Commerce. In addition, the City appealed the Regional Water
Board’s NPDES permit action modifying the mass emission limits to the State Water Board. In August
2002, the State Water Board ordered the mass emission limits to be returned to the originally drafted
levels. Subsequently, the City resubmitted its consistency certification for the waiver as modified and
ordered by the State Water Board. The State Water Board concluded that the Regional Water Board had
“...failed to make findings, either in its order or during its deliberations, that justify reducing the mass
emissions limit for TSS...in the waste discharge requirements.” The California Coastal Commission then
approved the consistency certification for the treatment waiver.
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The City appealed to the Environmental Appeals Board (“EAB”) the provision of the 2002
Tentative Order requiring the City to comply with OPRA’s requirements regarding reduction of the
quantity of TSS discharged by the Wastewater System into the Pacific Ocean over the period of
modification. Concurrent with the City’s appeal, three environmental groups filed challenges to the
Modified Permit contesting the maximum discharge limit of TSS and the EPA’s interpretation of the
OPRA requirements. The City’s challenge and all the challenges filed by such environmental groups
have been resolved by a Joint Stipulation for Withdrawal of Appeals (“Joint Stipulation for Withdrawal of
Appeals”) in which the City agreed to (a) evaluate improved ocean monitoring; (b) pilot test biological
aerated filters as a form of technology to increase solids removal; and (c) study increased water reuse.
The Joint Stipulation for Withdrawal of Appeals was approved by the EAB on March 29, 2004, and, as
approved, confirmed the provisions of the current Modified Permit through June 2008 and reserved each
of the parties’ respective position on OPRA to future permits.

Based upon the MWWD’s review of its annual biosolids reports from 2003 through 2007, the
MWWD determined that the Metropolitan Biosolids Center and Point Loma Plant satisfied the criteria for
biosolids disposal required by the Clean Water Act and for the use or disposal of sewage sludge that
includes the analytical results. In December 2007, the City submitted an application to the U.S. EPA to
request a renewal of the Modified Permit for the Point Loma Plant. The City’s renewal application
followed the same conventions as previous applications relative to OPRA. The U.S. EPA has permitted
the City to operate pursuant to the existing Modified Permit until it renders a final decision with respect to
the City’s renewal application because the City filed a renewal application in a timely manner. The City
received a Tentative Decision and Tentative Order to approve the Modified Permit for an additional five
years (the “2008 Tentative Order”) from the U.S. EPA on December 2, 2008. In January 2009, the City
Council approved a resolution authorizing the City to negotiate and execute an agreement with two local
environmental groups regarding the Modified Permit for the Point Loma Plant. Pursuant to such
agreement, the two environmental groups agreed not to challenge the 2008 Tentative Order and the City
is obligated to research options to increase the use of reclaimed wastewater and decrease discharges to the
Pacific Ocean from the Point Loma Plant for a total cost not to exceed $2 million. The Regional Water
Board will comment on the 2008 Tentative Order to ensure that all applicable State water quality
standards are satisfied. The U.S. EPA and the Regional Water Board held an initial, joint hearing in
January 2009 to accept public comment on the 2008 Tentative Order. Another hearing will be held in
mid-2009 to make a final decision to approve, deny or modify the 2008 Tentative Order, which, if
approved, would then be issued in final form within a few months of the decision. Modified Permits are
reviewed by the U.S. EPA every five years. See “THE WASTEWATER SYSTEM — Metropolitan Sub-
System Facilities — Point Loma Plant” herein.

Although the City has obtained two successive Modified Permits from the EPA, the City can give
no assurances that the U.S. EPA will renew or grant Modified Permits to the City in the future. If the
City does not obtain a renewal of the Modified Permit (or any subsequent Modified Permit), the City may
no longer be permitted to continue discharging sewage from the Point Loma Plant without complying
with the secondary treatment requirements of the Clean Water Act. The City considered two alternatives
to address this contingency. One of these contemplates upgrading the Point Loma Plant with conventional
secondary treatment capabilities. The City also considered, subject to verification of its effectiveness, an
alternative to implement a new process for treating sewage at the Point Loma Plant that may entail less
capital but greater maintenance and operation costs. The City could also be required to build additional
solids processing facilities to reduce the burden at the Point Loma Plant or bring the Point Loma Plant
into compliance with the secondary treatment requirements of the Clean Water Act if the quantity of TSS
that the Wastewater System discharges into the Pacific Ocean increases above the levels required by
OPRA, as finally determined by the EPA. Pursuant to the 2002 Tentative Order, a renewed Modified
Permit will be granted based on, among other things, the continued satisfaction of the conditions
established under OPRA, as set forth above.
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The City estimates the cost of the alternatives to bring the Point Loma Plant into compliance with
the secondary treatment requirements of the Clean Water Act will be between $800 million and
$1.5 billion in capital costs, based on Fiscal Year 2008 calculations, if the 2008 Tentative Order is
terminated and the Regional Water Board and U.S. EPA do not approve the Modified Permit. The larger
amount assumes that, among other things, the City cannot access land from the United States Navy or the
United States Park Service. Further, in the event the waiver is not approved for renewal, the City
estimates there would also be an increase in operating and maintenance costs of approximately
$40 million per year, including additional energy and personnel costs, once the Point Loma Plant is fully
operational at the secondary treatment level. Such estimated costs are not reflected in the financial
information included in Table 5 and Table 17. See “WASTEWATER SYSTEM CAPITAL
IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM” and “WASTEWATER SYSTEM FINANCIAL OPERATIONS -
Financial Projections” herein.

Discharge and Disposal of Sewage

Enacted in 1972, the Clean Water Act is a comprehensive revision of prior Federal water
pollution control legislation requiring operators of wastewater treatment plants to operate such facilities in
accordance with NPDES permits which set forth discharge limitations and reporting requirements
applicable to wastewater treatment facilities. The NPDES permit sets effluent limitations on what is
discharged into any public waters and prohibits any non-authorized discharges such as sewer system
overflows. The Point Loma Plant and the South Bay Plant must each obtain an NPDES permit authorizing
them to discharge sewage into the ocean because, at present, all of the Wastewater System’s sewage that
is discharged into the ocean is discharged through either the Point Loma Plant or the South Bay Plant.
The Regional Water Board adopted Waste Discharge Requirements (“WDR”) for the Point Loma Plant
on April 10, 2002, and authorized the U.S. EPA to issue the Point Loma Discharge Permit in conjunction
with the renewal of the Point Loma Plant’s NPDES permit for discharge to the Pacific Ocean pursuant to
the Clean Water Act. The conditions of the WDR were appealed to the State Water Board by the City.
The final permit was signed by the U.S. EPA Regional Administrator on September 13, 2002 and became
effective on October 16, 2002. The Regional Water Board approved an addendum to the Point Loma
Discharge Permit (“Addendum No. 1) on June 11, 2003. Addendum No. 1 modified the monitoring and
reporting program of the Point Loma Discharge Permit to incorporate recommendations of the Southern
California Coastal Water Research Project’s Model Monitoring Program for Large Ocean Discharges in
Southern California. The Regional Water Board adopted waste discharge requirements for the South Bay
Plant on November 8, 2006, and authorized the issuance of the South Bay Discharge Permit for
discharges into the Pacific Ocean. The South Bay Discharge Permit became effective January 1, 2007 and
is scheduled to expire January 1, 2012.

In 1993, the U.S. EPA promulgated its “Standards for the Use or Disposal of Sewage Sludge”
(Code of Federal Regulations Title 40, Part 503), which established, among other things, pollutant
limitations, operational standards, management practices and other provisions intended to protect public
health. In addition to Federal requirements, the City must also comply with State Water Board adopted
Water Quality Order No. 2004-12-DWQ, which expands upon Federal regulations with respect to
biosolids and streamlines the regulatory process for the use of biosolids as a soil amendment. See
Appendix B — “FEASIBILITY STUDY FOR 2009 SERIES WASTEWATER REVENUE BONDS”
attached hereto.

The City must also comply with effluent water-quality based State requirements. The California
Water Code Article 4 (commencing with Section 13160) of Chapter 3 of Division 7 requires the State
Water Board to formulate and adopt a water quality control plan for the ocean waters of the State known
as the California Ocean Plan (the “Ocean Plan”). The Ocean Plan sets forth waste discharge limitations
and monitoring and enforcement guidelines to ensure that water quality objectives are met. Section
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303(c)(1) of the Clean Water Act and Section 13170.2(b) of the State Water Code require that ocean
water quality standards be reviewed at least once every three years. In the event significant changes to the
discharge requirement for TSS are approved with respect to the Ocean Plan, future waivers for the Point
Loma Plant may be threatened. In 2007, the State Water Board solicited comments regarding proposed
amendments to the Ocean Plan. Potential changes to the Ocean Plan are being considered but none has
been approved. See Appendix B — “FEASIBILITY STUDY FOR 2009 SERIES WASTEWATER
REVENUE BONDS?” attached hereto.

The City’s proposed water reclamation projects are subject to the Porter-Cologne Water Quality
Control Act of 1969, as amended (the “Porter Cologne Act”) and are being designed in consultation with
State officials to comply with its requirements. The Porter-Cologne Act directly addresses the issues of
water reclamation and reuse. A declared policy of the law is the development of facilities to reclaim
wastewater to supplement existing surface and underground water supplies to meet their water
requirements. The law requires the State Department of Health Services to establish statewide reclamation
criteria for each type of use where such use involves public health.

State law AB 939 required the City to divert at least 50% of all solid waste from landfill disposal
by December 31, 2000. For calendar year 2008, the City estimates that it diverted approximately 100% of
biosolids from landfill disposal. Biosolids diversion is an integral part of the City’s compliance with AB
939, as biosolids were disposed of in the City’s landfill during the baseline year used for calculating the
diversion rate. The City entered into a franchise disposal agreement with a private company pursuant to
which the company shall be responsible for the disposal of all biosolids generated at the Metropolitan
Biosolids Center through a combination of land application and alternative daily cover methods for
landfill use. The City is considering alternative sludge disposal methods to employ in the event
regulations change in the future.

Industrial Wastewater Control Program

The Point Loma Discharge Permit, the South Bay Discharge Permit and various Federal
regulations require that the City control discharges from the Wastewater System by implementing an
industrial wastewater control program (an “IWCP”). The Metropolitan Sub-System has had an IWCP in
effect since 1972. The Metropolitan Sub-System’s ICWP was formally approved by the U.S. EPA in
1983. The Metropolitan Sub-System’s ICWP administers and enforces Federal general and specific
discharge prohibitions, Federal categorical pretreatment standards, treatment plant-specific local limits
and local source control programs within the City. The City’s Industrial Waste Ordinance lists Federal
general and specific prohibitions and authorizes the issuance of permits, which include applicable Federal
and local discharge standards. The City’s Industrial Waste Ordinance also authorizes administrative
penalties and other enforcement measures in response to permit or ordinance violations. As required by
the EPA, the City has entered into inter-jurisdictional pretreatment agreements (each, a “Pretreatment
Agreement” and, collectively, the “Pretreatment Agreements”) with each of the Participating Agencies
whose sewage is treated by the MWWD. See Appendix B — “FEASIBILITY STUDY FOR 2009 SERIES
WASTEWATER REVENUE BONDS” attached hereto. The Pretreatment Agreements specify that each
Participating Agency must either implement an equivalent IWCP or authorize the City to administer an
IWCP in their respective agencies. The City currently administers the IWCP in each of the Participating
Agencies. Collectively, the IWCP operated by the City regulates 1,569 dischargers throughout the
Metropolitan Sub-System’s tributary area. In addition, inspections have determined that an additional
2,073 facilities do not require permits at this time. Annual audits by the U.S. EPA and the Regional
Water Board have determined that the IWCP is in compliance with the Point Loma Discharge Permit, the
South Bay Discharge Permit and Federal program requirements.
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Grant and Loan Related Regulatory Requirements

The City is subject to regulatory requirements, in addition to those described above, as a
condition of receipt of Federal grants received from the EPA, State grants and SRF low-interest loans
under the Clean Water Act for the planning and construction of various improvements to the Wastewater
System. Among other grant-related requirements are guidelines concerning planning methodologies,
design criteria, construction activities, and the operation, maintenance and financing of facilities.

In connection with an U.S. EPA grant of approximately $76 million that the City received and
used for the construction of the North City Plant and other wastewater projects, the grant contained a
condition that the City attempt to meet the goal of beneficial reuse of 25% of the flows treated at the
North City Plant by December 31, 2003 and 50% by December 31, 2010. The City has diligently reported
its progress and efforts to meet the goals set forth in the grant. The U.S. EPA has acknowledged the
City’s good faith efforts toward compliance with the beneficial reuse goals set forth in its grant and has
not imposed any penalties or sanctions under the grant agreement. During calendar year 2008, the City
achieved beneficial reuse of 26% of the flows treated at the North City Plant. The City is continuing to
explore alternative means to increase reclaimed water use. See “THE WASTEWATER SYSTEM -
Metropolitan Sub-System Facilities — North City Water Reclamation Plant” herein.

As a condition of certain other Federal grants, the State Water Board, as the delegate of the EPA,
must approve the sewer service charge structures of the City and the Participating Agencies. Such service
charge structures require the recovery of annual operations, maintenance and replacement costs from
users of the system in a proportionate manner according to the customer’s level of use. Such factors as
volume, infiltration/inflow, delivery flow rate, and strength of sewage are to be considered for
determining proportionate use. Sewer service charge rates for all retail users are reviewed periodically
and established at a level necessary to generate sufficient revenues to recover the annual operations,
maintenance and replacement costs. Sewer service charge rates for users are established to recognize the
volume and strength characteristics of wastewater contributed to the Wastewater System. The City
Council has taken various actions to adjust the Wastewater System’s rate structure, including in
connection with periodic review of the distribution of cost of services. See “WASTEWATER SYSTEM
FINANCIAL OPERATIONS — City Council Actions Relating to Rate Changes” herein. The City’s rate
structure has been approved by the State Water Board and no grant funds or costs under grant funded
programs have been disallowed based on the nature of the rate structures.

WASTEWATER SYSTEM CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM
Background

The MWWD prepares an 11-year Wastewater System CIP (consisting of the current budget year
and a 10-year projection) on an annual basis, and the City incorporates the first year of such plan into the
Wastewater System’s annual budget. The EPM of the MWWD also prepares a 25-year internal
Wastewater System CIP model in connection with the consideration of longer-term projects. The
Wastewater System CIP presents the total estimated project cost since project inception, including
expenditures, encumbrances, continuing appropriations, the annual budget for the current fiscal year and
projections of expenses in subsequent years. The general objectives of the Wastewater System CIP are to
meet Federal and State requirements and City policy regarding water pollution control, to provide
satisfactory levels of service to users of the Wastewater System, and to maintain the integrity of the
Wastewater System.

The Wastewater System CIP is an ongoing capital expenditure program. During the 1990’s, the
City completed several large wastewater treatment plant projects in response to litigation involving
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violations of the Clean Water Act. Beginning in 2000, the focus of the Wastewater System CIP shifted to
the Municipal Sub-System. In April 2002, the City received an Administrative Order from the U.S. EPA
directing the City to prepare and submit a plan for rehabilitation and replacement of sewer pipes and
structures. In October 2007, the City signed the Final Consent Decree with the EPA, which obligates the
City to replace or rehabilitate 250 miles of sewer pipeline between July 2007 and June 2013 and to
replace or rehabilitate a number of trunk sewers and pump stations by certain dates. See
“WASTEWATER SYSTEM REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS - Collection of Sewage — The
Municipal Sub-System Collection System” herein.

The Wastewater System CIP includes annual allocations projects, which are programmed
expenditures that allow the City to plan for the expansion, renovation, relocation, or replacement of
facilities and equipment that have reached or exceeded their anticipated service life, provides for
emergency and accelerated construction needs, and provides for capital improvement project contingency
needs. Any amount not allocated to a component task in a particular year is returned to the contributing
fund. In addition, the Wastewater System CIP includes phased funding to accommodate, appropriate and
contract for large projects to maximize the City’s use of available funds by identifying defined portions or
phases of projects on a contingent basis. The Wastewater System CIP also uses split funding, which
allows two different revenue sources to be used to fund a capital project on a percentage basis.

Any ongoing project under the Wastewater System CIP, other than an annual allocation, that was
initiated prior to the current Fiscal Year will have expenditures, encumbrances or continuing
appropriations in the current Fiscal Year. The MWWD may budget additional funding for such projects
during current and future Fiscal Years depending upon project scheduling. The MWWD includes the
amounts it has budgeted for each Fiscal Year in an annual appropriation ordinance (each, an “Annual
Appropriation Ordinance”), which becomes effective upon adoption by the City Council. Each Annual
Appropriation Ordinance authorizes the City to appropriate revenues for expenditures relating to capital
improvement projects for the applicable Fiscal Year. In addition, each Annual Appropriation Ordinance
provides guidance regarding the administration of the Wastewater System CIP. Modifications to a
project’s budget may occur during the course of the Fiscal Year through City Council action.
Appropriations for projects which are contained in the Wastewater System CIP for the Fiscal Year 2009
have been approved in the Annual Appropriation Ordinance for the Fiscal Year 2009. However, the City
is not obligated to expend funds based on any projections made for Fiscal Years 2010 to 2019 because
such projections are not contained within the Annual Appropriation Ordinance.

The MWWD currently expects that approximately 80% of the costs of the Wastewater System
CIP will be funded with the proceeds of future debt financing and the remaining 20% will be paid on a
pay-as-you-go basis from Net System Revenues. The City has approved sewer service charge rates that
will be in effect through Fiscal Year 2011 to finance the pay-as-you-go portion of the Wastewater System
CIP. Table 5 sets forth the Wastewater System CIP for Fiscal Years 2009 through 2013 and the expected
allocations between the Municipal Sub-System and Metropolitan Sub-Systems. See Appendix B —
“FEASIBILITY STUDY FOR 2009 SERIES WASTEWATER REVENUE BONDS” attached hereto.
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WASTEWATER SYSTEM
PROJECTED CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM EXPENDITURE SUMMARY"
Fiscal Years 2009 through 2013

TABLE 5

($ In Thousands)

Expected Projects 2009 2010% 2011 2012 2013 TOTAL
Municipal Sub-System
Projects
Trunk Sewers $10,576 $ 33,153 § 75,233 $ 53,848 $ 28,744 $201,554
Pipelines 32,341 89,494 74,560 103,483 61,551 361,429
Pump Stations 5,489 8,820 25,152 2,104 2,719 44,284
Miscellaneous 459 1,576 7,697 2,135 1,579 13.446
Subtotal Municipal Sub-
System Projects $48.865 $133.043 $182,642 $161,570 $ 94,593 $620,713
Metropolitan Sub-System
Projects
Treatment Plants $ 4,117 $ 6,632 $ 23,033 $ 26,420 $ 22,533 $ 82,735
Pipeline -- -- -- -- 186 186
Large Pump Stations 1,167 6,878 7,171 8,340 676 24,232
Miscellaneous 1,457 7,531 5,263 7,982 1,791 24,024
Subtotal Metropolitan Sub-
System Projects $ 6,741 $ 21,041 $ 35,467 $ 42,742 $ 25,186 $131,177
TOTAL 55,606  $154,084  $218,109 $204,312 $119.779 $751.890

Source: Metropolitan Wastewater Department, City of San Diego; Reflects Rate Case as of March 14, 2009.

1

Includes an assumed four percent annual increase in Wastewater System CIP project costs for Fiscal Years 2010

through 2013. Includes projects required by the Final Consent Decree and those required as part of the annual

maintenance of the Wastewater System.
The City considers the projected capital expenditure schedule for Fiscal Year 2010 aggressive and estimates that it

()

could take between 12 and 18 months to complete.

3)

Projected expenditures for Fiscal Year 2009 include costs associated with the design, planning and development of

projects to be executed in subsequent years. Costs associated with the execution of projects are attributed to Fiscal

Years 2010 through 2013.
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Capital Improvement Projects

Municipal Sub-System Projects. The following is a summary description of certain projects
identified in the Wastewater System CIP to be constructed for the Municipal Sub-System, including
Annual Allocation projects in all of these categories.

L.

4.

Trunk Sewers — These projects include replacement or rehabilitation of existing trunk
sewers (larger than 15-inches in diameter) due to deterioration or insufficient capacity.

Pipelines — These projects include replacement or rehabilitation of various sewer main
located throughout the City due to deterioration or insufficient capacity.

Pump Stations — These projects include upgrades, renovations, restoration and
replacement of major equipment at the Municipal Sub-System’s pump stations.

Miscellaneous — Other municipal projects such as developer projects.

Metropolitan Sub-System. The following is a summary description of certain projects identified
in the Wastewater System CIP to be constructed for the Metropolitan Sub-System, including annual
allocation projects in the majority of these categories.

L.

Treatment Plants — These projects include renovations or upgrades at the North City
Plant, the South Bay Plant, the Metropolitan Biosolids Center and the Point Loma Plant
to implement operating efficiencies, optimize the existing facilities and comply with
revised regulatory and operation plan requirements.

Pipelines — These projects include replacement or rehabilitation of various sewer
interceptors which are deteriorating or have insufficient capacity.

Large Pump Stations — These projects include upgrades, renovations, restoration and
replacement of major equipment at Pump Station No. 1, Pump Station No. 2, Otay River
Pump Station and Grove Avenue Pump Station.

Miscellaneous — These projects include, among other things, projects for improvements
to the Facilities Distributed Controls System, the Environmental Monitoring and
Technical Services Lab, management of wet weather flows, the Metropolitan Facilities
Control System Upgrade, which includes upgrades to the distributed controls system at
the Metropolitan Biosolids Center, Point Loma Plant, North City Plant and South Bay
Plant and Phase I of the Weather Storage Facility, which will implement intermittent
stream discharge of reclaimed water from the North City Plant during heavy rain to
reduce the capacity demand on the downstream sewer system.

Capital Improvement Financing Plan

The MWWD experienced delays in connection with certain capital projects and expenditures
from Fiscal Years 2005 through 2008 in part because of limited access to bond financing, reorganization
of City departments and the additional structuring of projects prior to their actual execution. The
MWWD has financed its recent Wastewater System CIP projects with proceeds of the Authority’s Sewer
Revenue Bonds, Series 2004 (the “Series 2004 Bonds”) and its Series 2007 Notes, which were issued in
the aggregate principal amount of $223,830,000. The proceeds of the Series 2007 Notes were also used
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to refund all of the $144.4 million principal amount of Series 2004 Bonds then outstanding. The 2007
Notes were paid with a portion of the proceeds of the Series 2009A Bonds.

Table 6 below sets forth the projected sources and uses of funds for the Wastewater System CIP
for the Fiscal Years 2009 through 2013. New bond issues are assumed to be bonds secured by
Installment Payments that are Parity Obligations. The amount of Installment Payments securing Parity
Obligations may decrease if any of the new bond issues are not issued as Parity Obligations. Subject to an
award by the State Water Board and approval by the City Council, in Fiscal Year 2009 the City will incur
an additional Parity Obligation in the form of the Additional SRF Loan. The potential receipt of the
Additional SRF Loan is not included in the City’s Rate Model. However, the receipt of such funds is not
expected to affect the overall projections because the MWWD will reduce its aggregate borrowing by a
like amount for the period covered by its Rate Model. Table 6 takes into account the financial
assumptions contained in Appendix B — “FEASIBILITY STUDY FOR 2009 SERIES WASTEWATER
REVENUE BONDS?” attached hereto.

The Wastewater System CIP includes the costs of the projects described in Table 5 above. The
2009 Adopted MWWD Budget continues to focus the Wastewater System CIP on the annual
appropriations, which include, among other things, the replacement of sewer mains, pipeline repair and
rehabilitation, and upgrades to trunk sewers and pump stations as required by the Consent Decree. See
“WASTEWATER SYSTEM REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS — Collection of Sewage” herein. In the
event the City fails to obtain successive Modified Permits or if the City fails to obtain clarification of
OPRA in its favor (whether by judicial or legislative means), the capital costs of the Wastewater System
CIP could increase substantially. See “WASTEWATER SYSTEM REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS —
Treatment of Sewage” herein. If the City is obligated to incur greater costs in repairing and rehabilitating
the Municipal Sub-System than the City projects herein, the capital costs of the Wastewater System CIP
could increase substantially. See “WASTEWATER SYSTEM REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS —
Collection of Sewage” herein.
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TABLE 6
SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS FOR CAPITAL EXPENDITURES OF THE
WASTEWATER SYSTEM CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM
($ In Thousands)
Fiscal Years 2009 to 2013

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 Total ®

SOURCE OF FUNDS

Carryover Balance of Acquisition Fund § 25,641 $126,157 $ -- $ -- $ - $ 151,798
New Bond Issue'” 402,059 -- 190,208 178,175 104,458 874,900
Pay-as-You-Go 11,122 27.927 43.622 40.862 23.955 147.488
TOTAL SOURCES $ 438.822 $154,084 $233,830 $219,037 $128.413 $1,174,186
USES OF FUNDS

Costs of Issuance $ 4,020 $ -- $ 1,902 $ 1,782 $ 1,045 § 8,749
Debt Service Reserve Fund 29,209 -- 13,819 12,943 7,589 63,560
Repayment of Obligations 223,830 -- -- -- -- 223,830

. . )G

Capital Expenditures'® ¥ 55606 154084 218109 204312 119779 _ 751.890
TOTAL USES $ 312,665 $154,084 $ 233,830 $219,037 $128.413 $1,048,029
Balance to be Carried Forward $ 126,157 -- - - - $ 126,157

Source: Metropolitan Wastewater Department, City of San Diego; Reflects the Rate Case as of March 14, 2009.
() Reflects projected gross proceeds of bond issuances.
Expenditures may include continuing appropriations from previous years.
Table 6 reflects projected cash expenditures for the Wastewater System CIP.
The City considers the projected capital expenditure schedule for Fiscal Year 2010 aggressive and estimates that it could take
between 12 and 18 months to complete.
Reflects projected sources and uses for Fiscal Years 2009 through 2013.

(@2}
3)
“4)

)

Environmental Compliance

The projects contained in the Wastewater System CIP are generally subject to the California
Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”), as amended (Division 13 of the California Public Resources
Code). Under CEQA, a project which may have a significant effect on the environment and which is to be
carried out or approved by a public agency must comply with a comprehensive environmental review
process, including the preparation of an Environmental Impact Report (“EIR”). An EIR reflects not only
an independent technical analysis of the project’s potential impacts, but also the comments of other
agencies with some form of jurisdiction over the project and the comments of interested members of the
public. Contents of an EIR include a detailed statement of the project’s potentially significant
environmental effects; any such effects which cannot be avoided if the project is implemented; mitigation
measures proposed to eliminate or minimize such effects; alternatives to the proposed project; and any
significant irreversible environmental changes which would result from the project. If an agency
determines that the project itself will not have a significant effect on the environment, it may adopt a
written statement (called a “Negative Declaration”) to that effect and need not prepare an EIR. A
Mitigated Negative Declaration (“MND”) is appropriate for projects that could potentially result in a
significant environmental impact, but revisions or standard mitigation measures are incorporated into the
project that clearly mitigate the impact. Statutory exemptions are activities that are not subject to CEQA.
Wastewater System CIP projects can also be exempted if they fit a specific “category” of activities
identified by the State Legislature. Once an agency approves or determines to carry out a project, either
following an EIR process or after adopting a negative declaration, it must file a notice of such
determination. Any action or proceeding challenging the agency’s determination must be brought within
30 days following the filing of such notice.
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As part of its regular planning and budgetary process, the City prepares in accordance with local,
State and Federal law and regulations separate environmental documents for each Wastewater System
CIP project and evaluates the project under the City’s environmental impact review procedures, which
were developed in compliance with State law and regulations. The City requires that all environmental
documents and evaluations be completed prior to any authorization of funding for construction by the
City Council and the Mayor.

The Wastewater System CIP involves replacement, upgrading and increasing capacity of existing
facilities. Accordingly, the City does not believe that environmental considerations will adversely affect
the completion of the Wastewater System CIP within the contemplated budget or the current timetable.

Project Management for the Wastewater System Capital Improvement Program

The MWWD and the Engineering and Capital Projects Department (“E&CP”), which is a
department within the City’s Public Works Group, are responsible for the implementation of the
Wastewater System CIP. The MWWD is responsible for selecting the projects that are included in the
Wastewater Capital Improvement Program. Selection of such projects involves, among other things,
assessing conditions, sewer modeling, preparing planning reports, prioritizing projects, scheduling and
allocating the budget. Once the MWWD determines that a particular project should proceed, the MWWD
sends a scope of work, planning report or 10% design, as appropriate, and the proposed schedule and
budget to E&CP. E&CP is responsible for the design, construction and start-up of all Wastewater System
CIP projects.

Each Fiscal Year, the MWWD and E&CP enter into a Service Level Agreement (each, an
“SLA”) which outlines the responsibilities of each department as it relates to the planning, design and
construction of sewer improvements with respect to sewer mains, trunk sewers, pump stations and
treatment plants. Pursuant to the SLA, E&CP provides engineering services including project
management, design, environmental, permitting, land acquisition, scheduling, budget and construction
management. E&CP implements the Wastewater System CIP from design of projects to completion,
including capitalization of the final asset and management of warranty issues, as directed by the MWWD.
The MWWD provides overall direction and policy for planning, financing, and operations and
maintenance of the Wastewater System. Further, the MWWD funds the positions and non-personnel
expenses, which are necessary for the service provider of a particular project to fulfill its responsibilities.

Contract Disputes

From time to time, the City is engaged in disputes with the contractors and subcontractors
working on the Wastewater System CIP. As of May 14, 2009, there are no pending contract disputes with
vendors or contractors working on the Wastewater System CIP in excess of $1 million.

Insurance for Construction

The City requires the consultant or contractor selected to design or construct a Wastewater
System CIP project to provide minimum insurance therefor. Design consultants are required to provide at
a minimum commercial general liability insurance of $1 million per occurrence ($2 million aggregate),
commercial auto liability insurance of $1 million per occurrence, workers’ compensation insurance of $1
million, architect and engineer’s professional liability insurance of $1 million per occurrence ($2 million
aggregate) and errors and omissions insurance for design-build projects. Construction contractors are
required to provide at a minimum, among other things, commercial and general liability insurance
aggregate limit of $2 million (other than products/completed operations) and $2 million
(products/completed operations), personal injury insurance of $1 million each occurrence, commercial
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automobile liability insurance of $1 million combined single limit per accident, and contractors builders
risk property insurance in an amount equal to 115% of the contract value. Further, depending upon the
size and scope of a project, the City’s Risk Management Department may require increased insurance
coverage at any time and from time to time based upon its assessment of the degree of risk for such
project.

WASTEWATER SYSTEM FINANCIAL OPERATIONS
General

The MWWD manages and operates the Wastewater System with funds derived primarily from
service charges which are deposited in the Sewer Revenue Fund. The Sewer Revenue Fund was
established in 1956. Funds in the Sewer Revenue Fund are used for the operation, maintenance and
capital improvement of the Metropolitan Sub-System and the Municipal Sub-System.  See
“WASTEWATER SYSTEM FINANCIAL OPERATIONS — Establishment, Calculation and Collection
of Sewer Service Charges” herein.

The City’s primary sources of moneys deposited in the Sewer Revenue Fund are derived from
revenues generated by sewer service charges to City residents and commercial enterprises, capacity
charges on new, additional or larger connections to the Wastewater System within the City, revenues
from the Participating Agencies pursuant to the Regional Sewage Disposal Agreement and interest
income on fund balances. See “WASTEWATER SYSTEM FINANCIAL OPERATIONS — Participating
Agencies; Regional Wastewater Disposal Agreement; Transportation Agreements” herein. The City also
deposits into the Sewer Revenue Fund revenues received from the United States Navy pursuant to
“Department of the Navy Negotiated Water and Sewage Contract” by and between the City and United
States Navy.

Budgetary Process

The City budgets revenues and expenditures to support the costs the MWWD incurs to operate
and maintain the Wastewater System. Each March, the MWWD submits its budget for the following
fiscal year to the City Council for approval. Budget estimates for the Wastewater System CIP are
prepared based upon the needs of the Metropolitan Sub-System and the Municipal Sub-System. Cost
information and schedules provided by the design and operations staff are used to prepare the capital
budget for the Wastewater System. The MWWD prepares an 11-year Wastewater System CIP each year
as part of its budget process. See “WASTEWATER SYSTEM CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM
— Background” herein. The Wastewater System CIP consists of anticipated costs and a schedule for
projects planned for completion and is based on planning information from prior years, progress toward
stated goals and objectives, future and long-term needs and planning information developed during the
Wastewater System CIP planning cycle. The Wastewater System CIP provides the basis for review of the
annual budget for the Wastewater System CIP and near-term projects and is divided into projects for each
of the Municipal Sub-System and the Metropolitan Sub-System to address their respective requirements.

The City commissions a wastewater cost of service, rate design and capacity fee study
periodically. The goal of each study is to develop recommendations for the establishment of fair and
equitable sewer rates for the City’s users and a revenue program that will be acceptable to the State Water
Board. Each study includes a review of the City’s financial plan or rate case, usage characteristics, and
rate structure. The City expects to commission the next wastewater cost of service study in calendar year
2011. See “WASTEWATER SYSTEM FINANCIAL OPERATIONS — Calculation and Collection of
Capacity Charges” herein.
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Establishment, Calculation and Collection of Sewer Service Charge Revenue and Treatment Plant
Services Revenue

Sewer Service Charge Revenue. The City deposits sewer service charge revenues, which are
primarily derived from sewer service charges to City residents and commercial enterprises into the Sewer
Revenue Fund. Sewer service charges to City utility customers are collected on a municipal bill, which
also includes water charges and storm drain fees. Bills are rendered on a bi-monthly basis for single
family and most multifamily dwellings and on a monthly basis for industrial, commercial, and large
multifamily dwellings. In accordance with the provisions of the City Municipal Code, these funds are
administered in an enterprise account separate from the City’s General Fund.

The City establishes fees based upon the costs incurred by the City to collect, treat and discharge
wastewater and pay for required capital improvements. Staff within the MWWD and senior management
within the City analyze rates and charges to determine the amounts necessary to support the Wastewater
System based upon revenue and expenditure data from the various divisions of the MWWD. Staff
evaluates the adequacy of revenues and recommends rate adjustments to correspond with projected
changes in maintenance and operations costs and the timing and magnitude of capital expenditures. This
rate and charge analysis is conducted annually for management purposes and whenever it is required to
assist planned financings and proposed rate adjustments. See “WASTEWATER SYSTEM FINANCIAL
OPERATIONS — City Council Actions Relating to Rate Changes” herein.

Sewer service charges are based on the characteristics of the wastewater discharged by each
sewer user. All sewer users are charged based upon the amount of flow, solids and organic material
which they discharge into the Wastewater System. As sewage discharge is not metered, water sales are
used to approximate each customer’s sewage flow. TSS and organics are based upon the standard
industrial classification code or determined by site inspections and/or analyses as required or requested.

Each single family residential wastewater account is billed an account-specific fixed daily charge
based on 95% of the prior winter’s lowest daily average water consumption, based on usage for the
months of December through March. The fixed charge for each account is adjusted annually on July 1st.
Multifamily flow charge is based on 95% of actual water use on a month-to-month basis. Chemical
Oxygen Demand (“COD”) and TSS loadings components of the charge are the same for both single
family residential and multifamily accounts and do not vary from month-to-month. These fixed strength
loadings are incorporated into the class-specific fixed charges for commercial and industrial accounts and
based on actual monthly water use and the percentage return COD loading and TSS loading which varies
between industries.

Treatment Plant Services Revenue. Pursuant to the terms of the Regional Wastewater Disposal
Agreement, the City bills each Participating Agency based on its use of the Wastewater System and its
capacity rights. See “THE WASTEWATER SYSTEM - Participating Agencies; Regional Wastewater
Disposal Agreement; Transportation Agreements” herein. The City bills the Participating Agencies on a
quarterly basis in arrears based on the budget for the corresponding Fiscal Year. An audit is performed at
the end of each Fiscal Year to confirm the amount of Metropolitan Sub-System expenditures. Actual
expenditures are compared to the budget used to bill each Participating Agency and each Participating
Agency is then given either a credit on a future bill or invoiced for any underpayment. The adjustments,
which have ranged from $1 million to $10 million, reflect a reconciliation of amounts charged by the
MWWD with actual expenditures of the MWWD and have historically been revenue-neutral to the
Wastewater System. The Participating Agencies set the sewer service charges and capacity charges that
they charge their respective customers in order to meet their own wastewater needs and their share of the
Metropolitan Sub-System costs. The sewer service charges currently in effect for the various Participating
Agencies are varied and are not controlled by the City. Any failure by a Participating Agency to generate
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sufficient capacity charges does not affect the obligation of such Participating Agency to pay amounts
owed to the City under the Regional Wastewater Disposal Agreement.

Table 7 below sets forth the sources of sewer service charge revenues of the Sewer Revenue Fund
for the Fiscal Years 2004 through 2008.

TABLE 7
WASTEWATER SYSTEM
HISTORICAL SOURCES OF SEWER SERVICE CHARGE REVENUES®"
Fiscal Year 2004 to 2008
($ In Thousands)
(Unaudited)

Source 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
Single Family Domestic $ 93,061 $ 90,708 $ 94,086 $ 95,757 $104,565
Multifamily (Other Domestic) 58,277 65,788 70,578 74,851 77,921
Commercial 53,537 59,424 61,501 65,245 71,376
Industrial 4,743 6,774 6,991 4,840 6,171
Outside City 12 3 0 0 0
Treatment Plant Service for Others'® 53,043 60,726 53.260 59.043 65.015
Total® $262.673 $283.423 $286.416 $299.736 $325.,048

Source: Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for Fiscal Years 2004 through 2008 for Total; Comptroller’s Office, City of

San Diego for all other line items.

() Constitutes a component of System Revenues; does not include capacity charges or other operating revenues which are
included in calculating Net System Revenues.

@ Includes sewer service charge revenues from Participating Agencies, the United States Navy and other agencies.
@ Audited.

Table 8 sets forth the ten largest customers of the Municipal Sub-System. The ten largest
customers of the Municipal Sub-System in terms of billings in Fiscal Year 2008 account for
approximately 7.49% of the Sewer Revenue Fund’s total operating revenues for such Fiscal Year. The
largest customer of the Municipal Sub-System is the United States Navy, which accounted for 2.85% of
the Sewer Revenue Fund’s total operating revenues for the Fiscal Year 2008. CP Kelco, the second
largest customer of the Municipal Sub-System, contributed 1.29% of the Sewer Revenue Fund’s total
operating revenues for Fiscal Year 2008. No other customer accounted for more than 1% of the Sewer
Revenue Fund’s total operating revenues for such Fiscal Year.
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TABLE 8
MUNICIPAL SUB-SYSTEM
TEN LARGEST CUSTOMERS

Fiscal Year 2008"
(Unaudited)
Percent of Total
Sewer Billings Operating Revenue®
United States Navy $ 9,360,169 2.85%
CP Kelco 4,221,056 1.29
University of California, San Diego 2,962,249 0.90
Federal Government® 1,650,471 0.50
R.J. Donovan Correctional Facility 1,564,282 0.48
City of San Diego 1,316,830 0.40
San Diego State University 950,799 0.29
San Diego Unified School 908,844 0.28
Marine Park Corp 888,075 0.27
County of San Diego 745,401 0.23
TOTAL $ 24,568,176 7.49%

Sources: Metropolitan Wastewater Department, Water Department and Comptroller’s Office, City of San Diego.

()" Does not include Participating Agencies or customers served by Participating Agencies.

@ Reflects percentage of total operating revenues of the Municipal Sub-System; includes revenues from Participating
Agencies. See the line item entitled “Total Operating Revenues” in Table 14 — “Statements of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes In Fund Net Assets” herein.

@ Excludes the United States Navy.

City Council Actions Relating to Sewer Rate Changes

The Wastewater System’s overall rate structure was revised in 2004 and in 2007 to provide a
more equitable distribution of costs among the various classifications of sewer customers. The sewer
billing rate under the existing rate structure is determined separately for each meter based upon three
factors: (1) “The Percent Return to Sewer”, calculated as the water delivered to the facility through the
water meter less any water lost from the facility as evaporation, irrigation, or in products leaving the site
divided by the water delivered to the facility; (2) “Total Suspended Solids” in the wastewater; and (3)
effective October 1, 2004, COD of the wastewater. Incorporation of COD into the rate structure was
designed to help the City meet requirements of certain grants issued pursuant to the Clean Water Act and
loans granted pursuant to the State Water Board’s SRF Loan Program. Under this rate structure, revenues
derived from sewer fees and charges are used solely for the purpose of defraying costs incurred to provide
sewer collection and transportation, treatment and disposal services; facilities and equipment
maintenance, and capital projects. On February 26, 2007, the Mayor and the City Council approved sewer
rate increases of 8.75%, 8.75%, 7.00% and 7.00% effective on May 1, 2007, May 1, 2008, May 1, 2009
and May 1, 2010, respectively. Through Fiscal Year 2008, the City received approximately $20 million
in service charge revenues in connection with such rate increases. The City expects to receive from Fiscal
Year 2009 through Fiscal Year 2011 an aggregate amount of approximately $217 million in additional
service charge revenues to fund regulatory orders, replace infrastructure and meet operating and
maintenance needs of the City’s Wastewater System.

In addition to the rate increases set forth above, the City Council has temporarily adjusted rates

for all City sewer customers in connection with settlement of Shames v. City of San Diego, a class action
lawsuit filed on June 16, 2004 on behalf of all single family residential account holders in the City’s
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Municipal Sub-System who held sewer accounts during any period between May 23, 1994 through
September 30, 2004. The lawsuit alleged the City failed to include a COD cost component in the rate
structure during the aforementioned period, which led to overcharges on residential sewer fees that were
disproportionate to the cost of service attributable to the parcel or land on which service was provided, as
required by Article XIIID, Section 6(b)(3) of the California State Constitution. See “CONSTITUTIONAL
LIMITATIONS ON TAXES AND WASTEWATER RATES AND CHARGES—California Constitution
Articles XIIIC and XIIID” herein. The lawsuit also included a claim for breach of contract based on the
receipt of Federal and State grants requiring a strength based revenue structure.

In 2007, the City settled the Shames v. City of San Diego case (the “Shames Settlement”) and
agreed to reimburse certain “eligible” single family residential customers in the aggregate amount of
$35 million and to pay attorney’s fees to the plaintiffs’ counsel in the amount of $5 million. The City
adopted a COD cost component in its rate structure on June 8, 2004, pursuant to City Council Resolution
R-299322, which was implemented on October 1, 2004. As part of the Shames Settlement, the City also
agreed to permit an independent and qualified 501(c)(3) non-profit organization to place a solicitation
insert into billing statements for single family residential account holders up to three times a year for five
years. The billing inserts are designed to allow the organization to raise funds for the hiring and payment
of experts who will review and evaluate the City’s future sewer rate setting activities. To satisfy the terms
of the Shames Settlement, the City temporarily increased existing sewer rates for all City sewer customers
by 3.05% on November 1, 2007 and increased existing sewer rates by an additional 3.05% on May 1,
2008. For “eligible” single family residential sewer customers, the City will reverse the two 3.05% rate
increases applicable to all City sewer customers and pay the settlement obligation in the form of a
monthly credit which is estimated to be $3.25 per month. Per the Shames Settlement, “eligible” single
family residential customers are those who received sewer service to their property in the ten-year period
prior to October 1, 2004. The rate reversal and monthly credit for single family residential customers will
end and the City will terminate the two 3.05% rate increases attributable to the Shames Settlement when
the $40 million settlement amount has been raised and distributed according to the Shames Settlement.
The City expects this to occur for all single family residential customers in the fall of 2011. See
“LITIGATION” herein for a description of ongoing litigation regarding multifamily customers and the
California Restaurant Management System that may impact City Council actions relating to sewer service
rates.

Table 9 sets forth the sewage service charges approved by the City Council in the last five fiscal

years including sewer service charges that are currently in effect and those that have been approved and
will be effective on May 1, 2010.
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TABLE 9
WASTEWATER SYSTEM
APPROVED RATE INCREASES FOR SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL,
MULTIFAMILY AND COMMERCIAL AND INDUSTRIAL CUSTOMERS
Fiscal Years 2005 through 2010%

(Unaudited)
Commercial & Industrial Customers®
$/HCF
Single Multifamily® Monthly $/LB
Single All Classes Uniform Family (Other Domestic) Wastew  $/LB Total Chemical
Family % Rate Base Residential Usage Fee ater Suspended Oxygen
Effective Date  Domestic®?® Increase Fee $/HCF water $/HCF water Flow Solids Demand
Oct. 1, 20049 $32.72 N/A $10.53 $2.563 $3.461 $2.5613  $0.3994 $0.1436
March 1, 2005 35.17 7.50% 11.32 2.755 3.721 2.7534 0.4294 0.1544
May 1, 2007 38.32 8.75 12.31 2.890 4.038 3.0257 0.4431 0.1801
Nov. 1, 2007 39.49 3.05 12.69 2.978 4.161 3.1180 0.4566 0.1856
May 1, 2008 42.94 8.75 13.80 3.239 4.525 3.3908 0.4966 0.2018
May 1, 2008% 44.25 3.05 14.22 3.338 4.663 3.4942 0.5117 0.2080
May 1, 2009 47.35 7.00 15.21 3.571 4.990 3.7388 0.5475 0.2225
May 1, 2010 50.67 7.00 16.28 3.821 5.339 4.0005 0.5859 0.2381

Source: Metropolitan Wastewater Department, City of San Diego.

1
()
3)
)

(%)

Includes sewer service charges that are currently in effect and those that have been approved by the City Council and will be effective on May 1, 2010.

Represents the average monthly amount and new customer amount.

Commercial and Industrial Customers’ monthly charges are based upon volume of flow, TSS, and COD included effective October 1, 2004.

Reflects restructuring of sewer service charges which adds COD as a cost parameter and a uniform base fee for all single family residential customers, multifamily residential
customers and commercial and industrial customers.

On June 16, 2004, a class action lawsuit, Shames v. City of San Diego, was filed against the City alleging that until October 2004 (when the City revised its sewer rate
structure — See footnote (4)), single family residential customers were overcharged for sewer service, while other customers were undercharged. On May 18, 2007, the
Superior Court for the County of San Diego approved an agreement to settle the lawsuit. This requires the City to reimburse “eligible” single family residential customers a
total of $40 million (less $5 million for attorney’s fees and other costs) over the next four years.
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Accounts Receivable

Typically, the City seeks to collect unpaid bills by: (i) issuing an initial shut-off notice 25 days
after a bill is issued; (ii) issuing a final shut-off notice 38 days after a bill is issued; and (iii) shutting off
the customer’s water service 45-51 days after a bill is issued. This procedure results in almost all past due
bills being paid. If necessary, the City establishes time payments for customers who are unable to pay a
past due amount. Accounts closed with an amount due and unpaid are referred to the City Treasurer for
collection activities 75 days after the bill is issued but unpaid. An allowance is taken each Fiscal Year for
accounts receivable that are not expected to be paid. During the Fiscal Years 2004 through 2008,
accounts receivable amounts outstanding for more than 120 days ranged from $1.69 million to
$2.6 million. Sewer service charges to City utility customers are collected on the municipal sewer bill,
which also includes water charges and storm drain fees. Bills are currently invoiced every two months for
single family dwellings and most multifamily dwellings and on a monthly basis for all other customers.

Table 10 below sets forth information related to accounts receivable and number of shut-offs.

TABLE 10
SEWER CUSTOMER ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND SHUT-OFFS
($ In Thousands)
For Fiscal Years 2004 to 2008
(Unaudited)
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
Sewer Service Revenue $ 262,673 $ 283,423 $ 286,416 $ 299,736 $ 325,048
Accounts Receivable! $ 17,071 $ 21,157 $ 18,881 $ 21,541 $ 21,101
Accounts Receivable
Over 120 Days"® $ 1,685 $ 1,639 $ 2,557 $ 2485 $ 2,193
Number of Shut-Offs® 21,689 24,459 21,230 20,451 22,420

Sources: Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports for the indicated years for Sewer Service Revenue; Metropolitan Wastewater
Department and the Water Department, City of San Diego, for all other line items.
()" Excludes amounts payable by Participating Agencies.
@ Estimated.
@ Information provided by the Customer Information System does not differentiate between water and sewer shut-offs.
Therefore, such numbers may not reflect the actual number for sewer shut-offs.

Calculation and Collection of Capacity Charges

A capacity charge is a one-time fee based on equivalent dwelling units (“EDUs”) for a new,
additional or larger connection to the Municipal Sub-System within the City. Capacity fees are not treated
as operating income for financial reporting purposes but are considered System Revenues, deposited in
the Sewer Revenue Fund, and included in the calculation of debt service coverage. Pursuant to State law,
capacity fees are applied only to capital expansion, bonds, contracts, or other indebtedness of the
Wastewater System related to expansion. Capacity fees are primarily collected on new construction
within the City and revenues therefrom vary based upon construction activity. See “WASTEWATER
SYSTEM FINANCIAL OPERATIONS - Financial Projections” below for a schedule of projected
capacity charges for the Municipal Sub-System.
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Table 11 below sets forth the Sewer Revenue Fund’s EDUs and Capacity Charge Revenues for
Fiscal Years 2004 through 2008.

TABLE 11
MUNICIPAL SUB-SYSTEM
SEWER REVENUE FUND
HISTORICAL CAPACITY CHARGE REVENUES
Fiscal Years 2004 through 2008

($ In Thousands)
Equivalent Capacity Charge
Fiscal Year Dwelling Units" Revenues?
2004 6,508 $14,684
2005 4,772 14,665
2006 5,150 16,565
20079 4,966 16,610
2008 3,492 11,851

Source: Metropolitan Wastewater Department, Water Department and the Comptroller’s Office, City of San Diego.

()" Unaudited. Declining number of EDUs reflects a decline in new construction.

@ Unaudited supplemental information provided by the Comptroller’s Office, City of San Diego.

©®  From Fiscal Year 2006 to Fiscal Year 2007, the EDUs decreased while the capacity charge revenues increased due to the
increase in capacity charge from $3,710 to $4,124 in Fiscal Year 2007 pursuant to City Council Resolution No. R-302378.

The City Council reviews capacity charges on a periodic basis. In June 1996, in response to a
request by the City Manager to reduce sewer capacity charges in order to stimulate economic
development and affordable housing, the City Council approved, retroactive to April 22, 1996, a 64%
reduction of sewer capacity charges. On June 8, 2004, the City Council adopted a revised rate structure
based on a full cost recovery analysis which increased the sewer capacity charge effective July 1, 2004 to
$3,710 per unit, which was a 48% increase from the then existing sewer capacity charge.

Pursuant to State Water Board guidelines and City policy, the City must use a fair and equitable
apportioning of costs based on each user class’ contributions of flow and strength of wastewater
pollutants discharged. The Participating Agencies are billed based on their contribution of flow, TSS and
COD per the terms outlined in the respective service contracts, which were reviewed and approved by the
State Water Board in 1998. In calendar year 2003, the City commissioned a cost of service study to
design a system of user charges for the City’s wastewater service consistent with the State Water Board’s
revenue guidelines and City policies. This study indicated that changes to the City’s existing sewer
capacity charge for single family residential customers and multifamily customers in the magnitude of the
July 1, 2004 sewer capacity charge increase referenced above would be required to fully recover the costs
associated with providing additional facility capacity to new users and existing users requiring additional
capacity. In October 2006, the City commissioned an additional utility cost of service study and rate
design study for the MWWD in order to review revenue requirements and cost of service allocations, and
to confirm that the City’s system of user charges for the City’s wastewater service remained consistent
with the State Water Board’s revenue guidelines and City policies. The resulting report estimated a full
cost-recovery capacity fee of $4,124 per EDU. On February 26, 2007, the City Council adopted a revised
rate structure based on a full cost recovery analysis which increased the sewer capacity charge effective
May 1, 2007 to $4,124, which is an 11% increase from the prior sewer capacity charge.
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Table 12 below summarizes the rate history of sewer capacity charges since July 1, 1991.

% Change

16
16
16
(64)
48

TABLE 12
RATE HISTORY FOR SEWER CAPACITY CHARGES
Sewer Capacity
Charges
Effective Date (Per Unit)
July 1, 1991 $4,484
July 1, 1992 5,201
July 1, 1993 6,033
July 1, 1994 6,998
April 22, 1996 2,500
July 1, 2004@ 3,710
May 1, 2007% 4,124

Source: Metropolitan Wastewater Department, City of San Diego.

1
(2)

(3)

11

Capacity charge decreases to $2,500 pursuant to City Council Resolution No. R-287543 to encourage building activity.

Capacity charge increases to $3,710 pursuant to City Council Resolution No. R-299321 based on results of the Cost of

Service Study.

Capacity charge increases to $4,124 pursuant to City Council Resolution No. R-302378 dated February 26, 2007 based on

results of the Cost of Service Study.

Table 13 below sets forth the projected capacity charges for the Fiscal Years 2009 through 2013.
Capacity Charges are based on projected EDUs for the corresponding period, as set forth in Feasibility
Study for the ten-year period from Fiscal Year 2009 to Fiscal Year 2018. New system hook-ups
(measured in EDUs) are projected, on a conservative basis, based on the historically low EDUs of the last
year, increased at the estimated rate of population growth. See “— Calculation and Collection of Capacity

Charges” herein for a schedule of historical capacity charge revenues.

TABLE 13
PROJECTED CAPACITY CHARGES
Fiscal Year 2009 through 2013

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
Single Family Monthly Service
Charge (Average) $ 4419 § 4728 $ 49.17 § 51.14 § 53.19
Single Family Residential Accounts 226,957 227,774 228,594 229,634 230,897
Total Service Charge Revenues " $288,527 $311,186 $334,653 $351,005 $368,307
Capacity Charge (Per EDU) $ 4,124 $ 4,124 $ 4,124 $ 4,124 $ 4,124
Annual Increase in EDUs 1,242 1,256 1,268 1,282 1,293
Total Capacity Charge Revenue "®® ¢ 11,022 § 5,180 $ 5228 $ 5286 $ 5334

Source: The Metropolitan Wastewater Department, City of San Diego, Rate Model as of March 14, 2009.

(1
@

In thousands.

General Fund in connection with the City’s Convention Center dewatering project.

3)
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Totals may not reflect sum of line items due to independent rounding.

Amount for Fiscal Year 2009 includes a one-time $5.9 million capacity charge payment receivable from the City’s



Historical Revenues and Expenses

Table 14 below sets forth the Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets
for Fiscal Years 2004 through 2008. See also Appendix A-1 — “BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION FROM THE COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL
FINANCIAL REPORT OF THE CITY OF SAN DIEGO FOR FISCAL YEAR 2008 attached hereto.
For purposes of calculating the Net System Revenues available to pay the City’s Obligations under the
Installment Purchase Agreement, including the 2009B Installment Payments securing the Series 2009B
Bonds, the following are not taken into account: amounts set forth in the line item “Depreciation”, interest
earnings with respect to the Acquisition Fund set forth in the line item “Earnings on Investments”,
amounts set forth in the line item “Gain (Loss) on Sale/Retirement of Capital Assets”, amounts set forth
in the line item “Interest Expenses” and amounts relating to assets contributed by developers (which
constitute a portion of the amount set forth in the line item “Capital Contributions”). For Net System
Revenues available to pay the City’s Obligations under the Installment Purchase Agreement for Fiscal
Years 2004 through 2008, see Table 16 — “CALCULATION OF HISTORIC SENIOR AND
AGGREGATE DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE” herein.
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TABLE 14
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS®
($ In Thousands)
Fiscal Years 2004 through 2008

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
OPERATING REVENUES
Sewer Service Charges
Inside City:
Domestic®” $ 151,338 $ 156,496 $ 164,664 $ 170,608 $ 182,486
Commercial and Industrial® 58,280 66,198 68,492 70,085 77,547
Outside City:
Domestic, Commercial and Industrial® 12 3 - - -
Treatment Plant Service for Others® 53,043 60,726 53,260 59,043 65,015
Total Sewer Service Charges 262,673 283,423 286,416 299,736 325,048
Other Operating Revenues, Net 4.621 5,549 4,152 5,013 3.071
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 267,294 288.972 290,568 304.749 328.119
OPERATING EXPENSES
Maintenance and Operations 110,024 112,548 109,257 111,086 110,492
Administration 84,785 89,634 90,749 79,164 91,158
Depreciation 62,162 74.863 64,922 69,696 71,138
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 256,971 277.045 264.928 259.946 272,788
OPERATING INCOME 10,323 11,927 25,640 44.803 55.331
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Earnings on Investments 2,291 7,015 6,578 12,505 17,757
Federal Grant Assistance 45 3 325 65 134
Other Agency Grant Assistance 642 - 136 - -
Gain (Loss) on Sale / Retirement of Capital Assets (2,692) (13,297) (443) (9,004) (2,057)
Interest Expense (51,322) (57,668) (54,132) (44,735) (48,571)
Other 2,385 7.394 4313 3,093 4,524
TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) (48.151) (56.553) (43.223) (38.076) (28.213)
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS AND
TRANSFERS (37.828) (44.626) (17.583) 6.727 27,118
Capital Contributions 60,759 21,426 31,976 59,784 25,359
Transfers from Other Funds 285 504 481 7,738 714
Transfers from Governmental Funds - - - 80 9
Transfers to Other Funds (439) (598) (147) (220) (1,214)
Transfers to Governmental Funds (1,574) (1,383) (1,958) (2,162) (5,585)
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 21,203 (24,677) 12,769 71,948 46,401
Net Assets at Beginning of Year 1.812,335 1.833.538 1.808.861 1.821.630 1.893.578
NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR $1,833,538 $1,808.861 $1,821,630 $1,893,578 $1,939,979

Source: Audited data from Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports for Fiscal Years 2004 through 2008. Unaudited data from the Comptroller’s

Office, City of San Diego.

) Terms used in this Table 14 are derived from the City’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the indicated year. Certain terms included in
this Table 14 do not have the meanings ascribed to them in the Installment Purchase Agreement. Also, amounts included in Table 14 reflect the
application of generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) and, as such, do not match tables in this Official Statement that were not prepared
in accordance with GAAP.

@ Unaudited.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

The following discussion relates to certain items set forth in Table 14. Certain of the following
information in connection with the financial condition and results of operations of the City Sewer
Revenue Fund for Fiscal Year 2008 is unaudited and should be read in conjunction with certain of the
information contained in Appendix A-1 — BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND REQUIRED
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION FROM THE COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL
REPORT OF THE CITY OF SAN DIEGO FOR FISCAL YEAR 2008 attached hereto and specifically
the portion of the basic financial statements relating to the operation of the Sewer Revenue Fund.

Operating Revenues. Total operating revenues for Fiscal Year 2008 were $328.1 million, which
represented an increase of $23.4 million from total operating revenues in Fiscal Year 2007. The increase
was primarily due to a rate increase of 8.75%.

Operating Expenses. Total operating expenses for Fiscal Year 2008 were $272.8 million, an
increase of $12.8 million from Fiscal Year 2007. Such increase was primarily the result of an increase in
administrative expenses of $12.0 million. Administrative expenses during Fiscal Year 2008 include long-
range strategic planning, policy, information systems, and general and administrative expenses. Such
expenses represented 33% of total operating expenses.

Maintenance and Operations expenses include expenses for three treatment plants, two of which
are water reclamation plants, and a biosolids center. Operation and Maintenance costs were 41% of
Operating Expenses and totaled $110.5 million for Fiscal Year 2008. This decrease of $0.6 million was
0.5% less than the corresponding amount for Fiscal Year 2007.

Non-operating Revenues. Non-operating revenues for Fiscal Year 2008 increased by $6.8
million from non-operating revenues received in Fiscal Year 2007. This increase was primarily due to
higher average cash and investments earnings during Fiscal Year 2008 which contributed to an increase in
interest earnings of $5.3 million.

Non-operating Expenses. Non-operating expenses decreased by $3.1 million to $50.6 million
during Fiscal Year 2008. The decrease was due to a $6.9 million decrease in losses attributable to the sale
or retirement of capital assets and an increase in debt service interest expense of $3.8 million.

Reserves. As of June 30, 2008, the MWWD had total reserves of $69.2 million, which amount
included the amounts in the Rate Stabilization Fund, Operating Reserve, Appropriated Reserve,
Dedicated Reserve for Efficiency and Savings (the “DRES”) and Wastewater System Capital
Improvement Program Reserve. As of May 1, 2009, the MWWD had total reserves of $81.2 million. See
“ — Rate Stabilization Fund and Other Reserves” herein.

Outstanding Obligations. As of June 30, 2008, the MWWD had outstanding Obligations in the
principal amount of approximately $1.194 billion. As of June 9, 2009, the MWWD will have outstanding
Obligations in the principal amount of approximately $1.339 billion, including the issuance of the Series
2009A Bonds and the Series 2009B Bonds. See “SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR
THE SERIES 2009B BONDS - Outstanding Parity Obligations and Outstanding Subordinated
Obligations” herein and Appendix A-1 — “BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND REQUIRED
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION FROM THE COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL
REPORT OF THE CITY OF SAN DIEGO FOR FISCAL YEAR 2008”, including certain information
regarding the MWWD’s debt service coverage ratio requirements.
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Rate Stabilization Fund and Other Reserves

The City has established accounts within the Sewer Revenue Fund for five reserve funds: the
Rate Stabilization Fund (‘“Rate Stabilization Fund”), the Operating Reserve (“Operating Reserve”), the
Wastewater System Capital Improvement Program Reserve (“Capital Improvement Reserve”), the
Appropriated Reserve (“Appropriated Reserve”) and the DRES. The MWWD operates these reserve
funds within the Sewer Revenue Fund in accordance with City’s fiscal reserve policy (the “Fiscal Reserve
Policy™). The City’s goals with respect to the Fiscal Reserve Policy are to provide adequate cash balances
to ensure that the City meets its cash flow obligations, maximizes earnings on investments, minimizes
borrowing costs and maintains the highest credit on its bonds and financial obligations. In the event
amounts contained in a particular reserve are below the anticipated reserve level as stated in the Reserve
Policy, the Mayor is to propose a plan as part of the budget for the subsequent fiscal year to replenish
such reserve in a reasonable timeframe. As of the Fiscal Year 2008, the MWWD had total reserves of
$69.2 million. As of May 1, 2009, the MWWD had total reserves of $81.2 million.

The Rate Stabilization Fund is funded from operating revenues and serves as a source of funds
used to mitigate future rate increases. The MWWD expects the Rate Stabilization Fund to be maintained
at a level equal to 20% of Net System Revenues less operating and non-operating expenses or
$21.3 million. As of May 1, 2009, the Fiscal Year 2009 balance was $19.3 million, which meets the
incremental target balance for Fiscal Year 2009. The MWWD expects to attain the targeted $21.3 million
by Fiscal Year 2010. The use of amounts in the Rate Stabilization Fund does not require City Council
action. However, the Rate Stabilization Fund may only be used upon the recommendation of the MWWD
and approval of the Chief Financial Officer and must be used in a manner consistent with the Installment
Purchase Agreement.

The Operating Reserve, which is a subset of cash on hand, is restricted for use in the event an
emergency situation resulting in a loss of revenue occurs and prevents the Wastewater System from
operating in its normal course of business. Amounts so used from the Operating Reserve must be
replenished no later than the subsequent fiscal year. The Operating Reserve is calculated based on the
annual operating budget for the fiscal year. The current Operating Reserve for Fiscal Year 2009 is 50 days
of the budget for Maintenance and Operations costs, which is $32.3 million. As of May 1, 2009, there
was approximately $32.3 million in the Operating Reserve. The Operating Reserve is expected to
increase to 70 days of the budget for Maintenance and Operation costs by Fiscal Year 2013, which is
projected to be approximately $48.9 million.

The MWWD funded the Capital Improvement Reserve, which may only be used for costs of the
Wastewater System CIP, in the amount of $5.0 million for Fiscal Year 2009. City Council action is
required for any withdrawal from the Capital Improvement Reserve. As of May 1, 2009, there was
approximately $5.0 million in the Capital Improvement Reserve.

The Appropriated Reserve is budgeted annually for unanticipated expenditures. It may be used to
fund operating or capital requirements. If the Appropriated Reserve is used to fund unanticipated
operating expenses, the approval of the Director of the MWWD is required and, if the Appropriated
Reserve is to be used for unanticipated capital needs, City Council action in the form of an ordinance is
required. The Appropriated Reserve is projected to increase from $3.3 million in Fiscal Year 2008 to $3.4
million in Fiscal Year 2009. As of May 1, 2009, there was approximately $3.4 million in the
Appropriated Reserve.

In Fiscal Year 2008, the City established the DRES to save funds obtained by increasing

efficiencies, changing priorities or other actions related to reducing costs of the Wastewater System CIP
or operations and maintenance of the Wastewater System. The 2008 IROC Report recommended that
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savings from the Wastewater System be transferred into the DRES in order to improve accountability
with respect to such savings and to provide funding of the Wastewater System in future years in lieu of
rate increases. The funds in the DRES may be used for accelerating Wastewater System CIP project
schedules and reducing the need for future rate increases. At the end of each fiscal year, any savings not
required for compliance with established reserve policies will be transferred into the DRES. At the end of
four years, any funds transferred into the DRES and not used for capital improvements will be used to
lower future rates for the Wastewater System. As of May 1, 2009, approximately $21.2 million was on
deposit in the DRES.

Table 15 below sets forth the amounts in the several reserves in the Sewer Revenue Fund as of
May 1, 2009.

TABLE 15
SEWER REVENUE FUND RESERVES
(as of May 1, 2009)
($ In Thousands)

(Unaudited)
Fund Reserve Amount
Rate Stabilization Fund $19,300
Operating Reserve 32,320
Capital Improvement Reserve 5,000
Appropriated Reserve 3,394
Dedicated Reserve for Efficiencies and Savings 21.185
Total $81,199

Source: Metropolitan Wastewater Department, City of San Diego.

Surety Secured Bonds under the 1993 Indenture

Pursuant to the Indenture of Trust, by and between the Authority and The Bank of New York
Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as successor trustee, dated as of September 1 1993, as amended and
supplemented (the “1993 Indenture”), a reserve fund (the “1993 Reserve Fund”) was established for
bonds issued thereunder. The Authority issued under the 1993 Indenture its Series 1993 Bonds, Series
1995 Bonds, Series 1997A Bonds, Series 1997B Bonds, Series 1999A Bonds and Series 1999B Bonds
(collectively, the “Surety Secured Bonds”). In 1998, a Reserve Fund Credit Facility payable in the
maximum amount of $56,548,941.25 issued by Ambac Assurance Corporation (the “Surety Provider”)
was deposited in the 1993 Reserve Fund in partial satisfaction of the reserve fund requirement relative to
the Surety Secured Bonds. A cash deposit was added to the 1993 Reserve Fund upon the issuance of the
Series 1999A Bonds and the Series 1999B Bonds. The City’s obligation to make Installment Payments
with respect to the Surety Secured Bonds, including any payments required to supplement amounts in the
1993 Reserve Fund, are Parity Obligations under the Installment Purchase Agreement.

The 1993 Indenture provides that all money in the 1993 Reserve Fund shall be used and
withdrawn to pay interest on, or principal of, or redemption premiums, if any, on the bonds issued under
the 1993 Indenture in the event that no other money of the Authority is lawfully available therefor, or for
the retirement of all bonds then outstanding under the 1993 Indenture. The 1993 Indenture also requires
the City to deposit amounts into the 1993 Reserve Fund if it is determined in connection with any
valuation of the 1993 Reserve Fund that amounts on deposit therein are insufficient. In the event of an
insufficiency of moneys to pay the principal of and interest on the Surety Secured Bonds when due,
moneys in the 1993 Reserve Fund will be used and withdrawn before amounts under the Reserve Fund
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Credit Facility are withdrawn. In the event the Surety Provider defaults on its obligations in whole or in
part under the Reserve Fund Credit Facility or amounts in the 1993 Reserve Fund are insufficient to pay
principal of and interest on the Surety Secured Bonds, the City will be obligated to deposit additional
amounts in the 1993 Reserve Fund and such obligation will be on parity with the pledge and assignment
of and lien on the Net System Revenues securing the Series 2009B Bonds and any other Parity
Obligations under the Installment Purchase Agreement.

The Reserve Fund Credit Facility does not secure payment of principal of or interest on any other
Bonds of the Authority, including the Series 2009B Bonds. Amounts on deposit in the Reserve Fund
under the Indenture for the Series 2009B Bonds are not available to pay the interest on, or principal or
redemption premiums, if any, of the Surety Secured Bonds or any other Bonds issued under the 1993
Indenture.

Historical Debt Service Coverage
Table 16 below sets forth the total revenues of the Wastewater System, the maintenance and

operation costs of the Wastewater System and the resulting debt service coverage for the Outstanding
Parity Obligations for Fiscal Years 2004 through 2008.
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Fiscal Year

TABLE 16

CALCULATION OF HISTORIC SENIOR AND AGGREGATE DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE

Ended System
June 30 Revenues
2004 $296,169
2005 322,542
2006 320,288
2007@ 343,921
2008 361,511

Total
Maintenance and
Operations Costs of
the Wastewater

System

$196,823
204,163
202,111
202,632
211,449

O
()

($ In Thousands)
Fiscal Years 2004 through 2008
(Unaudited)
Debt Service All Obligations
Senior Aggregate
Net System Debt Service Total Debt Service

Revenues Principal Interest Total Coverage Debt Service Coverage
$99,346 $25,030 $52,020 $77,050 1.29x $81,516 1.22x
118,379 26,120 50,935 77,055 1.54 84,789 1.40
118,177 27,390 49,662 77,052 1.53 86,802 1.36
141,289 28,760 48,291 77,051 1.83 96,408 1.47
150,062 30,250 46,805 77,055 1.95 94,555 1.59

Source: Statistical section (unaudited) of the Fiscal Year 2008 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.
All Obligations include Outstanding Parity Obligations, Outstanding Subordinated Obligations and the Existing SRF Loans.
Amounts set forth under Principal, Interest and Total differ from the corresponding amounts set forth under Appendix A-2 — “ADDITIONAL EXCERPTS FROM THE

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT OF THE CITY OF SAN DIEGO FOR FISCAL YEAR 2008 — Table 14” attached hereto. The amounts set forth in this
Table 16 reflect actual debt service amounts for Fiscal Year 2007.
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Financial Projections

Table 17 below sets forth the financial forecast for Fiscal Years 2009 through 2013. Table 17
incorporates certain assumptions, including assumed inflation and interest rates, rate increases and the
amount of indebtedness to be issued during this period adopted by the MWWD and used by the
Feasibility Consultant for purposes of the Feasibility Study attached as Appendix B hereto. Data for
Fiscal Year 2009 reflects estimates of the MWWD based on six months of actual, unaudited results for
the Fiscal Year and projections for the remainder of the fiscal year. Projections for the Fiscal Year 2010
represent the MWWD budget that will be submitted to the City Council as part of the annual budget
process. Table 17 does not include in its projections the potential $40 million Additional SRF Loan,
which remains subject to award by the State Water Board and approval by the City Council. In the event
the City receives the Additional SRF Loan, the Authority will reduce the principal amount of bonds to be
issued by the amount of such Additional SRF Loan.

The achievement of certain results or other expectations contained in Table 17 involve known and
unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors which may cause actual results, performance or
achievements reflected in Table 17 to be materially different from any future results, performance or
achievements expressed or implied by such Table. Although, in the opinion of the MWWD, such
projections are reasonable, there can be no assurance that any or all of such projections will be realized or
predictive of future results.
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TABLE 17
ESTIMATED NET SYSTEM REVENUES AND DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE
Fiscal Year 2009 through 2013

($ In Thousands)
(Unaudited)
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

DESCRIPTION Estimated Projected Projected Projected Projected
Net Revenues $ 143,282 $160,271 $176,355 $185,418 $196,173
Interest Earnings 8,831 8,446 7,794 9,225 10,790
Capacity Charges @™ 11,022 5,180 5,228 5,286 5,334
Rate Stabilization Fund Transfer ) (3.000) (2.000) 0 0 0

Total Net System Revenues $160.,135 $171.897 $189.,377 $199,929 $212,297
Projected Senior Debt Service © $ 77,056 $103,021 $103,004 $116,815 $129,760
Debt Service Coverage 2.08x 1.67x 1.84x 1.71x 1.64x
Projected Senior Debt Service $ 77,056 $103,021 $103,004 $116,815 $129,760
Projected Subordinate Debt Service ”  $ 17,250 $ 6,059 $ 6,058 $ 6,058 $ 6,058
Aggregate Debt Service ® $ 94,306 $109,080 $109,062 $122,873 $135,818
Aggregate Debt Coverage ) 1.70x 1.58x 1.74x 1.63x 1.56x

Source: Metropolitan Wastewater Department and Department of Debt Management, City of San Diego.

M

@
3)

4)
(©)

(©6)

M

®)
®

Net Revenues consists of Revenues, less Maintenance and Operation Costs of the Wastewater System. Revenues consists of
sewer service charges, sewer treatment plant services, services to others, sale of power from cogeneration and other
miscellaneous sources and excludes interest earnings on amounts in the Acquisition Fund.

Excludes amounts in the Acquisition Fund.

Amount for Fiscal Year 2009 includes a one-time $5.9 million capacity charge payment receivable from the City’s General
Fund in connection with the City’s Convention Center dewatering project. Absent the City’s one-time payment, the projected
revenue for Fiscal Year 2009 reflects 1,242 EDUs connecting to the Wastewater System. The amounts for each at the Fiscal
Years 2010 through 2013 assume an approximate average annual 1% EDU growth rate over each of the four fiscal years. See
Table 13 and accompanying description of projected capacity charges.

See Table 13 herein for the components of the Capacity Charges.

Reflects transfer in Fiscal Years 2009 and 2010 to the Rate Stabilization Fund. Amounts transferred to the Rate Stabilization
Fund are deducted from System Revenues pursuant to the Installment Purchase Agreement.

Reflects actual debt service on the Series 2009A Bonds and the Series 2009B Bonds and the issuance of additional Parity
Obligations in each of Fiscal Years 2011, 2012 and 2013. Excludes debt service for the Additional SRF Loan, which remains
subject to review by the State Water Board and subject to approval by the City Council. The receipt of funds with respect to
the Additional SRF Loan is not expected to affect the overall projections because the MWWD will reduce its aggregate
borrowing by a like amount for the period set forth above. The projected debt service coverage amounts resulting from the
issuance of the Series 2009A Bonds, the Series 2009B Bonds and the refunding described herein are higher than those
presented in the Feasibility Study in large part because a portion of the proceeds of the Series 2009A Bonds were used and a
portion of the Series 2009B Bonds will be used to refund a portion of the Authority’s Outstanding Parity Bonds (see “PLAN
OF FINANCE” herein). See “THE FEASIBILITY STUDY” herein and Appendix B — “FEASIBILITY STUDY FOR 2009
SERIES WASTEWATER REVENUE BONDS” attached hereto for a description of the projections and assumptions of the
Feasibility Consultant regarding the debt service associated with the New Money Portion and 2007 Notes Repayment Portion
of the Series 2009A Bonds.

Includes in Fiscal Year 2009 interest payments for the Series 2007 Notes, all of which were paid with a portion of the proceeds
of the Series 2009A Bonds.

Includes Parity Obligations, Subordinated Obligations and Existing SRF Loan debt service.

Ratio of Total Net System Revenues to Aggregate Debt Service.
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Labor Relations

General. As of April 1, 2009, there were 840.5 regular full-time employees of the MWWD, of
which 473 are represented by the Municipal Employees Association (“MEA”) and 330 are represented by
American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees, AFL-CIO, Local 127 (“AFSCME Local
1277). The remaining 37.5 employees are unrepresented. The two bargaining units represent
approximately 96% of the MWWD’s employees.

Contracts for Fiscal Year 2009 through 2011. The City was not able to reach agreement on a
Fiscal Year 2009 contract for employees represented by the MEA, AFSCME, AFSCME Local 127 and
the Deputy City Attorneys’ Association (“DCAA”). The terms and conditions of prior agreements were
carried forward with no salary increase. In addition, in Fiscal Year 2009, in accordance with the July 1,
2005 AFSCME Local 127 labor agreement, the 1.9% salary reduction applicable to employees
represented by AFSCME Local 127 ended and their pre-reduction salaries were reinstated. Pursuant to
settlements with the MEA and AFSCME Local 127 regarding the use of negotiated employee pension
contribution increases, the MEA settlement was paid on November 14, 2008 in the amount of
approximately $6.1 million City-wide and AFSCME Local 127 settlement was paid on December 26,
2008 in the amount of approximately $4.7 million City-wide. Contract negotiations with both bargaining
units have concluded for Fiscal Year 2009. The negotiated salary and compensation amounts due under
the MEA settlement and AFSCME Local 127 settlement have been paid by the MWWD and no
additional amounts are expected to be paid from the Sewer Revenue Fund in connection therewith.
Payments of amounts due under the MEA settlement and AFSCME Local 127 settlement did not have a
material adverse impact on the Sewer Revenue Fund.

On April 14, 2009, the City Council unanimously approved the terms of the labor agreements for
Fiscal Years 2010 and 2011 for the MEA, the International Association of Firefighters Local 145 (“IAFF
Local 145) and DCAA. Negotiations with the remaining two bargaining units, AFSCME Local 127 and
the Police Officers Association (“POA”), did not end in agreement. The City Council imposed on both
unions the terms and conditions of employment contained in the Mayor’s last, best and final offer for
Fiscal Year 2010. Pursuant to the labor agreements for the bargaining units and the terms and conditions
approved for AFSCME Local 127 and POA, all five bargaining units and the City’s unclassified and
unrepresented employees will be held to a general salary freeze and subject to a 6% reduction in overall
compensation which may be effected through salary reductions, decreases in the City-paid allotment of
the employee share for employee health care, retirement and other employment benefits, fewer paid
holidays and mandatory furloughs. Each bargaining unit reached the 6% target through a different
combination of these measures. The compensation reductions also will apply to management and
unrepresented City employees, including the Mayor, his staff, and some independent departments.
Departments not under Mayoral control including some City Council offices may not participate in some
or all of the compensation reductions.

Pension Benefit Agreement. On July 28, 2008, the City Council ratified an agreement regarding
the creation of new pension benefits for non-safety City employees with MEA, AFSCME Local 127 and
DCAA (the “New Pension Plan”). The City expects to save on its pension costs over time as new hires
are included under the New Pension Plan. The New Pension Plan becomes effective on July 1, 2009 and
applies to non-safety employees hired on or after the effective date. The New Pension Plan lowers the
defined benefit factor at age 55 and 60 from 2.50% to 1.00% and from 2.55% to 2.00%, respectively, and
modifies the benefit formula (which currently permits retirees to receive up to 90.00% of their highest one
year salary) by limiting compensation available under the pension plan to 80.00% of the highest three
years average of compensation. In addition, the New Pension Plan establishes a retiree medical trust into
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which both the City and employees will equally contribute 0.25% of salary and establishes a new defined
contribution component in addition to the defined benefit component. The New Pension Plan includes
mandatory employee contributions of 1.00% of salary, with a City match component. See Note 12 to the
City’s Fiscal Year 2008 audited financial statements attached hereto as Appendix A-1 — “BASIC
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION FROM THE
COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT OF THE CITY OF SAN DIEGO FOR FISCAL
YEAR 2008”.

Insurance and Liability Claims

The MWWD is self-insured for workers’ compensation and long-term disability and for public
liability claims exposure up to $5 million per occurrence. For liability between $5 million and $50
million, the MWWD is covered by the City, which purchases insurance in collaboration with the
California State Association of Counties — Excess Insurance Authority, a statewide joint powers authority
risk pool, in layers for its public liability exposure.

The City maintains commercial property insurance on all City-owned buildings of an insurable
nature, and currently carries property and extended loss insurance coverage of $25 million per occurrence
with a $25,000 deductible on all City buildings, with earthquake insurance coverage of up to $25 million
on all bond-financed buildings under its primary policy. Depending on availability and affordability of
such earthquake insurance, the City may elect not to purchase such coverage in the future. The City does
not maintain any casualty insurance on the pipelines of the Wastewater System because such insurance is
not commercially available.

Table 18 below sets forth the accrued estimated liabilities and expenditures for liability claims of
the Wastewater System for Fiscal Years 2004 through 2008.

TABLE 18
LIABILITY CLAIMS BUDGETED AND EXPENDITURES
Fiscal Years 2004 to 2008

(Unaudited)

Fiscal Year Budgeted Liabilities Expenditures(l)
2004 $2,589,000 $1,718,610
2005 2,589,000 1,814,378
2006 2,589,000 500,928
2007 2,589,000 1,052,219
2008 1,283,412 1,626,000

Source: Metropolitan Wastewater Department, Risk Management Department and Comptroller’s Office, City
of San Diego.
@ Over-budget expenditures are paid from Sewer Revenue Fund balance available for appropriation.

Investment of Funds
General. Amounts in the funds and accounts of the Sewer Revenue Fund are invested by the City
Treasurer in the Treasurer’s Pooled Investment Fund (the “City Pool”) described below and the City

accounts for such amounts separately from other funds of the City.

City Pool. In accordance with the Charter of the City and authority granted by the City Council,
the City Treasurer is responsible for investing the unexpended cash in the City Pool. Responsibility for
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the daily investment of funds in the City Pool is delegated to the City’s Chief Investment Officer. The
City and certain related entities are the only participants in the City Pool; there are no other City Pool
participants either voluntary or involuntary in the City Pool. The investment objectives of the City Pool
are preservation of capital, liquidity and return.

Oversight and Reporting Requirements. The City Treasurer provides an investment report on a
monthly basis to the Chief Financial Officer, the City Comptroller and the City Council and annually
presents the Investment Policy to the Chief Financial Officer, the Investment Advisory Committee and
the City Council. The Investment Advisory Committee is comprised of two City employees, currently the
Chief Financial Officer and the Director of Debt Management, and three investment professionals from
the private sector and is charged with overseeing the review of the City’s Investment Policy and practices
of the City Treasurer and recommending changes thereto. Investments in the City Pool are audited
annually by an independent firm of certified public accountants as part of the overall audit of the City’s
financial statements.

The City’s investments division uses outside services to provide investment portfolio valuations
and accounting and reporting services. These services provide monthly portfolio valuation, investment
performance statistics, and other portfolio reports that are distributed to the Office of the City Treasurer
accounting section and the Office of the Comptroller of the City for review and reconciliation. The
Office of the City Treasurer’s accounting section prepares a series of monthly reports, including the
portfolio market valuation, and distributes these to the Mayor, City Council, Chief Financial Officer, and
other officials.

Authorized Investments. Investments in the City Pool are governed by State law and further
restricted by the City’s Investment Policy. The Investment Policy is prepared with safety of principal
being the foremost objective. Permitted investments include U.S. Treasury securities, U.S. Agency
securities, U.S. Agency mortgage backed securities, corporate medium term notes, money market
instruments, non-negotiable FDIC-insured certificates of deposit and the Local Agency Investment Fund
(California State Pool). Reverse repurchase agreements (“reverse repos”) are restricted to 20% of the
base value of the portfolio and are governed by various maturity restrictions as well. The main operating
funds of the City are managed in two separate portfolios. In its management of the “Liquidity” portfolio,
comprising about 35% of total funds, the City invests in a variety of debt securities with maturities
ranging from one day to one year. The remaining 65% of funds are managed in a separate “Core”
portfolio that consists of a variety of debt securities ranging from one day to five years; performance is
measured against the Merrill Lynch one- to three-year U.S. Treasury Index. Safety of principal and
liquidity are paramount considerations in the management of both portfolios.

Pool Liquidity and Other Characteristics. The City Pool (including both the “Liquidity” and the
“Core” portfolios) is highly liquid. Based on preliminary and unaudited month-end data as of March 31,
2009, approximately 14% of the pool investments mature within 62 days, 17% within 92 days and 26%
within 184 days, 39% within 1 year, 81% within 2 years, 98% within 3 years, and 100% within 5 years
(on a cumulative basis). As of March 31, 2009, the Pool had a weighted average maturity of 1.31 years
(477 days) and its weighted average yield was 1.718%. For purposes of calculating weighted average
maturity, the City Treasurer treats investments in the State-wide Local Agency Investment Fund
(California State Pool) as maturing within one day. The Liquidity portfolio had a duration of 0.33 years
and the Core portfolio had a duration of 1.77 years as of March 31, 2009. Duration is a measure of the
price volatility of the portfolio and reflects an estimate of the projected increase or decrease in the value
of the portfolio based upon a decrease or increase in interest rates. Accordingly, the Liquidity portfolio
should decrease in market value by 0.33% for every 1% increase in market interest rates while the Core
portfolio should decrease in market value by 1.77% for every 1% increase in market interest rates. The
City Pool’s composition is designed with a goal of having sufficient liquid funds available to meet
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disbursement requirements. The composition and value of investments under management in the City
Pool will vary from time to time depending on cash flow needs of the City, maturity or sale of
investments, purchase of new securities, and fluctuations in interest rates.

Table 19 below sets forth the City Pool results at March 31, 2009.

TABLE 19
CITY OF SAN DIEGO POOLED INVESTMENT FUND
at March 31, 2009
($ In Thousands)
(Preliminary Unaudited)

Percent of
Investment Instrument Book Value Fair Value Total”
U.S. Treasury Bills and Notes $ 1,026,800 $ 1,038,618 50.08%
Federal Agency Securities ® 784,579 793,912 38.26
Medium Term Notes (Corporate) ® 111,056 111,676 5.42
Money Market Instruments @ 103,503 103,318 5.05
Local Agency Investment Fund 24,551 24,551 1.19
TOTAL INVESTMENTS $2,050.489 $2,072.075 100.00%

Source: Office of the City Treasurer, City of San Diego.
(" Based on book value.

Federal National Mortgage Association (“Fannie Mae”) securities and Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation
(“Freddie Mac”) securities represent 31.12% and 33.58%, respectively, of total Federal Agency Securities, which
is approximately 11.91% and 12.85%, respectively, of the City Pool.

These notes consist of both fixed and floating interest rate securities. The notes with floating interest rates are
reset at intervals ranging from one day to three months. 69.27% of these notes were issued under the Temporary
Liquidity Guarantee Program and are backed by the full faith and credit of the FDIC.

These securities consist of commercial paper, negotiable certificates of deposit, Certificate of Deposit Account
Registry Service certificate of deposit, term and overnight repurchase agreements, banker’s acceptances, bank
notes and/or thrift notes.

@

3)

“)

San Diego City Employees’ Retirement System

The City faces significant financial challenges in addressing an unfunded pension liability to
SDCERS, which, as of June 30, 2008, was approximately $1.3 billion. This liability was the product of a
number of factors, including (i) improvements in benefits to members without corresponding funding, (ii)
the use of pension funds to pay non-pension benefits, including contingent benefits and certain healthcare
costs, rather than retaining such earnings in the Pension System (herein described), (iii) funding by the
City at lower than actuarially required levels, (iv) use of realized earnings in excess of the assumed
actuarial rate of return to make supplemental or contingent payments, and (v) investment returns lower
than the actuarially assumed rate of return. Factors (i) through (iv) were corrected over the last few
years through changes to the City’s and SDCERS’ policies and practices, factor (v) is the result of market
conditions and may recur in the future. The challenges posed by the unfunded pension liability are
significant and, together with significant costs related to postemployment healthcare benefits, pose a
threat to the future fiscal health of the City. However, as explained below under the caption,
“Wastewater System Share of Contribution to Pension System and NPO,” the Wastewater System’s
proportionate share of the City’s annual required contributions to the Pension System is approximately
5.75% (equal to approximately $9.3 million, assuming a City pension payment of $161.7 million) for
Fiscal Year 2009. Estimates of the Wastewater System’s share of the City’s annual contributions of
approximately $14.4 million for each of Fiscal Years 2008 through 2011 were included in the 2007 Rate
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Case model that served as the basis for the annual rate increases in effect through Fiscal Year 2011 that
were approved by the City Council. For Fiscal Years 2008 and 2009, the actual contributions required
from the Wastewater System were less than the amounts that were assumed in the 2007 Rate Case model.
The City fully funded its annual required contribution to the Pension System in Fiscal Years 2006 through
2009 and has budgeted the full contribution of $154.2 million for Fiscal Year 2010.

The amounts and percentages set forth under this caption relating to the City’s Pension System,
including, for example, actuarial accrued liabilities and funded ratios, are based upon numerous
demographic and economic assumptions, including investment return rates, inflation rates, salary
increase rates, cost of living adjustments, postemployment mortality, active member mortality, and rates
of retirement. The prospective purchasers of the Series 2009B Bonds are cautioned to review and
carefully assess the reasonableness of the assumptions set forth in the documents that are cited as the
sources for the information under this caption. In addition, the prospective purchasers of the Series
2009B Bonds are cautioned that such sources and the underlying assumptions speak as of their respective
dates, and are subject to change, any one of which could cause a significant change in the UAAL (as
defined below).

The City is authorized by the City Charter to establish a pension system for its employees, and the
City did so by an ordinance adopted in 1926, which was replaced by a new ordinance in 1962 (the
“Pension System”). City employees participate with the full-time employees of the San Diego County
Regional Airport Authority (“Airport Authority”) and the San Diego Unified Port District (“Port
District”) in the SDCERS. The information below relates solely to the City’s participation in SDCERS
and not to the participation of the Airport Authority or the Port District. The plan assets of the City, the
Airport Authority and the Port District were previously commingled, but separate cost calculations and
actuarial valuation reports were completed annually for each employer. Since Fiscal Year 2008, the
respective pension plan assets of each of the City, the Airport Authority and the Port District have been
administered by SDCERS as separate, independent, qualified single employer governmental defined
benefit plans and trusts, the assets of which are pooled in a group trust.

SDCERS is considered part of the City’s financial reporting entity and is included in the City’s
CAFR as a pension system trust fund. SDCERS does prepare its own CAFR, the most recent of which is
for Fiscal Year 2008.

UAAL and its Calculation. According to the City’s June 30, 2008 Annual Actuarial Valuation of
SDCERS, prepared by Cheiron, Inc. (“Cheiron”) dated as of December 2008, as adjusted in February
2009 to reflect the correct apportionment of asset balances among the City, the Airport Authority and the
Port District (the “2008 Valuation™), the funded ratio (the actuarial value of assets available for benefits to
total actuarial accrued liability) of the SDCERS fund as of June 30, 2008 was 78.15%, and the SDCERS
fund had an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (the “UAAL”) of $1.303 billion as of June 30, 2008.
Thus, for every dollar of benefits due (all vested liabilities), if all vested benefits were due on June 30,
2008, SDCERS had $0.781 in assets available for payment. The UAAL is the difference between total
actuarially accrued liabilities (the “AAL”) ($5.964 billion as of June 30, 2008) and actuarially calculated
assets allocated to funding ($4.660 billion as of June 30, 2008).

Global financial markets are experiencing significant volatility, with a significant decline in
market value since September 2008. This volatility has had a negative impact on SDCERS’ portfolio.
Although the impact on the actuarial value of SDCERS’ plan assets cannot be determined without an
official actuarial valuation, which occurs as of June 30 each year, SDCERS will be providing to the City
the unaudited market values of plan assets and the recalculated pro forma actuarial value of plan assets as
of the end of each month. The market value represents, as of the date specified, the value of the plan
assets if they were to be liquidated on that date. Unlike the market value, the actuarial value of plan
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assets is used to smooth the impact of annual investment return performance over multiple years, thereby
reducing the impact of annual investment volatility on the City’s annual required contribution (“ARC”).
Investment earnings are one component that impacts the ARC each year. Because the actuarial value as
of June 30, 2009 will be used in determining the City’s ARC for Fiscal Year 2011, the intervening market
values are not determinative to that calculation. Nevertheless, the City believes that it may be useful to
the investment community to be apprised of the monthly market values during this period of market
instability. According to the City’s June 30, 2007 Annual Actuarial Valuation (the “2007 Valuation) and
the 2008 Valuation, the actuarial value of assets (City’s portion) as of June 30, 2007 and June 30, 2008
were respectively $4.413 billion and $4.660 billion. Based on the market value of assets as of April 30,
20009, as set forth in the following sentence, the assumed actuarial value of assets as of April 30, 2009 was
$4.065 billion. The market value of assets (City’s portion) as of June 30, 2007 and June 30, 2008, as
reported in the 2007 Valuation and the 2008 Valuation, respectively, were $4.641 billion and $4.409
billion. According to SDCERS, the market value of assets (City’s portion) as of April 30, 2009 was
$3.388 billion. A decline in the actuarial value of assets over time is expected to result in an increased
ARC to the City from that estimated in the Five-Year Financial Outlook for Fiscal Years 2009-10 through
2013-14; however, the impact on the Sewer Revenue Fund would be expected to be minimal. See “— San
Diego City Employees’ Retirement System” and “— Wastewater System Share of Contributions to
Pension System and NPO” below.

Actuarial Assumptions. The following are the principal actuarial assumptions used by SDCERS’
actuary in preparing the valuation as of June 30, 2008 (as modified to reflect the adoption by the
SDCERS Board of Administration (the “SDCERS Board of Administration”) of new actuarial
assumptions effective June 30, 2008 based upon recommendations set forth in the report by SDCERS’
actuary dated July 18, 2008 entitled “Experience Study Results and Recommendations for the Period
Covering July 1, 2004 — June 30, 2007”):

1. Investment Return Rate: 7.75% a year, net of administrative expenses, compounded
annually.

2. Inflation Rate: 4.00% a year, compounded annually.

3. Interest Credited to Member Contributions: 7.75% compounded annually.

4. Salary Increase Rates: Comprised of a 4.00% inflation rate and 0.5% to 8.0% merit
component.

5. Annual Cost-of-Living Adjustments: 2.00% per year, compounded annually.

6. Additional Assumptions: Additional assumptions were used regarding rates of separation
from active membership, post-retirement mortality, active member mortality and rates of
retirement.

“Smoothing” Methodology. In determining the actuarial value of its assets, SDCERS, as
permitted by applicable actuarial guidelines, uses an expected value of assets “smoothing” methodology
to reduce the impact of market volatility on plan assets. The market value of assets represents, as of the
valuation date, the value of the assets as if they were liquidated on that date. The actuarial value of assets
is a value that attempts to smooth annual investment return performance over multiple years to reduce
annual investment volatility. The actuarial value of assets is what is used to determine SDCERS’
contribution rates for the City. As of June 30, 2008, the market value of plan assets was $4.409 billion,
and the actuarial value was $4.660 billion. By the smoothing method used in the 2008 Valuation, the
calculation of the actuarial value of assets at June 30, 2008 started with the actuarial value of assets at
June 30, 2007, added to that 100% of the actuarially assumed rate of return, plus the contribution towards
plan assets, less payments out from plan assets, plus 25% of the difference between the expected actuarial
value of assets at June 30, 2008 (using the above calculation) and the actual market value of assets at June
30, 2008. The impact of this smoothing methodology will vary each year depending upon the year’s
actual market value compared to the expected value of assets, either as a net gain or a net loss. The City
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expects SDCERS to employ the smoothing method used in the 2008 Valuation to valuations for future
fiscal years.

City Contributions to SDCERS. The City’s ARC consists of: (i) the “normal cost,” being the
present value of the benefits that SDCERS expects to become payable in the future attributable to a
current year’s employment, and (ii) payments made to amortize the UAAL. SDCERS currently amortizes
the UAAL over several different periods: the amortization of changes in the UAAL due to assumption
changes is over 30 years, the amortization of changes in the UAAL due to benefit changes is over five
years, annual experience gain or loss (beginning with the experience loss for Fiscal Year 2008) is
amortized over 15 years, and the outstanding balance of the Fiscal Year 2007 UAAL is amortized over 20
years (such that, as of Fiscal Year 2008, 19 years of amortization remain), all as approved by the
SDCERS Board of Administration in its administrative capacity pursuant to its plenary authority over the
Pension System. There is also an additional UAAL cost component to ensure that there is no negative
amortization in any year. See Note 12 to the City’s audited financial statements attached hereto in
Appendix A-1 for a description of the shorter amortization period prescribed by the City Charter. For
several years, the City was paying less than the full ARC. The reasons for this are numerous, including
prior agreements between the City and SDCERS, earnings on pension assets at greater than the actuarially
assumed rate of 8% being credited against contributions, payments pursuant to litigation settlements that
were mistakenly characterized as “contingent” and therefore not made in certain years, and other reasons
explained in detail in Note 12 to the City’s 2008 audited financial statements. See Appendix A-1 —
“BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
FROM THE COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT OF THE CITY OF SAN DIEGO
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2008 attached hereto.

The City paid 67.4% of its ARC for Fiscal Year 2005 and 100% of its ARC for Fiscal Year 2006
and Fiscal Year 2007 based on the ARC as calculated by SDCERS. However, the calculation of the ARC
by SDCERS prior to Fiscal Year 2006 did not include certain benefit payments that the SDCERS Board
of Administration views as having been contingent. Subsequent to those payments, SDCERS and its
actuary determined that the liabilities were not contingent and the ARC for financial reporting was
restated from the original ARC. Accordingly, the City Net Pension Obligation (“NPO”) has been
increased by such amounts. NPO is the cumulative difference between the annual pension cost (the
“Annual Pension Cost”) of the City to the Pension System and the actual contribution in a particular year.
Annual Pension Cost is equal to (i) the ARC, (ii) one year’s interest on the NPO, and (iii) an adjustment
to the ARC to offset, approximately, the amount included in item (i) for amortization of the past
contribution deficiencies. The City has taken various actions to reduce the NPO and the related UAAL,
including contributions of $143.2 million in addition to the ARC through the securitization of future
tobacco settlement revenue, transfers of actual tobacco settlement revenue receipts, and additional
employee “pick up” savings.

In Fiscal Year 2008, the City’s total pension payment, including its ARC for pension and its
contribution for the Preservation of Benefits Plan referenced in the CAFR for Fiscal Year 2008 (the
“Preservation of Benefits Plan”), was $166.6 million. The City’s NPO at the end of Fiscal Year 2008 was
$173.9 million. The City’s pension payment for Fiscal Year 2009 is $161.7 million and has been paid in
full. The City anticipates contributing $1.1 million for the Preservation of Benefits Plan for Fiscal Year
2009.
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Table 20 below sets forth the City’s portion of SDCERS historical funding progress for Fiscal
Years 2004 through 2008.

TABLE 20
CITY OF SAN DIEGO
Schedule of Funding Progress
Fiscal Years 2004 through 2008

($ In Thousands)
(Unaudited)
Valuation Date Valuation Funded
(June 30) Assets AAL Ratio UAALY
20041@ $ 2,628,680 $ 4,077,833 64.46% $ 1,449,153
20051 @ 2,983,080 4,436,017 67.25 1,452,937
2006 3,981,932 4,982,700 79.92 1,000,768
2007 4,413,411 5,597,653 78.84 1,184,242
2008 4,660,346 5,963,550 78.15 1,303,204

Source City of San Diego Comprehensive Annual Financial Report with respect to data for Fiscal Years 2004 through 2008
Projected Unit Cost method used for determining actuarial accrued liability.

@ For Fiscal Year 2005, the actuarial accrued liability, the UAAL and the funded ratio have been adjusted to reflect the

impact of the Corbett contingent settlement benefit. The actuarial valuation provided by the actuary for Fiscal Year 2005

does not include this contingent benefit in the funded ratio. However, the valuations prepared by the actuary for Fiscal

Years 2006 through Fiscal Year 2008 do include the impact of the Corbett contingent settlement benefit. See Note 12 to the

CAFR for Fiscal Year 2008 attached hereto as APPENDIX A-1.

Reflects revised actuarial methodologies. The actuarial accrued liability was calculated using the Entry Age Normal

method beginning in Fiscal Year 2007. Prior to Fiscal Year 2007, the Projected Unit Cost method was used.

3)

Wastewater System Share of Contribution to Pension System and NPO. For Fiscal Year 2008,
the Sewer Revenue Fund’s proportionate share to fully fund the City’s contribution to the pension system
was $10.2 million, and for Fiscal Year 2009 such share is $9.3 million. The Wastewater System’s 2007
Rate Case projection, which was the basis for the sewage service charge increases set forth in Table 9
herein and approved by the City Council (see “WASTEWATER SYSTEM FINANCIAL OPERATIONS
— Establishment, Calculation and Collection of Sewer Service Charges” and “ — Calculation and
Collection of Capacity Charges” herein), included $14.4 million as the Sewer Revenue Fund’s estimated
annual proportionate share of the City’s ARC for Fiscal Years 2008 through 2011. The City expects that
the $14.4 million estimate included in the Wastewater System’s 2007 Rate Case projection for Fiscal
Years 2008 through 2011 will be sufficient to pay the Sewer Revenue Fund’s proportionate share to fully
fund the City’s contribution to the Pension System for such years. The Wastewater System’s share of the
NPO at June 30, 2008, is approximately $10.6 million. See the City’s Fiscal Year 2008 audited financial
statements attached hereto, line item entitled “Non-Current Liabilities - Net Pension Obligation” under
the table entitled “Proprietary Funds - Statement of Net Assets”.

The following Table 21 sets forth, for Fiscal Years 2008 through 2011, the City’s total pension
payments (including its ARC for pension and the Preservation of Benefits Plan), the pension contributions
included in the Wastewater System’s 2007 Rate Case projection and the corresponding actual, budgeted
or projected amounts, which have been lower than the projected amounts.
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TABLE 21
CITY OF SAN DIEGO AND WASTEWATER SYSTEM
PENSION CONTRIBUTION
Fiscal Years 2008 through 2011
($ In Millions)

MWWD
Fiscal Year City
ending June 30 Pension Payment  Rate Case Projection®™  Actual/Budgeted/Projected
2008 $166.6"” $14.4 $10.2%
2009 162.8° 14.4 9.3®
2010 155.79 14.4 8.9
2011 236.0 14.4 13.67

Source: The City of San Diego Comprehensive Annual Financial Statement for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2008;

1
(@2}

(3)

“4)

)

(6)

@

®)

City of San Diego Financial Management Department and the MWWD.
Audited.
Actual. The MWWD’s payment reflects the Sewer Revenue Fund’s proportionate share to fully fund the City’s
pension payment (excluding payments for the Preservation of Benefits Plan), which was 6.16% for Fiscal Year
2008 and is approximately 5.75% for Fiscal Year 2009. The MWWD contributes to the Preservation of Benefits
Plan only if its employees receive benefits thereunder. The MWWD was not required to contribute to the
Preservation of Benefits Plan in Fiscal Year 2008. The MWWD’s contribution to the Preservation of Benefits
Plan, if any, for subsequent Fiscal Years remains to be determined. See footnote (5) below for a discussion of
adjustments to the proportionate share.
Reflects actual pension payment of $161.7 million and a contribution of $1.1 million for the Preservation of
Benefits Plan.
Reflects the projected City pension payment included in the City’s proposed budget as of May 2009 and an
anticipated contribution of $1.5 million for the Preservation of Benefits Plan.
Proposed budget amount, assuming the Sewer Revenue Fund’s proportionate share to fully fund the City’s pension
payment (excluding payments for the Preservation of Benefits Plan) remains at 5.75%, which was the Sewer
Revenue Fund’s approximate proportionate share for Fiscal Year 2009. The Sewer Revenue Fund’s proportionate
share is established at the beginning of a Fiscal Year and may increase or decrease during the year and from year
to year depending on a variety of factors, including the number of covered employees attributable to the Sewer
Revenue Fund, the retirement benefits accruing to such employees and end-of-the-year payroll adjustments.
Projected City pension payment based on Scenario Two set forth in the City’s “Five-Year Financial Outlook for
Fiscal Years 2009-10 through 2013-14 (November 2008)” (the “November 2008 Five-Year Financial Outlook”),
which were based on market values as of October 31, 2008. Assumes an increase to the ARC of $70.0 million in
Fiscal Year 2011 (to an assumed City Pension Payment of $166 million in Fiscal Year 2010) with increases of an
additional $15.0 to $20.0 million a year and a future return equal to the 7.75% assumed rate of return by SDCERS
in Fiscal Years 2011 through 2014. Excludes any offsetting effects to mitigate current investment losses and any
actuarial gains from lower than expected salary increases and a reduction in the number of City employees.
Excludes any contribution for the Preservation of Benefits Plan, which cannot be reliably projected at this time,
and the impact of market declines since October 31, 2008. See “— UAAL and its Calculation” herein.
Projected MWWD pension payment calculated based on the Sewer Revenue Fund’s proportionate share to fully
fund the City’s estimated pension payment of $236.0 million for Fiscal Year 2011, as set forth under the Scenario
Two of the November 2008 Five-Year Financial Outlook. See footnote (6) above for a description of the
assumptions included in Scenario Two. See footnote (5) above for a description of the assumptions relating to the
Sewer Revenue Fund’s proportionate share.
Reflects projections as of the date of the 2007 Rate Case.

Actual and budgeted amounts set forth above reflect amounts necessary for the City to satisfy its
pension contribution requirement for each fiscal year and may be more or less than the amounts projected
in the 2007 Rate Case. To date, amounts included in the Wastewater System’s 2007 Rate Case projection
have exceeded the amounts actually required to satisfy the MWWD’s pension contribution requirement.
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Postemployment Healthcare Benefits

The City is authorized pursuant to the City Municipal Code to provide certain healthcare benefits
to certain retired employees through SDCERS. Expenses for postemployment healthcare benefits were
paid for on a pay-as-you-go basis through Fiscal Year 2007 solely from City contributions, retiree
contributions and amounts from the 401(k) Plan established by the City in 1985. In Fiscal Years 2006 and
Fiscal Year 2007, the annualized cost of retiree health benefits was approximately $24.1 million and
$27.1 million, respectively. The City’s portion of such cost was approximately $17.7 million and
$20.4 million, respectively, for such fiscal years. The remainder was paid from retiree contributions. The
Sewer Revenue Fund’s proportionate share of the City’s portion of postemployment healthcare benefits
was approximately $1.6 million and $2.3 million for Fiscal Year 2006 and Fiscal Year 2007, respectively.
In Fiscal Year 2008, in addition to contributing $23.4 million to the pay-as-you-go portion of
postemployment healthcare benefits (approximately $1.8 million of which was the Sewer Revenue Fund’s
proportionate share), the City began to pre-fund future expenses related to postemployment healthcare
benefits through CERBT (defined herein), as further described below. The City has budgeted $26.1
million as the pay-as-you-go portion of its postemployment healthcare benefits in Fiscal Year 2009. The
Sewer Revenue Fund’s proportionate share of the pay-as-you-go portion is $1.8 million.

The City has entered into an agreement with California Public Employees’ Retirement System
(“CalPERs”) on January 18, 2008 as a participating employer in the CalPERS Employers Retirement
Benefits Trust (“CERBT”) to pre-fund future expenses related to other postemployment benefits
(“OPEB”) and contributed approximately $30.1 million to CERBT in connection therewith in Fiscal Year
2008. The Sewer Revenue Fund’s proportionate share of the contribution to CERBT was approximately
$2.4 million. The City made a contribution in Fiscal Year 2009 of $23.9 million for OPEB liabilities. The
Sewer Revenue Fund’s proportionate share of the City’s contribution was $1.5 million. As of the date of
this Official Statement, the City has not fully funded its ARC for OPEB (i.e., the sum of the normal cost
of the postemployment benefits plus amortization of the OPEB UAAL). The City has not determined the
amounts necessary to fully fund its ARC with respect to OPEB liabilities beyond the projected amounts
set forth in its November 2008 Five-Year Financial Outlook. The City expects to evaluate its
contributions towards its ARC for OPEB liabilities as outlined in the November 2008 Five-Year Financial
Outlook. All future contributions for post employment healthcare benefits will be credited toward the
City’s ARC for retiree healthcare liabilities in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (“GASB”) Statement No. 43, “Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than
Pension Plans” (“GASB 43”), and GASB Statement No. 45, “Accounting and Financial Reporting by
Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions” (“GASB 45”). See Note 13 to the Fiscal
Year 2008 audited financial statements attached hereto in Appendix A-1.

In connection with compliance with GASB 43 and GASB 45, the City has calculated its net
OPEB obligation (“NOPEBO”) as of June 30, 2008 to be approximately $37.8 million. The NOPEBO is
the cumulative difference between the City’s annual OPEB cost and City’s contributions to OPEB in a
particular year, including the OPEB liability or asset at transition, if any. Annual OPEB cost is equal to
(i) the ARC for OPEB, (b) one year’s interest on the NOPEBO from prior years (which the City
determined to be zero at the beginning of Fiscal Year 2008, the transition year, in accordance with GASB
45), and (c) an adjustment to the ARC for OPEB to offset the effect of actuarial amortization of past
under- or over-contributions. The Sewer Revenue Fund’s proportionate share of the City’s NOPEBO as
of June 30, 2008 was $3.0 million. The City intends to pre-fund the CERBT with approximately $25
million on an annual basis, as described in Note 13 to the Fiscal Year 2008 audited financial statements
attached hereto in Appendix A-1.

An actuarial valuation of the City’s postemployment medical benefit program as of June 30, 2008
(the “2008 OPEB Valuation™) was performed by Buck Consultants for the purpose of determining the
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City’s annual cost in accordance with GASB 45. The valuation, dated December 10, 2008, reflected a
discount rate of 6.69% based on the City’s actual and expected contributions to CERBT, inflation factors
for increases in healthcare costs and premium costs, and a 30-year amortization period (open basis).
According to the 2008 OPEB Valuation, using the assumptions described above and consistent with
GASB 45, the UAAL for OPEB for all retirees, deferred retirement participants, vested terminated and
active members as of June 30, 2008 was $1.21 billion and the ARC for OPEB will be $113.43 million for
Fiscal Year 2010 (as reported in the actuarial valuation dated June 30, 2008).

Table 22 below sets forth the retiree health contributions included in the Wastewater System’s
2007 Rate Case projection for Fiscal Years 2008 through 2011 and the corresponding actual, budgeted or
projected amounts, which have been lower than the projected amounts set forth in the 2007 Rate Case.
Amounts budgeted for future years may be lower than amounts set forth in the 2007 Rate Case projection.
The City expects that such amount will be sufficient to pay the Sewer Revenue Fund’s proportionate
share to fund the City’s contribution to OPEB for such years. Projections sets forth in the Wastewater
System’s 2007 Rate Case include amounts through Fiscal Year 2011, years through which wastewater
rates were approved by the City Council.

TABLE 22
METROPOLITAN WASTEWATER DEPARTMENT
RETIREE HEALTH CONTRIBUTION
Fiscal Years 2008 through 2011

($ In Millions)
Fiscal Year
ending June 30 Rate Case Projection Actual/Budgeted/Projected”
2008 $4.4 $4.20
2009 6.7 3.9%
2010 9.1 4.5@
2011 9.1 510

Source: Metropolitan Wastewater Department and Financial Management Department, City of San Diego.

() Consists of the Sewer Revenue Fund’s proportionate share of pay-as-you-go postemployment healthcare benefits and its
proportionate share of contributions to CalPERS for OPEB. The Sewer Revenue Fund’s proportionate share of OPEB for
Fiscal Year 2008 was 7.85%. Budgeted, proposed and projected amounts reflect an assumed Sewer Revenue Fund
proportionate share of 7.86% for Fiscal Years 2009 through 2011. The Sewer Revenue Fund’s proportionate share may
increase or decrease from year to year depending on a variety of factors, including the number of covered employees
attributable to the Sewer Revenue Fund and the retirement benefits accruing to such employees.

@ Actual.

@ Budgeted.

@ Proposed Budget.

©®  Projected MWWD contribution based on the Sewer Revenue Fund’s proportionate share (see footnote (1) above) of the
City’s aggregate pay-as-you-go postemployment healthcare contributions and OPEB contributions through CalPERS, as set
forth in the City’s November 2008 Five-Year Financial Outlook.

RISK FACTORS

The ability of the City to pay principal of and interest on the Series 2009B Bonds depends
primarily upon the receipt by the City of Net System Revenues. Some of the events which could prevent
the City from receiving a sufficient amount of Net System Revenues to enable it to pay the principal of
and interest on the Series 2009B Bonds are summarized below. The following description of risks is not
intended to be an exhaustive list of the risks associated with the purchase of the Series 2009B Bonds and
the order of the risks set forth below does not necessarily reflect the relative importance of the various
risks.
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Limited Obligations

The obligation of the City to pay the 2009B Installment Payments securing the Series 2009B
Bonds is a limited obligation of the City and is not secured by a legal or equitable pledge or charge or lien
upon any property of the City or any of its income or receipts, except the Net System Revenues. The
obligation of the City to make the 2009B Installment Payments does not constitute an obligation of the
City to levy or pledge any form of taxation or for which the City has levied or pledged any form of
taxation. The City is obligated under the Installment Purchase Agreement to make the Installment
Payments solely from Net System Revenues.

No assurance can be made that Net System Revenues, estimated or otherwise, will be realized by
the City in amounts sufficient to pay the 2009B Installment Payments. Among other matters, drought,
general and local economic conditions and changes in law and government regulations (including
initiatives and moratoriums on growth) could adversely affect the amount of Net System Revenues
realized by the City. In addition, the realization of future Net System Revenues is subject to, among other
things, the capabilities of management of the City, the ability of the City to provide wastewater service to
its retail customers and the Participating Agencies, the ability of the City to establish, maintain and collect
charges for the Wastewater Service to its retail customers and the Participating Agencies and the ability of
the City to establish, maintain and collect rates and charges sufficient to pay for Operation and
Maintenance costs and the 2009B Installment Payments. See “WASTEWATER SYSTEM FINANCIAL
OPERATIONS — Historical Revenues and Expenses” herein.

Wastewater System Expenses and Collections

The Operation and Maintenance costs of the Wastewater System are expected to increase in the
next five years. See “WASTEWATER SYSTEM FINANCIAL OPERATIONS - Financial Projections”
herein. However, there can be no assurance that the City’s projected future Maintenance and Operation
costs for the Wastewater System will actually be as projected by the MWWD and described in this
Official Statement. In addition, demands on the Wastewater System will increase due to population
growth and regulatory requirements in the future. Further, although the City has covenanted to prescribe,
revise and collect rates and charges for Wastewater Service in amounts necessary to pay the 2009B
Installment Payments, there can be no assurance that such amounts will be collected in the amounts and at
the times necessary to pay the 2009B Installment Payments sufficient to provide for the payment of the
Series 2009B Bonds.

Rate-Setting Process Under Proposition 218

Proposition 218, which added Articles XIIIC and XIIID to the California Constitution, affects the
City’s ability to impose future rate increases, and no assurance can be given that future rate increases will
not encounter majority protest opposition or be challenged by initiative action authorized under
Proposition 218.  During the last two Proposition 218 rate increase hearings with respect to the
Wastewater System, the Office of the City Clerk received approximately 6% of the aggregate protests
required to prevent the increase. In the event that future proposed rate increases cannot be imposed as a
result of majority protest or initiative, the City might thereafter be unable to generate Net System
Revenues in the amounts required by the Installment Purchase Agreement to pay 2009B Installment
Payments. Proposition 218 also affects the Participating Agencies’ ability to collect sewer service charges
and impose future rate increases in amounts sufficient to make payments under the Regional Wastewater
Disposal Agreement and the Transportation Agreements. There can be no assurance that the Participating
Agencies have complied or will comply with the provisions of Proposition 218 or that the Participating
Agencies’ ability to impose future rate increases will not be adversely affected by majority protests or
initiatives. The Participating Agencies are required to pay the amounts due under the Regional
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Wastewater Disposal Agreement regardless of the source of payment. However, if the Participating
Agencies are unable to pay amounts due and payable for any reason, the City’s ability to generate Net
System Revenues in the amounts required by the Installment Purchase Agreement to pay 2009B
Installment Payments could be adversely affected. See “CONSTITUTIONAL LIMITATIONS ON
TAXES AND WASTEWATER RATES AND CHARGES—Articles XIIIC and XIIID” herein.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the City has covenanted to fix, prescribe and collect rates and
charges for Wastewater Service at a level at least sufficient to meet its debt requirements, as set forth
under “SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE SERIES 2009B BONDS - Rate
Covenant” herein. The current wastewater rates for customers within the City have been approved by the
Mayor and the City Council and have been imposed in compliance with Proposition 218. See
“CONSTITUTIONAL LIMITATIONS ON TAXES AND WASTEWATER RATES AND CHARGES—
Articles XIIIC and XIIID” herein.

Statutory and Regulatory Compliance

Claims against the Wastewater System for failure to comply with applicable laws and regulations
could be significant. Such claims are payable from assets of the Wastewater System or from other legally
available sources. In addition to claims by private parties, changes in the scope and standards for public
agency Wastewater Systems such as that operated by the MWWD may also lead to administrative orders
issued by Federal or State regulators. Future compliance with such orders can also impose substantial
additional costs on the Sewer Revenue Fund. See “WASTEWATER SYSTEM REGULATORY
REQUIREMENTS” herein. No assurance can be given that the cost of compliance with such laws,
regulations and orders would not adversely affect the ability of the Wastewater System to generate Net
System Revenues sufficient to pay the 2009B Installment Payments. See “WASTEWATER SYSTEM
REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS - Collection of Sewage”, “— Treatment of Sewage” and “—
Discharge and Disposal of Sewage” herein. However, the City has covenanted in the Installment Purchase
Agreement to fix, prescribe and collect rates and charges for the Wastewater System which will yield Net
System Revenues for each fiscal year sufficient to pay debt service on the Parity Obligations, including
the 2009B Installment Payments securing the Series 2009B Bonds. All proposed increases for such rates
and charges for the Wastewater System are subject to the restrictions and requirements of Articles XIIIC
and XIIID of the California Constitution.

Earthquakes, Wildfires and Other Natural Disasters

Although the City has not experienced any significant damage from seismic activities, the
geographic area in which the City is located is subject to unpredictable seismic activity. Southern
California is characterized by a number of geotechnical conditions which represent potential safety
hazards, including expansive soils and areas of potential liquefaction and landslide. Earthquakes or other
natural disasters could interrupt operation of the Wastewater System and thereby interrupt the ability of
the City to realize Net System Revenues sufficient to pay the 2009B Installment Payments securing the
payment of the Series 2009B Bonds. The San Andreas, Rose Canyon, Elsinore and San Jacinto fault
zones are all capable of producing earthquakes in the San Diego area. In anticipation of such potential
disasters, the City designs and constructs all facilities of the Wastewater System to the seismic codes in
effect at the time of design of the project. The Wastewater System has not experienced any significant
losses of facilities or services as a result of earthquakes. Facilities within the Wastewater System
generally consist of pipelines and connections, flow control facilities, and pumping stations, which are not
typically vulnerable to damage by wildfires. All treatment facilities, pumping stations and piping
structures are designed in accordance with appropriate seismic design requirements.
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The above ground facilities within the Wastewater System are designed to be tolerant to damage
by wildfires through the use of fire resistant material where possible, such as concrete and masonry
blocks. In addition, the MWWD works closely with the City’s fire department to ensure that proper
vegetative clearances are maintained in and around the properties and facilities of the Wastewater System.
The MWWD watches for wildfires that may threaten the facilities of the Wastewater System and
operations and maintenance crews are dispatched to ensure that all above-ground facilities remain safe
and operational. Further, during fires, the MWWD works closely with the City’s fire department and law
enforcement officers to monitor and protect facilities of the Wastewater System to ensure continuous
operation. One pump station sustained minor damage from the October 2007 wildfires in San Diego
County.

Although the City has implemented disaster preparedness plans and made improvements to
Wastewater System facilities in connection with such natural disasters, there can be no assurance that
these or any additional measures will be adequate in the event that a natural disaster occurs, nor that costs
of preparedness measures will be as currently anticipated. Further, damage to components of the
Wastewater System could cause a material increase in costs for repairs or a corresponding material
adverse impact on Net System Revenues. The City is not obligated under the Installment Purchase
Agreement to procure and maintain, or cause to be procured and maintained, nor does the City plan to
procure and maintain, earthquake insurance on the Wastewater System.

Risks Relating to the Water Supply

The ability of the Wastewater System to operate effectively can be affected by the water supply
available to the City, which is situated in an arid and semi-desert environment that is currently subject to
drought conditions. If the water supply decreases significantly, whether by operation of mandatory supply
restrictions, prohibitively high water costs or otherwise, flow within the Wastewater System will diminish
and Net System Revenues available to pay the 2009B Installment Payments may be adversely affected.
Under current estimates, Wastewater System operations and Net System Revenues are not expected to be
materially adversely affected if the MWWD is ordered to conserve up to 20% of its annual water supply,
receives an unexpectedly low water allocation, or becomes subject to penalties or additional expenses
because of an inability to meet the conservation goal. Further, the MWWD anticipates that any such
reduction in Net System Revenues would be offset in part by reductions in the amount of sewage
collected and treated by the MWWD, which would reduce operational expenses.

Security of the Wastewater System

The safety of the Wastewater System within the operational areas of the MWWD is maintained
via a combination of regular inspections by the MWWD employees, electronic monitoring, and analysis
of unusual incident reports. All above-ground facilities, operated and maintained by WWTD, including
the Point Loma Plant, the Metropolitan Biosolids Center, the North City Plant and South Bay Plant and
pumping stations within the Wastewater System, are controlled access facilities with fencing, gates,
closed circuit television systems and security officers at appropriate points. Smaller, above-ground and
subterranean pumping stations, operated and maintained by WWC, are locked with padlock or internal
locking mechanisms and most are monitored via access/intrusion alarms. Security improvements are
evaluated on an ongoing basis. The electronic operations and controls have been evaluated and exposure
reduced through a series of technology systems enhancements and integration.

Military conflicts and terrorist activities may adversely impact the operations and finances of the
Wastewater System. The MWWD continually plans and prepares for emergency situations and
immediately responds to ensure sewer services are maintained. However, there can be no assurance that
any existing or additional safety and security measures will prove adequate in the event that terrorist
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activities are directed against the Wastewater System or that costs of security measures will not be greater
than presently anticipated. Further, damage to certain components of the Wastewater System could
require the City to increase expenditures for repairs to the Wastewater System significantly enough to
adversely impact the City’s ability to pay debt service on the Series 2009B. The City has established
within the Sewer Revenue the Operating Reserve, which is currently funded at a minimum of 50 days’
operating costs (to be gradually increased to 70 days of operating costs in Fiscal Years 2010 to Fiscal
Year 2013 which may be used under certain circumstances for repairs to the Wastewater System. See
“WASTEWATER SYSTEM FINANCIAL OPERATIONS — Rate Stabilization Fund and Other Funds
and Accounts” herein.

Utility Costs

No assurance can be given that any future significant reduction or loss of power would not
materially adversely affect the operations of the Wastewater System. The volume of wastewater
conveyed and treated in the Wastewater System on a daily basis requires a significant amount of electrical
and thermal power. Electricity is needed to run several assets including, among other things, pumps,
lights, computers, mechanical valves and machinery. Thermal energy, usually generated by electrical
power or by burning natural gas, provides heat and cooling necessary for both buildings and the
wastewater treatment process. Energy in excess of the amount necessary to power the Metropolitan
Biosolids Center reduces the amount of energy purchased by the MWWD from the local power grid for
use at facilities in the Wastewater System. The MWWD cannot guarantee that prices for electricity or gas
will not increase, which could adversely affect the Wastewater System’s financial condition. Such
increases in wastewater rates and such other charges as well as increases in electricity and gas costs are
eligible to be “passed through” to the City’s wastewater customers as increased wastewater rates in
accordance with the City Municipal Code. Such “pass through” rate increases are subject to Proposition
218 notice requirements. See “CONSTITUTIONAL LIMITATIONS ON TAXES AND WASTEWATER
RATES AND CHARGES - Articles XIIIC and XIIID” herein.

The MWWD operates an energy efficiency program at its facilities as a component of its ongoing
commitment to protect the environment by preserving our natural resources, reducing power
consumption, using renewable energy sources, seeking cheaper sources of power and serving the needs of
all our customers. Energy savings, if any, directly benefit the residents of the City by helping to maintain
lower sewer rates while providing renewable electric energy to the region.

Impact of Current Fiscal Crisis on Wastewater System Revenues

The United States financial market is presently experiencing extreme volatility precipitated by
major economic disruptions, indications of a severe economic recession and significant credit and
liquidity problems. The City cannot predict the extent of the fiscal problems that will be encountered in
this or in any future Fiscal Years, and, it is not clear what measures will be taken by the State or Federal
government to address the current fiscal crisis. Accordingly, the City cannot predict the final outcome of
future State or Federal actions or the impact that such actions will have on the Wastewater System’s
finances and operations.

Pursuant to the Installment Purchase Agreement, the City is obligated to fix, prescribe and collect
rates and charges for Wastewater Service that will be at least sufficient to pay during each Fiscal Year all
Obligations (other than Parity Obligations) payable in such Fiscal Year, and to yield during each Fiscal
Year Net System Revenues equal to 120% of Debt Service (defined generally to mean the aggregate
amount of principal, sinking fund payments and interest payable in respect of all Parity Obligations for
such Fiscal Year). The Installment Purchase Agreement also prohibits the City from reducing the rates
and charges then in effect unless the Net System Revenues from such reduced rates and charges will at all
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times be sufficient to meet the requirements of the Installment Purchase Agreement. Further, the
Indenture provides that upon the occurrence and continuance of any Event of Default (as defined in the
Indenture), including nonpayment of principal of or interest on the Series 2009B Bonds, the holders of the
Series 2009B Bonds may proceed to enforce their beneficial rights by mandamus, or other suit, action or
proceeding at law or in equity, which includes an action for specific performance by the City with respect
to its rate covenant and any other agreement contained in the Installment Purchase Agreement. See also
“RISK FACTORS - Rate-Setting Process Under Proposition 218”7 and “CONSTITUTIONAL
LIMITATIONS ON TAXES AND WASTEWATER RATES AND CHARGES - Articles XIIIC and
XIID” for a description of limitations on the rate-setting process under the California Constitution.

The MWWD has taken the current fiscal crisis into consideration in its projections of capacity
charges for the current and subsequent fiscal years. In Fiscal Year 2008, approximately $11.8 million
was generated from Capacity Charges. The MWWD projects that $11.0 million, including a one-time
Capacity Charge from a dewatering project at the San Diego Convention Center, will be generated in
Fiscal Year 2009. The Capacity Charge revenue projections for Fiscal Years 2010 and through Fiscal
Year 2013 assume an average annual growth rate of approximately 1% in EDUs.

The MWWD has also considered the effects of the housing market on the other components of
System Revenues, including revenues generated from sewer service charges. Notwithstanding housing
foreclosures and related account closings, usage of the Wastewater System has remained stable.
Accordingly, the MWWD expects that the current housing conditions will not adversely affect the ability
of the Wastewater System to generate Net System Revenues sufficient to pay the 2009B Installment
Payments. However, the City cannot predict the extent to which the current or any future financial crisis
will impact its ability to generate Net System Revenues in the amounts required by the Installment
Purchase Agreement to pay 2009B Installment Payments. In particular, the City cannot predict the extent
to which an economic recession and credit crisis will affect future wastewater flow, the impact of any
reduced demand on the Wastewater System’s finances and operations or whether a sustained fiscal crisis
would create sufficient pressure on the City to effect a reduction in wastewater fees.

Acceleration; Limitations on Remedies

The Indenture provides that, upon and during the continuance of an Event of Default thereunder,
the Trustee may, subject to certain conditions, declare the principal of all Bonds, including the Series
2009B Bonds, then Outstanding and the interest accrued thereon to be due and payable immediately. The
foregoing notwithstanding, the remedy of acceleration is subject to the limitations on legal remedies
against public entities in the State, including a limitation on enforcement obligations against funds needed
to serve the public welfare and interest. Also, any remedies available to the Owners of the Series 2009B
Bonds upon the occurrence of an Event of Default under the Indenture are in many respects dependent
upon judicial actions which are often subject to discretion and delay and could prove both expensive and
time consuming to obtain.

Further, enforceability of the rights and remedies of the Owners of the Series 2009B Bonds, and
the obligations incurred by the City, may become subject to the Federal bankruptcy code and applicable
bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium, or similar laws relating to or affecting the
enforcement of creditor’s rights generally, now or hereafter in effect, equity principles which may limit
the specific enforcement under State law of certain remedies, the exercise by the United States of
America of the powers delegated to it by the Constitution, the reasonable and necessary exercise, in
certain exceptional situations, of the police powers inherent in the sovereignty of the State and its
governmental bodies in the interest of serving a significant and legitimate public purpose, and the
limitations on remedies against counties in the State. Bankruptcy proceedings, or the exercise of powers
by the Federal or State government, if initiated, could subject the Owners of the Series 2009B Bonds to
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judicial discretion and interpretation of their rights in bankruptcy or otherwise and consequently may
entail risks of delay, limitation, or modification of their rights.

CONSTITUTIONAL LIMITATIONS ON TAXES
AND WASTEWATER RATES AND CHARGES

Article XIITA

Article XIITA of the State Constitution provides that the maximum ad valorem tax on real
property cannot exceed 1% of the “full cash value,” which is defined as “the county assessor’s valuation
of real property as shown on the 1975-76 tax bill under ‘full cash value’ or, thereafter, the appraised value
of real property when purchased, newly constructed, or a change in ownership has occurred after the 1975
assessment”, subject to exceptions for certain circumstances of transfer or reconstruction and except with
respect to certain voter approved debt. The “full cash value” is subject to annual adjustment to reflect
increases, not to exceed 2% per year, or decreases in the consumer price index or comparable local data,
or to reflect reduction in property value caused by damage, destruction or other factors.

Article XIITA requires a vote of two-thirds of the qualified electorate to impose special taxes,
while generally precluding the imposition of any additional ad valorem, sales or transaction tax on real
property. As amended, Article XIIIA exempts from the 1% tax limitation any taxes above that level
required to pay debt service on certain voter-approved general obligation bonds for the acquisition or
improvement of real property. In addition, Article XIIIA requires the approval of two-thirds of all
members of the State Legislature to change any State laws resulting in increased tax revenues.

Under California law, any fee which exceeds the reasonable cost of providing the service for
which the fee is charged is a “special tax,” which under Article XIIIA must be authorized by a two-thirds
vote of the electorate. Accordingly, if a portion of the City’s water or wastewater user rates or Capacity
Fees were determined by a court to exceed the reasonable cost of providing service, the City would not be
permitted to continue to collect that portion unless it were authorized to do so by a two-thirds majority of
the votes cast in an election to authorize the collection of that portion of the rates or fees. The reasonable
cost of providing wastewater services has been determined by the State Controller to include depreciation
and allowance for the cost of capital improvements. In addition, the California courts have determined
that fees such as capacity fees will not be special taxes if they approximate the reasonable cost of
constructing the water or wastewater capital improvements contemplated by the local agency imposing
the fee. See “WASTEWATER SYSTEM FINANCIAL OPERATIONS - Historical Revenues and
Expenses” herein.

Article XIIIB

Article XIIIB of the California Constitution limits the annual appropriations of proceeds of taxes
by State and local government entities to the amount of appropriations of the entity for the prior fiscal
year, as adjusted for changes in the cost of living, changes in population and changes in services rendered
by the entity. User fees and charges are considered proceeds of taxes only to the extent they exceed the
reasonable costs incurred by a governmental entity in supplying the goods and services for which such
fees and charges are imposed.

To the extent that assessments, fee and charges collected by the City are used to pay the costs of
maintaining and operating the Wastewater System and payments due on the Series 2009B Bonds
(including the funding of the Reserve Fund), the City believes that such moneys are not subject to the
annual appropriations limit of Article XIIIB.
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Articles XIIIC and XIIID

On November 5, 1996, the voters of the State approved Proposition 218, a constitutional
initiative, entitled the “Right to Vote on Taxes Act” (“Proposition 218). Proposition 218 added Articles
XIIC and XIIID to the California Constitution and contained a number of interrelated provisions
affecting the ability of local governments, including the City, to levy and collect both existing and future
taxes, assessments, fees and charges.

Section 1 of Article XIIIC requires majority voter approval for the imposition, extension or
increase of general taxes and Section 2 thereof requires two-thirds voter approval for the imposition,
extension or increase of special taxes. These voter approval requirements of Article XIIIC reduce the
flexibility of the City to raise revenues by the levy of general or special taxes and, given such voter
approval requirements, no assurance can be given that the City will be able to enact, impose, extend or
increase any such taxes in the future to meet increased expenditure requirements. The City has not
enacted, imposed, extended or increased any tax since the effective date of Proposition 218.

Section 3 of Article XIIIC expressly extends the initiative power to give voters the power to
reduce or repeal local taxes, assessments, fees and charges, regardless of the date such taxes, assessments,
fees or charges were imposed. Section 3 expands the initiative power to include reducing or repealing
assessments, fees and charges, which had previously been considered administrative rather than
legislative matters and therefore beyond the initiative power. This extension of the initiative power is not
limited by the terms of Article XIIIC to fees imposed after November 6, 1996, the effective date of
Proposition 218, and absent other legal authority could result in the reduction in any existing taxes,
assessments or fees and charges imposed prior to November 6, 1996.

“Fees” and “charges” are not expressly defined in Article XIIIC or in SB 919, the Proposition 218
Omnibus Implementation Act enacted in 1997 to prescribe specific procedures and parameters for local
jurisdictions in complying with Article XIIIC and Article XIIID (“SB 919). However, on July 24, 2006,
the California Supreme Court ruled in Bighorn-Desert View Water Agency v. Virjil (Kelley) (the “Bighorn
Decision”) that charges for ongoing water delivery are property-related fees and charges within the
meaning of Article XIIID and are also fees or charges within the meaning of Section 3 of Article XIIIC.
The California Supreme Court held that such water service charges may, therefore, be reduced or repealed
through a local voter initiative pursuant to Section 3 of Article XIIIC.

In the Bighorn Decision, the Supreme Court did state that nothing in Section 3 of Article XIIIC
authorizes initiative measures that impose voter-approval requirements for future increases in fees or
charges for water delivery. The Supreme Court stated that water providers may determine rates and
charges upon proper action of the governing body and that the governing body may increase a charge
which was not affected by a prior initiative or impose an entirely new charge.

The Supreme Court further stated in the Bighorn Decision that it was not holding that the
initiative power is free of all limitations and was not determining whether the initiative power is subject to
the statutory provision requiring that water and wastewater service charges be set at a level that will pay
debt service on bonded debt and operating expenses. Such initiative power could be subject to the
limitations imposed on the impairment of contracts under the contract clause of the United States
Constitution. Additionally, SB 919 provides that the initiative power provided for in Proposition 218
“shall not be construed to mean that any owner or beneficial owner of a municipal security, purchased
before or after (the effective date of Proposition 218) assumes the risk of, or in any way consents to, any
action by initiative measure that constitutes an impairment of contractual rights” protected by the United
States Constitution. No assurance can be given that the voters of the City will not, in the future, approve
initiatives which repeal, reduce or prohibit the future imposition or increase of assessments, fees or
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charges, including the City’s wastewater service fees and charges, which are the source of Net System
Revenues pledged to the payment of debt service on Series 2008 Bonds and other Outstanding
Obligations.

Notwithstanding the fact that sewer service charges may be subject to reduction or repeal by voter
initiative undertaken pursuant to Section 3 of Article XIIIC, the City has covenanted to levy and charge
rates which meet the requirements of the Installment Purchase Agreement in accordance with applicable
law.

Article XIIID defines a “fee” or “charge” as any levy other than an ad valorem tax, special tax, or
assessment imposed upon a parcel or upon a person as an incident of property ownership, including a user
fee or charge for a property-related service. A “property-related service” is defined as “a public service
having a direct relationship to a property ownership” herein. In the Bighorn Decision, the California
Supreme Court held that a public water agency’s charges for ongoing water delivery are fees and charges
within the meaning of Article XIIID. Article XIIID requires that any agency imposing or increasing any
property-related fee or charge must provide written notice thereof to the record owner of each identified
parcel upon which such fee or charge is to be imposed and must conduct a public hearing with respect
thereto. The proposed fee or charge may not be imposed or increased if a majority of owners of the
identified parcels file written protests against it. As a result, the local government’s ability to increase
such fee or charge may be limited by a majority protest.

In addition, Article XIIID also includes a number of limitations applicable to existing fees and
charges including provisions to the effect that (i) revenues derived from the fee or charge shall not exceed
the funds required to provide the property-related service; (ii) such revenues shall not be used for any
purpose other than that for which the fee or charge was imposed; (iii) the amount of a fee or charge
imposed upon any parcel or person as an incident of property ownership shall not exceed the proportional
cost of the service attributable to the parcel; and (iv) no such fee or charge may be imposed for a service
unless that service is actually used by, or immediately available to, the owner of the property in question.
Property-related fees or charges based on potential or future use of a service are not permitted.

The City’s current wastewater rates comply with the notice and substantive provisions of Article
XIIID. Three lawsuits filed against the City challenging the wastewater rates as they were structured prior
to October 2004, before the City incorporated a COD component. The Shames Settlement resulted in a
$35 million rebate to eligible single family residential customers and $5 million in attorneys’ fees, as
discussed previously under Wastewater System Financial Operations. The two other lawsuits were filed
on behalf of local restaurants and multifamily residential customers are still pending. See “LITIGATION”
herein for a description of the two lawsuits.

Article XIIID establishes procedural requirements for the imposition of assessments, which are
defined as any charge upon real property for a special benefit conferred upon the real property. Standby
charges are classified as assessments. Procedural requirements for assessments under Article XIIID
include conducting a public hearing and mailed protest procedure, with notice to the record owner of each
parcel subject to the assessment. The assessment may not be imposed if a majority of the ballots returned
oppose the assessment, with each ballot weighted according to the proportional financial obligation of the
affected parcel. To provide guidance to City staff regarding the conduct of Proposition 218 “property-
related fee” protest proceedings, the City Council adopted Resolution R-302245 in January 2007
establishing additional procedures for submitting protests against proposed increases to sewer rates,
including the provision of notice of a proposed change in wastewater fees to all owners of record on each
identified parcel and all wastewater customers of the City as reflected in the billing records of the City at
the time the notice is given, and additional procedures for the tabulation of protests against proposed
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increases to sewer service charges, including guidelines for determining when a valid protest has been
submitted.

The City and the City Attorney are of the opinion that current wastewater fees and charges that
are subject to Proposition 218 comply with the provisions thereof and that the City will continue to
comply with the rate covenant set forth in the Installment Purchase Agreement in conformity with the
provisions of Article XIIID of the California State Constitution. Should it become necessary to increase
the wastewater fees and charges above current levels, the City would be required to comply with the
requirements of Article XIIID in connection with such proposed increase. Under existing standards, the
City and the City Attorney are of the opinion that rates and charges may be established at levels which
would permit deposits to a Rate Stabilization Fund or maintenance of uncommitted cash reserves. See
“WASTEWATER SYSTEM FINANCIAL OPERATIONS - Financial Projections” herein.

The interpretation and application of Proposition 218 will ultimately be determined by the courts
or through implementing legislation with respect to a number of the matters described above, and it is not
possible at this time to predict with certainty the outcome of such determination or the nature or scope of
any such legislation.

TAX MATTERS
Federal Income Taxes

The Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), imposes certain requirements that
must be met subsequent to the issuance and delivery of the Series 2009B Bonds for interest thereon to be
and remain excluded from gross income for Federal income tax purposes. Noncompliance with such
requirements could cause the interest on the Series 2009B Bonds to be included in gross income for
Federal income tax purposes retroactive to the date of issue of the Series 2009B Bonds. Pursuant to the
Indenture and the Tax and Nonarbitrage Certificate the City and the Authority have covenanted to comply
with the applicable requirements of the Code in order to maintain the exclusion of the interest on the
Series 2009B Bonds from gross income for Federal income tax purposes pursuant to Section 103 of the
Code. In addition, the City and the Authority have made certain representations and certifications in the
Indenture and the Tax and Nonarbitrage Certificate. Bond Counsel will not independently verify the
accuracy of those representations and certifications.

In the opinion of Nixon Peabody LLP, Bond Counsel, under existing law and assuming
compliance with the aforementioned covenants, and the accuracy of certain representations and
certifications made by the City and the Authority described above, interest on the Series 2009B Bonds is
excluded from gross income for Federal income tax purposes under Section 103 of the Code. Bond
Counsel is also of the opinion that such interest is not treated as a preference item in calculating the
alternative minimum tax imposed under the Code with respect to individuals and corporations. Interest
on the Series 2009B Bonds is, however, included in the adjusted current earnings of certain corporations
for purposes of computing the alternative minimum tax imposed on such corporations.

State Taxes

Bond Counsel is also of the opinion that interest on the Series 2009B Bonds is exempt from State
of California personal income taxes. Bond counsel expresses no opinion as to other state or local tax
consequences arising with respect to the Series 2009B Bonds nor as to the taxability of the Series 2009B
Bonds or the income therefrom under the laws of any state other than California.
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Original Issue Discount

Bond Counsel is further of the opinion that the difference between the principal amount of the
Series 2009B Bonds maturing on May 15, 2015 bearing interest at 3.00% and the Bonds maturing on
May 15, 2020 through May 15, 2023, inclusive, bearing interest at 4.00%, 4.25%, 4.375%,and 4.50%,
respectively (collectively, the “Discount Bonds”) and the initial offering price to the public (excluding
bond houses, brokers or similar persons or organizations acting in the capacity of underwriters or
wholesalers) at which price a substantial amount of such Discount Bonds of the same maturity was sold
constitutes original issue discount which is excluded from gross income for Federal income tax purposes
to the same extent as interest on the Series 2009B Bonds. Further, such original issue discount accrues
actuarially on a constant interest rate basis over the term of each Discount Bond and the basis of each
Discount Bond acquired at such initial offering price by an initial purchaser thereof will be increased by
the amount of such accrued original issue discount. The accrual of original issue discount may be taken
into account as an increase in the amount of tax-exempt income for purposes of determining various other
tax consequences of owning the Discount Bonds, even though there will not be a corresponding cash
payment. Owners of the Discount Bonds are advised that they should consult with their own advisors
with respect to the state and local tax consequences of owning such Discount Bonds.

Original Issue Premium

The Series 2009B Bonds maturing on May 15, 2010 through May 15, 2014, inclusive, bearing
interest at 3.00%, 4.00%, 3.00%, 4.00% and 4.00%, respectively, the Bonds maturing on May 15, 2016
through May 15, 2019, inclusive, all bearing interest at 4.00%, the Bonds maturing on May 15, 2012
through May 15, 2022, inclusive, all bearing interest at 5%, the Bonds maturing on May 15, 2023 bearing
interest at 5.50%, the Bonds maturing on May 15, 2024 bearing interest at 5.00%, and the Bonds
maturing on May 15, 2025 bearing interest at 5.25% (collectively, the “Premium Bonds”) are being
offered at prices in excess of their principal amounts. An initial purchaser with an initial adjusted basis in
a Premium Bond in excess of its principal amount will have amortizable bond premium which is not
deductible from gross income for Federal income tax purposes. The amount of amortizable bond
premium for a taxable year is determined actuarially on a constant interest rate basis over the term of each
Premium Bond based on the purchaser’s yield to maturity (or, in the case of Premium Bonds callable
prior to their maturity, over the period to the call date, based on the purchaser’s yield to the call date and
giving effect to any call premium). For purposes of determining gain or loss on the sale or other
disposition of a Premium Bond, an initial purchaser who acquires such obligation with an amortizable
bond premium is required to decrease such purchaser’s adjusted basis in such Premium Bond annually by
the amount of amortizable bond premium for the taxable year. The amortization of bond premium may
be taken into account as a reduction in the amount of tax-exempt income for purposes of determining
various other tax consequences of owning such Series 2009B Bonds. Owners of the Premium Bonds are
advised that they should consult with their own advisors with respect to the state and local tax
consequences of owning such Premium Bonds.

Ancillary Tax Matters

Ownership of the Series 2009B Bonds may result in other Federal tax consequences to certain
taxpayers, including, without limitation, certain S corporations, foreign corporations with branches in the
United States, property and casualty insurance companies, individuals receiving Social Security or
Railroad Retirement benefits, and individuals seeking to claim the earned income credit. Ownership of
the Series 2009B Bonds may also result in other Federal tax consequences to taxpayers who may be
deemed to have incurred or continued indebtedness to purchase or to carry the Series 2009B Bonds; for
certain bonds issued during 2009 and 2010, the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009
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modifies the application of those rules as they apply to financial institutions. Prospective investors are
advised to consult their own tax advisors regarding these rules.

Commencing with interest paid in 2006, interest paid on tax-exempt obligations such as the
Series 2009B Bonds is subject to information reporting to the Internal Revenue Service (the “IRS”) in a
manner similar to interest paid on taxable obligations. In addition, interest on the Series 2009B Bonds
may be subject to backup withholding if such interest is paid to a registered owner that (a) fails to provide
certain identifying information (such as the registered owner’s taxpayer identification number) in the
manner required by the IRS, or (b) has been identified by the IRS as being subject to backup withholding.

Bond Counsel is not rendering any opinion as to any Federal tax matters other than those
described in the opinions attached as Appendix D. Prospective investors, particularly those who may be
subject to special rules described above, are advised to consult their own tax advisors regarding the
Federal tax consequences of owning and disposing of the Series 2009B Bonds, as well as any tax
consequences arising under the laws of any state or other taxing jurisdiction.

Changes in Law and Post Issuance Events

Legislative or administrative actions and court decisions, at either the Federal or state level, could
have an adverse impact on the potential benefits of the exclusion from gross income of the interest on the
Series 2009B Bonds for Federal or state income tax purposes, and thus on the value or marketability of
the Series 2009B Bonds. This could result from changes to Federal or state income tax rates, changes in
the structure of Federal or state income taxes (including replacement with another type of tax), repeal of
the exclusion of the interest on the Series 2009B Bonds from gross income for Federal or state income tax
purposes, or otherwise. It is not possible to predict whether any legislative or administrative actions or
court decisions having an adverse impact on the Federal or state income tax treatment of holders of the
Series 2009B Bonds may occur. Prospective purchasers of the Series 2009B Bonds should consult their
own tax advisers regarding such matters.

Bond Counsel has not undertaken to advise in the future whether any events after the date of
issuance and delivery of the Series 2009B Bonds may affect the tax status of interest on the Series 2009B
Bonds. Bond Counsel expresses no opinion as to any Federal, state or local tax law consequences with
respect to the Series 2009B Bonds, or the interest thereon, if any action is taken with respect to the Series
2009B Bonds or the proceeds thereof upon the advice or approval of other counsel.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE

Pursuant to the Continuing Disclosure Certificate of the City (the “Disclosure Certificate”), the
City has agreed to provide, or cause to be provided, to Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board in the
manner prescribed by the Securities Exchange Commission certain annual financial information and
operating data concerning the City. The annual report to be filed by the City is to be filed not later than
270 days following the end of the City’s Fiscal Year (currently June 30), commencing with the Annual
Report for Fiscal Year 2009, and is to include audited financial statements of the City.

Prior to March 2004, the City never failed to comply with its previous undertakings with regard
to Rule 15¢2-12 to provide annual reports or notices of material events. Since that date, the City failed to
comply with the undertakings related to 21 bond issues for each of Fiscal Year 2003, Fiscal Year 2004,
Fiscal Year 2005, Fiscal Year 2006, and Fiscal Year 2007 due to the unavailability of the City’s audited
financial statements, as described in greater detail under the caption entitled “INTRODUCTION — Recent
Events Regarding the City” herein. Each required annual report and audited financial statement was
subsequently filed.
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On January 25, 2008 and January 28, 2008, the City filed annual reports (including audited
financial statements) relating to securities issued by the Authority and secured by the Sewer Revenue
Fund for Fiscal Years 2003 and 2004, respectively. The annual reports for such securities for Fiscal
Years 2005, 2006, and 2007 were filed on June 13, 2008, September 15, 2008 and December 11, 2008,
respectively. On February 8, 2008, the City filed annual reports (including audited financial statements)
relating to securities issued by the Authority and secured by the Water Utility Fund for Fiscal Years 2003
and 2004 and on June 13, 2008 the City filed the annual report for such securities for Fiscal Year 2005.
The annual reports for such securities for Fiscal Years 2006, 2007 and 2008 were filed on September 15,
2008, December 4, 2008 and March 27, 2009, respectively. In addition, on December 11, 2007, the City
filed its annual report (including audited financial statements) relating to seven debt issues that are
secured directly or indirectly by the City’s General Fund for the Fiscal Years 2003 and Fiscal Year 2004.
The annual reports for such securities for Fiscal Years 2005, 2006, and 2007 were filed on June 13, 2008,
October 7, 2008 and December 5, 2008, respectively. With regard to special tax and assessment bonds,
the affected districts did not file reports for Fiscal Year 2004 when due and timely filed reports, without
financial statements, for Fiscal Years 2003, 2005, 2006 and 2007. The financial statements for Fiscal
Years 2003 through the Fiscal Year 2007 were subsequently filed with the applicable repositories.

The City has timely filed the annual reports and financial statements for Fiscal Year 2008 with
respect to securities secured by the Sewer Revenue Fund, the Water Utility Fund or the City’s General
Fund. The City’s covenants in the Continuing Disclosure Statement have been made in order to assist the
Underwriter in complying with the Rule. The City’s failure to comply with any of the covenants therein
shall not be deemed an event of default under the Indenture.

LITIGATION

There is no litigation pending against the City or, to the knowledge of its respective executive
officers, threatened, seeking to restrain or enjoin the issuance, sale, execution or delivery of the Series
2009B Bonds or in any way contesting or affecting the validity of the Series 2009B Bonds or the
Authorizations or any proceedings of the City taken with respect to the issuance or sale thereof, or the
pledge or application of any moneys or security provided for the payment of the Series 2009B Bonds or
the use of the proceeds of the Series 2009B Bonds.

There are no pending lawsuits that, in the opinion of the City Attorney, challenge the validity of
the above issue, the corporate existence of the City, or the title of the executive officers to their respective
offices. In connection with this review, attention has been given to not only litigation pending against the
City, but also litigation pending against the MWWD. The Office of the City Attorney has prepared the
following summary, as of May 14, 2009, certain claims and lawsuits (for which the estimated loss to the
City as of such date exceeds $1 million (“Material Litigation”)) pending against the Sewer Revenue Fund
for construction claims and certain other alleged liabilities arising during the ordinary course of
operations of the Wastewater System:

° There are two class action lawsuits pending, each alleging that the City failed to include a
COD cost component in the sewer rate structure prior to October 2004, which led to overcharges on sewer
fees for certain customer groups that were disproportionate to the cost of service for such customer
groups. While the allegations in both lawsuits are similar to those set forth in Shames, a class action
lawsuit on behalf of all single family residential account holders that was settled in 2007 (see
“WASTEWATER SYSTEM FINANCIAL OPERATIONS — City Council Actions Relating to Sewer
Rate Changes”), the City’s defenses and potential liability relative to the two pending lawsuits are
different from those in Shames.
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o California Restaurant Management System v. City of San Diego. Plaintiffs filed
this class action case on August 20, 2007 on behalf of local food establishments, alleging that
from 1994 to 2004 the City failed to properly calculate the food establishments’ proportionate
impact on the cost of operating and maintaining the Wastewater System and seeking to recover
their alleged overpayment. The case is currently in the discovery stage. The class was certified
by the court on May 15, 2009. In the event of an adverse ruling the City estimates the liability
could range from $0 to $5 million.

¢ Edmond A. Vigneau v. City of San Diego. Plaintiffs filed this case on
September 17, 2008 on behalf of multifamily residential customers, alleging the City overcharged
them for sewer service from 2000 to 2004, before the City incorporated a COD component.
Notwithstanding the absence of a COD cost component, the City believes that the plaintiffs may
have been undercharged because other aspects of the pre-October 2004 sewer rate for this
customer group, including the base fee for service, may have been too low. The plaintiffs are
seeking class status and the case is entering the discovery stage. In the event of an adverse ruling
the City estimates the liability could range from $0 to $5 million, but anticipates the plaintifts’
likelihood of success is remote.

° Timothy Cresto, et al. v. Taylor Woodrow Homes, Inc., et al; Christopher Smith, et al. v.
Taylor Woodrow Homes, et al. On August 21, 2007, two sets of plaintiffs filed lawsuits alleging that the
City, Taylor Woodrow Homes, Inc. and certain other related parties effected an inverse condemnation of
and caused dangerous conditions on their respective properties in a housing development known as
Santaluz, by contributing to the plaintiffs’ exposure to hydrogen sulfide gas, which allegedly emanated
from the Wastewater System. The cases have been coordinated for discovery and settlement purposes. In
the event of an adverse ruling, the City estimates the aggregate liability resulting from these two cases
could range from $0 to $20 million. The City has filed cross-complaints against the developer, the design
engineer and the contractors seeking indemnity for any damages that may be awarded to the plaintiffs.

The City believes it has sufficient defenses against such claims and lawsuits and in no event
should these claims and lawsuits result in judgments or settlements which, in the aggregate, would have a
material adverse effect on the Sewer Revenue Fund’s financial position.

LEGAL OPINION

The validity of the Series 2009B Bonds and certain other matters are subject to the approving
opinion of Nixon Peabody LLP, Los Angeles, California, Bond Counsel. A complete copy of the
proposed form of opinion of Bond Counsel is contained in Appendix D attached hereto. Certain legal
matters will be passed upon for the Authority by Hawkins Delafield & Wood LLP, Los Angeles,
California, Disclosure Counsel, and by Jan I. Goldsmith, City Attorney, and for the Underwriters by their
counsel, Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth, A Professional Corporation, Newport Beach, California.
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RATINGS

Moody’s, S&P and Fitch have assigned the Series 2009B Bonds their ratings of “A2”, “A+” and
“AA-", respectively, and issued “stable” outlooks in connection with their ratings. Such ratings reflect
only the views of such organizations and any desired explanation of the significance of such ratings
should be obtained from the rating agency furnishing the same, at the following addresses: Standard &
Poor’s Ratings Services, 55 Water Street, New York, New York 10041; Fitch Ratings, One State Street
Plaza, New York, New York 10004; Moody’s Investors Service, Inc., 7 World Trade Center, 250
Greenwich Street, New York, New York 10007. Generally, a rating agency bases its rating on the
information and materials furnished to it and on investigations, studies and assumptions of its own.

There is no assurance such ratings will continue for any given period of time or that such ratings
will not be revised downward or withdrawn entirely by the rating agencies, if in the judgment of such
rating agencies, circumstances so warrant. Any such downward revision or withdrawal of such ratings
may have an adverse effect on the market price of the Series 2009B Bonds.

UNDERWRITING

The Series 2009B Bonds are being purchased by Citigroup Global Markets Inc., as representative
of the Underwriters named on the cover page to this Official Statement (collectively, the “Underwriters”).
The Underwriters have agreed, subject to certain conditions, to purchase the Series 2009B Bonds at a
purchase price of $676,076,678.35, equal to the original principal amount thereof, plus a net original issue
premium of $44,140,201.00, less Underwriters’ compensation in the amount of $3,003,522.65. The
Underwriters may offer and sell the Series 2009B Bonds to certain dealers and others at prices lower than
the offering prices. The offering prices may be changed from time to time by the Underwriters.

The following has been provided by J.P. Morgan Securities Inc., one of the Underwriters for the
Series 2009B Bonds: J.P. Morgan Securities Inc., one of the Underwriters of the Series 2009B Bonds, has
entered into an agreement (the “Distribution Agreement”) with UBS Financial Services Inc. for the retail
distribution of certain municipal securities offerings, including the Series 2009B Bonds, at the original
issue prices. Pursuant to the Distribution Agreement, J.P. Morgan Securities Inc. will share a portion of
its underwriting compensation with respect to the Series 2009B Bonds with UBS Financial Services Inc.

PROFESSIONAL ADVISORS

Montague, DeRose and Associates LLC, Walnut Creek, California served as Financial Advisor
to the City with respect to the sale of the Series 2009B Bonds. The Financial Advisor has not undertaken
to make an independent verification or to assume responsibility for the accuracy, completeness, or
fairness of the information contained in this Official Statement.

Malcolm Pirnie has served as Feasibility Consultant to the City in connection with the issuance of
the Series 2009B Bonds. A complete copy of the Feasibility Consultant’s Feasibility Study for 2009
Series Wastewater Revenue Bonds is attached as Appendix B hereto.

VERIFICATION OF MATHEMATICAL COMPUTATIONS

Chris D. Berens, CPA, P.C., certified public accountants (the “Verification Agent”), will deliver a
report stating that the firm has verified the accuracy of mathematical computations concerning the
adequacy of the amounts deposited with the Escrow Agent for the Series 1993 Bonds to provide for the
payment of the principal of and interest on the Series 1993 Bonds to be refunded to and including the
Redemption Date.
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The report of the Verification Agent will include the statement that the scope of their engagement
was limited to verifying the mathematical accuracy of the computations contained in such schedules
provided to them and that they have no obligations to update their report because of events occurring, or
data or information coming to their attention, subsequent to the date of their report.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2008

The City’s basic financial statements include the financial statements of the Sewer Revenue Fund.
The City’s 2008 basic financial statements have been audited by Macias Gini & O’Connell LLP (the
“Independent Auditor”), independent certified public accountants, as stated in their report. The
Independent Auditor has agreed to the inclusion of its report in Appendix A-1.

Those portions of the City’s 2008 basic financial statements relating to the Sewer Revenue Fund,
including all of the City’s basic financial statements for Fiscal Year 2008 audited by Macias Gini &
O’Connell LLP, are included in Appendix A-1. Appendix A-1 also includes the unaudited management’s
discussion and analysis, unaudited required supplementary information with respect to the City’s Pension
System and CERBT and General Fund budgetary information. Certain of the data and information set
forth in Appendix A-1 do not pertain to the Sewer Revenue Fund but have been included in Appendix A-
1 for purposes of context. The unaudited letter of transmittal from the Mayor and unaudited statistical
information regarding debt service coverage on Parity Obligations and Subordinated Obligations are
included in Appendix A-2. The City’s CAFRs are available in their entirety on the City’s website at
http://www.sandiego.gov. However, the information presented there is not part of this Official Statement,
is not incorporated by reference herein and should not be relied upon in making an investment decision
with respect to the Series 2009B Bonds. The City’s General Fund does not secure payment of debt service
on the Series 2009B Bonds.

CHANGES FROM THE PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT

In addition to updates to the Preliminary Official Statement dated May &8, 2009 as a result of
pricing, the following changes have been made:

° The information appearing in the subsection “WASTEWATER SYSTEM FINANCIAL
OPERATIONS — Labor Relations” has been updated to provide additional information regarding agreed-
upon compensation reductions.

° The information appearing in the subsection “WASTEWATER SYSTEM FINANCIAL
OPERATIONS — San Diego City Employees’ Retirement System — UAAL and its Calculation” has been
updated to include the City’s budgeted contribution to the Pension System for Fiscal Year 2010 and the
assumed actuarial value of assets and the market value of assets (City’s portion) as of April, 30, 2009.
Footnote 2 of Table 20 — “CITY OF SAN DIEGO — Schedule of Funding Progress” has been revised to
indicate that the valuations prepared by the actuary for Fiscal Years 2006 through 2008 included the
impact of the Corbett contingent settlement benefit. Further, the Sewer Revenue Fund’s proportionate
share of the City’s contribution to CERBT has been changed to $1.5 million for Fiscal Year 2009; the
amount of $1.9 million set forth in the Preliminary Official Statement reflected the Sewer Revenue
Fund’s anticipated proportionate share for Fiscal Year 2009. The City’s projected payment for Fiscal
Year 2010 has been updated to $155.7 million to reflect the City’s proposed budget as of May 2009.

° The section “LITIGATION” has been updated to reflect the class certification granted the
plaintiffs on May 15, 2009 in California Restaurant Management System v. City of San Diego.

94



MISCELLANEOUS

This Official Statement has been duly approved, executed and delivered by the Authority and the
City.

There are appended to this Official Statement a summary of certain provisions of the principal
and legal documents, portions of the City’s 2008 CAFR, including financial statements of the Sewer
Revenue Fund, the Feasibility Consultant’s Feasibility Study for 2009 Series Wastewater Revenue Bonds,
the proposed form of opinion of Bond Counsel, and a general description of the City and a description of
the Book-Entry Only System. The Appendices are integral parts of this Official Statement and must be
read together with all other parts of this Official Statement.

This Official Statement is not to be construed as a contract or agreement between the Authority or
the City and the purchasers or holders of any of the Series 2009B Bonds. Any statements made in this
Official Statement involving matters of opinion, whether or not expressly so stated, are intended merely
as an opinion and not as representations of fact. The information and expressions of opinion herein are
subject to change without notice and neither the delivery of this Official Statement nor any sale made
hereunder shall, under any circumstances, create any implication that there has been no change in the
financial condition, results of operations or any other affairs of the City, the Authority or the Corporation
since the date hereof.

PUBLIC FACILITIES FINANCING AUTHORITY OF
THE CITY OF SAN DIEGO

By: /s/ Joseph W. Craver
Chairperson, Board of Commissioners

THE CITY OF SAN DIEGO

By: /s/ Mary Lewis
Chief Financial Officer

95



(THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK)



APPENDIX A-1

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY
INFORMATION FROM THE COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
OF THE CITY OF SAN DIEGO FOR FISCAL YEAR 2008



(THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK)



CITY OF SAN DIEGO
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL
FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Prepared Under the Supervision of
Tracy McCraner
Interim Comptroller



FINANCIAL SECTION



515 S. Figueroa Street, Suite 325
Los Angeles, CA 90071
213.286.6400

MACIAS GINI & O'CONNELL w-

Certified Public Accountants & Management Consultants

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
of the City of San Diego, California

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City of San Diego, California (City), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2008, which
collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the City’s management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these
financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of the San Diego Housing
Commission, a discretely presented component unit, which statements reflect 90%, 94% and 83% of total assets,
total net assets and total revenues, respectively, of the aggregate discretely presented component unit totals.
Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose report thereon has been furnished to us, and our
opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the San Diego Housing Commission, is based solely on
the report of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes consideration of internal control over
financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and the
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audit and the report of other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the financial statements referred to above
present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City as of June 30, 2008, and the respective changes in financial position and,
where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

www.mgocpa.com An Independent Member of the BDO Seidman Alliance



As discussed in Note 1 to the basic financial statements, the City adopted the provisions of Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statements No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, No. 48, Sales and Pledges of Receivables and Future Revenues
and Intra-Entity Transfers of Assets and Future Revenues and No. 50, Pension Disclosures.

The management’s discussion and analysis, schedules of funding progress, schedules of contributions from
employer and other contributing entities and general fund budgetary information on pages 33 through 46, 168 and
172 through 174, respectively, are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary
information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have
applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods
of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the
information and express no opinion on it.

Q}W (Tne 7/ 0 M e
Certified Public Accountants

Los Angeles, California
March 26, 2009, except for paragraphs 25 and 26 of
Note 18, as to which the date is April 23, 2009;
paragraph 27 of Note 18, as to which the date is May 8, 2009;
and paragraphs 17 and 19 of Note 18 and paragraph 15
of Note 22, as to which the date is May 21, 2009.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(Unaudited)
(In Thousands)
June 30, 2008

As management of the City of San Diego (City), we offer readers of the City financial statements this narrative overview and
analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s basic financial statements. The City's basic
financial statements are comprised of three components: (1) government-wide financial statements; (2) fund financial
statements; and (3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to
the basic financial statements.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The focus of the government-wide financial statements is on reporting on the operating results and financial position of the
government as an economic entity. These statements are intended to report the entity’s operational accountability to its readers,
giving information about the probable medium and long-term effects of past decisions on the government’s financial position.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the City’s assets and liabilities, with the difference between the two
reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial
position of the City is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing changes in the City’s net assets during the fiscal year 2008. All
changes in net assets are reported when the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of
related cash flows. The focus is on both gross and net costs of City functions, which are supported by general revenues. This
Statement also distinguishes functions of the City that are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues
(governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user
fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the City include: General Government and Support;
Public Safety - Police; Public Safety - Fire and Life Safety and Homeland Security; Parks, Recreation, Culture and Leisure;
Transportation; Sanitation and Health; and Neighborhood Services. The business-type activities of the City include: Airports;
City Store; Development Services; Environmental Services; Golf Course; Recycling; Sewer Utility; and Water Utility.

The government-wide financial statements include the City (known as the primary government) and the following legally
separate, discretely presented component units: San Diego Convention Center Corporation (SDCCC); and San Diego Housing
Commission (SDHC). Financial information for these component units is reported separately from the financial information
presented for the primary government. Blended component units, also legally separate entities, are a part of the government’s
operations and are combined with the primary government.

Included within the primary government as blended component units:

e Centre City Development Corporation (CCDC)

o  City of San Diego Metropolitan Transit Development Board Authority (MTDB Authority)
e  City of San Diego Tobacco Settlement Revenue Funding Corporation (TSRFC)

e Community Facilities and Other Special Assessment Districts

e  Convention Center Expansion Financing Authority (CCEFA)

e  Public Facilities Financing Authority (PFFA)

o Redevelopment Agency of the City of San Diego (RDA)

e  San Diego City Employees’ Retirement System (SDCERS)

e San Diego Data Processing Corporation (SDDPC)
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e  San Diego Facilities and Equipment Leasing Corporation (SDFELC)
e San Diego Industrial Development Authority (SDIDA)

e  San Diego Open Space Park Facilities District #1

e  Southeastern Economic Development Corporation (SEDC)

e  Tourism Marketing District (TMD)
The government-wide financial statements can be found beginning on page 50 of this report.

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific
activities or objectives. The City, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All funds of the City can be divided into three categories: governmental
funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in the
government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial
statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as balances of spendable resources
available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government's near-term financing
requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is useful to
compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the
government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s
near-term financing decisions. Both of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet and the Governmental Funds Statement of
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between
governmental funds and governmental activities.

The City maintains individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the governmental funds balance sheet
and in the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the general fund, which is
a major fund. Data from the other governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data
for each of these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the Supplementary Information section of this report.

The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund. A budgetary comparison statement has been provided for
the General Fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget and is presented as required supplementary information.

The basic governmental funds financial statements can be found beginning on page 54 of this report.

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

The City maintains two different types of proprietary funds, enterprise funds and internal service funds. Enterprise funds are
used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The City
uses Enterprise Funds to account for its various business-type activities, such as Sewer and Water Utilities. Internal Service
funds, such as Fleet Services, Central Stores, Publishing Services, and Self Insurance, are used to report activities that provide
centralized supplies and/or services to the City. All internal service funds, except for the Special Engineering Fund, have been
included within governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements since they predominantly benefit
governmental functions. The Special Engineering Fund, which services exclusively Sewer and Water activities, has been
included within business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements.
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Proprietary fund statements provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only in more
detail. The proprietary funds financial statements provide separate information for the Sewer and Water funds, which are
considered to be major funds of the City. Data for the nonmajor proprietary funds are combined into a single, aggregated
presentation, and the internal service funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation as well. Included in the
Supplementary Information section of this report are individual fund data for the nonmajor proprietary funds and the internal
service funds. The basic proprietary funds financial statements can be found beginning on page 58 of this report.

FIDucCIARY FUNDS

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the government. Fiduciary funds are not
reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the resources of those funds are not available to support the
City’s operations. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds.

The basic fiduciary funds financial statements can be found beginning on page 61 of this report.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and
fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found beginning on page 63 of this report.

OTHER INFORMATION

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain required supplementary
information concerning the City’s progress in funding its obligation to provide pension benefits to its employees. Required
supplementary information can be found beginning on page 168 of this report.

The individual fund data referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental funds, nonmajor proprietary funds, internal

service funds, and fiduciary funds are presented immediately following the required supplementary information on pensions and
the General Fund budgetary comparison statement, beginning on page 197 of this report.
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

CITY OF SAN DIEGO'S SUMMARY OF NET ASSETS
(In Thousands)

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total Primary Government
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
Capital Assets $ 4,335,317 $ 4,264,170 $ 4,634,918 $ 4,605,284 $ 8,970,235 $ 8,869,454
Other Assets 2,096,751 1,824,547 1,031,815 846,103 3,128,566 2,670,650
Total Assets 6,432,068 6,088,717 5,666,733 5,451,387 12,098,801 11,540,104
Net Long-Term Liabilities 1,965,991 1,863,185 2,068,569 1,967,826 4,034,560 3,831,011
Other Liabilities 312,696 285,709 108,455 103,724 421,151 389,433
Total Liabilities 2,278,687 2,148,894 2,177,024 2,071,550 4,455,711 4,220,444
Net Assets:
Invested in Capital Assets,

Net of Related Debt 3,518,704 3,461,127 2,933,012 2,998,848 6,451,716 6,459,975
Restricted 564,042 498,695 39,436 37,709 603,478 536,404
Unrestricted 70,635 (19,999) 517,261 343,280 587,896 323,281
Total Net Assets $ 4,153,381 $ 3,939,823 $ 3,489,709 $ 3,379,837 $ 7,643,090 $ 7,319,660

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. In the case of the
City, assets exceeded liabilities by $7,643,090 at June 30, 2008, an increase of $323,430 over fiscal year 2007.

$6,451,718, or approximately 84%, of total Net Assets represent the City’s investment in capital assets (e.g., land, structures and
improvements, equipment, distribution and collections systems, infrastructure, and construction-in-progress), less any
outstanding debt used to acquire these assets. The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently,
these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City’s investment in capital assets is reported net of related
debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital
assets themselves generally are not used to liquidate these liabilities.

$603,478, or approximately 8%, of total Net Assets represent resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may
be used. The remaining balance of $587,896, or approximately 8%, is available to finance ongoing services and obligations to
the City’s citizens and creditors.

Restricted Net Assets increased by $67,074, or approximately 13% primarily due to a $30,000 increase in low-moderate income
housing funds, a $20,000 increase in the Underground Surcharge Fund for undergrounding utilities throughout San Diego,
$10,000 of increased assessments collected in the Maintenance Assessment Districts and the new Tourism Marketing District
funds, and the remainder was due to various capital project fund increases attributed to impact fees, private contributions and
other capital projects restricted revenues.

Unrestricted Net Assets increased by $264,615, or approximately 82%. Approximately $174,000 of this increase was in the
Business-type Activities, primarily as a result of Council approved rate increases, increased sales of water, and higher earnings
on investments. Governmental Activities increased by approximately $91,000 as the result of a $50,000 increase in an internally
designated debt service reserve within the Redevelopment Agency, funded by increased property tax revenue; an increase in
notes receivable of $25,000, predominantly in the Centre City Redevelopment area; and increased land sales of $15,000.
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CITY OF SAN DIEGO'S SUMMARY OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
(In Thousands)

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total Primary Government
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
Revenues:
Program Revenues
Charges for Current Services $ 289,985 $ 303,866 $ 772,602 $ 742,640 $ 1,062,587 $ 1,046,506
Operating Grants and Contributions 75,126 84,745 2,312 1,203 77,438 85,948
Capital Grants and Contributions 78,347 81,169 58,400 141,419 136,747 222,588
General Revenues
Property Taxes 576,605 526,722 - - 576,605 526,722
Transient Occupancy Taxes 159,348 154,810 - - 159,348 154,810
Other Local Taxes 151,267 157,941 - - 151,267 157,941
Grants and Contributions not Restricted to
Specific Programs 6,251 5,339 - - 6,251 5,339
Sales Taxes 269,757 263,399 - - 269,757 263,399
Investment Income 96,725 76,292 41,224 30,713 137,949 107,005
Other 85,785 94,910 7,850 5,384 93,635 100,294
Total Revenues 1,789,196 1,749,193 882,388 921,359 2,671,584 2,670,552
Expenses:
General Government and Support 322,157 270,190 - - 322,157 270,190
Public Safety-Police 382,907 376,581 - - 382,907 376,581
Public Safety-Fire, Life Safety, Homeland Security 204,822 209,902 - - 204,822 209,902
Parks, Recreation, Culture and Leisure 231,955 229,500 - - 231,955 229,500
Transportation 212,255 272,780 - - 212,255 272,780
Sanitation and Health 51,772 43,780 - - 51,772 43,780
Neighborhood Services 91,110 99,870 - - 91,110 99,870
Debt Service:
Interest on Long-Term Debt 82,211 84,920 - - 82,211 84,920
Airports - - 4,109 3,755 4,109 3,755
City Store - - 788 843 788 843
Development Services - - 51,461 53,924 51,461 53,924
Environmental Services - - 37,279 40,138 37,2719 40,138
Golf Course - - 11,142 10,690 11,142 10,690
Recycling - - 20,511 19,754 20,511 19,754
Sewer Utility - - 322,552 313,716 322,552 313,716
Water Utility - - 321,123 313,256 321,123 313,256
Total Expenses 1,579,189 1,587,523 768,965 756,076 2,348,154 2,343,599
Change in Net Assets Before Transfers: 210,007 161,670 113,423 165,283 323,430 326,953
Transfers 3,551 (3,425) (3,551) 3,425 -
Net Change in Net Assets 213,558 158,245 109,872 168,708 323,430 326,953
Net Assets - July 1 3,939,823 3,781,578 3,379,837 3211,129 7,319,660 6,992,707
Net Assets - June 30 $ 4,153,381 $ 3939823 $ 3489709 $§ 3379837 $ 7,643,090 $ 7,319,660
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GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

Governmental activities increased the City’s net assets by $213,558 during fiscal year 2008. Variances from fiscal year 2007 of
more than 10% are discussed below.

e Operating Grants and Contributions decreased by $9,619, or approximately 11%, primarily due to the restructuring of the
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) program. The CDBG administration instituted a $25,000 minimum for certain
projects, and several projects were cancelled. In addition, several Urban Areas Securities Initiative (UASI) grants for
homeland security were closed out, nearing the end of their two year term. Finally, the transfer of the “6 to 6” Extended
School Day program’s administration to the San Diego Unified School District in January 2007 resulted in additional
decreases as the City's grants for this program are being closed out.

e Investment Income increased by $20,433, or approximately 27%, primarily attributed to increases in market values for the
City’s investment pool, as well as an increase in the overall size of the investment pool from fiscal year 2007 to 2008.

e  Other Revenue decreased by $9,125, or approximately 10% primarily due to a decrease in developer contributions of
approximately $18,900, which was mainly in the Pacific Highlands Ranch, Otay Mesa West, and Torrey Hills development
areas. This decrease was partially offset by an increase in proceeds from land sales of $9,300. This is the result of Real
Estate Assets department’s continued review of the City's property inventory to determine which properties are no longer
needed and may be designated for disposition, as part of the portfolio management plan for the City.

e General Government and Support expense increased by $51,967, or approximately 19%. Approximately $16,900 of this
increase was due to the centralization of data processing costs in the Office of the CIO. Approximately $7,000 was due to
new capital leases for the Public Safety Communications Project, paid for by the Information Technology & Communications
(IT&C) Fund. Several vacant positions were filled throughout various General Government departments, which resulted in
increased salary and fringe expenses of approximately $8,200. The Storm Water department had an increase in
contractual services of $4,300, public liability claim expenses increased by $3,100, and the City Elections program
experienced increased expenses of $2,000, related to the fiscal year 2008 elections.

e Transportation expense decreased by $60,525, or approximately 22%, which was caused by several factors. During fiscal
year 2007 the adjustment for completed capital improvement projects funded by Facilities Benefit Assessment (FBA) credits
in prior years resulted in approximately $41,000 in transportation expenses, which did not recur in fiscal year 2008.
Additionally, there was a $15,000 expense in fiscal year 2007 as a result of current year FBA additions being reclassified as
revenue, rather than a reduction of expenses, which also did not recur in fiscal year 2008.

e  Sanitation and Health expense increased by $7,992, or approximately 18%, primarily due to increased expenditures for the
Environmental Services department’s debris removal program, related to the October 2007 wildfires.

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
Business-type activities increased the City’s net assets by $109,872 during fiscal year 2008. Variances from fiscal year 2007 of
more than 10% are discussed below.

e Operating Grants and Contributions increased by $1,109, or approximately 92%, primarily due to increased grant revenues
received by the Water Utility department, related to the seismic retrofit of water pipelines, water desalination studies, and
disaster assistance recoveries.

e  Capital Grants and Contributions decreased by $83,019, or approximately 59%, primarily due to the installation of water and
sewer mains by developers during fiscal year 2007.

e Investment Income increased by $10,511, or approximately 34%, primarily attributed to changes in market values for the
City’s investment pool, as well as an increase in the overall size of the investment pool from fiscal year 2007 to 2008.

e Other revenues increased by $2,466, or approximately 46%, primarily due to an insurance reimbursement for the Water
Utility department and increased receipts of permit and fee revenues for the Sewer Utility department.
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE GOVERNMENT'’S FUNDS
As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

The focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable
resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City’s financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may
serve as a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of fiscal year 2008, the City's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $1,591,304, an
increase of $225,541 from fiscal year 2007. Approximately $893,239 constitutes unreserved fund balance, which is available for
spending at the government’s direction. The remainder of fund balance is reserved to indicate that it is not available for new
spending because it has already been committed (1) to liquidate contracts and purchase orders of the period, (2) to pay debt
service, (3) to generate income to pay for the perpetual funding of various programs, or (4) for a variety of other purposes.

The General Fund is the principal operating fund of the City. At the end of fiscal year 2008, undesignated fund balance of the
General Fund was $75,339, while total fund balance was $124,781. This represents a $7,267 decrease from the fiscal year
2007 total fund balance.

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

The City’s proprietary fund statements provide the same type of information found in the government-wide financial statements,
but in more detail.

As of the end of fiscal year 2008, Unrestricted Net Assets of the Sewer Utility Fund are $243,717. Unrestricted Net Assets
increased approximately $91,657, or approximately 60%, mainly due to Council approved rate increases and higher earnings on
investments, combined with overall increases in cash positions and reductions in debt related liabilities.

As of the end of fiscal year 2008, Unrestricted Net Assets of the Water Utility Fund are $211,845. Unrestricted Net Assets
increased by $74,141, or approximately 54%, mainly due to Council approved rate increases and higher earnings on
investments.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

The original budget for expenditures and transfers out was $20,047 lower than the final budget due to increases (decreases) in
appropriations primarily attributed to the following:

e ($4,818) for General Government. Approximately $2,600 of this decrease was attributed to several vacant positions in the
Storm Water Department. In addition, prior year purchase orders and their corresponding budgets were cleaned up
citywide, which resulted in an overall budget decrease of $2,300.

e ($2,096) for Public Safety-Police. A portion of the Police department’s appropriations were reallocated to cover over budget
personnel expenses in Fire and Life Safety, due to the October 2007 wildfires.

e $9,757 for Public Safety-Fire and Life Safety and Homeland Security. This increase was necessary to cover over budget
expenses associated with the October 2007 wildfires. The increase was allocated to cover Salary and fringe expenses of
$6,682, and related equipment, energy, and outlay costs of $2,670.

e  ($2,376) for Transportation. This decrease was mainly caused by the reallocation of appropriations from Streets
Department to other departments within the General Fund such as General Services-Administration and General Services-
Contracting.

e  $7,571 for Sanitation and Health. This increase was largely due to emergency debris removal related to the October 2007
wildfires.
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e $2,661 for Neighborhood Services. This increase was mainly due to the completion of the Otay Mesa Community Plan
Update and the preparation of the Master Plan for the Grantville Redevelopment Project Area per Council actions in the
Planning Department.

e $2,204 for Principal Retirement. This increase was due to capital lease payments for Police and Parking Enforcement
vehicles, as well as equipment, vehicles, and helicopters for the Fire and Life Safety department.

e $781 for Interest Expense. This increase was due to the fact that interest expense for the Fiscal Year 2008 Tax Revenue
Anticipation Notes was higher than anticipated.

e $7,221 for Transfers to Other Funds. This increase is primarily due to the establishment of a $7,000 Appropriated Reserve.

Actual revenues received for the General Fund were $35,751 less than budgeted. Sales Taxes were under budget by $11,079,
which was a result of slower than anticipated growth in local retail sales. Property Taxes and Transient Occupancy Taxes were
both under budget by $2,139 and $1,455, respectively, as a result of less than anticipated growth. Other Local Taxes were
under budget by $5,563, primarily due to shortfalls in SDG&E franchise fees of $3,900 and Refuse Collection franchise fees of
$1,100, in addition to Property Transfer Taxes being under budget by $500 as a result of a downturn in the real estate market.
Revenue from Use of Money and Property came in $7,952 under budget. This was primarily due to slower than anticipated
growth in Mission Bay rents and concessions in the amount of $2,163, and Investment Earings were under budget due to the
transfer of interest earnings to the TRAN fund to pay debt service on the Fiscal Year 2008 TRAN. Revenue from Other Agencies
came in $6,696 under budget. This was primarily due to the City not receiving Booking Fee relief of $5,222 from the State, and
increased DMV administration costs and MVL fees charged by the state of $2,097. Charges for Current Services were also
under budget by $2,453, mainly due to a reduction of Service Level Agreements for General Government and Support services
between funds.

Actual expenditures for the General Fund were $24,047 less than budgeted. $11,503 was attributed primarily to personnel
savings in the General Government and Support departments and the general fund reserve contribution. The Police department
had personnel savings of $6,708, and the additional savings of $5,836 was spread relatively evenly between Parks and
Recreation, Transportation, Sanitation and Health, and Neighborhood Services non-personnel costs.

40



CiTy oF SAN DiEGco CoMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

CITY OF SAN DIEGO'S CAPITAL ASSETS
(Net of Accumulated Depreciation)
(In Thousands)

Total
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Primary Government

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

Land, Easements, Rights of Way $ 1,755,956 $ 1,731,003 $ 89988 $ 90,011 $ 1,845,944 $ 1,821,014

Construction-in-Progress 165,880 210,084 174,065 290,161 339,945 500,245
Structures and Improvements 827,912 781,799 1,422,839 1,332,843 2,250,751 2,114,642
Equipment 133,317 106,132 102,069 103,807 235,386 209,939
Distribution and Collection Systems - - 2,845,957 2,788,462 2,845,957 2,788,462
Infrastructure 1,452,252 1,435,152 - - 1,452,252 1,435,152

Totals $ 4,335,317 $ 4,264,170 $ 4,634,918 $ 4,605,284 $ 8,970,235 $ 8,869,454
CAPITAL ASSETS

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 34, all major infrastructure assets (such as streets, signals, bridges, and drains) are
capitalized by the City in the government-wide statements. While capital assets of both governmental and proprietary funds are
capitalized at the government-wide level, only proprietary assets are reported at the fund level. Governmental funds are reported
on a modified accrual basis at the fund level. Differences between reporting at the fund level and government-wide level for
these governmental assets will be explained in both the reconciliation and the accompanying notes to the financial statements.

The City’s investment in capital assets (including infrastructure) for governmental and business-type activities as of June 30,
2008 was $8,970,235 (net of accumulated depreciation). There was an overall increase in the City's investment in capital assets
over fiscal year 2007 of approximately $100,781.

HIGHLIGHTS OF FISCAL YEAR 2008 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT ACTIVITIES

Governmental Activities

e  Planning and acquisition began on the Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) System Core Project to provide a replacement
of the legacy software currently used by the Offices of the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and Business and Support
Services. As identified in the Kroll report, the current system no longer meets the City’s requirement for responsible
financial management, efficient human resources management, or IT operational efficiency. The project is being funded
through a lease purchase agreement with IBM Credit LLC. The City’s fiscal year 2008 capital expenditures for this project
were $9,645.

e  Construction began on the reconstruction of Soledad Mountain Road following the October 2007 landslide that destroyed a

large section of the 5700 block of Soledad Mountain Road and Desert View Drive Alley. The project is funded by TransNet,
as well as state and federal grants. The City’s fiscal year 2008 capital expenditures for this project were $7,170.

41



City oF SAN DiEGo CoMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

e  Construction began on the Bird Rock Coastal Traffic Flow Improvements. This project provides traffic calming measures to
reduce speed and improve safety and walkability on La Jolla Boulevard. The project provides three modern roundabouts on
La Jolla Boulevard, as well as three mini roundabouts on connecting residential streets. La Jolla Boulevard will also be
reduced from four to two lanes. The project is funded by SANDAG, TransNet, Developer Impact Fees, and federal and
state grants. The City's fiscal year 2008 capital expenditures for this project were $4,169.

e  Construction began on the widening of Genesee Avenue from Interstate 5 to Campus Point Drive. This project provides for
the widening of 2,500 feet of Genesee Avenue to a modified six-lane primary arterial including Class Il bicycle lanes. The
project is funded by Facility Benefit Assessments. The City’s fiscal year 2008 capital expenditures for this project were
$3,773.

e  Construction began on the Balboa Park Museum of Art front fagade improvements. This project provides for the restoration
of the Museum of Art front facade as recommended in the Balboa Park Master Plan. This project is funded by various State
grants. The City’s fiscal year 2008 capital expenditures for this project were $2,169.

e  Construction began on Phase Il of the Logan Heights Branch Library. This project provides for a new 25,000 square foot
library at 28t Street and Ocean Boulevard to serve the Logan Heights Community. The project is funded by various grants
and the Library System Improvement Fund. The City’s fiscal year 2008 capital expenditures for this project were $2,238.

e  Construction began, and was completed, on the Lifeguard Headquarters Boating Safety Unit Dock. This project provided
for the construction of the Boating Safety Unit Dock at 2581 Quivera Court to replace the dock that was constructed in 1956
and incurred substantial damage during the January 2005 storms. The project was funded primarily by lease revenue
bonds. The City's fiscal year 2008 capital expenditures for this project were $2,019.

e  Construction continued on the Pacific Highlands Ranch Fire Station #47. This project will provide for a new 10,500 square
foot fire station to serve the Pacific Highlands Ranch community. The project is part of the Pacific Highlands Ranch
Facilities Financing Plan. The City’s fiscal year 2008 capital expenditures for this project were $3,433.

e  Construction continued on the Del Mar Heights Road east of Old Carmel Valley Road. The project provides for construction
of Del Mar Heights Road from Old Carmel Valley Road to the new alignment of Carmel Valley Road as a modified five lane
roadway within a 122 foot right-of-way for a future six lane facility. The project is funded by Facilities Benefit Assessments.
The City's fiscal year 2008 capital expenditures for this project were $3,620.

Business-Type Activities

During fiscal year 2008, the Water Utility Fund added approximately $58,700 in capital improvement projects (CIP). Upgrades
and expansion of the Miramar Water Treatment Plant and the Rancho Bernardo Reservoir continued, along with water main
replacements. Capital asset write-offs for fiscal year 2008 were approximately $4,100, and were primarily related to losses on
abandoned projects, and retirements of developer contributed assets.

During fiscal year 2008, the Sewer Utility Fund added approximately $26,500 in CIP, of which the Metropolitan system CIP
increased approximately $2,300. Municipal system CIP increased approximately $24,200 and included the following major
projects: Caltrans/SR-905 Otay Mesa Trunk Sewer, Pipeline Rehabilitation Phase C-1, and the continued replacement of sewer
mains and upgrades to the sewer infrastructure. Capital asset write-offs for fiscal year 2008 were approximately $2,100, and
were primarily related to losses on abandoned projects, and retirements of developer contributed assets.

HIGHLIGHTS OF APPROVED FISCAL YEAR 2009 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS (CIP) BUDGET

The Annual Approved Capital Improvements Budget for Fiscal Year 2009 is $574,000 which constitutes an increase of $82,300,
or approximately 16.7% over the fiscal year 2008 budget of $491,600. The increase in the Fiscal Year 2008 budget is primarily
due to an increase in funding for capital projects addressing deferred maintenance needs. Water and Sewer projects comprise
over 46% of the total CIP budget. Engineering & Capital Projects and General Services projects comprise 26%, and 15% of the
total CIP budget, respectively. Funding for governmental projects include TransNet funds, Facilities Benefit Assessments,
Developer Impact Fees, developer contributions, and Federal, State, local, and private contributions. Highlights of the key
budgets by department are as follows:
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Governmental Activities

e  Engineering and Capital Projects: $151,600 (26% of total CIP budget). Key projects include the undergrounding of
City utilities to augment the California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC) Rule 20A funds. Funding is also allocated
for conversion of City-owned street lighting and resurfacing of roadways associated with the undergrounding of utilities.
The $60,000 annual allocation for these projects is entirely funded by the Underground Surcharge Fund. Other
significant projects include:  $10,300 for ADA improvements, $7,400 for 43 Street and Logan/National Ave
Intersection, $5,000 for State Route 163 and Friars Road, and $2,400 for Phase Il of the Otay Truck Route Widening.

e General Services: $84,800 (15% of total CIP budget). Key budgets include: $45,400 for Street Resurfacing, $31,800
for City facility improvements including roof replacements and heating and air conditioning upgrades and
replacements; and $7,500 for sidewalk replacement and reconstruction.

e Parks and Recreation: $35,200 (6% of total CIP budget). Planned project types for fiscal year 2008 include play area
upgrades, joint use fields, roof reconstruction, accessibility improvements, comfort stations, picnic shelters, sports field
and security lighting, and new park development.

e  City Comptroller: $6,800 (1% of total CIP budget). This includes $6,800 for the Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP)
System.

e  Office of the CIO: $3,300 (1% of total CIP budget). This includes $3,300 for the ongoing master lease payments for
the Public Safety Communications Project.

Business-Type Activities

The fiscal year 2009 Water Utility CIP budget is $177,900. There are no phase funded projects budgeted for fiscal year 2009.
Significant projects include: $44,000 for the Miramar Water Treatment Plant — Upgrade and Expansion; $41,600 for water main
replacements; $36,900 for the Alvarado Water Treatment Plant — Upgrade and Expansion; $9,300 for the Otay Water Treatment
Plant — Upgrade and Expansion: and 8,600 for Otay Second Pipeline Improvements.

The fiscal year 2009 Sewer Utility CIP budget is $103,100. There are no phase funded projects budgeted for fiscal year 2009.

Significant projects include: $59,100 for pipeline repair, replacement, and rehabilitation; $19,500 for repair and upgrade of pump
stations; $12,800 for replacement of trunk sewers; and $8,100 for repair and upgrade of treatment plants.
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CITY OF SAN DIEGO'S OUTSTANDING DEBT
(In Thousands)

Total
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Primary Government
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
Capital Lease Obligations  $ 61,262 $ 39130 $ 166 $ 1,006 $ 61428 $ 40,136
Contracts Payable 2,615 2,615 - - 2,615 2,615
Notes Payable 5,662 8,555 430,830 280,830 436,492 289,385
Loans Payable 34,777 18,775 95,875 101,316 130,652 120,091
Section 108 Loans 35,896 39,431 - - 35,896 39,431
SANDAG Loans - 2,287 - - - 2,287
General Obligation Bonds 8,580 10,705 - - 8,580 10,705
Revenue Bonds/COP's/
Lease Revenue Bonds 498,950 521,210 1,425,445 1,469,060 1,924,395 1,990,270
Special Assessment/
Special Tax Bonds 144,805 145,625 - - 144,805 145,625
Tax Allocation Bonds 548,643 502,804 - - 548,643 502,804
Tobacco Settlement
Asset-Backed Bonds 99,370 102,700 - - 99,370 102,700
Pooled Financing Bonds 34,115 - - - 34,115
Totals $ 1,474,675 $ 1,393,837 $ 1,952,316 $ 1852212 $ 3,426,991 $ 3,246,049

LONG-TERM DEBT

At the end of fiscal year 2008, the City, including blended component units, had total debt outstanding of approximately
$3,426,991. Of this amount, $8,580 is comprised of debt backed by the full faith and credit of the City. The remainder of the
City’s debt represents revenue bonds, lease revenue bonds, certificates of participation (COPs), special assessment bonds, tax
allocation bonds, tobacco settlement asset-backed bonds, pooled financing bonds, contracts payable, notes payable, loans
payable, Section 108 loans, SRF loans, and capital lease obligations.

Governmental Activities

e The City (PFFA) issued $17,230 of taxable pooled financing bonds, Series 2007 A and $17,755 of tax-exempt pooled
financing bonds Series 2007 B. The Series 2007 A and B bonds were issued to make loans to the Redevelopment
Agency for financing and refinancing redevelopment activities in Southcrest, Central Imperial and Mount Hope
Redevelopment Project areas.

e The City (RDA) executed six non-revolving lines of credit with San Diego National Bank for an aggregate total amount
available of $70,000. Four lines of credit are for affordable housing in North Park, City Heights, North Bay and Naval
Training Center (NTC) Redevelopment Project Areas, and the two remaining lines of credit are for non-housing or
general purposes for City Heights and Naval Training Center (NTC) Redevelopment Project Areas. As of June 30,
2008 the amount actually drawn on the lines of credit totaled $16,063.
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e The City issued $3,950 of Community Facilities District No. 3 (Liberty Station) Special Tax Bonds, Series 2008 A, to
finance public improvements required in connection with the district. The 2008 A bonds were issued pursuant to the
Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982 and are limited obligations of the district.

e The City (RDA) issued $69,000 of Housing Tax Allocation Bonds to finance certain improvements relating to, or
increasing the supply of, low and moderate income housing in the Centre City Redevelopment Project and such other
areas as authorized by Redevelopment Law. The 2008 A bonds are payable from, secured equally and are on parity
with outstanding Centre City Redevelopment Project Tax Allocation Housing Bonds, Series 2004 C and 2004 D and
2006 B bonds, by a charge and lien on the pledged housing tax revenues derived by RDA from the Redevelopment
Project.

e Total principal payments for long-term debt were $74,841. $56,516 of this amount was for outstanding bonds,
including $10,145 for the amount of outstanding Mount Hope Series 1995B, Southcrest 1995, Southcrest 2000 and
Central Imperial 2000 bonds refunded by the PFFA pooled financing bonds series 2007 A and B. Payments on loans
payable were $5,883, payments on notes payable were $2,893, and payments on capital leases were $9,549.

Business-Type Activities

e The City (PFFA) sold, on a private placement basis, $150,000 of Subordinated Water Revenue Notes, Series 2008A to
finance the acquisition and construction of the City’s water system and to reimburse for costs previously incurred. The
Series 2008A Notes are secured by and payable solely from net system revenues of the Water Utility Fund and the
final maturity date is August 28, 2009. The 2008A Notes carried a one year call provision with no prepayment penalty
after the call date and had no provisions for an extension beyond the final maturity date.

e Total principal payments for long-term debt were $49,896 which includes $43,615 for outstanding bonds, $5,441 for

loans payable and $840 for capital leases.

As of the issuance of this report, the credit ratings on the City of San Diego’s outstanding General Obligation Bonds, Revenue
Bonds, Lease Revenue Bonds, and COPs are as follows:

Moody's Investors Fitch
Service Ratings Standard & Poor's
General Obligation Bonds A2 A+ A
General Fund Backed Lease
Revenue Bonds Baa1/Baa2 A A-
Outlook Stable Stable Positive
Wastewater System Bonds A3 BBB+ A+
Outlook Negative Positive Stable
Water System Bonds A1/A2 AA-IA+ AA-IA+
Outlook Stable Stable Stable

Section 90 of the City Charter provides that the general obligation bonded indebtedness for the development, conservation and
furnishings of water shall not exceed 15% of the last preceding assessed valuation of all real and personal property of the City
subject to direct taxation, and that the bonded indebtedness for other municipal improvements shall not exceed 10% of such
valuation. The City’s current outstanding general obligation balances as of June 30, 2008 are significantly less than the current
debt limitations for water and other purposes, which are $5,665,641 and $3,777,094, respectively (see Statistical Section, Table
12).
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It has been the City's practice, as provided for in Section 90.1 of the City Charter, to issue revenue bonds for the purpose of
constructing water facilities. Per Section 90.1, revenue bonds do not constitute an indebtedness of the City, but an obligation
payable from the revenues received by the utility. Section 90.2 authorizes the issuance of Revenue Bonds for the purpose of
constructing improvements to the City's sewer system.

Additional information on the City’s long-term debt can be found in the accompanying notes to the financial statements.
REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City's finances. Questions concerning any of the
information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Office of the City
Comptroller, 202 C Street, San Diego, California 92101, or e-mailed to comptroller@sandiego.gov. This financial report is also
available on the City's website at www.sandiego.gov, under the Office of the City Comptroller. Additional information intended
for the investor community is available on the Investor Information web page also located on the City's website listed above.
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STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
June 30, 2008
(In Thousands)

Primary Government Component Units
San Diego
Convention San Diego
Governmental Business - Type Center Housing
Activities Activities Total Corporation Commission
ASSETS

Cash and Investments $ 1271327 § 612890 § 1,884,217 § 20975 §$ 88,047
Receivables:

Taxes - Net 87,129 - 87,129 - -

Accounts - Net of Allowance for Uncollectibles

(Governmental $8,659, Business-Type $2,211) .. 36,409 82,345 118,754 3,707 8,240
Claims - Net 17 - 17 - -
Contributions ..........cooeiiiii 398 - 398 - -
Special 1ts - Net 1,764 - 1,764 - -
Notes 97,788 - 97,788 - 155,396
Accrued Interest 8,888 4,745 13,633 - 16,332
Grants 40,715 2,451 43,166 - -
Investment in Joint Venture ................cooooiiiiiiiiiiii e 1,981 - 1,981 - -
Advances to Other Agencies 4,640 - 4,640 - -
Internal BalanCes ...........coooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e (1,649) 1,649 - - -
Inventories of Water in Storage - 36,593 36,593 - -
Inventories 2,105 541 2,646 19 59
Land Held for Resale 38,267 - 38,267 - -
Prepaid Expenses 3,012 467 3,479 971 136
Restricted Cash and Investments ................ccccooi 483,985 279,666 763,651 - 656
Deferred Charges 19,875 10,468 30,343 - -
Capital Assets - Non-Depreciable .................coooiiiiiiiiiiiiiinnn. 1,921,836 264,053 2,185,889 - 41,264
Capital Assets - Depreciable 2,413,481 4,370,865 6,784,346 17177 58,169

TOTAL ASSETS 6,432,068 5,666,733 12,098,801 42,849 368,299
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STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable

Accrued Wages and Benefits

Other Accrued Liabilities

Interest Accrued on Long-Term Debt ...........ccccooovvviiiiiiciicinns

Long-Term Liabilities Due Within One Year ..

Due to Other Agencies

Unearned Revenue

CoNtract DEPOSIES .....oeoeeiiiiiiiiiii i

Sundry Trust Liabilities

Short-Term Notes Payable

Customer Deposits Payable ..............ccccvvviiiiiiiiiiiis

Deposits/Advances from Others
Long-Term Liabilities Due After One Year:
Arbitrage Liability ...............c.cocooiii

Compensated Absences

Liability Claims

Capital Lease Obligations

Contracts Payable

Notes Payable ..............ccccoiiiiiiiiiiii

Loans Payable ..

Section 108 Loans Payable .............ccccuuvviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiies

Net Bonds Payable
Estimated Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care .............c..cc..c.....

Net Other Post Employment Benefit Obligation .........................

Net Pension Obligation

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt ..

Restricted for:
Capital ProOJECES ...ooooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e
Debt Service ............ccoouiiiiiiiiii i
Low-Moderate Income HOUSING ............ccccooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeieiiiiins

Nonexpendable Permanent Endowments

TOTAL NET ASSETS

June 30, 2008
(In Thousands)

_  PrimaryGovernment = ComponentUnits
San Diego
Convention San Diego
Governmental Business - Type Center Housing

Activities Total Corporation Commission
$ 79265 $ 47,194  § 126,459  § 2,798 § 3,097
25,677 13,963 39,640 - 391
175 - 175 1,877 1,664
22,660 20,924 43,584 - 161
143,343 344,138 487,481 3,028 1,621
576 5,468 6,044 - -
62,785 8,192 70,977 9,601 1,419
- 8,108 8,108 - -
5,558 - 5,558 - -
116,000 - 116,000 - -
- 4,331 4,331 - -
- 275 275 - 1,049
- 586 586 - -
42,910 6,698 49,608 - -
191,145 44,326 235,471 - -
49,356 - 49,356 1,394 -
2,615 - 2,615 - -
5,662 150,000 155,662 1,500 29,383
26,078 90,328 116,406 - -
33,532 - 33,5632 - -
1,300,744 1,373,801 2,674,545 - -
- 18,429 18,429 - -
28,872 8,921 37,793 - -
141,734 31,342 173,076 - -
2,278,687 2,177,024 4,455,711 20,198 38,785
3,518,704 2,933,012 6,451,716 12,476 68,982
314,931 - 314,931 1,625 -
- 2,660 2,660 - -
108,026 - 108,026 - -
16,757 - 16,757 - -
124,328 36,776 161,104 - 122,521
70,635 517,261 587,896 8,550 138,011

$ 4,153,381 $ 3489709 $ 7643090 $ 22651 _$ 329,514

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Year Ended June 30, 2008
(In Thousands)

Program Revenues

Operating Capital Grants
Charges for Grants and and
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
Primary Government:
Governmental Activities:
General Government and Support $ 322,157 $ 111,714 $ 10,509 $ 957
Public Safety - Police 382,907 40,628 14,269 -
Public Safety - Fire and Life Safety and Homeland Security ......... 204,822 19,156 18,694 -
Parks, Recreation, Culture and Leisure ........................coooee. 231,955 64,030 2,659 15,499
Transportation 212,255 21,877 4 45,737
Sanitation and Health .. 51,772 9,832 7,400 -
Neighborhood Services 91,110 22,748 21,591 16,154
Debt Service:
INEEIESE ..ot 82,211 - - -
TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES .......cvviieiirinninnnnns 1,679,189 289,985 75,126 78,347
Business-Type Activities:
Airports 4,109 5,140 - 1,376
City Store ... 788 744 - -
Development Services ... 51,461 45,945 - -
Environmental Services . 37,279 35,485 17 -
Golf Course ... 11,142 15,153 - 139
Recycling 20,511 23,390 462 -
Sewer Utility .. 322,552 328,119 134 25,359
Water Utility ... 321,123 318,626 1,699 31,526
TOTAL BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES ......cccvveirriiiiinnnnnnns 768,965 772,602 2,312 58,400
TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT ........ccooiviiiiiniiniiiiicnnans $ 2,348,154 $ 1,062,587 $ 77,438 $ 136,747
Component Units:
San Diego Convention Center Corporation ...............c.coeeeevunen. $ 36,331 $ 33,930 $ 4,387 $ 213
San Diego Housing COmMmISSION ...........cccvuiiiiiiniiiiiieiiieeaaenns 168,487 20,323 172,109 1,219
TOTAL COMPONENT UNITS ... $ 204,818 $ 54,253 $ 176,496 $ 1,432

General Revenues:
Property TaXeS .........iiiiiiiiiiii i
Transient Occupancy Taxes
Other Local Taxes
Developer Contributions and Fees
Grants and Contributions not Restricted to Specific Programs .
Sales Taxes
Investment Income .
Gain on Sale of Capital Assets
Miscellaneous
Transfers

TOTAL GENERAL REVENUES AND TRANSFERS ..

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS .....ouuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiien e
Net Assets at Beginning of Year ...

NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR .....ccoiiiiiiiiiicieecceccrniee e,
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Net Revenue/(Expense) and Changes in Net Assets

Primary Government

Component Units

San Diego
Convention San Diego
Governmental Business-Type Center Housing
Activities Activities Total Corporation C issi
$ (198,977) $ - $  (198,977) $ - $
(328,010) - (328,010) -
(166,972) - (166,972) -
(149,767) - (149,767) -
(144,637) - (144,637) -
(34,540) - (34,540) -
(30,617) - (30,617) -
(82,211) - (82,211) -
(1,135,731) - (1,135,731) -
- 2,407 2,407 -
- (44) (44) -
- (5,516) (5,516) -
- (1,777) 1,777) -
- 4,150 4,150 -
- 3,341 3,341 -
- 31,060 31,060 -
- 30,728 30,728 -
- 64,349 64,349 -
(1,135,731) 64,349 (1,071,382) -
- - - 2,199
- - - - 25,164
- - - 2,199 25,164
576,605 - 576,605 -
159,348 - 159,348 -
151,267 - 151,267 -
38,331 - 38,331 -
6,251 - 6,251 -
269,757 - 269,757 -
96,725 41,224 137,949 709 6,858
17,884 - 17,884 -
29,570 7,850 37,420 742
3,551 (3,551) - -
1,349,289 45,523 1,394,812 1,451 6,858
213,558 109,872 323,430 3,650 32,022
3,939,823 3,379,837 7,319,660 19,001 297,492
$ 4,153,381 $ 3,489,709 $ 7,643,090 $ 22,651 $ 329,514

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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ASSETS

Cash and Investments

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2008
(In Thousands)

Receivables:

Taxes - Net

Accounts - Net of Allowance for Uncollectibles (General Fund $6,656, Other Governmental $993) ............cccooeeennn

Claims - Net

Special Assessments - Net

Notes

Accrued Interest

Grants

From Other Funds

Interfund Loan Receivable

Advances to Other Funds

Advances to Other Agencies

Land Held for Resale

Prepaid ltems

Investment in Joint Venture ..

Restricted Cash and Investments

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable

Accrued Wages and Benefits

Other Accrued Liabilities

Due to Other Funds

Due to Other Agencies

Unearned ReVeNUE .................coeeciiiiiiiiiieiiii

Deferred Revenue

Sundry Trust Liabilities

Advances from Other Funds

Interfund Loan Payable .............cccoovreiiiiiiiniieiiiiinnns

Short-Term Notes Payable

TOTAL LIABILITIES
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Other Governmental Total Governmental
General Fund Funds Funds

91,439 $ 1,046,844 $ 1,138,283
76,527 10,602 87,129
11,195 24,799 35,994
78 28 106

- 1,764 1,764

- 97,788 97,788

2,395 6,454 8,849

- 40,715 40,715

1,600 7,349 8,949

- 34,115 34,115

- 8,333 8,333

9 4,631 4,640

- 38,267 38,267

82 565 647
1,981 - 1,981
116,383 367,602 483,985
301,689 $ 1,689,856 $ 1,991,545
8,005 $ 49,720 $ 57,725
22,265 608 22,873
- 175 175

2,479 11,227 13,706

- 576 576

784 61,874 62,658
27,375 47,660 75,035
- 5,558 5,558

- 8,333 8,333

- 37,602 37,602
116,000 - 116,000
176,908 223,333 400,241
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GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2008
(In Thousands)

Other Governmental

Total Governmental

General Fund Funds Funds
FUND EQUITY:
Fund Balances:
Reserved for Land Held for ReSale ...........cccccvvvieiiiienieeeeiiiieeeens - 38,267 38,267
Reserved for Notes Receivable .............cccoooooiiieiiiiine - 94,681 94,681
Reserved for ENCUMDBIanCes ............cccocuovuviririncececiicce e 43,853 257,239 301,092
RESEIVEd fOr AQVANCES ........ouuiiiiieiiie e 9 12,964 12,973
Reserved for Low and Moderate Income Housing - 76,285 76,285
Reserved for Permanent ENQOWMENES .........ccuiuiuiuiiiiieiiieieeeeieite et et ee e e e e e e e e e enainee - 16,757 16,757
Reserved for DEDt SEIVICE ..........o.iiiiiiiiiiicii s - 156,029 156,029
Reserved for Minority Interest in JOINt VENTUrE ... ... e 1,981 - 1,981
Unreserved, Reported in General Fund:
Designated for Unrealized Gains 2,737 - 2,737
Designated for Subsequent YEars' EXPENAIIUIES .........coviiieiiueuiiiieiiieteiieeeeeeeiiies s e e e e eaaee e e e e eeiieeeeeeeain s 862 - 862
UNAESIGNAEM ...t ettt 75,339 - 75,339
Unreserved, Reported in:
SPECIAI REVENUE FUNGS ...ttt e e e e e e e e et e e e aeees - 233,388 233,388
Debt Service Funds .. . - 221,814 221,814
Capital ProJECS FUNGS ... oottt ettt ettt e e e e et e eeeeeaien - 358,550 358,550
Permanent FUNGS ..........oiiiiiiiiiii e - 549 549
TOTAL FUND EQUITY 124,781 1,466,523 1,591,304
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY $ 301,689 $ 1,689,856
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Assets are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources, and therefore, are not reported in the funds. 4,225,527
Other assets and liabilities used in governmental activities are not financial resources, and therefore, are either deferred or
not reported in the funds. 94,910
Internal Service funds are used by management to charge the costs of activities such as Fleet Services, Print Shop, Self
Insurance, and Central Stores to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of certain Internal Service Funds are included in
governmental activities in the Statement of Net Assets. (27,156)
Certain liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current period, and therefore, are not reported
in the funds. 1,731,204
Net Assets of governmental activities $ 4,153,381

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008
(In Thousands)

Other Total
Governmental Governmental
General Fund Funds Funds
REVENUES
Property Taxes $ 384,273 $ 189,038 $ 573,311
Special Assessments - 50,274 50,274
Sales Taxes 235,579 35,212 270,791
Transient OCCUPANCY TAXES ......coiiuiti ettt e et e ettt 83,730 75,618 159,348
Other Local Taxes 71,594 75,305 146,899
Licenses and Permits 33,815 16,878 50,693
Fines, Forfeitures and Penalties 31,083 1,702 32,785
Revenue from Use of Money and Property 44,577 85,005 129,582
Revenue from Federal Agencies 4,086 36,327 40,413
Revenue from Other Agencies 14,236 39,134 53,370
Revenue from Private Sources - 23,013 23,013
Charges for Current Services 87,263 78,647 165,910
Other Revenue 3,297 27,527 30,824
TOTAL REVENUES 993,533 733,680 1,727,213
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government and SUPPOTT ........oe.u e 225,570 85,244 310,814
Public Safety - Police 376,050 12,679 388,729
Public Safety - Fire and Life Safety and Homeland Security 186,925 18,735 205,660
Parks, Recreation, CUUre @nd LEISUME ...........oouuiiiitii e e e e aaas 119,125 76,683 195,808
Transportation 66,162 69,242 135,404
Sanitation and Health . 48,995 4,962 53,957
Neighborhood Services . 18,563 69,679 88,242
Capital Projects - 132,432 132,432
Debt Service:
Principal REHIMEMENT ... ettt 2,204 57,024 59,228
T 5,720 72,413 78,133
Cost of Issuance - 3,618 3,618
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,049,314 602,711 1,652,025
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES (55,781) 130,969 75,188
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers from Proprietary Funds 5,896 4477 10,373
Transfers from Other Funds 94,562 359,128 453,690
Transfers to Proprietary Funds (5,358) (4,398) (9,756)
Transfers to Other Funds (46,470) (407,220) (453,690)
Transfers to Escrow Agent - (10,676) (10,676)
Net Loss from Joint VENTUre .........o. . e (116) - (116)
Proceeds from the Sale of Capital Assets - 21,783 21,783
Capital Lease: - 14,561 14,561
Loans Issued - 16,063 16,063
Special Tax Bonds Issued .. . - 3,950 3,950
Tax Allocation Bonds Issued - 69,000 69,000
Pooled Financing Bonds Issued - 34,985 34,985
Premium on Bonds Issued - 389 389
Discount 0N BONAS ISSUEA ..........uuiiiii i - (203) (203)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 48,514 101,839 150,353
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (7,267) 232,808 225,541
Fund Balances at Beginning of Year 132,048 1,233,715 1,365,763
FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR $ 124,781 $ 1,466,523 $ 1,591,304

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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City of San Diego
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Activities
Year Ended June 30, 2008
(In Thousands)

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (page 56)

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the Statement
of Activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and
reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays
exceeded depreciation in the current period.

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital assets (i.e., donations,
retirements, and transfers) is to decrease net assets.

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial resources are
not reported as revenues in the funds.

The issuance of long-term debt (i.e., bonds, leases) provides current financial resources to
governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the
current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any
effect on net assets. This amount is the net effect of these differences in the treatment
of long-term debt and related items.

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of current
financial resources (i.e., compensated absenses, net pension obligation), and therefore
are not accrued as expenses in governmental funds.

Internal Service funds are used by management to charge the costs of activities such as
Fleet Services, Publishing Services, Central Stores, Self Insurance, and others to individual
funds. The net revenue of certain internal service activities is reported with governmental
activities.

Change in net assets of governmental activities (page 53)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2008
(In Thousands )

Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Other
Sewer Water Enterprise Internal Service
Utility Utility Funds Total Funds
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Investments $ 291,240 $ 212,932 $ 107,658 $ 611,830 $ 134,104
Receivables:
Accounts - Net of Allowance for Uncollectibles (Sewer $970, Water $990,

Other Enterprise $251, Internal Service $1,010) ..........coooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieeeeeees 37,627 43,854 864 82,345 415
Claims - Net - - - - "
Contributions - - - - 398
Accrued Interest 1,637 2,040 1,068 4,745 39
Grants - 1,572 879 2,451 -
From Other Funds - - 4,073 4,073 6,710

Inventories of Water in Storage - 36,593 - 36,593 -
Inventories - 463 78 541 2,105
Prepaid Expenses 8 446 12 466 2,366

Total Current Assets . 330,512 297,900 114,632 743,044 146,148

Non-Current Assets:

Restricted Cash and Investments ... 46,839 196,304 36,523 279,666 -
Deferred Charges 5,953 4,515 - 10,468 -
Interfund Loan Receivable 3,487 - - 3,487 -
Capital Assets - Non-Depreciable 107,309 134,738 22,006 264,053 1,984
Capital Assets - Depreciable 2,722,478 1,584,365 63,814 4,370,657 108,014

Total Non-Current ASSEtS ...............oooiiiiiiiiiiiiii 2,886,066 1,919,922 122,343 4,928,331 109,998

TOTAL ASSETS 3,216,578 2,217,822 236,975 5,671,375 256,146
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable 7,650 37,556 1,944 47,150 21,584
Accrued Wages and Benefits 9,734 1,817 1,983 13,534 3,233
Interest Accrued on Long-Term Debt 7,679 13,236 9 20,924 344
Long-Term Debt Due Within ON YEaI ...........ueiiiiiiiiiiieiiiiie e 264,772 76,962 2,404 344,138 51,866
Due to Other Funds 1,206 1,242 281 2,729 3,297
Due to Other Agencies 2,897 2,571 - 5,468 -
Unearned Revenue - 1,143 7,049 8,192 127
Contract Deposits 3,314 4,519 275 8,108 -
Current Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets:
Customer Deposits Payable - 4,331 - 4,331 -
Total Current Liabilities ...t 297,252 143,377 13,945 454,574 80,451
Non-Current Liabilities:
Deposits/Advances from Others 250 - 25 275 -
Arbitrage Liability. 157 429 - 586 -
Compensated Absences . 2,422 2,027 2,249 6,698 4,270
Liability Claims ..o 38,792 5,534 - 44,326 178,155
Capital Lease Obligations - - - - 18,842
Loans Payable 71,838 18,490 - 90,328 -
Notes Payable - 150,000 - 150,000 -
Net Revenue Bonds Payable 852,291 521,510 - 1,373,801 -
Estimated Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care - - 18,429 18,429 -
Net Other Post Employment Benefit Obligation 3,038 2,659 2,621 8,318 1,741
Net Pension Obligation 10,559 8,276 10,014 28,849 5,325

Total Non-Current Liabilities .........................oo 979,347 708,925 33,338 1,721,610 208,333

TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,276,599 852,302 47,283 2,176,184 288,784
NET ASSETS

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 1,695,766 1,151,511 85,527 2,932,804 84,545
Restricted for Debt Service 496 2,164 - 2,660 -
Restricted for Closure/Postclosure Maintenance - - 36,776 36,776 -
Unrestricted 243,717 211,845 67,389 522,951 (117,183)
TOTAL NET ASSETS $ 1,939,979 $ 1 .365,5& $ 189,692 3,495,191 $ (32,638

Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of Internal Service Fund activities related to Enterprise Funds. 5,482)

Net assets of Business-Type activities $  3489,709

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008
(In Thousands)

Busi Type Activities - Enterprise Funds
Other
Sewer Water Enterprise Internal Service
Utility Utility Funds Total Funds

OPERATING REVENUES

Sales of Water ........ $ - $ 297,225 $ - $ 297,225 $ -

Charges for Services .........cocooeverencrercnens 325,048 33 68,856 393,937 181,516

Revenue from Use of Property ............c.cc........ s - 6,115 - 6,115 -

Usage Fees ....... . - 1,235 54,758 55,993 74,772

Other ..., e ————— 3,071 14,018 2,243 19,332 1,462

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 328,119 318,626 125,857 772,602 257,750

OPERATING EXPENSES
Benefit and Claim Payments - - - - 67,085
Maintenance and OPErations ...........cccocivirerererere e 110,492 100,360 86,679 297,531 64,247
Cost of Materials Issued .............ccccoeeeenne.. s - - 295 295 32,453
Cost of Purchased Water Used - 121,186 - 121,186 -
Taxes . BSOSO U O PO U U SO USROS TP - 162 - 162 -
Administration .............. 91,158 36,722 33,974 161,854 65,492
Depreciation ... 71,138 29,870 5,471 106,479 16,685
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 272,788 288,300 126,419 687,507 245,962
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 55,331 30,326 (562) 85,095 11,788
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Earnings on Investments ...............cccoces s 17,757 15,536 7,915 41,208 6,367
Federal Grant Assistance .......... 134 1,427 - 1,561 -
Other Agency Grant Assistance - 272 479 751 -
Loss on Sale/Retirement of Capital Assets (2,057) (3,494) (121) (5,672) (3,933)
Debt Service Interest Expense .......... (48,571) (29,919) (30) (78,520) (884)
Other . 4,524 980 2,342 7,846 45
TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) ......ccccoovvenurucennnnnnns (28,213) (15,198) 10,585 (32,826) 1,595
INCOME BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS ......... 27,118 15,128 10,023 52,269 13,383
Capital Contributions 25,359 31,526 1,515 58,400 161
Transfers from Other Funds 714 578 349 1,641 1,364
Transfers from Governmental Funds 9 3,867 1,377 5,253 28,895
Transfers to Other Funds (1,214) (93) (237) (1,544) (1,461)
Transfers to Governmental FUNdS ..........ccccovivveniiinennns (5,585) (834) (2,309) (8,728) (11,914)
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 46,401 50,172 10,718 107,291 30,428
Net Assets at Beginning of Year ...... 1,893,578 1,315,348 178,974 (63,066)
NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR $ 1,939,979 $ 1,365,520 $ 189,692 $ (32,638)
Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of Internal Service Fund activities related to Enterprise Funds. 2,581
Change in net assets of Business-Type activities $ 109,872

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

59



City oF SAN DiEGo

CoMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008
(In Thousands )

Business-Type Act Enterprise Funds
Other
Sewer Water Enterprise Internal Service
Utility Utility Funds Total Funds
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from Customers and Users $ 325929 § 245713 S 106944 S 678586  § 231,971
Receipts from Interfund Services Provided 4,319 71,825 21,403 97,547 22,309
Payments to Suppliers (122,083) (241,216) (39.744) (403,043) (109,153)
Payments to (62,202) (4,205) (70,793) (137,200 (105,554)
Payments for Interfund Services Used (16,948) (13.779) (7.749) (38.476) (1.403)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES . 129,015 58,338 10,061 197.414 38,170
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers from Other Funds 714 398 349 1,461 1,304
Transfers from Funds 7 716 1,368 2,001 7,664
Transfers to Other Funds (1,034) (93) (237) (1,364) (1.401)
Transfers to Funds (1,746) (833) (2,144) (4723) (11,915)
Operating Grants Received 160 1,329 366 1,855 R
Proceeds from Advances and Deposits 250 67 - 317 -
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR)
NONCAPITAL ACTIVITIES (1.649) 1,584 (298) (363) (4.348)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Contracts, Notes and Loans - 149,726 - 149,726 23,385
Proceeds from Capital C: 11,861 12,372 1,465 25,698 -
Acquisition of Capital Assets (43,278) (60,959) (9.325) (113,562) (38,225)
Proceeds from the Sale of Capital Assets - 585 - 585 2,591
Principal Payments on Capital Leases - - (840) (840) (5.467)
Principal Payments on Contracts, Notes and Loan: (4,569) (831) - (5.400) -
Principal Payments on Revenue Bond: (30,250) (13,365) - (43,615) -
Interest Paid on Long-Term Debt (48,302) 28,097) (39) (76.438) 624
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) CAPITAL
AND RELATED F! ACTIVITIES (114,538) 59,431 (8.739) (63,846) (18,340)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Sales of 549,686 925,754 - 1,475,440 -
Purchases of (495,356) (1,045,017) - (1,540,373) -
Interest Received on 18,853 15,787 8,371 43,011 6,403
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) INVESTING ACTIVITIES .. 73183 103,476 8,371 (21.922) 6,403
Net Increase in Cash and Cash 86,011 15,877 9,395 111,283 21,885
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 205,229 225338 134,786 565,353 112219
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR $ 291240 § 241215 $ 144181 S 676636  § 134,104
Reconciliation of Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year to the Statement
of Net Assets:
Cash and $ 291240 § 212932 $ 107658 611830 § 134,104
Restricted Cash & 46,839 196,304 36,523 279,666 -
Less Investments not meeting the definition of cash (46,839) 168,021 - (214,860) -
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year $ 201240 $ 241215 8 144181 $ 676636 § 134,104
Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash
Provided by (Used For) Operating Act
Operating Income (Loss) $ 55331 §  303% S 562) § 85005 § 11,788
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to
Net Cash Provided By (Used For) Operating Activities:
D 71,138 29,870 5471 106,479 16,685
Changes in Assets and Liabilties:
(Increase) Decrease in Receivables:
Accounts - Net (1,881) (1,157) 24 (3.014) (391)
Claims - Net - - - - (1)
c - - - - (148)
From Other Fund: - - (747) (747) -
(Increase) Decrease in - (9.086) 35 (9.051) (24)
(increase) Decrease in Prepaid Expenses ) 291 1 285 230
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable (725) 6,788 298 6,361 2,741
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Wages and Benefits 5,633 (108) (215) 5310 949
Increase (Decrease) in Due to Other Funds 1,206 1,242 (362) 2,086 464
Increase (Decrease) in Due to Other Agencies (2.614) (1.931) - (4,545) -
Increase (Decrease) in Uneamed Revenue - 139 281 420 44
Increase (Decrease) in Contract Deposits (514) (1,050) 749 (815) -
Increase (Decrease) in Arbitrage Liability 126 236 - 362 -
Increase (Decrease) in C Absences (333) (210) 122 (421) (933)
Increase (Decrease) in Liability Claims (4.178) 862 - (3.316) 5961
Increase (Decrease) in Estimated Landfil Closure and Postclosure Care. - - 1,494 1,494 -
Increase (Decrease) in Net OPEB Obligation 3,038 2,659 2,621 8318 1,741
Increase (Decrease) in Net Pension Obligation (1,729) (1513) (1.491) (4733) (981)
Other g Revenue 4,524 980 2342 7,846 45
Total 73684 28,012 10,623 112,319 26,382
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ 120015 § 58338 S 10061 S 197414 § 38,170
Noncash Investing, Capital, and Financing Activites:
Developer Contributed Assets $ 13498 § 19154 S - s 32852 § -
Increase (Decrease) in Capital Assets related Accounts Payable ... (2,425) 642 (1,190) (2973) 6,086
Noncash Retirement of Capital Assets (2,057) (4,079) (121) (6.257) (3.942)
Contributions of Capital Assets from Activities 2 3,151 9 3,162 21,231

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
June 30, 2008
(In Thousands)

Pension &
Employee Investment
Savings Trust Trust Agency
ASSETS
Cash or Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments ....................... e $ 6,145 $ 4,404 $ 28,904
Cash with Custodian/Fiscal AGENt ..........oiiiiiiiiiiee e 501,511 - -
Investments at Fair Value:
Short Term INVestMENts ... ... 42,268 - -
Domestic Fixed Income Securities (BONAS) .........oeeuiuiiiiiieeiieeie e 998,630 - -
International Fixed Income Securities (Bonds) ... 183,122 - -
Domestic Equity Securities (Stocks) ..........cooiiiiiiiii 1,780,841 - -
International Equity Securities (StOCKS) ........iiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 819,511 - -
Real Estate Equity and Real Estate Securities .....................cccooooool 487,530 - -
Defined Contribution Investments ... 735,099 - -
Receivables:
Accounts - Net .............. R - - 91
CoNtriDULIONS ..o e e 19,657 - -
Accrued Interest ......... ST UUROUTRURIN 16,812 22 19
Loans ........ e e 31,900 - -
Securities Sold e . 100,068 - -
Prepaid Expenses ... 16 - -
Securities Lending Collateral .... 674,085 - -
Restricted Cash and Investments . - - 3,287
Capital Assets - Depreciable .. 523 - -
TOTAL ASSETS 6,397,718 4,426 $ 32,301
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable .... e 6,057 - $ 647
Accrued Wages and Benefits ............. [PPSR 705 - -
Deposits/Advances from Others ............. - - 12,730
Sundry Trust Liabilities .................. e - - 18,924
DROP LIDIIEY .. 311,756 - -
Net Pension Obligation ... SR, s 776 - -
Securities Lending Obligations.......... ..o 674,085 - -
Securities Purchased ..................... s 249,510 - -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,242,889 - $ 32,301
NET ASSETS
Held in Trust for Pension Benefits and Other PUrposes .............cccccoiiiiiiiiiiicicicies $ 5,154,829 $ 4,426

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
Year Ended June 30, 2008
(In Thousands)

Pension &
Employee Investment
Savings Trust Trust Total
ADDITIONS
Employer Contributions ..............cccociiiiiiiiiiiiccccccce $ 237,840 $ - $ 237,840
Employee Contributions 104,495 - 104,495
Retiree Contributions . 6,661 - 6,661
Contributions to Pooled Investments . - 7,184 7,184
Earnings on Investments:
INVESMENE INCOME (LOSS) ... eiiiiiiiiie ettt (242,094) 129 (241,965)
INVESEMENE EXPENSE ....ouiiiiit ettt (23,975) - (23,975)
Net INVeStMENT INCOME .....c.uuiiiii et (266,069) 129 (265,940)
Securities Lending Income:
GIOSS EAIMINGS ..ttt 37,350 - 37,350
BOrrOWET REDAES ........iiiiiiiii e (30,130) - (30,130)
Administrative Expenses (Lending Agent) .............oooiiiiiii s (1,895) - (1,895)
Net Securities LENAING INCOME ... .oouuiiiiie e 5,325 - 5,325
Other Income:
Litigation Proceeds .. 335 - 335
TOTAL OPERATING ADDITIONS 88,587 7,313 95,900
DEDUCTIONS
DROP INtErest EXPENSE .....ouuiiiii it 23,050 - 23,050
Benefit and Claim Payments ... 359,356 - 359,356
Distributions from Pooled INVESIMENES .............ooiuiiiiiie e e e e en - 5,249 5,249
Administration ....... s 15,788 - 15,788
TOTAL OPERATING DEDUCTIONS 398,194 5,249 403,443
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (309,607) 2,064 (307,543)
Net Assets at Beginning of Year ... 5,464,436 2,362 5,466,798
NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR .... $ 5,154,829 $ 4,426 $ 5,159,255

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (In Thousands)

The City of San Diego (the “City”) adopted its current charter on April 7, 1931 and operates as a municipality in accordance
with State laws. Since adoption, the City Charter has been amended several times. The most recent amendments were
added with voter approval of Propositions A, B and C during the June 3, 2008 election and Propositions C and D in the
November 4, 2008 election. Some of the amendments, which were effective as of the issuance of this report, include a more
clear separation of the City’s internal auditing function from supervision of the Manager (Mayor) by creating the new office of
the City Auditor, which is supervised by a restructured Audit Committee. The Audit Committee consists of two
Councilmembers, one being chair, and three public members. The public members must have at least 10 years of
professional auditing or accounting experience, and are appointed by the Council. Prop C (June 3, 2008 election) also provides
that the Manager (Mayor) will appoint, with Council confirmation, the CFO who will assume the City's accounting
responsibilities and oversee the City Treasurer. The measure also made the Office of the IBA permanent, which would
otherwise have expired if the strong-mayor form of government does not get approved permanently in the year 2010.

The accounting policies of the City conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
(“GAAP”) as applicable to governmental units. The following is a summary of the City’s significant accounting policies:

a. Einancial Reporting Entity

As required by GAAP, these financial statements present the primary government and its component units, entities for
which the primary government is considered to be financially accountable.

Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are, in substance, part of the primary government's
operations and as a result, data from these units are combined with data of the primary government (references within this
document to “the City” are referring to the primary government). Component units should be included in the reporting
entity financial statements using the blending method if either of the following criteria is met:

i.  The component unit’s governing body is substantively the same as the governing body of the primary government
(the City).

ii. The component unit provides services entirely, or almost entirely, to the primary government or otherwise
exclusively, or almost exclusively, benefits the primary government even though it does not provide services directly
to it.

Included within the reporting entity as blended component units are the following:

e  Centre City Development Corporation

e  City of San Diego/Metropolitan Transit Development Board Authority
e  Community Facilities and Other Special Assessment Districts

e Convention Center Expansion Financing Authority

e  Public Facilities Financing Authority

e Redevelopment Agency of the City of San Diego

e San Diego Data Processing Corporation

e San Diego Facilities and Equipment Leasing Corporation

e San Diego Industrial Development Authority
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e  San Diego Open Space Park Facilities District #1

e  Southeastern Economic Development Corporation
e  San Diego City Employees’ Retirement System

e Tobacco Settlement Revenue Funding Corporation
e Tourism Marketing District

A brief description of each blended component unit follows:

e Centre City Development Corporation, Inc. (CCDC) is a not-for-profit public benefit corporation established in 1975 to
administer certain redevelopment projects in downtown San Diego and to provide redevelopment advisory services to the
Redevelopment Agency of the City of San Diego. CCDC'’s budget and governing board are approved by the City Council
and services are provided exclusively to the primary government. CCDC is reported as a governmental fund. Financial
statements can be requested from Centre City Development Corporation, 225 Broadway, Suite 1100, San Diego,
California 92101.

e The City of San Diego/Metropolitan Transit Development Board Authority (MTDB Authority) is a financing authority which
was established in 1988 and acquires and constructs mass transit guide ways, public transit systems, and related
transportation facilities primarily benefiting the residents of the City of San Diego. The City appoints two Council members
to the governing board and the MTDB appoints one. The MTDB Authority primarily provides services to the primary
government. The MTDB Authority is reported as a governmental fund. Financial statements can be requested from the
Office of the City Comptroller, 202 C Street, San Diego, California 92101.

e The City maintains various Community Facilities, Maintenance Assessment and Business Improvement Districts to pay for
the construction, maintenance and improvement of community facilities and infrastructure. The governing body of Special
Assessment Districts and Community Facilities Districts (special districts) is the City Council. Among its duties, it
approves the budgets of special districts, parcel fees, special assessments, and special taxes. The special districts are
reported in governmental fund types.

e The Convention Center Expansion Financing Authority (CCEFA) was established in 1996 to acquire and construct the
expansion to the existing convention center. During the period reported, the governing board was administered by the
Mayor, the Port of San Diego Director, and a member of the Board of Commissioners for the Port of San Diego. The
CCEFA provides services which primarily benefit the primary government. CCEFA is reported as a governmental fund.
Financial statements can be requested from the Office of the City Comptroller, 202 C Street, San Diego, California 92101.

e The Public Facilities Financing Authority (PFFA) was established in 1991 and currently acquires and constructs public
capital improvements. PFFA is governed by a five member board appointed by the primary government. PFFA provides
services exclusively to the primary government. Financing for governmental funds is reported as a governmental activity
and financing for enterprise funds is reported as a business-type activity. Financial statements can be requested from the
Office of the City Comptroller, 202 C Street, San Diego, California 92101.

e The Redevelopment Agency of the City of San Diego (RDA) was established in 1958 in order to provide a method for
revitalizing deteriorating and blighted areas of the City and began functioning in 1969 under the authority granted by the
community redevelopment law. The City Council is the governing board and the RDA is reported as a governmental fund.
Complete stand-alone financial statements can be requested from the Office of the City Comptroller, 202 C Street, San
Diego, California 92101.
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e  San Diego Data Processing Corporation (SDDPC) was formed in 1979 as a not-for-profit public benefit corporation for the
purpose of providing data processing services. SDDPC's budget and governing board are approved by the City Council.
SDDPC provides services almost exclusively to the primary government. SDDPC is reported as an Internal Service Fund.
Financial statements can be requested from San Diego Data Processing Corporation, 5975 Santa Fe Street, San Diego,
California 92109.

e The San Diego Facilities and Equipment Leasing Corporation (SDFELC) is a not-for-profit public benefit corporation
established in 1987 for the purpose of acquiring and leasing to the City real and personal property to be used in the
municipal operations of the City. The City Council appoints two of the three members of the governing board and services
are exclusively to the primary government. Financing for governmental funds is reported as a governmental activity and
financing for enterprise funds is reported as a business-type activity. Financial statements can be requested from the
Office of the City Comptroller, 202 C Street, San Diego, California 92101.

e  The San Diego Industrial Development Authority (SDIDA) was established in 1983 by the City for the purpose of providing
an alternate method of financing to participating parties for economic development purposes. The City Council is the
governing board. SDIDA is reported as a governmental fund. Financial statements can be requested from the Office of
the City Comptroller, 202 C Street, San Diego, California 92101.

e The San Diego Open Space Park Facilities District #1 (SDOSPFD) was established in 1978 by the City for the purpose of
acquiring open space properties to implement the Open Space Element of the City's General Plan. The boundaries are
contiguous with those of the City. The City Council is the governing board. SDOSPFD is reported as a governmental
fund. Financial statements can be requested from the Office of the City Comptroller, 202 C Street, San Diego, California
92101.

e  Southeastern Economic Development Corporation (SEDC) is a not-for-profit public benefit corporation organized in 1980
by the City to administer certain redevelopment projects in southeast San Diego and to provide redevelopment advisory
services to RDA. SEDC’s budget and governing board are approved by the City Council and services are provided either
to the City or on behalf of the City. SEDC is reported as a governmental fund. Financial statements can be requested
from the Southeastern Economic Development Corporation, 995 Gateway Center Way, Suite 300, San Diego, California
92102.

e San Diego City Employees’ Retirement System (SDCERS) was established in 1927 by the City and administers
retirement, post employment healthcare, disability, and death benefits. Currently, SDCERS also administers the Port of
San Diego and the San Diego County Regional Airport Authority defined benefit plans.

SDCERS is a legally separate, blended component unit of the City of San Diego. It is managed by a Board of
Administration, the majority of which is appointed by the City of San Diego, and a Pension Administrator who does not
report to, or work under the direction of the elected officials or appointed managers of the City of San Diego. SDCERS
provides services almost exclusively to the primary government. Additionally, during the period reported, SDCERS
utilized legal counsel independent of the City of San Diego. As such, the City does not maintain direct operational
oversight of SDCERS or its financial reports.

SDCERS is reported as a pension and employee savings trust fund. Complete stand-alone financial statements can be

requested from the San Diego City Employees’ Retirement System, 401 West A Street, Suite 400, San Diego, California
92101.
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e The Tobacco Settlement Revenue Funding Corporation (TSRFC) is a not-for-profit public benefit corporation established
in 2006 for the purpose of acquiring the Tobacco Settlement Revenues allocated to the City from the State of California,
pursuant to the Master Settlement Agreement. TSRFC is governed by the Board of Directors which consists of two
officials of the City and one independent director. The independent director shall be appointed by the Mayor or the
remaining directors. TSRFC is reported as a governmental fund. Financial statements can be requested from the Office
of the City Comptroller, 202 C Street, San Diego, California, 92101.

e  The Tourism Marketing District (TMD) is an assessment district created, in fiscal year 2008, by the City on behalf of larger
hotel and motel operators within the City. The TMD provides for tourism development, including coordinated joint
marketing and promotion of San Diego, in order to maintain and expand the tourism industry. The TMD procedural
ordinance establishes a method by which benefited businesses may be assessed for the cost of activities associated with
tourism development within their respective area. The governing body of the TMD is the City Council. Among its duties, it
will initiate proceedings to establish a district upon submission of a written petition, signed by the business owners in the
proposed district who will pay more than 50 percent of the assessments proposed to be levied, and will approve the
district management plan which includes an annual budget, frequency for levying assessments, and number of years
assessments will be levied. The TMD is reported as a governmental fund.

Discretely presented component units, which are also legally separate entities, have financial data reported in a separate
column from the financial data of the primary government to demonstrate they are financially and legally separate from the
primary government.

There are two entities which are discretely presented component units:

e San Diego Convention Center Corporation (SDCCC)

SDCCC is a not-for-profit public benefit corporation originally organized to market, operate and maintain the San Diego
Convention Center. On August 1, 1993, SDCCC assumed similar responsibility for the Civic Theatre. The City is the sole
member of SDCCC and acts through the San Diego City Council in accordance with the City Charter and the City’s
Municipal Code. The City appoints seven voting members out of the nine-member Board of Directors of SDCCC. The
City is liable for any operating deficits and would be secondarily liable for any debt issuances of SDCCC. SDCCC is
discretely presented because it provides services directly to the citizens. Complete stand-alone financial statements can
be requested from San Diego Convention Center Corporation, 111 West Harbor Drive, San Diego, California 92101.

e  San Diego Housing Commission (SDHC)

SDHC is a government agency which was formed by the City under Ordinance No. 2515 on December 5, 1978 in
accordance with the Housing Authority Law of the State of California. SDHC primarily serves low-income families by
providing rental assistance payments, rental housing, loans and grants to individuals and not-for-profit organizations and
other services. Members of the Board of Commissioners are appointed by the Mayor and confirmed by the City Council.
SDHC is discretely presented because it provides services directly to the citizens. Complete stand-alone financial
statements can be requested from San Diego Housing Commission, 1122 Broadway, Suite 300, San Diego, California
92101.

Each blended and discretely presented component unit has a June 30 fiscal year-end.
b.  Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities) report
information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary government and its component units. Governmental
activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-
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type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is
reported discretely from certain legally separate component units for which the primary government is financially
accountable.

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment are
offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable as to a specific function or segment.
Direct expenses reported include administrative and overhead charges. Program revenues include (1) charges to
customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given
function or segment and (2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements
of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported
instead as general revenues and contributions.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, the latter of
which are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual governmental funds and major
individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

c. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting. and Financial Statement Presentation

Government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual
basis of accounting, as are the proprietary and fiduciary funds financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned
and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are
recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as
soon as all eligibility requirements have been met.

The business-type activities and proprietary funds financial statements apply all effective pronouncements of the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”). In addition, these statements apply all Accounting Principles
Board Opinions (“APBO”) and Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Statements and Interpretations issued on
or before November 30, 1989, except those that conflict with GASB pronouncements. The City has elected not to apply
all FASB Statements and Interpretations issued after November 30, 1989.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial statements.
Exceptions to this general rule are payments-in-lieu of taxes and other charges between the government's water and
sewer functions and various other functions of the government. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs
and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned.

All internal service funds, except for the Special Engineering Fund, have been included within governmental activities in
the government-wide financial statements since they predominantly benefit governmental functions. The Special
Engineering Fund, which services exclusively water and sewer activities, has been included within business-type activities
in the government-wide financial statements.

Amounts reported as program revenues include (1) charges to customers for goods, services, or privileges provided, (2)
operating grants and contributions, and (3) capital grants and contributions, including special assessments. General
revenues include all taxes and investment income.

Governmental funds financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and
the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available.
Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to
pay liabilities of the current period.
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Revenues which are considered susceptible to accrual include: real and personal property taxes; other local taxes;
franchise fees; fines, forfeitures and penalties; motor vehicle license fees; rents and concessions; interest; and state and
federal grants and subventions, provided they are received within 60 days from the end of the fiscal year.

Licenses and permits, including parking citations and miscellaneous revenues are recorded as revenues when received in
cash because they generally are not measurable until actually received.

Expenditures are recognized when the related fund liability is incurred except for (1) principal and interest of general long-
term debt which are recognized when due; and (2) employee annual leave and claims and judgments from litigation which
are recorded in the period due and payable since such amounts will not currently be liquidated with expendable available
financial resources.

The governmental funds financial statements do not present long-term debt, but the related debt is shown in the
reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Government-Wide Statement of Net Assets. Bond
premiums, discounts and issuance costs are recognized during the current period.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues and
expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary
fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the City’s proprietary funds are charges to
customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for proprietary funds include the cost of sales and services,
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are
reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held by the City in a trustee capacity or as an agent for individuals,
private organizations, and/or other governmental units, and include pension and employee savings trust, investment trust,
and agency funds. Pension and Employee Savings Trust Funds are reported using the same measurement focus and
basis of accounting as Proprietary Funds. Agency funds are reported using the accrual basis of accounting.

The following is the City’s major governmental fund:

General Fund - The General Fund is the principal operating fund of the City. It is used to account for all financial
resources, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The following are the City's major Enterprise Funds:

Sewer Utility Fund - The sewer utility fund is used to account for the operation, maintenance and development of the
City's sewer system. The City's sewer utility fund includes activities related to the performance of services for
Participating Agencies.

Water Utility Fund - The water utility fund is used to account for operating and maintenance costs, replacements,
betterments, expansion of facilities, and payments necessary in obtaining water from the Colorado River and the State
Water Project.

The following are the City's other fund types:

Internal Service Funds - These funds account for vehicle and transportation, printing, engineering, data processing, and
storeroom services provided to City departments on a cost-reimbursement basis. Internal service funds also account for
self-insurance activities, including workers’ compensation and long-term disability programs, which derive revenues from
rates charged to benefiting departments. This fund type also accounts for the public liability reserve, which was
established for the purpose of paying liability claims.
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Pension and Employee Savings Trust Funds - These funds account for the San Diego City Employees’ Retirement
System, the Supplemental Pension Savings Plan (SPSP), and the 401(k) Plan.

Investment Trust Fund - This fund was established to account for equity that legally separate entities have in the City
Treasurer's investment pool. The Automated Regional Justice Information System (ARJIS), the San Diego Graphic
Information Source (SanGIS), and the Abandoned Vehicle Abatement (AVA) are all legally separate entities which have
cash invested in the City Treasurer’s investment pool.

Agency Funds - These funds account for assets held by the City as an agent for individuals, private organizations, and
other governments, including federal and state income taxes withheld from employees, parking citation revenues, and
certain employee benefit plans.

d. Property Taxes

The County of San Diego (the “County”) assesses, bills, and collects property taxes on behalf of numerous special
districts and incorporated cities, including the City of San Diego. The City’s collections of the current year's taxes are
received through periodic apportionments from the County.

The County’s tax calendar is from July 1 to June 30. Property taxes attach as a lien on property on January 1. Taxes are
levied on July 1 and are payable in two equal installments on November 1 and February 1, and become delinquent after
December 10 and April 10, respectively. Since the passage of California’s Proposition 13, beginning with fiscal year
ended 1979, general property taxes are based either on a flat 1% rate applied to the 1975-76 full value of the property or
on 1% of the sales price of any property sold or of the cost of any new construction after the 1975-76 valuation. Taxable
values of properties (exclusive of increases related to sales and new construction) can increase by a maximum of 2% per
year. The Proposition 13 limitation on general property taxes does not apply to taxes levied to pay the debt service on
any indebtedness approved by the voters prior to June 6, 1978 (the date of passage of Proposition 13).

At the government-wide level, property tax revenue is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes have been levied.
Property taxes received after the fiscal year in which they were levied are not considered available as a resource that can
be used to finance the current year operations of the City and, therefore, are recorded as deferred revenue in the
governmental funds. The City provides an allowance for uncollected property taxes of 3% of the outstanding balance
which reflects historical collections.

Property owners can appeal the assessment value of their property to the County Assessment Appeals Board. If
successful, the County Assessor may reduce the taxable value of a property and/or provide a refund to affected property
owners. Reductions of taxable property value within the City of San Diego will have a negative impact on future tax
collections until assessed valuations increase.

e. Cash and Investments

The City’s cash and cash equivalents for Statement of Cash Flows purposes are considered to be cash on hand, demand
deposits, restricted cash, and investments held by the City Treasurer in a cash management investment pool and
reported at market value. Cash equivalents reported in the Statement of Cash Flows for the Water and Sewer Utilities do
not include restricted investments represented as Restricted Cash and Investments with a maturity date greater than
ninety days.
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The City’s cash resources are combined to form a cash and investment pool managed by the City Treasurer (the pool).
The pool is not registered as an investment company with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) nor is it a
2a7-like pool. The investment activities of the Treasurer in managing the pool are governed by California Government
Code § 53601 and the City's Investment Policy, which is reviewed by the Investment Advisory Committee and approved
annually by the City Council. Interest earned on pooled investments is allocated to participating funds and entities based
upon their average daily cash balance during the allocation month. Fair market value adjustments to the pool are
recorded annually; however, the City Treasury reports on market values monthly. The value of the shares in the pool
approximates the fair market value of the pool.

The pool participates in the California State Treasurer’'s Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF). Investments in LAIF are
governed by State statutes and overseen by a five member Local Investment Advisory Board. The fair value of the City’s
position in LAIF may be greater or less than the value of the shares. Investments in LAIF are valued in these financial
statements using a fair value factor provided by LAIF applied to the value of the City’s shares in the investment pool.

It has been the City’s policy to allow the General Fund to receive interest earned by certain governmental funds, internal
service funds and agency funds, unless otherwise expressly stated in the resolutions creating individual funds. During the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, approximately $9,236 interest was assigned from various funds to the General Fund.
These transactions caused an increase to the “transfers from other funds” amount for the General Fund and caused a like
increase to the “transfer to other funds” amount for the fund disbursing the interest. In the case of negative interest, these
transactions caused an increase to the “transfers from other funds” amount for the fund transferring the negative interest
and caused a like increase to the “transfer to other funds” amount for the General Fund.

Certain governmental funds maintain investments outside of the City’s investment pool. These funds are supervised and
controlled by a five member Funds Commission which is appointed by the Mayor and confirmed by the City Council. The
Funds Commission engages money managers to direct the investments of these funds. Additionally, the City and its
component units maintain individual accounts pursuant to bond issuances and major construction contracts which may or
may not be related to debt issuances. The investment of these funds is governed by the policies set forth in individual
indenture and trustee agreements. Certain component units of the City also participate in LAIF separately from the City
Treasurer’s investment pool.

All City investments are reported at fair value in accordance with the GASB 31, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Certain Investments and External Investment Pools. Note 3 of the notes to the financial statements contain additional
information on permissible investments per the City investment policy and other policies applicable to the cash and
investments reported herein.

The discharge of fiduciary duties by SDCERS’ Board is governed by Section 144 of the City Charter and Article XV,
Section 17 of the California State Constitution. Investment decisions are made on a risk versus return basis in a total
portfolio context. SDCERS' Board has the authority to delegate investment management duties to outside advisors, to
seek the advice of outside investment counsel, and to provide oversight and monitoring of the investment managers it
hires. Furthermore, under the California State Constitution and other relevant authorities, SDCERS’ Board may, at its
discretion, and when prudent in the informed opinion of the Board, invest funds in any form or type of investment, financial
instrument, or financial transaction, unless otherwise limited by the San Diego City Council. SDCERS’ agents, in
SDCERS’ name, manage all investments.

SDCERS’ investments are reported at fair value in the accompanying Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets. SDCERS’
custodian, State Street Bank & Trust Company, provides the market values of exchange traded assets. In the case of
debt securities acquired through private placements, SDCERS'’ contract investment advisors compute fair value based on
market yields and average maturity dates of comparable quoted securities. Short-term investments are reported at cost
or amortized cost, which approximates fair value. Real estate equity investment fair values are based on either annual
valuation estimates provided by SDCERS’ contract real estate advisors or by independent certified appraisers. Fair value
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of investments in commingled funds of publicly traded securities are based on the funds’ underlying asset values
determined from published market prices and quotations from major investment firms.

f.  |nventories

Inventories reported in the government-wide financial statements and the proprietary funds financial statements, which
consist of water in storage and supplies, are valued at the lower of cost or market. Such inventories are expensed when
consumed using primarily the first-in, first-out (FIFO) and weighted-average methods, respectively. Inventory supplies of
governmental funds are recorded as expenditures when purchased.

g. Land Held for Resale

Land Held for Resale, purchased by RDA, is reported in the government-wide and fund financial statements at the lower
of cost or net realizable value.

h. Deferred Charges

In the government-wide and proprietary funds financial statements, Deferred Charges represent the unamortized portion
of bond issuance costs. These costs will be amortized over the life of the related bonds using a method which
approximates the effective yield method.

i.  Capital Assets

Non-depreciable Capital Assets, which include land and construction-in-progress, are reported in the applicable
governmental or business-type activities column in the government-wide financial statements, as well as in the Proprietary
Fund’s financial statements.

Depreciable Capital Assets, which include structures and improvements, equipment, distribution and collection systems,
and infrastructure, are reported net of accumulated depreciation in the applicable governmental or business-type activities
column in the government-wide financial statements, as well as in the Proprietary Fund'’s financial statements. To meet
the criteria for capitalization, an asset must have a useful life in excess of one year and in the case of equipment outlay,
must equal or exceed a capitalization threshold of five thousand dollars. All other capital assets such as land, structures,
infrastructure, and distribution and collection systems are capitalized regardless of cost. Subsequent improvements are
capitalized to the extent that they extend the initial estimated useful life of the capitalized asset, or improve the efficiency
or capacity of that asset. Costs for routine maintenance are expensed as incurred. Interest expense incurred during the
construction phase of business-type capital assets are reflected in the capitalized value of the asset constructed. During
fiscal year 2008, $12,955 of interest expense incurred was capitalized, which is calculated net of related interest revenue
of $3,504.
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Capital assets, when purchased or constructed, are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost. Donated
capital assets are recorded at the estimated fair market value on the date of donation. Depreciation of capital assets is
computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of the asset as follows:

Assets Years

Structures and Improvements

Buildings 40-50

Building Improvements 15-40
Equipment

Automobiles and Light Trucks 5-10

Construction and Maintenance Vehicles 5-20

General Machinery and Office Equipment 3-30
Distribution and Collection Systems

Sewer Pipes and Water Mains 15-150

Reservoirs 100 - 150
Infrastructure

Pavement and Traffic Signals 12-50

Bridges 75

Hardscape 20-50

Flood Control Assets 40-75

Disposition and Development Agreements

RDA and McMillin-NTC, LLC entered into a Disposition and Development Agreement (DDA), dated June 26, 2000, and a
Third Implementation Agreement, dated May 6, 2003, which were executed for the purpose of effectuating the
Redevelopment Plan at the Naval Training Center Redevelopment Project, in addition to constructing and installing
additional infrastructure improvements as required by the City. The developer has agreed to advance the funds needed
to pay for infrastructure costs. RDA has consistently reimbursed McMillin-NTC, LLC for eligible costs as they are billed,
therefore, this agreement is not treated as a loan, and instead expenditures are recognized as payments are made to the
developer and a corresponding capital asset is recorded in the government-wide financial statements.

On March 30, 2004 RDA entered into a DDA with Western Pacific Housing for a condominium development project in the
North Park Redevelopment Project Area. Under the agreement, RDA promised to pay the maximum aggregate principal
amount of $3,000, of which $2,100 represents the Affordability component of RDA’s Payment Obligation, and $900
represents the Public Improvement component. The Affordability component is subject to an adjustment based on the
actual project sales revenue proceeds received by the Developer. This adjustment amount cannot be computed until all
45 affordable units are sold. The principal amount outstanding bears simple interest at a rate equal to 5% per annum.
Solely for the purposes of calculating the amount of interest payable, the developer shall be deemed to have paid an
amount equal to 25% of RDA’s Payment Obligation as of the date which is 195 days after closing of escrow, 50% as of
the date which is 390 days after closing of escrow, 75% as of the date which is 585 days after closing of escrow, and
100% at the completion date, which is the date on which the release of construction covenants under the agreement have
been recorded in the official records of the San Diego County. For purposes of calculating the amount of interest payable,
the principal amounts stated above will be reduced by a 10% per annum applied on a pro rata basis for the period of time
the Developer is not in compliance with the schedule of performance dates stated in the agreement for commencement
and completion of construction. All payments shall be made from the site-generated property tax increment. To date,
only the $900, representing the Public Improvement component of RDA’s Payment Obligation, has been recognized as a

72

CoMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT



CiTy oF SAN DiEGco CoMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

liability since the remaining $2,100, representing the Affordability component of RDA's Payment Obligation, is subject to
adjustment upon final sales of all 45 affordable units. As of the issuance of this report, there are two remaining units to be
sold.

On April 4, 2004, RDA approved a DDA for the development and construction of a 12-story, mixed-use commercial
building. RDA was responsible for the purchase of a 5,000 square feet parcel for the proposed site. The developer paid a
purchase price for the acquisition parcel equal to the sum of all acquisition and relocation costs. The property was
conveyed to the developer in the current fiscal year. Because the developer advances were recognized as revenue at the
time the property was acquired in prior fiscal years, no additional revenue was recognized for the disposition of the
property, resulting in a loss to RDA equal to the book value of the land in the current fiscal year.

On July 21, 2003, RDA entered into a DDA with Citymark Farenheit LLC (“Developer”). Pursuant to the DDA, RDA sold a
property to the developer for a purchase price of $3,500 and a contingent portion for the sale of each of the for-sale
market-rate residential units developed on the property. Proceeds from the sale of the property resulted in a gain which
was recognized at the time RDA conveyed the property to the developer. Revenue from the sale of each unit is
recognized at the time the unit is sold and the revenue is received by RDA.

k. Unearned/Deferred Revenue

In the government-wide and all fund level financial statements, unearned revenue represents amounts received which
have not been earned. The government-wide financial statements include revenues earned from developer credits, which
are not reported in governmental funds because they are non-monetary transactions. In the governmental funds financial
statements, deferred revenue represents revenues which have been earned but have not met the recognition criteria
based on the modified accrual basis of accounting.

. Interfund Transactions
The City has the following types of interfund transactions:

Loans — amounts provided with a requirement for repayment. Interfund loans are normally reported as interfund
receivables (i.e. Due from Other Funds) in lender funds and interfund payables (i.e. Due to Other Funds) in borrower
funds. The non-current portions of long-term interfund loans receivable are reported as advances. There is one interfund
loan between the Facilities Benefit Assessments (FBA) Fund and the Sewer Utility Fund, for developer fees owed for the
Carmel Valley Trunk sewer project, which is reported as an Interfund Loan Receivable/Payable at the fund level and
included with Internal Balances on the government-wide Statement of Net Assets.

Services provided and used - sales and purchases of goods and services between funds for a price approximating their
external exchange value. Interfund services provided and used are reported as revenues in seller funds and expenditures
or expenses in purchaser funds. Unpaid amounts are reported as interfund receivables and payables in the fund balance
sheets or fund statements of net assets.

Reimbursements - repayments from the funds responsible for particular expenditures or expenses to the funds that
initially paid for them. Reimbursement is reported as expenditures or expenses in the reimbursing fund and a reduction of
expenditures or expenses in the paying fund.

Transfers — flows of assets (such as cash or goods) without equivalent flows of assets in return, and without a
requirement for repayment. In governmental funds, transfers are reported as other financing uses in the funds making
transfers and as other financing sources in the funds receiving transfers. In proprietary funds, transfers are reported after
non-operating revenues and expenses.
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m. Long-Term Liabilities

In the government-wide and proprietary funds financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are
reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary funds statements of
net assets. Capital appreciation bond accretion, bond premiums and discounts, and bond refunding gains and losses are
amortized over the life of the bonds using a method which approximates the effective yield method. Net bonds payable
reflects amortized bond accretion and unamortized bond discounts, premiums and refunding gains and losses.

n.  Sundry Trust Liabilities

Under approval of certain agreements, developers submit to RDA an initial deposit to ensure the developer proceeds
diligently and in good faith to negotiate and perform all of the obligations under the agreement. These deposits can
normally be used for administrative costs of RDA. In the government-wide financial statements and in the fund financial
statements, the unspent portion of these deposits, called Sundry Trust Liabilities, are reported as liabilities of RDA.

0. Compensated Absences

The City provides combined annual leave to cover both vacation and sick leave. Itis the City’s policy to permit employees
to accumulate between 8.75 weeks and 17.5 weeks of earned but unused annual leave, depending on hire date.
Accumulation of these earnings will be paid to employees upon separation from service.

The liability for compensated absences reported in the government-wide, proprietary and fiduciary fund financial
statements consists of unpaid, accumulated vacation and sick leave balances. The liability has been calculated using the
vesting method, in which leave amounts for both employees who currently are eligible to receive termination payments
and other employees who are expected to become eligible in the future to receive such payments upon termination are
included. The liability has been calculated based on the employees’ current salary level and includes salary related costs
(e.g. Social Security and Medicare Tax). A liability for these amounts is reported in governmental funds only if they have
matured, for example, as a result of employee resignations and retirements.

p. Claims and Judgments

The costs of claims and judgments are accrued when incurred and measurable in the government-wide financial
statements and both proprietary and fiduciary funds financial statements. In governmental funds, the costs of claims and
judgments are recorded as expenditures when payments are due and payable.

q. Non-Monetary Transactions

The City, as part of approving new development in the community planning process, requires that certain public facilities
be constructed per the provisions of community financing plans. Historically, the City has agreed to pay a pro rata share
of these assets. In lieu of providing direct funding for these assets, the City often provides developers with credits (also
referred to as FBA credits) for future permit fees. These credits are earned by the developer upon successful completion
of construction phases and when City engineers have accepted the work. The credits are recognized as permit revenue
upon issuance and a corresponding capital asset is recorded in the government-wide financial statements.

r.  NetAssets
In the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, net assets are categorized as follows:

e Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, and
reduced by outstanding debt attributed to the acquisition of these assets.
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e Restricted Net Assets consist of assets with restrictions imposed on them by external creditors, grantors,
contributors, laws and regulations of other governments, or law through constitutional provisions or enabling
legislation. It is the City’s policy to first apply restricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes which
both restricted and unrestricted net assets are available. As of June 30, 2008, the amount of restricted net assets
due to enabling legislation was approximately $281,562.

e Unrestricted Net Assets consist of net assets that do not meet the definition of Invested in Capital Assets, Net of
Related Debt or Restricted Net Assets.

s.  Fund Balance

In the fund financial statements, portions of fund equity of governmental funds have been reserved for specific purposes.
Reservations are created to either (1) satisfy legal covenants that require a portion of the fund balance to be segregated,
or (2) identify the portion of the fund balance that is not appropriable for future expenditures.

Designated fund balance indicates that portion of fund equity for which the City has made tentative plans.
Undesignated fund balance indicates that portion of fund equity which is available for appropriation in future periods.

t.  Reserves

City Charter Section 91 titled “General Reserve Fund” was approved by the voters on November 6, 1962. This section
requires the City Council to create and maintain a General Reserve Fund for the purpose of keeping the payment of
running expenses of the City on a cash basis. Section 91 requires the reserve be maintained in an amount sufficient to
meet all legal demands against the City Treasury for the first four months or other necessary period of each fiscal year
prior to the collection of taxes. This fund may be expended only in the event of a public emergency by the affirmative vote
of two-thirds of the City Council. The argument for this charter section given by the Citizens Charter Review Committee,
commissioned in 1962, was to “strengthen the financial position of the City through the more efficient utilization of tax
monies by reducing the amount of taxes collected and lying idle during a great part of the year, and through focusing
responsibility for fiscal policies on the elected City Council.”

On February 28, 1984, the City Attorney’s Office issued Opinion No. 84-3 which addresses issues in regards to the City’s
compliance with the funding requirements of Charter Section 91. Such opinion stated, “To the extent that the legislative
body approves the issuance of short term notes, commonly referred to as Tax or Revenue Anticipation Notes, pursuant to
Section 92 titled “Borrowing Money on Short Term Notes”; or authorizes temporary loans to any tax-supported fund from
any other funds in the treasury pursuant to Section 93 titled “Loans and Advances’, the General Reserve Fund required
under section 91 can be reduced.” Therefore, the funding requirements of Charter Section 91 have been satisfied through
a combination of the General Fund reserve of $75,339 reported within the General Fund column of the Governmental
Funds Balance Sheet in Undesignated Fund Balance, and the provisions set forth in Charter Sections 92 and 93 for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2008.

In September 2007, the City Attorney’s Office issued a new opinion that supersedes, in part, the opinion issued on
February 28, 1984. The revised opinion states that the Charter Section 91 General Reserve must be a separate, legal
fund. This fund, separate from the General Fund, must be funded if not at a “four month operating expenditure” level then
at a level of such “other necessary funding.” The City Attorney’s Opinion referenced the guidance of the Government
Finance Officer's Association, which recommends a level between 5% and 15% of operating expenditures as the
benchmark for interpreting the required funding level that meets the intent of the City’s voters. Per the City Attorney’s
opinion, the City has created a separate General Reserve in fiscal year 2008, and the General Fund reserve monies were
transferred to that separate reserve and reported therein in all future financial statements. The City Council also approved
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the Mayor’s “City Reserve Policy” with Ordinance 19679 on November 13, 2007. This is a formal fiscal reserve policy
that establishes a General Fund Reserve that will be set at a minimum of 8% of annual General Fund Revenues. The
policy provides that the City shall reach this level of funding no later than fiscal year 2012.

The City also has an internal reserve policy in relation to certain governmental long term liabilities which are repaid with
Transient Occupancy Tax revenues. When the liabilities are incurred by the City, the City creates policy reserves equal to
one half of the annually required lease payments in the form of a rate stabilization reserve for each liability. The purpose
of the internal reserve is to make the lease payments when they are due; even if there are unanticipated fluctuations in
the Transient Occupancy Tax receipts that could potentially impact the timely payment of lease payments for such
liabilities. In addition to the internal rate stabilization reserve, the City may also maintain cash funded debt service reserve
funds or surety guarantees with trustees in accordance with the bond indentures that exist for these liabilities.

As of June 30, 2008, the following is a schedule of all such internal stabilization reserves (in whole dollars) by fund:

Internal Stabilization Reserve CAFR Section CAFR Column Amount
Convention Center Expansion Special Revenue Transient Occupancy Tax $ 6,850,531
Petco Park (PFFA-Ballpark) Special Revenue Transient Occupancy Tax 5,700,000
Balboa Park (SDFELC) Special Revenue Transient Occupancy Tax 3,286,878
Trolley (MTDB) Special Revenue Public Transportation 2,043,591
$ 17,881,000
u. Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of certain assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities, and the related amounts of revenues and expenses. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
Management believes that the estimates are reasonable.

v. New Governmental Accounting Standards

The requirements for the following accounting standards are effective for the purpose of implementation, for the City, for
fiscal year ended June 30, 2008.

In June 2004, GASB issued Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Employers for Postemployment
Benefits Other than Pensions, which addresses how state and local governments should account for and report their
costs and obligations related to postemployment healthcare, as well as other forms of postemployment benefits (for
example, life insurance) when provided separately from the pension plan. These benefits are commonly referred to as
postemployment benefits, or OPEB. The Statement generally requires that employers account for and report on the
annual cost of OPEB and the outstanding obligations related to OPEB in the same manner as they do pensions. Annual
OPEB cost will be based on actuarially determined amounts that, if paid on an ongoing basis, generally would provide
sufficient resources to pay benefits as they come due. This Statement's provisions may be applied prospectively and do
not require governments to fund their OPEB plans. This Statement also establishes disclosure requirements for
information about the plans in which an employer participates, the funding policy followed, the actuarial valuation process
and assumptions, and, for certain employers, the extent to which the plan has been funded over time. [Refer to Note 13,
Other Postemployment Benefits, for details.]

In September 2006, GASB issued Statement No. 48, Sales and Pledges of Receivables and Future Revenues and Intra-
Entity Transfers of Assets and Future Revenue. Governments sometimes exchange an interest in their expected cash
flows from collecting specific receivables or specific future revenues for immediate cash payments-generally, a single
lump sum. The financial reporting addressed by this Statement is whether that transaction should be regarded as a sale
or as a collateralized borrowing resulting in a liability. This Statement establishes criteria that governments will use to
ascertain whether the proceeds received should be reported as revenue or as a liability. This Statement also includes
guidance to be used for recognizing other assets and liabilities arising from a sale of specific receivables or future
revenues, including residual interests and recourse provisions. The disclosures pertaining to future revenues that have
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been pledged or sold are intended to provide financial statement users with information about which revenues will be
unavailable for other purposes and how long they will continue to be so. [Refer to Note 5, Governmental Activities Long-
Term Liabilities, and Note 6, Business-Type Activities Long-Term Liabilities, for details.]

In May 2007, GASB issued Statement No. 50, Pension Disclosures — An Amendment of GASB Statements No. 25 and
No. 27. This Statement amends GASB Statement 25 Financial Reporting for Defined Benefit Pension Plans and Note
Disclosures for Defined Contribution Plans (GASB Statement 25) and GASB Statement 27 Accounting for Pensions by
State and Local Governmental Employers GASB Statement 27) to require defined benefit pension plans to present notes
to financial statements that disclose the funded status of the plan as of the most recent actuarial valuation date. Defined
benefit pension plans also should disclose actuarial methods and significant assumptions used in the most recent
actuarial valuation in notes to financial statements instead of in notes to required supplementary information (RSI). [Refer
to Note 12, Pension Plans and Note 13, Other Postemployment Benefits for details.]
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2. RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (In Thousands)

Certain adjustments are necessary to reconcile governmental funds to governmental activities (which includes all
internal service funds except the Special Engineering Fund). The reconciliation of these adjustments is as follows:

a. Explanation of certain differences between the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet and the Government-wide
Statement of Net Assets:

The Governmental Funds Balance Sheet includes a reconciliation between “Total Fund Balances-Governmental
Funds” and “Total Net Assets-Governmental Activities” as reported in the Government-wide Statement of Net
Assets. One element of the reconciliation states, “Other assets and liabilities used in governmental activities are
not financial resources (uses), and therefore, are either deferred or not reported in the funds.” The details of this
$94,910 difference are as follows:

Deferred Charges, net, July 1, 2007 $ 17,296
Issuance Costs 3,618
Amortization Expense (1,039)

Deferred Charges, net, June 30, 2008 19,875

Deferred Revenue:

Taxes Receivable 20,682
Sales Taxes Receivable 3,489
Notes Receivable 3,107
Motor Vehicle License Receivable 318
Special Assessments Receivable 2,061
Grants and Other Receivables 45,378

Deferred Revenue, net, June 30, 2008 75,035

Net Adjustment to increase "Total Fund Balances-Governmental
Funds" to arrive at "Total Net Assets-Governmental Activities" $ 94,910

Another element of the reconciliation states, “Certain liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable
in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds.” The details of this ($1,731,204) difference are

as follows:

Interest Accrued on Long-Term Debt $ (22,316)
Compensated Absenses (66,601)
Liability Claims (12,990)
Capital Leases Payable (35,811)
Contracts Payable (2,615)
Notes Payable (5,662)
Loans Payable (34,777)
Section 108 Loans Payable (35,896)
Net Bonds Payable (1,335,063)
Accretion of Interest on Capital Appreciation Bonds (12,837)
Net Pension Obligation (138,902)
Net OPEB Obligation (27,734)
Net adjustment to decrease "Total Fund Balances-Governmental

Funds" to arrive at "Total Net Assets-Governmental Activities" $ (1,731,204)
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Another element of the reconciliation states, “Internal Service Funds are used by management to charge the costs
of activities such as Fleet Services, Print Shop, Self Insurance, and Central Stores to individual funds. The assets
and liabilities of certain Internal Service Funds are included in the governmental activities in the Statement of Net
Assets. The details of this ($27,156) difference are as follows:

Assets:
Capital Assets - Non Depreciable $ 1,984
Capital Assets - Depreciable 107,806
Internal Balances 3,031
Other Assets 145,087
Liabilities:
Compensated Absences (8,224)
Liability Claims (219,458)
Capital Lease Obligations (25,451)
Net Other Post Employment Benefits Obligation (1,138)
Net Pension Obligation (2,832)
Other Liabilities (27,961)
Net adjustment to decrease "Total Fund Balances-Governmental
Funds" to arrive at "Total Net Assets-Governmental Activities" $ (27,156)

Explanation of certain differences between the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances and the Government-wide Statement of Activities:

The Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances includes a
reconciliation between “Net Change in Fund Balances-Total Governmental Funds” and “Changes in Net Assets of
Governmental Activities” as reported in the Government-wide Statement of Activities. One element of that
reconciliation explains, “Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of
activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation
expense.” The details of this $59,360 difference are as follows:

Capital Projects $ 132,432
Other Capital Activities 46,762
Depreciation Expense (119,834)

Net Adjustment to increase "Net Changes in Fund Balances-
Total Governmental Funds" to arrive at "Changes in Net
Assets of Governmental Activities" $ 59,360
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Another element of the reconciliation states “The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital
assets (i.e., donations, retirements, and transfers) is to decrease net assets.” The details of this ($30,736) are as
follows:

In the Statement of Activities, only the net gain on the sale of land is reported.
However, in the governmental funds, the proceeds from the sale increase
financial resources. Thus, the change in net assets differs from the change in
fund balances by the net book value of the capital assets sold/retired. $ (214)

Transfers of capital assets to Business-Type activities decrease net assets in the
Statement of Activities, but do not appear in the governmental funds because
they are not financial resources. (20,387)

The Statement of Activities reports losses arising from the retirement of existing
depreciable capital assets. Conversely, governmental funds do not report any
gain or loss on retirements of capital assets. (10,135)

Net adjustment to decrease "Net Change in Fund Balances-Total Governmental
Funds" to arrive at "Changes in Net Assets of Governmental Activities" $ (30,736)

Another element of the reconciliation states, “Internal Service Funds are used by management to charge the costs
of activities such as Fleet Services, Publishing Services, Central Stores, Self Insurance, and others to individual
funds.” The net expense of certain Internal Service activities is reported with governmental activities. The details
of this $27,847 are as follows:

Allocated Operating Profit $ 9,020
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
Loss on Sale/Retirement of Capital Assets (3,899)
Other Nonoperating Revenues 5,508
Transfers 17,057
Capital Contributions 161

Net adjustment to increase "Net Changes in Fund Balances-Total Governmental
Funds" to arrive at "Changes in Net Assets of Governmental Activities” $ 27,847
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Another element of the reconciliation states “The issuance of long-term debt (i.e., bonds, leases) provides current
financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal consumes the current financial
resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net assets.” The details of this
($62,922) difference are as follows:

Debt Issued or Incurred:

Capital Leases $ (14,561)
Loans Payable (16,063)
Special Tax Bonds (3,950)
Tax Allocation Bonds (69,000)
Pooled Financing Bonds (34,985)
Principal Repayments:
Capital Leases 4,081
Contracts/Notes Payable 2,893
Loans Payable 61
Section 108 Loans 3,535
SANDAG Loans 2,287
G.0. Bonds 2,125
Revenue Bonds 22,260
Special Assessment Bonds/Special Tax Bonds 4,770
Tax Allocation Bonds 13,016
Tobacco Settlement Asset-Backed Bonds 3,330
Pooled Financing Bonds 870
Transfer of Capital Lease to Business-Type Activities 6,264
Refundings:
Tax Allocation Bonds 10,145

Net adjustment to decrease "Net Changes in Fund Balances-Total
Governmental Funds" to arrive at "Changes in Net Assets of
Governmental Activities" $ (62,922)

Another element of the reconciliation states that “Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not
require the use of current financial resources (i.e., compensated absences, net pension obligation) and therefore
are not accrued as expenses in governmental funds.” The details of this ($13,282) difference are as follows:

Compensated Absences $ (1,059)
Net Pension Obligation/Net OPEB Obligation (11,954)
Accrued Interest (1,060)
Current Year Premiums/Discounts and Interest Accretion

Less Amortization of Bond Premiums (1,788)
Issuance Costs Less Current Year Amortization 2,579

Net adjustment to decrease Net Changes in Fund Balances -
Total Governmental Funds to arrive at Changes in Net
Assets of Governmental Activities $ (13,282)
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3. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (In Thousands)

The following is a summary of the carrying amount of cash and investments:

Fiduciary Statement SDCERS
Governmental ~ Business-Type of Net Assets Fiduciary Statement Grand
Activities Activities other than SDCERS Subtotal of Net Assets Total
Cash and Cash or Equity in
Pooled Cash and Investments $ 1358621 § 654233 § 37618 §2050472 $ 5122 § 2,055,594
Cash and Investments with Fiscal Agent 147 556 71,181 111 218,848 501,400 720,248
Investments at Fair Value 249,135 167,142 735,099 1,151,376 4,311,902 5,463,278

Securities Lending Collateral - - - 674,085 674,085
TOTAL § 1755312 § 892596 § 772828 $342069% § 5492509  § 8913205

a. Cash and Cash or Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments

Cash and Cash or Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments represents petty cash, cash at the bank in demand
deposit and/or savings accounts, and cash in escrow for contract retention payables. Furthermore, it represents
equity in pooled cash and investments, which is discussed in further detail below.

As provided for by California Government Code, the cash balances of substantially all funds and certain outside
entities are pooled and invested by the City Treasurer for the purpose of increasing interest earnings through
investment activities. The respective funds' shares of the total pooled cash and investments are included in the
table above, under the caption Cash and Cash or Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments.

The following represents a summary of the items included in the Cash and Cash or Equity in Pooled Cash and
Investments line item:

Cash on Hand - Petty Cash $ 204
Deposits - Held in Escrow Accounts 3,287
Deposits - Cash and Cash Equivalents (Not Pooled) 1,310
Deposits - Cash and Cash Equivalents (Pooled) 4414
Pooled Investments in the City Treasury 2,046,379
Total Cash and Cash or Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments $ 2,055,594
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A summary of the investments held by the City Treasurer’s investment pool as of June 30, 2008 is presented in
the table below:

Interest
Rate
Investment Fair Value Book Value % Range Maturity Range

U.S. Treasury Bills $ 19931 § 19,876 121%  * 9/11/2008

U.S. Treasury Notes & Bonds 749,162 742,093 1.75-4.88% 5/15/2009-1/15/2011
U.S. Agency Discount Notes 417,503 414992 2.02-3.88% * 7/3/2008-3/27/2009
U.S. Agency Notes & Bonds 511,841 510,705  2.43-5.88% 9/17/2008-1/9/2012
Commercial Paper 153,677 152999  2.16-341% *  7/1/2008-1/23/2009
Corporate Notes & Bonds 82,076 81,556  3.13-6.88%  12/15/2008-10/27/2009
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 24,040 24,041 418% 1/29/2009
Repurchase Agreement 83,149 83,149 2.35% 71112008
Certificates of Deposit (CDARS) 5,000 5,000 3.78% 3/20/2009

$ 2046379 § 2,034,411

* Discount Rates
** LAIF - Fair Value is adjusted to account for LAIF factor. Maturity range is based on weighted average maturity of 212 days.

The following represents a condensed statement of net assets and changes in net assets for the City Treasurer's
cash and investment pool as of June 30, 2008:

Statement of Net Assets
Deposit - Cash and Cash Equivalents (Pooled) $ 4,414
Investments of Pool Participants 2,046,379
Accrued Interest Receivable of Internal Pool Participants 13,086
Accrued Interest Receivable of External Pool Participants 22
Total Cash, Investments, and Interest Receivable $ 2,063,901
Equity of Internal Pool Participants $ 2,059,475
Equity of External Pool Participants (SanGIS, ARJIS & AVA) ** 4,426
Total Equity $ 2,063,901
**Voluntary Participation

Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Net Assets Held for Pool Participants at July 1, 2007 $ 1,824,425
Net Change in Investments by Pool Participants 239,476
Total Net Assets Held for Pool Participants at June 30, 2008 $ 2,063,901

b. Cash and Investments with Fiscal Agents

Cash and Investments with Fiscal Agents represents cash and investments held by fiscal agents resulting from
bond issuances. More specifically, these funds represent reserves held by fiscal agents or trustees as legally
required by bond issuances and liquid investments held by fiscal agents or trustees which are used to pay debt
service. Under the Fiduciary Statement of Net Assets, Cash and Investments with Fiscal Agent represents the
City’s balance for the Preservation of Benefit Plan (POB Plan). The POB Plan is a qualified governmental excess
benefit arrangement (QEBA) under Internal Revenue Code (IRC) section 415(m) and is discussed in further detail
in Note 12.

The San Diego City Employees’ Retirement System (SDCERS) portion of Cash and Investments with Fiscal
Agents represents funds held as cash collateral from market neutral portfolios (domestic fixed income investment
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strategy). Furthermore, it represents transaction settlements, held in each investment manager’s portfolio, which
are invested overnight by SDCERS'’ custodial bank.

¢. Investments at Fair Value

Investments at Fair Value represents investments of the City's Supplemental Pension Savings Plan, 401(k) Plan,
San Diego City Employees’ Retirement System (SDCERS), investments managed by the City Treasurer (which
are not part of the pool), investments reported by San Diego Data Processing Corporation (SDDPC), and
investments managed by the Funds Commission (e.g. Cemetery Perpetuity, Effie Sergeant, Gladys Edna Peters,
Los Penasquitos Canyon, and the Edwin A. Benjamin Library Fund).

d. Investment Policy

In accordance with City Charter Section 45 and under authority annually approved by the City Council, the City
Treasurer is responsible for the safekeeping and investment of the unexpended cash in the City Treasury
according to the City Treasurer's Investment Policy (the “Policy”). This Policy applies to all of the investment
activities of the City except for the pension trust funds, the proceeds of certain debt issues, which are managed
and invested at the direction of the City Treasurer in accordance with the applicable indenture or by Trustees
appointed under indenture agreements or by fiscal agents, and the assets of trust funds, which are placed in the
custody of the Funds Commission by Council ordinance.

City staff reviews the Policy annually and may make revisions based upon changes to the California Government
Code and the investment environment. These suggested revisions are presented to the Investment Advisory
Committee (IAC) for review and comments. The IAC consists of two City representatives and three outside
financial professionals with market and portfolio expertise not working for the City of San Diego. The City Council
reviews the Policy and considers approval on an annual basis.

The IAC evaluates the horizon returns, risk parameters, security selection, and market assumptions the City’s
investment staff is using when explaining the City's investment returns. The IAC also meets semi-annually to
review the previous two quarters’ investment returns and make recommendations to the City Treasurer on
proposals presented to the IAC by the Treasurer's staff.

The Policy is governed by the California Government Code (CGC), Sections 53600 et seq. The following table
presents the authorized investments, requirements, and restrictions per the CGC and the City Policy:

Investment Type Maximum Maximum % Maximum % with Minimum
Maturity (1 of Portfolio One Issuer Rating
CGC  City Policy CGC  City Policy CGC City Policy CGC City Policy
U.S. Treasury Obligations (bills, bonds, or notes) 5 years 5 years None None None None None None
U.S. Agencies 5 years 5 years None 2) None 2 None None
Bankers' Acceptances (6) 180 days 180 days 40% 40% 30% 10% None (3)
Commercial Paper (6) 270 days 270 days 25% 25% 10% 10% P1 P1
Negotiable Certificates (6) 5 years 5 years 30% 30% None 10% None (3)
Repurchase Agreements 1year 1year None None None None None None
Reverse Repurchase Agreements (4) 92 days 92 days 20% 20% None None None None
Local Agency Investment Fund N/A N/A None None None None None None
Non-Negotiable Time Deposits (6) 5 years 5 years None 25% None 10% None (3)
Medium Term Notes/Bonds (6) 5 years 5 years 30% 30% None 10% A A
Municipal Securities of California Local Agencies () 5 years 5 years None 20% None 10% None A
Mutual Funds N/A N/A 20% 5% 10% None AAA AAA
Notes, Bonds, or Other Obligations 5 years 5 years None None None None None AA
Mortgage Pass-Through Securities 5 years 5 years 20% 20% None None AA AAA
Financial Futures (5) N/A None None None None None None None

Footnotes:

(1) Inthe absence of a specified maximum, the maximum is 5 years.

(2) No more than one-third of the cost value of the total portfolio at time of purchase can be invested in the unsecured debt of any one agency.

(3) Credit and maturity criteria must be in accordance per Section X of the City's Investment Policy.

(4) Maximum % of portfolio for Reverse Repurchase Agreements is 20% of base value.

(5) Financial futures transactions would be purchased only to hedge against changes in market conditions for the reinvestment of bond proceeds.

(6) Investment types with a 10% maximum with one issuer are further restricted per the City's Investment Policy: 5% per issuer and an additional 5% with authorization by City Treasurer.
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According to the Policy, the City may enter into repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements only with primary
dealers of the Federal Reserve Bank of New York with which the City has entered into a master repurchase
agreement.

Additionally, the Policy authorizes investment in other specific types of securities. The City may invest in floating
rate notes with coupon resets based upon a single fixed income index (which would be representative of an
eligible investment), provided that security is not leveraged. Structured notes issued by U.S. government
agencies that contain imbedded calls or options are authorized as long as those securities are not inverse
floaters, range notes, or interest only strips derived from a pool of mortgages. A maximum of 8% of the “cost
value” of the pooled portfolio may be invested in structured notes.

In fiscal year 2008, the City deposited $5 million with Neighborhood National Bank to be invested as part of the
Certificate of Deposit Account Registry Service (CDARS). Under the City Treasurer’s Investment Policy, this type
of investment is subject to a 1% limit of total portfolio value for the City’s pooled investments. The CDARS
investment program is permissible per the California Government Code (CGC), Section 53601.8, and is subject to
a 30% limit of total portfolio value.

Ineligible investments prohibited from use in the portfolio include, but are not limited to, common stocks and long-
term corporate notes/bonds. A copy of the City Treasurer's Investment Policy can be requested from the City
Treasurer, 1200 3rd Avenue, Suite 1624, San Diego, CA 92101.

Other Investment Policies

The City currently has a Funds Commission whose role is to supervise and control all trust, perpetuity, and
investment funds of the City and such pension funds as shall be placed in its custody. The statutory authority for
the Funds Commission is created in the City Charter Article V, Section 41(a). While the duties described in the
creation document form broad authority for the Funds Commission, in practice, the Funds Commission only
oversees investments related to a small number of permanent endowments. The allowable investments for these
funds are different than those as prescribed in the City Treasurer's Investment Policy. Each permanent
endowment fund has its own separate investment policy. Copies of the individual investment policies can be
requested from the City Treasurer, 1200 3rd Avenue, Suite 1624, San Diego, CA 92101. Additionally, the City
and its component units have funds invested in accordance with various bond indenture and trustee agreements.

City of San Diego — Disclosures for Specific Risks
e. Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment.
Market or interest-rate risk for the City’s pooled investments is intended to be mitigated by establishing two
portfolios, a liquidity portfolio and a core portfolio. Target durations are based upon the expected short and long-
term cash needs of the City. The liquidity portfolio is structured with an adequate mix of highly liquid securities and
maturities to meet major cash outflow requirements for at least six months (per CGC Section 53646). The liquidity
portfolio uses the Merrill Lynch 3-6 month Treasury Index as a benchmark with a duration of plus or minus 40% of
the duration of that benchmark.

The core portfolio uses the Merrill Lynch 1-3 year Treasury Index as a benchmark with a duration of plus or minus
20% of the duration of that benchmark. It consists of high quality liquid securities with a maximum maturity of 5
years and is structured to meet the longer-term cash needs of the City. Information about the sensitivity of the fair
value of the City’s investments to market interest rate fluctuations is presented in the table on the next page.
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As of June 30, 2008, the City's investments (in thousands) by maturity are as follows:

Years Fair Value

Pooled Investments with City Treasurer: Under 1 1-3 35 QOver 5 (In Thousands)
U.S. Treasury Bills $ 1991 § -8 - -8 19,931
U.S. Treasury Notes 51,100 698,062 - - 749,162
U.S. Agencies - Federal Farm Credit Bank 25,133 40,056 - - 65,189
U.S. Agencies - Federal Home Loan Bank 175,217 90,241 - - 265,458
U.S. Agencies - Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation 243,749 75,833 10,097 - 329,679
U.S. Agencies - Federal National Mortgage Association 150,816 118,202 - - 269,018
Commercial Paper 153,677 - - - 153,677
Corporate Notes 56,357 25,719 - - 82,076
Non-Negoitable Certificate of Deposit (CDARS deposit) 5,000 - - - 5,000
Repurchase Agreement 83,149 - - - 83,149
State Local Agency Investment Fund 24,040 - - 24,040

988,169 1,048,113 10,097 - 2,046,379
Non-Pooled Investments with City Treasurer:
U.S. Treasury Bills 14,282 - - - 14,282
U.S. Treasury Notes 43,664 - - - 43 664
U.S. Agencies - Federal Farm Credit Bank 28,689 - - - 28,689
U.S. Agencies - Federal Home Loan Bank 21,380 - - - 21,380
U.S. Agencies - Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation 64,859 - - - 64,859
U.S. Agencies - Federal National Mortgage Association 110,733 - - - 110,733
Commerical Paper 100,698 - - - 100,698
Repurchase Agreements 9,351 - - - 9,351

399,656 - - - 399,656
Investments with Fiscal Agents, Funds Commission,
and Blended Component Units:
U.S. Treasury Bills 15,125 - - - 15,125
U.S. Treasury Bonds and Notes 40,502 69 - 416 40,987
U.S. Agencies - Federal Home Loan Bank 40447 - - - 40,447
U.S. Agencies - Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation 14,102 - - 302 14,404
U.S. Agencies - Federal National Mortgage Association 17,083 85 - - 17,168
Commercial Paper 10,856 - - - 10,856
Common Stock 3,264 - - - 3,254
Corporate Bonds and Notes 201 500 882 2,641 4224
Guaranteed Investment Contracts 20,507 - - 13,716 34223
Money Market Mutual Funds 47,252 - - - 47,252
Mortgage Backed Securities - Commercial - - 9% 9%
Mortgage Backed Securities - Government - 37 37
Mutual Funds - Equity 368,637 - - 368,637
Mutual Funds - Fixed Income 12,866 - 356,270 1,563 370,699
Repurchase Agreements 3,000 - - 3,000
Cash (with Fiscal Agents) 160 - - - 160

593,992 654 357,152 18,770 970,568
Total Investments § 1981817 5 1048767 § 367249 § 18,770 3,416,603
Total Deposits 9,011
Total Cash on Hand 204
Total Investments, Deposits, and Cash on Hand (Includes SDCERS Pooled Cash and Investments with the City - $5,122) § 3425818
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f.

Credit Risk

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the
investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating
organization. As of June 30, 2008, the City’s investments and corresponding credit ratings are as follows:

Pooled Investments with City Treasurer: Moody's S&P Fair Value Percentage
U.S. Treasury Bills Exempt Exempt $ 19,931 0.97%
U.S. Treasury Notes Exempt Exempt 749,162 36.62%
U.S. Agencies - Federal Farm Credit Bank Aaa N/A 65,189 3.19%
U.S. Agencies - Federal Home Loan Bank ! Aaa N/A 130,775 6.39%
U.S. Agencies - Federal Home Loan Bank ' P-1 N/A 134,683 6.58%
U.S. Agencies - Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation ! Aaa N/A 156,891 7.67%
U.S. Agencies - Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation ' Aa2 N/A 15,792 0.77%
U.S. Agencies - Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation ! P-1 N/A 156,996 7.67%
U.S. Agencies - Federal National Mortgage Association ° Aaa N/A 118,202 5.78%
U.S. Agencies - Federal National Mortgage Association ° P-1 N/A 150,816 7.31%
Commercial Paper P-1 N/A 153,677 7.51%
Corporate Notes Aaa N/A 10,168 0.50%
Corporate Notes Aa1 N/A 19,940 0.97%
Corporate Notes Aa2 N/A 15,551 0.76%
Corporate Notes Aa3 N/A 29,378 1.44%
Corporate Notes A1 N/A 7,039 0.34%
Non-Negotiable Certificate of Deposit (CDARS deposit) Not Rated Not Rated 5,000 0.24%
Repurchase Agreements Not Rated Not Rated 83,149 4.06%
State Local Agency Investment Fund Not Rated Not Rated 24,040 1.17%

Subtotal - Pooled Investments 2,046,379 100.00%

Non-Pooled Investments with City Treasurer:

U.S. Treasury Bills Exempt Exempt 14,282 3.57%
U.S. Treasury Notes Exempt Exempt 43,664 10.93%
U.S. Agencies - Federal Farm Credit Bank ! P-1 N/A 23,667 5.92%
U.S. Agencies - Federal Farm Credit Bank Aaa N/A 5,022 1.26%
U.S. Agencies - Federal Home Loan Bank ! P-1 N/A 26,844 6.72%
U.S. Agencies - Federal Home Loan Bank ' Not Available AAA 536 0.13%
U.S. Agencies - Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation * P-1 N/A 64,859 16.24%
U.S. Agencies - Federal National Mortgage Association ° P-1 N/A 96,197 24.06%
U.S. Agencies - Federal National Mortgage Association 1 Aaa N/A 14,536 3.64%
Commerical Paper P-1 A1+ 100,698 25.19%
Repurchase Agreements Not Rated Not Rated 9,351 2.34%

Subtotal - Non-Pooled Investments 399,656 100.00%

"Exempt" - Per GASB 40, U.S. Treasury Obligations do not require disclosure of credit quality.

"N/A" - S&P rating not applicable, Moody's rating provided.

"Not Available" - Bloomberg credit history did not have Moody's ratings, only S&P ratings.

" More than 5% of total investments are with U.S. Agencies whose debt is backed by full faith and credit of the U.S. Government, as of September 2008.

(continued on next page)
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Investments with Fiscal Agents, Funds Commission, Moody's S&P Fair Value Percentage
and Blended Component Units:
U.S. Treasury Bills Exempt Exempt $ 15,125 1.56%
U.S. Treasury Bonds and Notes Exempt Exempt 40,987 4.22%
U.S. Agencies - Federal Home Loan Bank ' Aaa N/A 6,057 0.62%
U.S. Agencies - Federal Home Loan Bank ! Not Available AAA 2,598 0.27%
U.S. Agencies - Federal Home Loan Bank ' Not Available A1+ 31,792 3.28%
U.S. Agencies - Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation ' Aaa N/A 302 0.03%
U.S. Agencies - Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation f P-1 N/A 12,776 1.33%
U.S. Agencies - Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation ' Not Available A1+ 1,326 0.14%
U.S. Agencies - Federal National Mortgage Association ! Aaa N/A 85 0.01%
U.S. Agencies - Federal National Mortgage Association P-1 N/A 11,000 1.13%
U.S. Agencies - Federal National Mortgage Association Not Available AAA 6,083 0.63%
Commercial Paper Not Available A1+ 10,856 1.12%
Common Stock Not Rated Not Rated 3,254 0.34%
Corporate Bonds and Notes Aa1 N/A 100 0.01%
Corporate Bonds and Notes Aa2 N/A 833 0.09%
Corporate Bonds and Notes Aa3 N/A 469 0.05%
Corporate Bonds and Notes A1 N/A 1,031 0.10%
Corporate Bonds and Notes A2 N/A 1,520 0.16%
Corporate Bonds and Notes A3 N/A 101 0.01%
Corporate Bonds and Notes Baal N/A 170 0.02%
Guaranteed Investment Contracts Not Rated Not Rated 34,223 3.53%
Money Market Mutual Funds Aaa N/A 47,252 4.87%
Mortgage Backed Securities - Commercial Aaa N/A 9 0.01%
Mortgage Backed Securities - Government Not Rated Not Rated 37 0.01%
Repurchase Agreements Not Rated AAA 3,000 0.31%
Mutual Funds - Equity Not Rated Not Rated 368,637 37.98%
Mutual Funds - Fixed Income Not Rated Not Rated 370,699 38.14%
Cash (with Fiscal Agents) Not Rated Not Rated 160 0.03%
Subtotal - Other Investments 970,568 100.00%
Total Investments 3,416,603
Total Deposits 9,011
Total Cash on Hand 204
Total Investments, Deposits, and Cash on Hand* § 3425818

*(includes SDCERS Pooled Cash and Investments with the City - $5,122)

"Exempt" - Per GASB 40, US Treasury Obligations do not require disclosure of credit quality.
"N/A" - S&P rating not applicable, Moody's rating provided.

"Not Available" - Bloomberg credit history did not have Moody's ratings, only S&P ratings.
" More than 5% of total investments are with U.S. Agencies whose debt is backed by full faith and credit of the U.S. Govenment, as of September 2008.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the relative size of an investment in a single issuer. As
of June 30, 2008, the City exceeded the 5% limit of total investments for issuers of various U.S. Agencies.
Investments exceeding the 5% limit are referenced in the credit ratings table above. Investments issued or
explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. government and investments in mutual funds, external investment pools, and
other pooled investments are exempt.
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g. Custodial Credit Risk

Deposits

At June 30, 2008, the carrying amount of the City's cash deposits was approximately $5,724, and the bank
balance was approximately $28,915, the difference of which is substantially due to outstanding checks. For the
balance of cash deposits in financial institutions, approximately $5,480 was covered by federal depository
insurance and approximately $23,435 was uninsured. Pursuant to the California Government Code, California
banks and savings and loan associations are required to secure the City’s deposits not covered by federal
depository insurance by pledging government securities as collateral. As such, $20,810 of the City’s deposits are
pledged at 110% and held by a bank acting as the City’s agent, in the City's name. The City is exposed to
custodial credit risk for the remaining $2,625, which is uninsured and uncollateralized. The amount subject to
custodial credit risk includes approximately $2,574 in deposits relating to San Diego Data Processing Corporation
and $51 in deposits relating to Southeastern Economic Development Corporation, Inc.

The City also has deposits held in escrow accounts with a carrying amount and bank balance of approximately
$3,287. For the balance of deposits in escrow accounts, approximately $963 was covered by federal depository
insurance. The remaining balance of $2,324 was uninsured. Pursuant to the California Government Code,
California banks and savings and loans associations are required to secure the City’'s deposits in excess of
insurance by pledging government securities as collateral. As such, $2,324 of the City’s deposits in escrow
accounts are collateralized and pledged at 110%.

Investments
The City's investments at June 30, 2008 are categorized as described below:
Category 1: Insured or registered, with securities held by the City or its agent in the City's name.

Category 2: Uninsured and unregistered, with securities held by the counterparty's trust department
or agent in the City's name.

Category 3: Uninsured and unregistered, with securities held by the counterparty, or by its trust
department or agent but not in the City's name.

Non-Categorized: Includes investments made directly with another party, real estate, direct investments in
mortgages and other loans, open-end mutual funds, pools managed by other
governments, annuity contracts, and guaranteed investment contracts.

At June 30, 2008, the City had investments exposed to custodial credit risk. Investments within the Cemetery
Perpetuity Fund's portfolio were held by Northern Trust Bank, and were not in the City's name. The following
summarizes the investment types and amounts that are exposed to custodial credit risk and are classified

Category 3:
Investment Type Fair Value
U.S. Treasury Bonds and Notes $ 788
U.S. Agencies 388
Corporate Bonds and Notes 4,224
Mortgage Backed Securities - Commercial 95
Mortgage Backed Securities - Government 37
Common Stock 3,254
Total $ 8,786
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h.

Restricted Cash and Investments

General Fund
TRANS Repayment

Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Reserved for Debt Service
Permanent Endowments

Total Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Environmental Services Enterprise Fund
Funds set aside for landfill site closure and maintenance costs

Water Utility Enterprise Fund

Customer deposits
Interest and redemption funds

Total Water Utility Enterprise Fund

Sewer Utility Enterprise Fund
Interest and redemption funds

Miscellaneous Agency Funds
Retention held in escrow

Total Restricted Cash and Investments

Summary of Total Cash and Investments
(In Thousands)

Total Unrestricted Cash and Investments
Total Restricted Cash and Investments

Total Cash and Investments

Total Governmental Activities
Total Business-Type Activities
Total Fiduciary Activities

Total Cash and Investments
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Cash and investments at June 30, 2008 that are restricted by legal or contractual requirements are comprised of
the following:

$ 116,383

350,348
17,254

367,602
36,523

4,855
191,449

196,304
46,839

3,287
$ 766,938

$ 8,146,267
766,938
$ 8,913,205

$ 1755312
892,556
6,265,337

$ 8,913,205
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San Diego City Employees’ Retirement System (SDCERS) - Disclosures for Policy and Specific Risks

Summary of Cash and Investments — San Diego City Employees’ Retirement System

Cash or Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments with the City of San Diego $ 5122
Cash and Cash Equivalents on Deposit with Custodial Bank and Fiscal Agents 501,400
Investments at Fair Value:
Short-Term Investments 42,268
Domestic Fixed Income Securities 998,630
International Fixed Income Securities 183,122
Domestic Equity Securities 1,780,841
International Equity Securities 819,511
Directly Owned Real Estate Assets and Real Estate Equity Securities 487,530
Securities Lending Collateral 674,085
Total Cash and Investments for SDCERS $ 5,492,509

Narratives and tables presented in the following sections (i. through r.) are taken directly from the comprehensive
annual financial report of the San Diego City Employees’ Retirement System, as of June 30, 2008, issued
December 15, 2008.

i.  Investment Policy

Investments for the pension trust fund are authorized to be made by the Board of Administration of the SDCERS
(Board) in accordance with Section 144 of the City Charter and the California State Constitution Article XV,
Section 17. The Board is authorized to invest in any securities that are allowed by general law for savings banks.
The Board may also invest in additional investments as approved by resolution of the San Diego City Council.
These investments include, but are not limited to, bonds, notes and other obligations, real estate investments,
common stock, preferred stock, and pooled vehicles. Additionally, investment policies permit SDCERS’ Board to
invest in financial futures contracts provided the contracts do not leverage SDCERS’ Trust Fund portfolio.
Financial futures contracts are recorded at fair value each day and must be settled at expiration date. Changes in
the fair value of the contracts will result in the recognition of a gain or loss under GASB Statement No. 25.

Investment earnings from the pension trust fund are accounted for in accordance with GASB Statement No. 25.
Net investment income includes the net appreciation/depreciation in the fair value of investments, interest income,
dividend income, and other income not included in the change in the fair value of investments, less total
investment expenses (including investment management/custodial fees and all other significant investment-
related costs). SDCERS had realized gains (income earnings and net gains) that totaled $294,974 for the year
ended June 30, 2008. Pursuant to the San Diego Municipal Code, realized gains and losses determine whether
contingent benefits will be paid each fiscal year.

SDCERS'’ investments include fixed income strategies to diversify the investment portfolio. The percentage
allocated to these strategies is based on efficient model portfolios developed from an annual asset allocation
study. SDCERS’ target asset allocation policy is reviewed annually to reflect changes in capital market
assumptions. As of June 30, 2008, SDCERS’ target allocation to fixed income strategies was 34%. The fixed
income allocation is externally managed and is comprised as follows: 18% to core-plus domestic fixed income, 9%
to an unsecuritized market neutral strategy, 4% to non-U.S. fixed income, and 3% to convertible bond securities.

The market neutral and convertible bond strategies do not exhibit interest rate risk, and duration is not relevant in
structuring these portfolios. Both strategies have a low correlation to fixed income assets and provide additional
diversification to the portfolio’s fixed income allocation. The balance of SDCERS’ fixed income portfolio (22%
target of total invested assets) is sensitive to interest rate risk and credit risk. SDCERS employs two core-plus
managers for its domestic income strategy. One of SDCERS'’ fixed income managers has tactical discretion to
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invest in non-U.S. fixed income securities while the other domestic core-plus manager is limited to U.S. fixed
income investments only.

A copy of the SDCERS investment policy and additional details on the results of the system’s investment activities
are available at 401 West A Street, Suite 400, San Diego, CA 92101.

j- Interest Rate Risk

SDCERS uses duration to measure how changes in interest rates will affect the value of its fixed income
portfolios. Convertible bonds are typically not subject to interest rate risk because convertible bonds are usually
positively correlated to interest rate movements compared to other fixed income securities. As of June 30, 2008,
SDCERS’ domestic convertible bond portfolio had nine securities which had interest rate sensitivity. These
securities, convertible bonds and preferred stock, have been included in the presentation of interest rate risk
exposure.

The following table displays the durations for SDCERS’ domestic and international fixed income strategies based
on portfolio holdings as of June 30, 2008.

Fixed Income Portfolios (Domestic and International)
Portfolio Duration Analysis as of June 30, 2008

Effective
Duration Fair Value '
Type of Security (in years) (in thousands)
Collateralized Mortgage Obligations
Collateralized Mortgage Obligations 4.24 $ 149,907

Corporates

Convertible Bonds 10.30 125,573

Corporate Bonds 422 289,591

Preferred Stock 743 19,498
Government & Agency Obligations

FHLMC 4.80 38,025

FNMA 4.62 329,492

GNMA | 4.56 5,271

GNMAII 145 1,077

Government Issues 5.24 226,936

Municipals 8.20 7,982
Asset-Backed Securities

Asset-Backed Securities 2.91 30,964
Short-Term/Other

Short-Term 0.25 21,023

Options-Futures 0.00 (69)
Total $ 1,245,270

' Fair Value is different from Plan Net Asset investments by $21,251, as the Fair Value includes preferred stock holdings that have a duration,
and it excludes credit default swaps, mutual funds, and short-term investment funds for which duration cannot be calculated.

Source: SDCERS' CAFR as of June 30, 2008

93



City oF SAN DiEGo CoMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

k. Investments Highly Sensitive to Interest Rate Changes

SDCERS has investments that contain terms that increase the sensitivity of their fair values to increasing interest
rates. The total value of securities that are more highly sensitive to interest rate changes in the portfolio as of
June 30, 2008 are presented in the table below.

Percent of
Fair Value Fixed Income
(in thousands) Portfolio
Asset Backed Securities $ 3,826 0.313%
Interest Only Strips 1,442 0.118
Inverse Floating Rate Notes 3,774 0.308
Holdings with Greater 10 Years Duration 63,873 5218

Source: SDCERS' CAFR as of June 30, 2008

Although SDCERS holds such investments, this risk is mitigated by diversification of issuer, credit quality,
maturity, and security selection.

[.  Credit Risk

SDCERS’ fixed income portfolios are sensitive to credit risk. Unless information is available to the contrary,
obligations of the U.S. Government or obligations explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. Government are not
considered to have credit risk and do not require disclosure of credit quality. “NR” represents those securities that
are not rated and “NA” represents those securities that are not applicable to the rating disclosure requirements.
The tables on the following pages identify the credit quality for SDCERS’ domestic and international fixed income
strategies, based on portfolio holdings as of June 30, 2008.
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Credit Quality of SDCERS'
Fixed Income Strategies (Domestic and International)
As of June 30, 2008
S&P Moody's Total Collateralized U.S. Government International ~ International
Quality Quality FairValue  Mortgage & Agency Asset-Backed ~ Short-Term/  Inemational ~ Government ~ Asset-Backed
Rating Rafing  (inthousands)  Obligations Corporates’ Obligations? Securities Other Corporates  Obligations ~~ Securities
US. Treasury US.Treasuy § 73528 § - 8§ - § 73528 § - § - 9§ - § - §
AAA Aaa 482,318 68,496 5174 261,769 6,981 8,221 2,211 108,806
AAA Aa 94 - - 984
AM NR 72565 71,553 - - 1012
AAt Aaa 3067 - 1,986 - - - 1,081
AA Aaa 30221 - 844 - - - 9,603 19,774
AAt Aa 8210 - 8210
AAt Aal 566 - - 566
AAt A3 43 - - - 436 - -
AA Aa 16,655 - 14,280 574 - - 1,801
AA A2 4412 - 4019 393
AA Aa3 1317 - 3% - 979
AA NR 1,097 - 1,097 .
AA- Aaa 43 - - 443 - - -
AA- Aat 4018 - 301 - - - 941
AA- Aa2 4,653 - 423 - - - 430
AA- Aa3 37,264 - 36,376 - - - 888
AA- At 614 - 614
AA- Baat 1516 - 1,516
At Aa2 6,409 - 6,409 - - -
At Aa3 14,592 - 13,320 - - - 1212
At A 16,325 - 16,325
A+ Baat 4647 4,647 -
A Aaa 1867 - - - 1,867
A Aa2 278 - - 278
A Aa3 2113 - 2113
A A 17,230 - 17,230 - - -
A A2 2,19 - 19,943 - - - 249
A Baa3 781 - 781
A NR 765 - 765
A- Aa3 101 - 101
A A2 5032 - a7 - - - 915
A- A3 4,903 - 4,903
A- Baat 1626 - 7626 - -
A- Baa2 24 - - - 29
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Credit Quality of SDCERS'
Fixed Income Strategies (Domestic and International)
As of June 30, 2008

S&P Moody's Total Collateralized U.S. Government International ~ International
Quality Quality FairValue ~ Mortgage & Agency Asset-Backed  Short-Term/  Intemational ~ Government  Asset-Backed
Rafing Raing (nthousands) Oblgations  Corporales’  Obligatons’ Securities Oher  Comporates  Obligaions ~~ Securities
BBB+ Bat  § 4625 § - § 3604 § - % -4 -5 1S - §

BBB+ Baa2 8,126 - 1418 - 108

BBB+ Baad 473 - 473 - - - -

BBB+ R 1,766 - 1459 - - - 307

BBB A2 12 - 1 -

BBB A3 2,953 - 2488 - - - 465

BBB Baaf 1,560 - 149 - 68

BBB Baa2 4480 - 3,905 - 575

BBB Baad 4010 - 1027 2,983

BBB- Baa? 3012 - 3012

BBB- Bat 2,259 - 2,259

BBB- Baa3 1,285 - 1,285 - -

BBB- R 4438 - 460 - 3978

BB+ Bat 28 - 28 -

BB+ Ba2 481 - 481

BB+ Ba3 1397 - 1397

BB+ Baa3 9,044 - 6,873 - 21M

BB Bat 2017 - 2017 - -

BB Baa3 1,018 - - - 1018

BB- B3 342 - - - 342

BB- Ba2 180 180 -

BB- Ba3 1637 - 1637

B+ B 11 - 1

Bt B2 2,201 - 2207

B B1 4582 - 4582

B B3 2,164 - 2,164

NR M 5757 - 5,757 -

NR A2 1 - - - - 1

\R Aaa 18237 9,099 - - 1,564 - 1574

NR Aa2 1976 - - - - - 1976 -
NR Baa2 111 - - - - - K
NR NR 279,161 579 123,557 138,481 5571 10,973

Totals § 124019 § 149907 § 362200 § 9721 § 30854 S 1914 § 52911 129061 § K

" Corporates include convertible bonds from SDCERS' convertible bond manager.

ZIncludes municipal holdings as el

Source: SCDERS' CAFR as of June 30, 2008
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m. Concentration of Credit Risk

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the relative size of an investment in a single issuer. As
of June 30, 2008, no single issuer exceeded 5% of SDCERS' total investments. Investments issued or explicitly
guaranteed by the U.S. government and investments in mutual funds, external investment pools, and other pooled
investments are excluded. With respect to the concentration of credit risk, specific investment guidelines with
each manager place limitations on the maximum holdings in any one issuer.

n. Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk is the risk that if a financial institution or counterparty fails, SDCERS would not be able to
recover the value of its deposits, investments, or securities. SDCERS’ exposure to custodial credit risk is further
discussed in the following paragraphs.

Deposits

SDCERS' is exposed to custodial credit risk for uncollateralized cash and cash equivalents that are not covered
by federal depository insurance. At June 30, 2008, the amount of cash and cash equivalents on deposit with
SDCERS'’ custodial bank totaled $ 69,033.

Investments

As of June 30, 2008, 100% of SDCERS’ investments were held in SDCERS’ name. SDCERS is not exposed to
custodial credit risk related to these investments.

Securities Lending Collateral

SDCERS is exposed to custodial credit risk for the securities lending collateral such that certain collateral is
received in the form of letters of credit, tri-party collateral or securities collateral. The fair value of securities on
loan collateralized by these non-cash vehicles totaled $118,694 as of June 30, 2008 and are at risk as the
collateral for these loaned securities is not held in SDCERS’ name and cannot be sold without a borrower default.
The cash collateral held by SDCERS’ custodian in conjunction with the securities lending program, which totaled
$674,085 as of June 30, 2008, is also at risk as it is invested in a pooled vehicle managed by the custodian.

97



City oF SAN DiEGo CoMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

0. Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that changes in exchange rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment or a deposit. The following table represents SDCERS'’ securities (in thousands) held in a foreign
currency as of June 30, 2008.

Foreign Currency Risk '
As of June 30, 2008
(All values are in U.S. Dollars)

Local Currency Name Cash Equity Fixed income Total
Australian Dollar $ 845 $ 18,804 $ 13,162 $ 32,811
Canadian Dollar 174 17,329 2,845 20,348
Swiss Franc 196 55,033 - 55,229
Czech Koruna - 5,527 - 5,527
Danish Krone 2 7,381 4,454 11,837
Euro Currency 1,545 213,331 81,007 295,883
UK Pound 1,026 146,673 11,070 158,769
Hong Kong Dollar 580 29,469 - 30,049
Indonesian Rupiah - 4,563 - 4,563
Japanese Yen 2,303 138,107 52,193 192,603
South Korean Won 1 3,927 - 3,928
Norwegian Krone 444 1,086 - 1,530
New Zealand Dollar - 907 - 907
Swedish Krona 15 8,005 18,741 26,761
Singapore Dollar 238 3,546 - 3,784
South African Rand - 4,916 - 4,916
Totals $ 7,369 $ 658,604 $ 183,472 $ 849,445

"The foreign exchange exposure in SDCERS' international equity small cap value portfolio (an institutional mutual fund investment) is
not included in this disclosure.

Source: SCDERS' CAFR as of June 30, 2008

Foreign currency is comprised of international investment proceeds and income to be repatriated into U.S. dollars
and funds available to purchase international securities. Foreign currency is not held by SDCERS as an
investment. Foreign currency is held temporarily in foreign accounts until it is able to be repatriated or expended
to settle trades. A significant component of the diversification benefit of non-domestic investments comes from
foreign currency exposure. As such, SDCERS does not have a policy to hedge against fluctuations in foreign
exchange rates. SDCERS’ investment managers may hedge currencies at their discretion pursuant to specific
guidelines included in their investment management agreements.

p. Derivative Instruments

SDCERS’ investment managers, as permitted by specific investment guidelines, may enter into transactions
involving derivative financial instruments, consistent with the objectives established by the Board’'s Investment
Policy Statement. These instruments include futures, options and swaps. By Board policy these investment
vehicles may not be used to leverage SDCERS’ portfolio. These instruments are used primarily to enhance a
portfolio’s performance and to reduce its risk or volatility. The notional or contractual amount (in thousands) of
futures contracts as of June 30, 2008 was $417,354. The fair value (in thousands) of options and swaps included
in the short-term investments line on the SDCERS Statement of Plan Net Assets was ($1,636) as of June 30,
2008.
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Futures contracts are contracts in which the buyer agrees to purchase and the seller agrees to make delivery on a
specific financial instrument on a predetermined date and price. Gains and losses on futures contracts are settled
daily based on a notional principal value and do not involve an actual transfer of the specific instrument. Futures
contracts are standardized and are traded on exchanges. The exchange assumes the risk that counterparty will
not pay and generally requires margin payments to minimize such risk.

Option contracts provide the option purchaser with the right, but not the obligation, to buy or sell the underlying
security at a set price during a period or at a specified date. The option writer is obligated to buy or sell the
underlying security if the option purchaser chooses to exercise the option. SDCERS uses exchange-traded and
over-the-counter options. Options are sold and proceeds are received to enhance fixed income portfolio
performance. Option contracts sold were predominantly on money market and short-term instruments of less than
one-year to maturity. In call option contracts, if interest rates remained steady or declined during the option
contract periods, the contracts would expire unexercised. By contrast, in put option contracts, if interest rates rose
sufficiently to result in the purchase of the securities on or before the end of the option periods, this would occur at
prices attractive to the portfolio manager.

Swap agreements are used to modify investment returns or interest rates on investments. Swap transactions
involve the exchange of investment returns or interest rate payments without the exchange of the underlying
principal amounts. These swaps could expose investors entering into these types of arrangements to credit risk in
the event of non-performance by counterparties.

g. Real Estate

SDCERS' target allocation to real estate is 11%. The real estate investment program is structured with a target
allocation of approximately 30% in stable core real estate and approximately 70% to enhanced, high return and
opportunistic real estate opportunities. The 70% target is divided between REIT securities (25%) and limited
partnership investments in commingled real estate funds (45%). No more than 40% of SDCERS’ real estate
portfolio is allocated to non-U.S. real estate investment opportunities pursuant to a policy adopted by the Board in
FY 2007. As SDCERS adds non-U.S. investments to its real estate portfolio, new capital commitments will be
made to pool funds that target enhanced and high return strategies. As of June 30, 2008, unfunded capital
commitments totaled $156,889 and real estate investments totaled $487,530.

r.  Securities Lending Collateral

SDCERS has entered into an agreement with its custodial bank, State Street Bank & Trust Company, to lend
domestic and international equity and fixed income securities to broker-dealers and banks in exchange for
pledged collateral. A simultaneous agreement is entered into by which State Street agrees to return the collateral
plus a fee to the borrower in the future for return of the same securities originally lent. All securities loans can be
terminated on demand by either the lender or the borrower.

State Street manages the securities lending program and receives cash (United States and foreign currency),
securities issued or guaranteed by the United States government, sovereign debt rated “A” or better, Canadian
provincial debt, convertible bonds, and irrevocable letters of credit as collateral. State Street does not have the
ability to pledge or sell collateral securities delivered absent a borrower default. Borrowers are required to deliver
collateral for each loan equal to: (i) in the case of loaned securities denominated in United States dollars or
whose primary trading market was located in the United States or sovereign debt issued by foreign governments,
102% of the market value of the loaned securities; and (ii) in the case of loaned securities not denominated in
United States dollars or whose primary trading market was not located in the United States, 105% of the market
value of the loaned securities.

SDCERS had no credit risk exposure to borrowers because the amounts provided to State Street on behalf of
SDCERS, in the form of collateral plus accrued interest, exceeded the amounts broker-dealers and banks owed to
the State Street on behalf of SDCERS for securities borrowed. State Street has indemnified SDCERS by
agreeing to purchase replacement securities or return cash collateral in the event a borrower fails to return or pay
distributions on a loaned security. Non-cash collateral (securities and letters of credit) cannot be pledged or sold
without a borrower default and are therefore not reported as an asset of SDCERS for financial reporting purposes.
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The SDCERS securities lending transactions, collateralized by cash as of June 30, 2008 had a fair value of
$652,974 and a collateral value of $674,085, which were reported in the assets and liabilities in the accompanying
Statements of Plan Net Assets for the Group Trust in accordance with GASB Statement No. 28. As of June 30,
2008, the securities lending transactions collateralized by securities, irrevocable letters of credit, or tri-party
collateral had a fair value of $118,694 and a collateral value of $123,658, which were not reported in the assets or
liabilities in the accompanying Statements of Plan Net Assets for the Group Trust per GASB Statement No. 28.
The total collateral pledged to SDCERS at fiscal year end for its securities lending activities was $797,743.

The cash collateral received on lent securities was invested by State Street, together with the cash collateral of
other qualified tax-exempt plan lenders, in a collective investment pool. Because the securities loans were
terminable at will, their duration did not generally match the duration of the investments made with cash collateral.
As of June 30, 2008, the investment pool had an average duration of 41.84 days and an average weighted
maturity of 395.61 days for U.S. Dollar (USD) denominated collateral. Beginning in fiscal year 2007, the securities
lending program was expanded to allow the acceptance of Euro (EUR) denominated collateral. As of June 30,
2008, the Euro collateral pool had an average duration of 37 days and an average weighted maturity of 603 days.

Despite lending securities on a fully collateralized basis, SDCERS may encounter various risks related to
securities lending agreements. These risks include operational risk, borrower or counterparty default risk, and
collateral reinvestment risk. However, State Street is required to maintain its securities lending program in
compliance with applicable laws of the United States and all countries in which lending activities take place, and
all rules, regulations, and exemptions from time to time promulgated and issued under the authority of those laws.

Discretely Presented Component Units - Disclosures for Policy and Specific Risks
Narratives and tables presented in the following sections (s. through t.) are taken directly from the comprehensive
annual financial reports of the San Diego Convention Center Corporation and the San Diego Housing
Commission, as of June 30, 2008.

s.  San Diego Convention Center Corporation

Cash deposits and investments for SDCCC were categorized as follows at June 30, 2008:

Cash on hand $ 77
Deposits 902
Money market mutual funds 18,714
Certificates of deposit 1,282

Total cash and investments $ 20,975

Deposits (In Thousands)

On June 30, 2008, the carrying amount of the San Diego Convention Center Corporation’s (SDCCC) cash on
hand and deposits was $979 and the bank balance was $1,180. Of the bank balance, $362 was covered by
federal depository insurance. The remaining balance was either collateralized with the collateral held by an
affiliate of the counterparty’s financial institution or is uncollateralized, and therefore exposed to custodial credit
risk. SDCCC does not have a formal deposit and investment policy that addresses custodial credit risk.

Investments (In Thousands)

At June 30, 2008, SDCCC had a total investment balance of $19,996. The total investment balance includes
$18,714 in several money market mutual funds and $1,282 maintained in two certificates of deposit, which bear
an interest rate of 2.1% and 1.9%, and have maturities of less than one year. Neither the money market mutual
funds nor the certificates of deposit are rated by credit rating agencies. SDCCC does not have a formal deposit
and investment policy that addresses credit quality risk.
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t.  San Diego Housing Commission

Cash, cash equivalents, and investments at June 30, 2008 consisted of the following:

Deposits $ 770
Petty cash 5
Certificates of deposit 34,267
Repurchase Agreements 5,300
Agency Bonds 7,825
Local agency investment fund 39,880

Total cash and investments 88,047
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 656

Total $ 88,703

Deposits (In Thousands)

The carrying amount of the San Diego Housing Commission’s (SDHC) deposits and petty cash was $775 and the
bank balance was $1,566 at June 30, 2008. The bank balances were fully insured and/or collateralized with
securities held by the pledging financial institutions in SDHC's name. The California Government Code requires
California banks and savings and loan associations to secure SDHC’s deposits by pledging securities as
collateral. This Code states that collateral pledged in this manner shall have the effect of perfecting a security
interest in such collateral superior to those of a general creditor. Thus, collateral for cash deposits is considered
to be held in SDHC’s name.

At June 30, 2008, SDHC had a carrying amount and bank balance of $34,267 in non-negotiable certificates of
deposit. The certificates of deposit were not covered by insurance and were collateralized 100% with securities
held by pledging financial institutions.

Investments (In Thousands)

As of June 30, 2008, SDHC'’s investments included repurchase agreements, agency bonds, and California Local
Agency Investment Fund (LAIF). SDHC had $5,300 in repurchase agreements, with $4,300 maturing on July 1,
2008. The remaining balance of $1,000 in repurchase agreements was open and callable at any time by SDHC.

Agency bonds represent the SDHC's investment in Government-Sponsored Enterprises (GSE) Senior Debt bonds
traded on a national exchange. Senior Debt of GSE'’s currently hold a AAA rating. The following table shows the
detail of SDHC's investment in agency bonds as of June 30, 2008.

Issuer Coupon Maturity ~ Fair Value
FNMA 4.00% 6/252010 $ 1,003
FHLMC 3.55%  12/2/2010 1,802
FHLMC 4.25% 12/17/2010 2,011
FNMA 3.75%  3/23/2011 1,000
FNMA 4.00%  6/24/2011 2,009

Total $ 7825
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SDHC participates in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF). As of June 30, 2008, SDHC had $39,880
invested with LAIF. The investment in LAIF represents SDHC'’s equity in the pooled investments of that fund.
LAIF had 14.72% of the pool investment funds in structured notes and asset-backed securities.

Policy

In accordance with state statutes and HUD regulations, SDHC has authorized the CFO or their designee to invest
in obligations of the U.S. Treasury, U.S. Government agencies or other investments as outlined in the
Commission Investment Policy. An Investment Committee, consisting of two Commission Board members,
monitors the management of funds and compliance with the Commission Investment Policy. There are many
factors that can affect the value of investments. Some factors, such as credit risk, custodial risk, concentration of
credit risk, and interest rate risk, may affect both equity and fixed income securities. It is the investment policy of
SDHC to invest substantially all of its funds in fixed income securities which limits SDHC'’s exposure to most types
of risk.

Interest Rate Risk

In accordance with its investment policy, SDHC manages its interest rate risk by limiting the weighted average
maturity of its investment portfolio. This is accomplished by matching portfolio maturities to projected liabilities
and by continuously investing a portion of the portfolio in readily available funds to ensure that appropriate liquidity
is maintained in order to meet ongoing operations. At June 30, 2008, SDHC does not have any debt investments
that are highly sensitive to changes in the market.

Credit Risk

SDHC will minimize credit risk by limiting investments to those listed in the investment policy. In addition, SDHC
will pre-qualify the financial institutions, broker/dealers, intermediaries, and advisors with which SDHC will do
business in accordance with the investment policy. SDHC will diversify the portion of the investment portfolio not
invested in U.S. Treasury Bills, Notes, Bonds, and Collateralized Certificates of Deposit to minimize potential
losses from any one type of security or issuer.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Concentration of credit risk is the risk associated with a lack of diversification, such as having substantial
investments in a few individual issuers. Investments issued or guaranteed by the U.S. government and
investments in external investment pools such as LAIF are not considered subject to concentration of credit risk.
SDHC may choose to maintain 100% of its investment portfolio in U.S. Treasury Bills, Notes, Bonds, and
Collateralized Certificates of Deposit.

Custodial Credit Risk
At June 30, 2008, SDHC did not have any investments exposed to custodial risk. Bonds are purchased through a
Merrill Lynch account in SDHC’s name. Al securities are held in safekeeping by Merrill Lynch and are covered by

Securities Investor Protection Corporation (SIPC) and a separate Lloyd’s of London policy for a combined
aggregate limit of $600 million.
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4, CAPITAL ASSETS (In Thousands)

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2008 was as follows:

Primary Government

Beginning Decreases/ Ending
Bal | Adj t Transfers Bala
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES:
Non-Depreciable Capital Assets:
Land, Easements, Rights of Way $ 1,731,003 $ 20403 $ (214)  § 4764  § 1,755,956
Construction in Progress 210,084 103,277 (2,486) (144,995) 165,880
Total Non-Depreciable Capital Assets 1,941,087 123,680 (2,700) (140,231) 1,921,836
Depreciable Capital Assets:
Structures and Improvements 1,072,023 9,935 (46) 61,471 1,143,383
Equipment 382,641 60,127 (77,780) 2,016 367,004
Infrastructure 2,906,517 29,880 (8,019 79,407 3,007,785
Total Depreciable Capital Assets 4,361,181 99,942 (85,845) 142,894 4,518,172
Less Accumulated Depreciation For:
Structures and Improvements (290,224) (25,293) 46 - (315,471)
Equipment (276,509) (25,298) 69,940 (1,820) (233,687)
Infrastructure (1,471,365) (85,892) 1,724 - (1,555,533)
Total Accumulated Depreciation (2,038,098) (136,483) 71,710 (1,820) (2,104,691)
Total Depreciable Capital Assets - Net of Depreciation 2,323,083 (36,541) (14,135) 141,074 2,413,481
Governmental Activities Capital Assets, Net $ 4264170 § 87139 § (16,835) $ 843 § 4,335,317
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES:
Non-Depreciable Capital Assets:
Land, Easements, Rights of Way $ 90,011  § - $ (23) $ - $ 89,988
Construction in Progress 290,161 91,619 (3,694) (204,021) 174,065
Total Non-Depreciable Capital Assets 380,172 91,619 (3,717) (204,021) 264,053
Depreciable Capital Assets:
Structures and Improvements 1,662,564 5,606 (296) 117,839 1,785,713
Equipment 326,600 3,368 (4,596) 17,202 342,574
Distribution & Collection Systems and Other Infrastructure 3,380,321 42,690 (7,927) 66,317 3,481,401
Total Depreciable Capital Assets 5,369,485 51,664 (12,819) 201,358 5,609,688
Less Accumulated Depreciation For:
Structures and Improvements (329,721) (33,961) 1,375 (567) (362,874)
Equipment (222,793) (24,985) 4,466 2,807 (240,505)
Distribution & Collection Systems and Other Infrastructure (591,859) (47,569) 4,404 (420) (635,444)
Total Accumulated Depreciation (1,144,373) (106,515) 10,245 1,820 (1,238,823)
Total Depreciable Capital Assets - Net of Depreciation 4,225,112 (54,851) (2,574) 203,178 4,370,865
Business-Type Activities Capital Assets, Net $ 4605284 § 36,768 § (6,291) (843) § 4,634,918
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Governmental Activities capital assets net of accumulated depreciation at June 30, 2008 are comprised of the following:

General Capital Assets, Net
Internal Service Funds Capital Assets, Net
Total

Business-Type Activities capital assets net of accumulated depreciation at June 30, 2008 are comprised of the following:

Enterprise Funds Capital Assets, Net
Internal Service Funds Capital Assets, Net
Total

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:
Governmental Activities:

General Government and Support

Public Safety - Police

Public Safety - Fire and Life Safety

Parks, Recreation, Culture and Leisure

Transportation

Sanitation and Health

Neighborhood Services

Subtotal
Internal Service (Except Special Engineering)

Total Depreciation Expense

Business-Type Activities:
Airports
City Store
Development Services
Environmental Services
Golf Course
Recycling
Sewer Utility
Water Utility

Subtotal

Internal Service (Special Engineering)

Total Depreciation Expense

104

$ 4,225,527
109,790

$ 4,335,317

$ 4,634,710
208

$ 4,634,918

$ 1,802
7,105

3,861

30,340

73,537

643

2,546

119,834

16,649

$ 136,483

$ 495

175
3171
572
1,057
71,138
29,870
106,479

36
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Discretely Presented Component Units

Capital asset activities for the City's Discretely Presented Component Units for the year ended June 30, 2008 are as follows:

Discretely Presented Component Unit -
San Diego Convention Center Corp.

Beginning Decreases/ Ending
Bal Increases Adjustment Transfer: Balan
Depreciable Capital Assets:
Structures and Improvements $ 23741 § 1614  § (26) $ - $ 25,329
Equipment 8,137 1,421 (241) - 9,317
Total Depreciable Capital Assets 31,878 3,035 (267) - 34,646
Less Accumulated Depreciation For:
Structures and Improvements (8,517) (1,583) 13 (539) (10,626)
Equipment (6,802) (820) 240 539 (6,843)
Total Accumulated Depreciation (15,319 (2,403) 253 - (17,469)
Capital Assets, Net $ 16,559 § 632§ (14) $ - $ 17177

Discretely Presented Component Unit -
San Diego Housing Commission

Beginning Decreases/ Ending
Bal Increases Adjustmentt Transf Bal
Non-Depreciable Capital Assets:
Land, Easements, Rights of Way $ 29436 $ 21,017 $ (21,017) $ 108 § 29,544
Construction in Progress 10,608 1,220 - (108) 11,720
Total Non-Depreciable Capital Assets 40,044 22,237 (21,017) - 41,264
Depreciable Capital Assets:
Structures and Improvements 104,062 29,673 (69,462) - 64,273
Equipment 3,282 186 (1,005) - 2,463
Total Depreciable Capital Assets 107,344 29,859 (70,467) - 66,736
Less Accumulated Depreciation For:
Structures and Improvements (45,152) (2,499) 40,023 - (7,628)
Equipment (1,129 (482) 672 - (939)
Total Accumulated Depreciation (46,281) (2,981) 40,695 - (8,567)
Total Depreciable Capital Assets - Net of Depreciation 61,063 26,878 (29,772) - 58,169
Capital Assets, Net $ 101,107 § 49115 § (50,789) § - $ 99,433
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5. GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (IN THOUSANDS)

a. Long-Term Liabilities

Governmental long-term liabilities as of June 30, 2008 are comprised of the following:

Fiscal
Year Balance
Interest Maturity Original Outstanding

Type of Obligation Rates Date Amount June 30, 2008
Compensated Absences $ 74,825
Liability Claims 232,448
Capital Lease Obligations 61,262
Contracts Payable:
Contract Payable to SDSU Foundation,

dated December 1991 variable* $ 1,598 1,598
Amendment to Contract Payable to SDSU Foundation,

dated January 1995 variable® 117 117
Contract Payable to Western Pacific Housing, Inc.,

dated April 2004 5.0% 900 900
Total Contracts Payable 2,615
Notes Payable:
Note Payable to Price Charities,

dated April 2001 5.0 2032 5,115 3,382
Note Payable to Price Charities,

dated May 2005 8.0 2025 2,100 2,100
Amendment to Note Payable to Price Charities,

dated February 2006 8.0 2025 180 180
Total Notes Payable 5,662
Loans Payable:
International Gateway Associates, LLC,

dated October 2001 10.0 2032 1,876 1,806
PCCP/SB Las America, LLC,

dated August 2005 10.0 2036 1,247 1,231
Centerpoint, LLC, dated April 2006 7.0 2021 5,246 5,246
Bank of America, N.A. Line of Credit, dated October 2006 4.25-6.57 2009 8,530 8,530
California Energy Resources Conservation

and Development Commission, dated March 2007 3.95 2019 2,154 1,901
San Diego National Bank, Line of Credit, dated July 2007

City Heights Housing Area 4.05 2011 1,298 1,298
San Diego National Bank, Line of Credit, dated July 2007

City Heights Non-Housing Area 6.42 2011 2,011 2,011
San Diego National Bank, Line of Credit, dated July 2007

Naval Training Center Non-Housing Area 3.57-549 2011 6,804 6,804
San Diego National Bank, Line of Credit, dated July 2007

North Bay Housing Area 4.05 2011 2,255 2,255
San Diego National Bank, Line of Credit, dated July 2007

North Park Non-Housing Area 3.69-4.05 2011 3,695 3,695
Total Loans Payable 34,777
Section 108 Loans Payable 35,896
General Obligation Bonds:
Public Safety Communications Project, Series 1991 5.0-8.0" 2012 25,500 8,170
Open Space Park Refunding Bonds, Series 1994 5.0-6.0" 2009 64,260 410
Total General Obligation Bonds 8,580

(continued on next page)
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Fiscal
Year Balance
Interest Maturity Original Outstanding

Type of Obligation Rates Date Amount June 30, 2008
Revenue Bonds / Lease Revenue Bonds / COPs:
MTDB Authority Lease Revenue Refunding Bonds,

Series 1994 4.25 - 5.625" 2010 $ 66,570 5,390
Public Facilities Financing Authority Stadium Lease

Revenue Bonds, Series 1996 A 6.2-7.45" 2027 68,425 57,775
San Diego Facilities and Equipment Leasing Corp.

Certificates of Participation, Series 1996 A 4.0-56 2011 33,430 9,760
San Diego Facilities and Equipment Leasing Corp.

Certificates of Participation Refunding, Series 1996 B 4.0-6.0" 2022 11,720 8,445
Convention Center Expansion Financing Authority

Lease Revenue Bonds, Series 1998 A 3.8-5.25" 2028 205,000 173,355
Centre City Parking Revenue Bonds, Series 1999 A 45-6.49" 2026 12,105 10,195
Public Facilities Financing Authority Reassessment

District Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 1999 A 2.75-4.75** 2018 30,515 13,625
Public Facilities Financing Authority Reassessment

District Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 1999 B 3.5-5.10" 2018 7,630 3,375
Public Facilities Financing Authority Fire and Life Safety

Lease Revenue Bonds, Series 2002 B 3.55-7.0" 2032 25,070 22,805
Centre City Parking Revenue Bonds, Series 2003 B 3.0-5.30" 2027 20,515 18,195
MTDB Authority Lease Revenue Refunding Bonds,

Series 2003 2.0-4.375" 2023 15,255 12,775
San Diego Facilities Equipment Leasing Corp.

Certificates of Participation Refunding, Series 2003 1.0-4.0* 2024 17,425 10,490
Public Facilities Financing Authority Ballpark Lease

Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2007A 5.0-5.25* 2032 156,560 152,765
Total Revenue Bonds / Lease Revenue Bonds / COPs 498,950
Special Assessment / Special Tax Bonds:
Otay Mesa Industrial Park Limited Obligation

Improvement Bonds, Issued May 1992 5.5-7.95* 2013 2,235 300
Miramar Ranch North Special Tax Refunding

Bonds, Series 1998 3.75-5.375* 2021 59,465 42,065
Santaluz Special Tax Bonds, Improvement

Area No.1, Series 2000 A 4.75-6.375" 2031 56,020 53,055
Santaluz Special Tax Bonds, Improvement

Area No.3, Series 2000 B 45-6.2" 2031 4,350 4,090
City of San Diego Reassessment District No. 2003-1

Limited Obligation Refunding Bonds 425-58" 2018 8,850 6,825
Piper Ranch Limited Obligation Improvement

Bonds, Issued January 2004 25-6.2" 2034 5,430 4,400
Santaluz Special Tax Bonds, Improvement

Area No.1, Series 2004 A 1.7-55" 2031 5,000 4,645
Santaluz Special Tax Bonds, Improvement

Area No.4, Series 2004 A 1.65-5.5" 2034 9,965 9,585
Liberty Station Special Tax Bonds, Series 2006A 5.0-5.75* 2037 16,000 15,890
Liberty Station Special Tax Bonds, Series 2008A 3.74-6.3** 2037 3,950 3,950
Total Special A ment / Special Tax Bonds 144,805
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Fiscal
Year Balance
Interest Maturity Original Outstanding

Type of Obligation Rates Date Amount June 30, 2008
Tax Allocation Bonds:
Gateway Center West Redevelopment

Project Tax Allocation Bonds, Series 1995 7.8-9.75* 2014 $ 1,400 $ 665
Mount Hope Redevelopment Project Tax

Allocation Bonds, Series 1995 A 44-6.0" 2020 1,200 795
Horton Plaza Redevelopment Project Tax

Allocation Refunding Bonds, Series 1996 A 3.8-6.0" 2016 12,970 7,070
Centre City Redevelopment Tax Allocation

Bonds, Series 1999 A 3.0-5.125 2019 25,680 25,245
Centre City Redevelopment Tax Allocation

Bonds, Series 1999 B 6.25" 2014 11,360 11,360
Centre City Redevelopment Tax Allocation

Bonds, Series 1999 C 3.1-4.75% 2025 13,610 11,945
City Heights Redevelopment Tax Allocation

Bonds, Series 1999 A 45-58" 2029 5,690 5,200
City Heights Redevelopment Tax Allocation

Bonds, Series 1999 B 5.75- 6.4 2029 10,141 9,318
Centre City Redevelopment Project Tax

Allocation Bonds, Series 2000 A 40-56" 2025 6,100 4,995
Centre City Redevelopment Project Tax

Allocation Bonds, Series 2000 B 3.95-5.35" 2025 21,390 18,705
Horton Plaza Redevelopment Project Tax

Allocation Bonds, Series 2000 4.25-58" 2022 15,025 13,715
North Bay Redevelopment Project Tax

Allocation Bonds, Series 2000 4.25-5.875* 2031 13,000 11,450
North Park Redevelopment Project Tax

Allocation Bonds, Series 2000 41-59" 2031 7,000 6,170
Centre City Redevelopment Tax Allocation

Bonds, Series 2001 A 4.93 - 5.55*** 2027 58,425 56,270
Mount Hope Redevelopment Project Tax

Allocation Bonds, Series 2002 A 5.0 2027 3,055 3,055
Centre City Redevelopment Project Tax

Allocation Bonds, Series 2003 A 25-5.0" 2029 31,000 15,320
City Heights Redevelopment Project Tax

Allocation Bonds, Series 2003 A 5.875-6.5 2034 4,955 4,955
City Heights Redevelopment Project Tax

Allocation Bonds, Series 2003 B 25-4.25" 2014 865 485
North Park Redevelopment Project Tax

Allocation Bonds, Series 2003 A 1.5-6.125" 2028 7,145 6,240
North Park Redevelopment Project Tax

Allocation Bonds, Series 2003 B 4.75-5.0* 2034 5,360 5,360
Horton Plaza Redevelopment Project Tax

Allocation Bonds, Series 2003 A 4.65-51" 2022 6,325 6,325
Horton Plaza Redevelopment Project Tax

Allocation Bonds, Series 2003 B 3.25-5.45™ 2022 4,530 4,410
Horton Plaza Redevelopment Project Tax

Allocation Bonds, Series 2003 C 349-7.74" 2022 8,000 6,875
Centre City Redevelopment Project Tax

Allocation Bonds, Series 2004 A 3.5-525" 2030 101,180 95,575
Centre City Redevelopment Project Tax

Allocation Bonds, Series 2004 B 2.26 - 4.58* 2011 9,855 4,830
Centre City Redevelopment Project Tax

Allocation Bonds, Series 2004 C 2.26-6.18" 2030 27,785 25,790

(continued on next page)
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Fiscal
Year Balance
Interest Maturity Original Outstanding

Type of Obligation Rates Date Amount June 30, 2008
Centre City Redevelopment Project Tax

Allocation Bonds, Series 2004 D 2.26 - 6.28** 2030 $ 8,905 $ 8,275
Centre City Redevelopment Project Tax

Allocation Bonds, Series 2006 A 4.25-5.25" 2033 76,225 75,725
Centre City Redevelopment Project Tax

Allocation Bonds, Series 2006 B 5.66 - 6.2** 2032 33,760 33,520
Centre City Redevelopment Project Tax

Allocation Bonds, Series 2008 A 3.74-6.3* 2021 69,000 69,000
Total Tax Allocation Bonds 548,643
Tobacco Settlement Asset-Backed Bonds:
Tobacco Settlement Revenue Funding Corporation

Asset-Backed Bonds, Series 2006 7.125 2023 105,400 99,370
Pooled Financing Bonds:
Public Facilities Financing Authority

Pooled Financing Bonds, Series 2007A 5.95 - 6.65™ 2038 17,230 16,690
Public Facilities Financing Authority

Pooled Financing Bonds, Series 2007B 4.0-5.25" 2038 17,755 17,425
Total Pooled Financing Bonds 34,115
Total Bonds Payable 1,334,463
Net Other Postemployment Benefits Obligation 28,872
Net Pension Obligation 141,734
Total Governmental Activities Long-Term Liabilities $ 1,962,654

* Additional information on the variable rate contracts payable with the SDSU Foundation and loans payable with SANDAG are discussed further on the following
page.

** Interest rates are fixed, and reflect the range of rates for various maturities from the date of issuance to maturity.

*** The City Heights Redevelopment Tax Allocation Bonds, Series 1999 B, are capital appreciation bonds, which mature from fiscal year 2011 through 2029. The
balance outstanding at June 30, 2008 does not include accreted interest of $6,942.

*** The Centre City Redevelopment Tax Allocation Bonds, Series 2001 A, partially include capital appreciation bonds, which mature from fiscal year 2015
through 2027. The balance outstanding at June 30, 2008 does not include accreted interest of $5,895.
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Liability claims are primarily liquidated by the Self Insurance Fund and Enterprise Funds. Compensated absences are paid out
of the operating funds and certain internal service funds. Pension liabilities are paid out of the operating funds based on a
percentage of payroll.

Public safety general obligation bonds are secured by a pledge of the full faith and credit of the City or by a pledge of the City
to levy ad valorem property taxes without limitation. Open space general obligation bonds are backed by Environmental
Growth Fund 2/3 franchise fees.

Revenue bonds are secured by a pledge of specific revenue generally derived from fees or service charges related to the
operation of the project being financed. Certificates of Participation (COPs) and lease revenue bonds provide long-term
financing through a lease agreement, installment sales agreement, or loan agreement that does not constitute indebtedness
under the state constitutional debt limitation and is not subject to other statutory requirements applicable to bonds.

Special assessment/special tax bonds are issued by the City to provide funds for public improvements in/and or serving special
assessment and Mello-Roos districts created by the City. The bonds are secured by assessments and special taxes levied on
the properties located within the assessment districts and the community facilities districts, and are payable solely from the
assessments and special taxes collected. The assessments and the special taxes, and any bonds payable from them, are
secured by a lien on the properties upon which the assessments and the special taxes are levied. Neither the faith and credit
nor the taxing power of the City is pledged to the payment of the bonds.

Section 108 loans are the loan guarantee provisions of the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) program. Section
108 loans provide the community with a source of financing for economic development, housing rehabilitation, public facilities,
and capital improvement and infrastructure projects.

SANDAG loans are comprised of two components: repayment of debt service on bonds, and repayment of proceeds from
commercial paper. The City receives distributions of SANDAG bond proceeds, based on the City’s agreement with SANDAG.
The annual debt service payments related to these bond issuances are recovered by SANDAG through reductions in TransNet
allocations that would otherwise be available for payment to the City. TransNet-Proposition A, was passed in 1987 to enact a
Y2 percent sales tax increase to fund regional transportation projects. All expenses must first be approved by SANDAG and be
included on the Regional Transportation Plan (RTP). The City recognizes repayment of the principal and interest on bonds as
an increase in TransNet revenues and an offsetting debt service expenditure. In addition to financing from bond issuances,
financing for TransNet related projects is available through the issuance of commercial paper notes by SANDAG, at the
request of the City. Repayment of proceeds related to the commercial paper is collected in future periods through reductions
in TransNet allocations, similar to the repayment of the debt service on bonds. All outstanding SANDAG loan balances were
paid in full as of June 30, 2008.

San Diego State University Foundation executed an Agreement for Processing a Redevelopment Plan and Land Use
Entitlements with RDA which allows for reimbursement of expenses incurred by the Foundation, in assisting in the preparation
and processing of the Redevelopment Plan and Land Use Entitlements in the College Area. The agreement is a variable rate
obligation of RDA. The unpaid principal bears interest at the prime rate and is fixed on a quarterly basis, using the prime rate
established on the first banking day of each calendar quarter. Interest calculations are made on the quarterly weighted
average of the principal balance and are made at the end of the quarter based upon the rate fixed for that quarter. The
effective interest rate as of June 30, 2008 is 5.25 percent.

Loans Payable includes a line of credit executed by RDA with Bank of America, N.A. on October 31, 2006. The line of credit is
to be used to refinance the North Park Theatre, to pay sums of settlement of eminent domain actions relating to the North Park
Redevelopment Area and for other redevelopment activities in the North Park Redevelopment Area. The tax-exempt portion of
the line of credit has an effective interest rate of 3.80 percent and the taxable portion has an effective interest rate of 5.85
percent as of June 30, 2008 and the effective interest rate will reset on October 31, annually.

Loans Payable also includes six separate non-revolving secured three-year term lines of credit executed by RDA with San
Diego National Bank dated July 26, 2007. Four lines of credit are for affordable housing in North Park, City Heights, North Bay
and Naval Training Center (NTC) Redevelopment Project Areas. Two lines of credit are for non-housing or general purposes
for City Heights and NTC Redevelopment Project Areas.

Tobacco Settlement Asset-Backed Bonds are limited obligations of the Tobacco Settlement Revenue Funding Corporation,
which is a separate legal California nonprofit public benefit corporation established by the City of San Diego. The Corporation

110



CiTy oF SAN DiEGco CoMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

purchased from the City the rights to receive future tobacco settlement revenues due to the City. The Tobacco Settlement
Asset-Backed Bonds are payable from and secured solely by pledged tobacco settlement revenues.

b. Amortization Requirements

The annual requirements to amortize such long-term debt outstanding as of June 30, 2008, including interest payments to
maturity, are as follows:

Year Capital Lease Obligations Contracts Payable Notes Payable Loans Payable
Ended
June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2009 $ 1196 § 2417 § - 9§ -8 -8 - § 8699 § 149
2010 11,466 1,930 - - - - 17 1,368
2011 10,358 1470 - - - - 16,249 374
2012 10,456 1,031 - - - - 195 351
2013 8,856 586 - - - - 205 K2y
2014-2018 8,220 344 - - - - 1,199 1,532
2019-2023 - - - - - - 645 1,226
2024-2028 - - - - - - 702 954
2029-2033 - - - - - - 1,131 525
2034-2038 - - - - 329 68
Unscheduled* - 2,615 1,868 5,662 2,500 5,246 -
Total § 61262 § 7778 § 2615 § 1868 § 5662 § 2500 § 34777 0§ 8234

* The contracts payable to SDSU Foundation in the amount of $1,715, the contract payable to Westem Pacific Housing, Inc. in the amount of 8900, the
notes payable to Price Charities of 85,662, and the loan payable to Centerpoint, LLC in the amount of 85,246 do not have annual repayment schedules.
Annual payments on the San Diego State University debt is based on the availability of tax increment, net of the low-moderate and taxing agency
set-asides, as well as project area administration costs. Annual payments to the Western Pacific Housing, Inc., and Price Charities debt are based

on available tax increment. Annual payments to the Centerpoint, LLC debt are based upon future receipts of unallocated tax increment or other
available sources.
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General Revenue Special Assessment /
Year Section 108 Loans Obligation Bonds Bonds / COPs Special Tax Bonds
Ended
June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2009 § 2364 § 206 § 225 § 52 § 22315 § 25904 § 4610 § 7,953
2010 2,457 1,920 1,975 353 21,970 24,865 4,935 7,750
2011 2,595 1,783 2,100 219 20,040 23,854 5,275 7,500
2012 2,124 1,633 2,240 74 17,460 22,918 5,640 7,226
2013 2,863 1,471 - - 18,355 22,026 5,935 6,925
2014-2018 14,179 4,639 - - 99,415 95,193 34,500 29,420
2019-2023 7,043 1,425 - - 120,380 67,033 30,580 20,006
2024-2028 1,671 91 - - 133,230 32,666 24,770 12,576
2029-2033 - - - - 45,785 6,125 22,655 4,384
2034-2038 - - - - - 5,905 619
Total $ 358% § 15008 § 8580 § 1,148 § 498950  § 320584 § 144805 § 104,359
Tax Allocation Tobacco
Year Bonds Asset-Backed Bonds Pooled Financing Bonds
Ended Unaccreted
June 30, Principal  Appreciation Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2009 $ 14096 § 2081 § 26339 § 3600 § 7080 § 655 § 1917
2010 19,054 2,163 26,620 3,800 6,826 680 1,883
2011 19,948 2,243 25721 4,000 6,555 770 1,846
2012 20,884 2,317 24,749 4,400 6,270 825 1,805
2013 24,143 2,388 23612 4,600 5,956 860 1,762
2014-2018 138,792 12,144 97,821 28,900 24,310 5,005 8,089
2019-2023 142,776 9,837 59,645 50,070 12,455 5,745 6,576
2024-2028 113,226 3474 28,220 - - 6,495 4,864
2029-2033 54,069 20 7,029 - - 8,650 2,644
2034-2038 1,655 - 44 - - 4430 684
Subtotal 548,643 36,667 319,812 99,370 69,452 34,115 32,070
Add:
Accreted Appreciation
through June 30, 2008 12,837 - - - - - -
Total § 561480 § 36667 § 319812 § 99370 § 69452 § 34115 § 32070
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c. Change in Long-Term Liabilities

Additions to governmental activities long-term debt for contracts, notes and loans payable may differ from proceeds reported
on the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances, due to funding received in prior fiscal years
being converted from short-term to long-term debt as a result of developers extending the terms of the obligation.

The following is a summary of changes in governmental activities long-term liabilities for the year ended June 30, 2008. The
effect of bond accretion, bond premiums, discounts, and deferred amounts on bond refunds are amortized as adjustments to
long-term liabilities.

Governmental Activities

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Compensated Absences $ 73,050 $ 54,792 $ (53,017) $ 74,825 $ 31,915
Liability Claims 226,487 53,083 (47,122) 232,448 41,303
Capital Lease Obligations 39,130 31,681 (9,549) 61,262 11,906
Contracts Payable 2,615 - - 2,615
Notes Payable 8,555 - (2,893) 5,662
Loans Payable 18,775 16,063 (61) 34,777 8,699
SANDAG Loans Payable 2,287 - (2,287)
Section 108 Loans Payable 39,431 - (3,535) 35,896 2,364
General Obligation Bonds 10,705 - (2,125) 8,580 2,265
Revenue Bonds / COPs 521,210 - (22,260) 498,950 22,315
Unamortized Bond Premiums, Discounts
and Deferred Amounts on Refunding (4,438) - 203 (4,235) (203)
Net Revenue Bonds/COP's 516,772 - (22,057) 494,715 2,112
Special Assessment / Special
Tax Bonds 145,625 3,950 (4,770) 144,805 4,610
Unamortized Bond Premiums, Discounts
and Deferred Amounts on Refunding (556) (27) 49 (534) (49)
Net Special Assestment Bonds 145,069 3,923 (4,721) 144,271 4,561
Tax Allocation Bonds 502,804 69,000 (23,161) 548,643 14,096
Interest Accretion 11,015 1,996 (174) 12,837
Balance with Accretion 513,819 70,996 (23,335) 561,480 14,096
Unamortized Bond Premiums, Discounts
and Deferred Amounts on Refunding 5,628 (176) 42 5,494 (116)
Net Tax Allocation Bonds 519,447 70,820 (23,293) 566,974 13,980
Tobacco Settlement Asset-Backed Bonds 102,700 - (3,330) 99,370 3,600
Pooled Financing Bonds - 34,985 (870) 34,115 655
Unamortized Bond Premiums, Discounts
and Deferred Amounts on Refunding - (142) 17 (125) (17)
Net Pooled Financing Bonds - 34,843 (853) 33,990 638
Net Other Postemployment Benefits Obligation - 28,872 - 28,872
Net Pension Obligation 158,162 - (16,428) 141,734
Total $ 1,863,185 $ 294,077 $ (191,271) $ 1,965,991 $ 143,343
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d. Defeasance and Redemption of Debt

PFFA issued Pooled Financing Bonds, Series 2007 A in the amount of $17,230 and Series B in the amount of $17,755. The
bond proceeds were used to make loans to RDA for the purpose of refunding outstanding Southcrest 1995, Mount Hope
1995B, Southcrest 2000, and Central Imperial 2000 Bonds. The current refunding of the Southcrest 1995 bonds resulted in a
total economic gain of approximately $186 and a cash flow savings of approximately $235. The current refunding of the
Mount Hope 1995B bonds resulted in a total economic gain of approximately $262 and a cash flow savings of approximately
$381. These refunded bonds were fully redeemed at a call date prior to the end of the fiscal year, and accordingly, there was
no balance outstanding as of June 30, 2008. The Southcrest 2000 and Central Imperial 2000 bonds were advance refunded
and resulted in an economic gain of approximately $95 and cash flow savings of approximately $143, and an economic gain
of approximately $242, and a cash flow savings of approximately $400, respectively. The balance of these defeased bonds
are listed below.

As of June 30, 2008, principal amounts payable from escrow funds established for defeased bonds are as follows:

Defeased Bonds Amount

Central Imperial Redevelopment Project Tax Allocation Bonds,

Series 2000 $ 3,040
Southcrest Redevelopment Project Tax Allocation Bonds,

Series 2000 1,570
Total Defeased Bonds Outstanding $ 4,610
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e. Long-Term Pledged Liabilities

Governmental long-term pledged liabilities as of June 30, 2008 are comprised of the following:

Fiscal
Year Pledged Debt Pledged
Maturity Revenue to Principal Revenue

Type of Pledged Revenue Date Maturity & Interest Paid Recognized
Pledged CDBG Revenue:
Section 108 Loans Payable $ 39,386 $ 4,935 $ 4,935
Total Pledged CDBG Revenue 39,386 4,935 4,935
Pledged Developer Revenue:
Regional Transportation Center Redevelopment

Project (Section 108) 2021 2,947 293 293
Total Pledged Developer Revenue 2,947 293 293
Pledged Net Operating Revenue (Parking):
Centre City Parking Revenue Bonds, Series 1999 A 2026 17,022 955 966
Centre City Parking Revenue Bonds, Series 2003 B 2027 28,387 1,508 1,450
Total Pledged Net Operating Revenue (Parking) 45,409 2,463 2,416
Pledged Special Assessment / Special Tax Revenue:
Otay Mesa Industrial Park Limited Obligation

Improvement Bonds, Issued May 1992 2013 364 76 75
Miramar Ranch North Special Tax Refunding

Bonds, Series 1998 2021 56,488 4,373 4,184
Public Facilities Financing Authority Reassessment

District Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 1999 A 2018 15,997 2,518 1,962
Public Facilities Financing Authority Reassessment

District Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 1999 B 2018 4,029 640 490
Santaluz Special Tax Bonds, Improvement

Area No.1, Series 2000 A 2031 100,864 4,132 4,338
Santaluz Special Tax Bonds, Improvement

Area No.3, Series 2000 B 2031 7,641 314 327
City of San Diego Reassessment District No. 2003-1

Limited Obligation Refunding Bonds 2018 8,883 896 956
Piper Ranch Limited Obligation Improvement

Bonds, Issued January 2004 2034 8,656 1,005 943
Santaluz Special Tax Bonds, Improvement

Area No.1, Series 2004 A 2031 8,020 351 377
Santaluz Special Tax Bonds, Improvement

Area No.4, Series 2004 A 2034 17,846 613 679
Liberty Station Special Tax Bonds, Series 2006A 2037 32,379 1,008 1,590
Liberty Station Special Tax Bonds, Series 2008A 2037 8,024 -
Total Pledged Special Assessment / Special Tax Revenue 269,191 15,926 15,921

(continued on next page)
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Fiscal
Year Pledged Debt Pledged
Maturity Revenue to Principal Revenue

Type of Pledged Revenue Date Maturity & Interest Paid Recognized
Pledged Tax Increment Revenue:
Contracts
Contract Payable to SDSU Foundation,

dated December 1991 $ 3,035 $ 356 $ 356
Amendment to Contract Payable to SDSU Foundation,

dated January 1995 222 26 26
Contract Payable to Western Pacific Housing, Inc.,

dated April 2004 1,226 -
Notes
Note Payable to Price Charities,

dated April 2001 2032 5,882 927 927
Note Payable to Price Charities,

dated May 2005 2025 2,100 -
Amendment to Note Payable to Price Charities,

dated February 2006 2025 180 -
Loans
International Gateway Associates, LLC,

dated October 2001 2032 4,975 199 199
PCCP/SB Las America, LLC,

dated August 2005 2036 3,703 132 132
Centerpoint, LLC,

dated April 2006 2021 5,246 -
Bank of America, N.A. Line of Credit,

dated October 2006 2009 8,648 381 381
San Diego National Bank, Line of Credit, dated July 2007

City Heights Housing Area 2011 1,489 64 64
San Diego National Bank, Line of Credit, dated July 2007

City Heights Non-Housing Area 2011 2,428 196 196
San Diego National Bank, Line of Credit, dated July 2007

Naval Training Center Housing Area 2011 61 30 30
San Diego National Bank, Line of Credit, dated July 2007

Naval Training Center Non-Housing Area 2011 7,587 344 344
San Diego National Bank, Line of Credit, dated July 2007

North Bay Housing Area 2011 2,499 67 67
San Diego National Bank, Line of Credit, dated July 2007

North Park Non-Housing Area 2011 4,011 68 68
Naval Training Center Civic, Arts,

and Cultural Center (Section 108) 2025 8,571 510 510

(continued on next page)
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Fiscal
Year Pledged Debt Pledged
Maturity Revenue to Principal Revenue

Type of Pledged Revenue Date Maturity & Interest Paid Recognized
Bonds
Gateway Center West Redevelopment

Project Tax Allocation Bonds, Series 1995 2014 $ 877 $ 148 $ 180
Mount Hope Redevelopment Project Tax

Allocation Bonds, Series 1995 A 2020 1,108 93 90
Horton Plaza Redevelopment Project Tax

Allocation Refunding Bonds, Series 1996 A 2016 8,894 1,120 1,091
Centre City Redevelopment Tax Allocation

Bonds, Series 1999 A 2019 34,263 1,273 1,214
Centre City Redevelopment Tax Allocation

Bonds, Series 1999 B 2014 13,864 710 676
Centre City Redevelopment Tax Allocation

Bonds, Series 1999 C 2025 17,973 799 768
City Heights Redevelopment Tax Allocation

Bonds, Series 1999 A 2029 8,928 427 420
City Heights Redevelopment Tax Allocation

Bonds, Series 1999 B 2029 31,702 460 429
Centre City Redevelopment Project Tax

Allocation Bonds, Series 2000 A 2025 7,660 448 405
Centre City Redevelopment Project Tax

Allocation Bonds, Series 2000 B 2025 28,834 1,455 1,394
Horton Plaza Redevelopment Project Tax

Allocation Bonds, Series 2000 2022 20,159 1,351 1,319
North Bay Redevelopment Project Tax

Allocation Bonds, Series 2000 2031 20,697 895 835
North Park Redevelopment Project Tax

Allocation Bonds, Series 2000 2031 11,156 480 448
Centre City Redevelopment Tax Allocation

Bonds, Series 2001 A 2027 111,729 2,568 2,458
Mount Hope Redevelopment Project Tax

Allocation Bonds, Series 2002 A 2027 5,508 153 153
Centre City Redevelopment Project Tax

Allocation Bonds, Series 2003 A 2029 25,078 3,973 3,713
City Heights Redevelopment Project Tax

Allocation Bonds, Series 2003 A 2034 10,687 316 316
City Heights Redevelopment Project Tax

Allocation Bonds, Series 2003 B 2014 544 89 88
North Park Redevelopment Project Tax

Allocation Bonds, Series 2003 A 2028 10,522 544 524
North Park Redevelopment Project Tax

Allocation Bonds, Series 2003 B 2034 11,448 259 240

(continued on next page)
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Fiscal
Year Pledged Debt Pledged
Maturity Revenue to Principal Revenue

Type of Pledged Revenue Date Maturity & Interest Paid Recognized
Horton Plaza Redevelopment Project Tax

Allocation Bonds, Series 2003 A 2022 $ 9,797 $ 310 $ 271
Horton Plaza Redevelopment Project Tax

Allocation Bonds, Series 2003 B 2022 6,463 341 287
Horton Plaza Redevelopment Project Tax

Allocation Bonds, Series 2003 C 2022 11,050 802 700
Centre City Redevelopment Project Tax

Allocation Bonds, Series 2004 A 2030 152,941 6,855 6,245
Centre City Redevelopment Project Tax

Allocation Bonds, Series 2004 B 2011 5,120 1,972 1,879
Centre City Redevelopment Project Tax

Allocation Bonds, Series 2004 C 2030 44121 2,233 2,246
Centre City Redevelopment Project Tax

Allocation Bonds, Series 2004 D 2030 14,294 722 726
Centre City Redevelopment Project Tax

Allocation Bonds, Series 2006 A 2033 129,832 4,181 4,712
Centre City Redevelopment Project Tax

Allocation Bonds, Series 2006 B 2032 64,034 2,266 2,855
Public Facilities Financing Authority

Pooled Financing Bonds, Series 2007A 2038 33,908 1,316 1,316
Public Facilities Financing Authority

Pooled Financing Bonds, Series 2007B 2038 32,277 956 956
Centre City Redevelopment Project Tax

Allocation Bonds, Series 2008 A 2021 98,677 - -
Total Pledged Tax Increment Revenue 1,046,008 42,815 42,254
Pledged Tobacco Settlement Revenue:
Tobacco Settlement Revenue Funding Corporation

Asset-Backed Bonds, Series 2006 2023 $ 168,822 $ 10,640 $ 10,100
Total Pledged Tobacco Settlement Revenue 168,822 10,640 10,100
Total Pledged Revenue $ 1,571,763 $ 77,072 $ 75,919
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6.

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (In Thousands)

a. Long-Term Liabilities

Business-type activities long-term liabilities as of June 30, 2008 are comprised of the following:

Fiscal
Year Balance
Maturity Original Outstanding

Type of Obligation Interest Rates Date Amount June 30, 2008
Arbitrage Liability $ 586
Compensated Absences 13,355
Liability Claims 50,239
Capital Lease Obligations 166
Revenue Notes Payable:
Subordinated Sewer Revenue Notes, Series 2007 5.0* 2009 223,830 223,830
Subordinated Water Revenue Notes, Series 2007A 4.06* 2009 57,000 57,000
Subordinated Water Revenue Notes, Series 2008A 3.28* 2010 150,000 150,000
Total Revenue Notes Payable 430,830
Loans Payable:
Loans Payable to San Diego County

Water Authority - - 100 100
Loans Payable to State Water Resources

Control Board, issued February 9, 2000 1.80%** 2020 10,606 6,815
Loans Payable to State Water Resources

Control Board, issued February 9, 2000 1.80** 2022 6,684 4,925
Loans Payable to State Water Resources

Control Board, issued March 30, 2001 1.80** 2022 33,720 24,841
Loans Payable to State Water Resources

Control Board, issued May 17, 2001 1.80* 2022 7,742 5,702
Loans Payable to State Water Resources

Control Board, issued May 17, 2001 1.80** 2021 860 594
Loans Payable to State Water Resources

Control Board, issued June 11, 2001 1.80* 2021 2,525 1,743
Loans Payable to State Water Resources

Control Board, issued October 3, 2002 1.99* 2020 3,767 2,657
Loans Payable to State Water Resources

Control Board, issued October 3, 2002 1.80** 2023 8,068 6,312
Loans Payable to State Water Resources

Control Board, issued December 14, 2005 1.89* 2024 10,093 8,729
Loans Payable to Department of Health

Services, issued July 6, 2005 2.51% 2026 21,525 19,385
Loans Payable to State Water Resources

Control Board, issued October 15, 2006 1.99* 2024 3,858 3,494
Loans Payable to State Water Resources

Control Board, issued February 28, 2007 1.89* 2026 11,068 10,578
Total Loans Payable 95,875
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Fiscal
Year Balance
Maturity Original Outstanding

Type of Obligation Interest Rates Date Amount June 30, 2008
Bonds Payable:
Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 1993 2.8-5.25* 2023 $ 250,000 $ 167,955
Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 1995 3.9-6.0 2025 350,000 265,540
Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 1997 A 3.7-5.375* 2027 183,000 144,060
Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 1997 B 3.7-5.375* 2027 67,000 52,740
Water Certificate of Undivided Interest,

Series 1998 4.0-5.375 2029 385,000 254,075
Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 1999 A 3.5-5.125* 2029 203,350 169,665
Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 1999 B 3.5-5.125* 2029 112,060 93,735
Subordinated Water Revenue Bonds,

Series 2002 2.0-5.0* 2033 286,945 277,675
Total Bonds Payable 1,425,445
Estimated Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care 18,429
Net Other Postemployment Benefits Obligation 8,921
Net Pension Obligation 31,342

Total Business-Type Activities Long-Term Liabilities $§ 2,075,188

* Interest rates are fixed, and reflect the range of rates for various maturities from the date of issuance to maturity.
** Effective rate

b. Amortization Requirements

Annual requirements to amortize long-term debt as of June 30, 2008, including interest payments to maturity, are

as follows:
Capital Lease
Obligations Revenue Notes Payable Loans Payable Revenue Bonds Payable
Year Ended
June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2009 $ 166§ 4§ 20080 § 18050 § 557 0§ 1889 § 4555 § 70851
2010 - 150,000 2829 5,659 1,780 47,585 68,650
201 - - 5,765 1670 49,810 66,620
2012 5878 1,957 52315 64,120
2013 5,092 1443 54,965 61473
2014-2018 31,763 5413 39,75 262,369
2019-2023 28,962 2253 408,335 172430
2024-2028 - - - 6,213 78 341,990 69,803
20292033 - - - - - 105,09 9,466
2034-2038 - - -
Unscheduled* 100
Total § 166§ 4§ 430830 5 20879 § 985§ 1623 § 145445 § 845982

*The loan payable to the San Diego County Water Authorty in the amount of $100 does not have an annual repayment schedule. The payment is dlue iffunding for the projects for

which the loan was received becomes available from ofher sources.
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¢. Change in Long-Term Liabilities

The following is a summary of changes in long-term liabilities for the year ended June 30, 2008. The effect of
bond premiums, discounts and deferred amounts on refunding are reflected as adjustments to long-term liabilities.

Business-Type Activities

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Arbitrage Liability $ 24§ 368§ ® $ 56 §
Compensated Absences 15,154 11,472 (13,271) 13,355 6,657
Liability Claims 53,555 (14) (3,302) 50,239 5913
Capital Lease Obligations 1,006 - (840) 166 166
Revenue Notes Payable 280,830 150,000 - 430,830 280,830
Unamortized Bond Premiums, Discounts
and Deferred Amounts on Refunding 517 - (517) - -
Net Revenue Notes Payable 281,347 150,000 (517) 430,830 280,830
Loans Payable 101,316 - (5,441) 95,875 5,547
Revenue Bonds Payable 1,469,060 - (43,615) 1,425,445 45595
Unamortized Bond Premiums, Discounts
and Deferred Amounts on Refunding (7,189) - 570 (6,619) (570)
Net Revenue Bonds Payable 1,461,871 - (43,045) 1,418,826 45,025
Estimated Landfill Closure
and Postclosure Care 16,935 1,494 - 18,429
Net Other Postemployment Benefits Obligation - 8,921 - 8,921
Net Pension Obligation 36,418 - (5,076) 31,342
Totals $ 1,967,826  $ 172241 § (71498) § 2068569 § 344,138

d. Defeasance of Debt

As of June 30, 2008, principal amounts payable from escrow funds established for defeased bonds are as follows:

Defeased Bonds Balance
Water Certificate of Undivided Interest, Series 1998 $ 77,155
Total Defeased Bonds Outstanding $ 77,155
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e. Long-Term Pledged Liabilities

Business-type activities long-term pledged liabilities as of June 30, 2008 are comprised of the following:

Fiscal
Year Pledged
Maturity Revenue to Debt Principal Pledged Revenue

Type of Pledged Revenue Date Maturity & Interest Paid Recognized
Pledged Net Sewer Systems Revenue:
Loans
Loans Payable to State Water Resources

Control Board, issued February 9, 2000 2020 $ 7,641 $ 637 $ 637
Loans Payable to State Water Resources

Control Board, issued February 9, 2000 2022 5,617 401 401
Loans Payable to State Water Resources

Control Board, issued March 30, 2001 2022 28,346 2,025 2,025
Loans Payable to State Water Resources

Control Board, issued May 17, 2001 2022 6,503 464 464
Loans Payable to State Water Resources

Control Board, issued May 17, 2001 2021 671 52 52
Loans Payable to State Water Resources

Control Board, issued June 11, 2001 2021 1,970 152 152
Loans Payable to State Water Resources

Control Board, issued October 3, 2002 2020 3,014 251 251
Loans Payable to State Water Resources

Control Board, issued October 3, 2002 2023 7,261 484 484
Loans Payable to State Water Resources

Control Board, issued December 14, 2005 2024 10,199 637 637
Loans Payable to State Water Resources

Control Board, issued October 15, 2006 2024 4,115 257 257
Loans Payable to State Water Resources

Control Board, issued February 28, 2007 2026 12,582 699 699

(continued on next page)
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Fiscal
Year Pledged
Maturity Revenue to Debt Principal Pledged Revenue

Type of Pledged Revenue Date Maturity & Interest Paid Recognized
Bonds and Notes
Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 1993 2023 $ 244779 $ 16,319 $ 16,310
Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 1995 2025 400,912 23,586 23,574
Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 1997 A 2027 231,386 12,178 12,171
Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 1997 B 2027 84,710 4,458 4,457
Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 1999 A 2029 277,294 13,206 12,329
Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 1999 B 2029 153,433 7,309 7,118
Subordinated Sewer Revenue Notes, Series 2007 2009 235,021 11,440 11,439
Total Pledged Net Sewer Systems Revenue 1,715,454 94,555 93,457
Pledged Net Water Systems Revenue:
Loans
Loans Payable to Department of Health

Services, issued July 6, 2005 2026 24,079 1,376 1,376
Bonds and Notes
Water Certificate of Undivided Interest,

Series 1998 2029 436,677 21,354 19,984
Subordinated Water Revenue Bonds,

Series 2002 2033 442,236 18,031 16,967
Subordinated Water Revenue Notes, Series 2007A 2009 59,308 2,321 2,320
Subordinated Water Revenue Notes, Series 2008A 2010 157,380 -

Total Pledged Net Water Systems Revenue 1,119,680 43,082 40,647
Total Pledged Revenues § 2835134 § 137,637  $ 134,104
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7. DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS LONG-TERM DEBT (In Thousands)
Discretely presented component units long-term debt as of June 30, 2008 is comprised as follows:

San Diego Convention Center Corporation

Balance

Fiscal Year Outstanding Due Within

Type of Obligation Interest Rate  Maturity Date  Original Amount June 30, 2008 One Year
Compensated Absences $ 1,221 $ 1,221
Capital Leases $ 3,942 2,201 807

Note Payable to San Diego

Unified Port District, dated 1999 0.00% 2011 10,000 2,500 1,000
Total Long-Term Liabilities $ 5922 $ 3,028

Annual requirements to amortize long-term debt as of June 30, 2008, are as follows:

Capital Lease Note Payable
Fiscal Year Amount Fiscal Year Amount

2009 $ 931 2009 $ 1,000

2010 931 2010 1,000

2011 543 2011 500

Total minimum lease payments 2,405 Total $ 2500
Less: amount representing interest 204
Present value of minimum lease payments $ 2,201
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San Diego Housing Commission

Interest Fiscal Year Original  Balance Outstanding  Due Within

Type of Obligation Rate Maturity Date ~ Amount June 30, 2008 One Year
Compensated Absences $ 1249  § 1,249
Note Payable to Washington Mutual,
dated June 1995 Variable* 2012 $ 4,725 3,427 149
Note Payable to State of California
(RHCP) 0.0 2013 1,405 1,405
Note Payable to State of California
(RHCP) 0.0 2015 3,149 3,149
Note Payable to State of California
(CalHELP) 3.0 2013 704 2,306
Note Payable to US Bank, dated
November 2006 Variable* 2012 20,550 19,468 223
Total Notes Payable 29,755 372
Total Long-Term Liabilities $ 31,004 § 1,621

* The effective interest rate as of June 30, 2008 was 3.79% for the Washington Mutual Note Payable and 7.54% for the US Bank Note Payable.

Annual requirements to amortize such long-term debt as of June 30, 2008 to maturity are as follows:

Year Ending
June 30 Principal Interest

2009 $ 372§ 1674
2010 396 1,654
2011 421 1,629
2012 21,707 557
2013 - 69

2014-2018 6,859 67
Total $ 29755 § 5650
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8. SHORT-TERM NOTES PAYABLE (In Thousands)

The City issues Tax and Revenue Anticipation Notes (TRANSs) in advance of property tax collections, depositing the
proceeds into the General Fund. These notes are necessary to meet the cash requirements of the City prior to the
receipt of property taxes.

Short-term debt activity for the year ended June 30, 2008, was as follows:

Beginning Balance Additions Reductions Ending Balance
Tax and Revenue Anticipation Notes $ 142,000 $ 116,000 $ (142,000) $ 116,000

The $142,000 (FY07) TRANS issue, which was a 13 month note obligation, had an interest rate of 4.18% and was
repaid on August 3, 2007.

The $116,000 (FY08) TRANS issue, which was a 13 month note obligation, had an interest rate of 3.90% and was
repaid on August 1, 2008.
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9. JOINT VENTURE and JOINTLY GOVERNED ORGANIZATIONS (In Thousands)

San Diego Medical Services Enterprise, LLC

A joint venture is a legal entity or other organization that results from a contractual arrangement and that is owned,
operated, or governed by two or more participants as a separate and specific activity subject to joint control. San
Diego Medical Services Enterprise, LLC (SDMSE) is a joint venture that is reported within the General Fund.

SDMSE was organized on May 2, 1997 to provide emergency medical services and medical transportation services to
the citizens of San Diego. Operations began July 1, 1997 under an initial 5 year agreement that was extended on
July 1, 2002 and again on July 1, 2005 for an additional three year period. On July 1, 2008 operations were extended
until December 31, 2008 under a separate extension agreement, and will continue to be extended during the
competitive bidding process which is currently taking place.

The SDMSE partners are the City of San Diego and Rural Metro of San Diego, Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of Rural
Metro Corporation (a publicly traded corporation). The SDMSE governing board is comprised of five members, three
of whom are appointed by the City. In accordance with GASB 14, the financial impacts of the joint venture are reported
in the General Fund.

The maximum funds which the City is required to contribute to the costs of SDMSE operations are limited to an
aggregate of $8,450 during the term of the third amended agreement. This aggregate includes a $650 annual subsidy
and any other amounts to be paid to the City since 1997 under the original contract, and any losses the City is required
to cover under the extended contract, excluding any amount the City contributes for Medicare fee reimbursements.
Cumulatively, the City has paid annual subsidies totaling $5,700 as of June 30, 2008. Effective in fiscal year 2006, the
City is no longer required to pay the $650 annual subsidy and the Medicare fee reimbursements shall not exceed $250
per fiscal year. Net assets of SDMSE are pro-rated to each partner based on a 50/50 split. In accordance with the
operating agreement, profit and loss for each fiscal year is allocated equally to the members, subject to an aggregate
limitation on loss to the City of $8,450 (equal to the amount of subsidies discussed above). For the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2008, SDMSE reported a net income of $1,667, a member distribution of $1,900, and ending net assets of
$3,962.

Under the terms of an operating agreement between Rural/Metro of San Diego, Inc. and SDMSE, Rural/Metro of San
Diego, Inc. has made available a line-of-credit in the initial amount of $3,500 bearing an interest rate of 9.5%. SDMSE
did not have an outstanding balance, nor did it borrow on the line-of-credit at June 30, 2008.

Complete financial statements can be requested from San Diego Medical Services Enterprise, LLC, 8401 East Indian
School Rd., Scottsdale, Arizona 85251.

San Diego Workforce Partnership

The City of San Diego and the County of San Diego jointly govern the San Diego Workforce Partnership (Consortium).
The Consortium’s Board of Directors consists of two members of the City Council, two members from the County
Board of Supervisors, and one member of a charitable organization. The purpose of the Consortium is to provide
regional employment and training services in order to develop and create job opportunities throughout San Diego
County. The Consortium is empowered to make applications for and receive grants from governmental or private
sources. The City does not appoint a majority of the Board, is not able to impose its will on the Consortium, and the
Consortium is not fiscally dependent on the City. Therefore, it is the City’s conclusion that the Consortium is a
Governmental Organization with a jointly appointed board and not a component unit of the City.
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Complete financial statements can be requested from San Diego Workforce Partnership, Inc. 3910 University Avenue,
Suite 400, San Diego, CA 92105.

San Diego Geographic Information Source (SanGIS)

SanGIS was created in July 1997 as a joint powers agreement between the City of San Diego and the County of San
Diego. SanGIS objectives are to create and maintain a geographic information system, marketing and licensing
compiled digital geographic data and software, providing technical services and publishing geographical and land-
related information.

Complete financial statements can be requested from SanGIS, 5469 Kearney Villa Road, Suite 102, San Diego, CA
92123.

128



CiTy oF SAN DiEGco CoMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

10. LEASE COMMITMENTS (In Thousands)

The City leases various properties and equipment. Leased property having elements of ownership are recorded as
capital leases and reported as capital assets in the government-wide financial statements, along with a corresponding
capital lease obligation. Leased property that does not have elements of ownership is reported as an operating lease
and is expensed when paid.

Operating Leases

The City’s operating leases consist primarily of rental property occupied by City departments. The following is a
schedule of future minimum rental payments required under operating leases entered into by the City for property that
has initial or remaining non-cancelable lease terms in excess of one year as of June 30, 2008:

Year Ended
June 30 Amount
2009 $ 12,746
2010 12,429
2011 11,892
2012 12,061
2013 11,904
2014-2018 12,017
2019-2023 245
2024-2028 49
Total $ 73,343

Rent expense as related to operating leases was $11,657 for the year ended June 30, 2008.

Capital Leases

The City has entered into various capital leases for equipment, vehicles and property. These capital leases have
maturity dates ranging from September 1, 2007 through July 1, 2015, and interest rates ranging from 2.59% to 7.94%.
A schedule of future minimum lease payments under capital leases as of June 30, 2008 is provided in Notes 5 and 6.
The value of all capital leased assets as of June 30, 2008 for governmental assets is $50,359, net of accumulated
depreciation of $85,211, and business-type assets of $2,504, net of accumulated depreciation of $8,810.
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Lease Revenues

The City has operating leases for certain land, buildings, and facilities with tenants and concessionaires. Leased
capital asset carrying values of approximately $64,591, as well as depreciation, are reported in Note 4 and are
consolidated with non-leased assets. Minimum annual lease revenues are reported in the following schedule:

Year Ended
June 30 Amount
2009 $ 33,205
2010 32,093
2011 31,533
2012 30,926
2013 30,178
2014-2018 139,448
2019-2023 124,287
2024-2028 119,135
2029-2033 111,976
2034-2038 101,650
2039-2043 97,038
2044-2048 77,903
2049-2053 15,205
2054-2058 6,160
2059-2063 1,650
Total $ 952,387

This amount does not include contingent rentals, which may be received under certain leases of property on the basis
of percentage retumns. Rental income as related to operating leases was $82,954 for the year ended June 30, 2008,
which includes contingent rentals of $49,981.

130



CiTy oF SAN DiEGco CoMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

1. DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN (In Thousands)

The City, San Diego Convention Center Corporation (SDCCC), San Diego Data Processing Corporation (SDDPC), and
San Diego Housing Commission (SDHC) each offer their employees a deferred compensation plan, created in
accordance with Internal Revenue Service Code Section 457, State and Local Government Deferred Compensation
Plans. These plans, available to eligible employees, permit them to defer, pre-tax, a portion of their salary until future
years. Deferred compensation is not available to employees until termination, retirement, death, disability, or an
unforeseeable emergency. All assets and income of the deferred compensation plan are held in trust for the exclusive
benefit of plan participants and their beneficiaries. The deferred compensation plans are not considered part of the
City of San Diego’s financial reporting entity.
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12.

PENSION PLANS (In Thousands)

The City has a defined benefit pension plan and various defined contribution pension plans covering substantially all of
its employees.

DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN

a. Plan Description

San Diego City Employees’ Retirement System (“SDCERS”), as authorized by Article IX of the City Charter, is a
public employee retirement system established in fiscal year 1927 by the City. SDCERS administers
independent, qualified, single employer governmental defined benefit plans and trusts for the City, the Port of San
Diego (the “Port”), and the San Diego County Regional Airport Authority (the “Airport”). As of July 1, 2007, the
assets of the three separate plans and trusts are pooled in the SDCERS Group Trust. These plans are
administered by the SDCERS Board (the “Board”) to provide retirement, disability, death and survivor benefits for
its members. Amendments to the City’s benefit provisions require City Council approval as well as a majority vote
by members. As of January 1, 2007, benefit increases also require a majority vote of the public. All approved
benefit changes are codified in the City's Municipal Code.

The plans cover all eligible employees of the City, the Port, and the Airport. All City employees working half-time
or greater and full-time employees of the Port and the Airport are eligible for membership and are required to join
SDCERS. The Port and Airport are not component units of the City CAFR per GASB 14; however, the financial
statements of SDCERS Pension trust do include the Port and Airport activity and are reported in the trust and
agency section of the CAFR. The information disclosed in this note however, relates solely to the City’s
participation in SDCERS. City employment classes participating in the Plan are elected officers, general and
safety (including police, fire and lifeguard members). These classes are represented by various unions depending
on the type and nature of work performed, except for elected officials, unclassified and unrepresented employees.

City of San Diego Plan Membership as of June 30, 2008 (actual member count)

Total by
General Safety Classification

Active Members 5,980 2,507 8,487
Terminated Members 2,255 488 2,743
Retirees, Disabled
and Beneficiaries 4,169 2,771 6,940
Total Members, as of
June 30, 2008 12,404 5,766 18,170

Source: SDCERS-City of San Diego Actuarial Valuation as of June 30, 2008

As a defined benefit Plan, retirement benefits are determined primarily by a member’s class, age at retirement,
number of years of creditable service, and the member’s final compensation based on the highest salary earned
over a consecutive one-year period. The Plan provides cost of living adjustments of 2% to retirees, which is
factored into the actuarial assumptions. Increases in retirement benefits due to cost of living adjustments do not
require voter approval. The Plan requires ten years of service at age 62, or 20 years of service at age 55 for
general members (50 for safety members), which could include certain service purchased or service earned at a
reciprocating government entity, to vest for a benefit. Typically, retirement benefits are awarded at a rate of 2.5%
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of the employee’s one-year high annual salary per year of service at age 55 for general members, and 3% for
Safety members starting at the age of 50. The actual percentage of final average salary per year served
component of the calculation rises as the employee’s retirement age increases and depends on the retirement
option selected by the employee. General Plan percentage of final average salary per year served is a maximum
of 2.8% for general members and 3% for safety members.

On July 28, 2008, the City Council approved R-303977 which presents modified defined contribution and defined
benefit Plans for all non-safety City employees hired on or after July 1, 2009. The new defined benefit Plan
includes modified percentages used to determine annual retirement allowance (depending on employees’ age at
retirement), a pensionable salary calculation used to determine retirement allowances based on a 3-year average,
and a maximum annual retiree benefit of 80% of employees’ pensionable salary. Additionally, the new defined
contribution Plan includes mandatory employee contributions to SPSP (as well as City match) of 1% and the
introduction of mandatory employee contribution to a retiree medical trust Plan (as well as City match) of 0.25%.
The modified Plans were drafted and agreed upon by the Mayor’s Office and related labor unions representing
non-safety City employees.

Deferred Retirement Option Program (DROP)

The City also has a Deferred Retirement Option Program (DROP) where participants continue to work for the City
and receive a regular paycheck. SDCERS’ members electing to participate in DROP must agree to participate in
the program for a specific period, up to a maximum of five years. A DROP participant must agree to end
employment with the City on or before the end of the selected DROP participation period. A SDCERS member’s
decision to enter DROP is irrevocable.

Upon entering the program, the DROP participant stops making contributions to SDCERS and stops earning
creditable service. Instead, amounts equivalent to the participant’s retirement benefit plus earnings and additional
contributions are credited to an interest bearing individual account held in the participant's name. On November
21, 2008, the SDCERS Board changed the DROP interest credit rate to 7.75% from 8% to mirror the newly
adopted investment return assumption adopted by the Board on September 19, 2008. On February 20, 2009 the
Board changed the DROP interest rate again. Effective July 1, 2009, DROP participation interest will be 3.54%
and DROP annuity interest will be 5.0%. The DROP benefit is the value of a DROP participant's account at the
end of the DROP participation period. Participants select the form of the distribution of the DROP account when
they leave employment and begin retirement. The distribution is made as a single lump sum or in 240 equal
monthly payments, or as otherwise allowed by applicable provisions of the Internal Revenue Code. Outstanding
liabilities for DROP are shown on the Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets in the basic financial statements. During
the period of participation, the participant continues to receive most of the employer offered benefits available to
regular employees with exception to earning creditable service, as previously discussed.

SDCERS’ members who were hired on or after July 1, 2005 are ineligible to participate in the DROP program due
to the benefit changes negotiated with the July 1, 2005 Memoranda of Understanding (MOU). However, SDCERS
has asserted that due to delays in codification of benefit changes into the Municipal Code, the effective cut off
date would instead be February 16, 2007, which is when the Ordinance O-19567 was officially codified in the
Municipal Code. As of the issuance of this report, there has been no change in the status of this case [refer to
Note 18 for additional information]. Notwithstanding amendments to the municipal code, SDCERS’ members who
were hired prior to July 1, 2005 are eligible to participate in DROP when they are eligible for a service retirement.
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Purchase of Service Credits

Article 4 Division 13 of the City’s Municipal Code allows Plan members to purchase years of Creditable Service for
use in determining retirement allowances. To purchase Creditable Service, a Member must elect to pay and
thereafter pay, in accordance with such election before retirement, into the Retirement Fund an amount, including
interest, determined by the Board. No Member will receive Creditable Service under this Division for any service
for which payment has not been completed pursuant to this Division before the effective date of the Member's
retirement. After review of the purchase of service program, SDCERS’ actuary concluded that the service credit
pricing structure that was in place prior to November 2003 did not reflect the full cost in the price then charged to
SDCERS members. The pricing shortfall of approximately $146,000, which is included in the Unfunded Actuarial
Accrued Liability (UAAL), is reported in this note for the current year and in the RSI of these financial statements
for the prior two years. On November 13, 2008, a court ruling stated that the Board’s decision to amortize the
underpaid purchase of service credits, for certain employees who had yet to retire as of November 20, 2007,
through the City’s existing unfunded actuarial liability is unlawful and contrary to the Municipal Code and City
Charter. Judgment was entered in favor of the City on December 12, 2008 which finalized the November 13,
2008 ruling. The amount of the potential benefit to the City is not known as of the issuance of this report.
Additionally, the service credit pricing structure used after November 2003 does cover the full projected cost to the
System when members purchased the service credits.

SDCERS’ members who were hired on or after July 1, 2005 are ineligible to participate in the Purchase of Service
Credit program due to the benefit changes negotiated with the July 1, 2005 MOU. However, SDCERS has
asserted that due to delays in codification of benefit changes into the municipal code, the effective cut off date
would instead be February 16, 2007, which is when the Ordinance 0-19567 was officially codified in the Municipal
Code. As of the issuance of this report, there has been no change in the status of this case [refer to Note 18 for
additional information]. Notwithstanding amendments to the municipal code, SDCERS’ members who were hired
prior to July 1, 2005 are eligible to participate the Purchase of Service Credit Program at the full cost to the
participant.

Corbett Settlement Benefits and Retirement Factors

In 1998, a lawsuit was filed by retired employees who alleged that the City’s definition of compensation subject to
the computation of retirement benefits improperly excluded the value of certain earnings. The City and SDCERS
settled in May of 2000, which is known as the Corbett Settlement. This settlement provided for a flat increase of
7% in benefits payable to eligible members who retired prior to July 1, 2000, payable annually. The settlement
also provided a 10% benefit increase and allows for two options in calculating the service retirement allowance for
employees active at the time of the settlement and who joined the Retirement System before July 1, 2000 and
who retired after July 1, 2000.

The options for calculating the service retirement allowance are outlined in the San Diego Municipal Code
sections 24.0402 and 24.0403 which can be obtained at City of San Diego City Clerks Office 202 C Street, San
Diego, CA 92101 or online at www.sandiego.gov.

On July 1, 2002, the City Council increased the retirement factors used for calculating retirement allowances; this
action was related to MP-2 (as discussed later in this note). As a result of the Corbett Settliement and other benefit
actions taken by the City Council, the service retirement factors for general members (non-safety and non-
legislative) range from 2.0% at age 55 to 2.8% at age 65. The service retirement factors for Safety Members (Fire,
Police and Lifeguard) range from 2.2% at age 50 to 3.0% at age 50 depending on the Corbett Settlement option
selected. Finally, the City also maintains an Elected Officer's Retirement Plan where members are eligible to
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receive 3.5% of their final average salary per year of creditable service. Depending on the number of years of
service, participants of the Elected Officer's Retirement Plan can retire earlier than the age of 55; however, their
retirement allowance is reduced by 2.0% for each year under the age of 55.

Preservation of Benefit Plan

On March 19, 2001, the City Council adopted Ordinance 0-18930, adding SDMC sections 24.1601 through
24.1608, establishing the Preservation of Benefit Plan (POB Plan). The POB Plan is a qualified governmental
excess benefit arrangement (QEBA) under Internal Revenue Code (IRC) section 415(m), which was created by
Congress to allow the payment of promised pension benefits that exceed the IRC section 415(b) limits (and
therefore cannot be paid from a qualified retirement plan). On October 28, 2008, the IRS issued a private letter
ruling to SDCERS approving the qualified status of the QEBA. As provided in SDMC section 24.1606 and
required by federal tax law, the POB Plan is unfunded within the meaning of the federal tax laws. The City may
not pre-fund the POB Plan to cover future liabilities beyond the current year as it can with an IRC section 401(a)
pension plan. SDCERS has established procedures to pay for these benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis. As of
issuance of this report, actuarial liabilities related to retired member benefits that exceeded §415 limits are
included in the RS for the City’s core pension Plan for valuation years up to and including fiscal year 2005. In the
fiscal year 2006 actuarial valuation, the estimated actuarial accrued liability related to excess benefits for eligible
active members of the system, amounting to approximately $22,800, was removed from the Plan’s Actuarial
Liabilities (this liability is estimated to be approximately $30,400 in the fiscal year 2007 actuarial valuation).
Additionally, the liability for retired members of the POB Plan, amounting to approximately $6,400, has been
excluded from the fiscal year 2007 actuarial valuation. Estimates related to the actuarial liability for benefits that
exceed IRS §415 limits were calculated using actuarial assumptions consistent with those used to perform
actuarial valuations for the City’s core pension Plan and also pursuant to the Compliance Statement, dated
December 20, 2007, and Tax Determination Letter provided by the IRS during Voluntary Correction Program
discussions.

The most current estimates related to the POB are that approximately 58 beneficiaries have received benefits of
approximately $2,900 in excess of IRC §415 limits through June 30, 2006; an additional approximate $900 in
benefits were paid in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, and approximately $870 in benefits were paid in the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 for an estimated cumulative overpayment of $4,670. No additional Plan
payments or repayments are required as a result of the Compliance Statement. The number of Plan participants
in any given year for the POB Plan is determined by the number of Plan participants who exceed the current
year's IRS §415(b) limitations as calculated by SDCERS’ actuary. The maximum annual payment for the calendar
year 2008 was $185 and is adjusted downward depending on the age of the participant when benefits began.
Beginning in fiscal year 2008, the City’s actuary performed a valuation of the POB Plan which resulted in an ARC
of approximately $2,407. However, expenditures related to the POB Plan in fiscal year 2008 were approximately
$1,000, and therefore, the remaining $1,407, which represents future Plan liabilities, is included in the City’s Net
Pension Obligation (NPO). Additionally, financial statements for the Preservation of Benefits Plan are included in
the Trust & Agency section of this report.

Charter Amendments

In November 2004, voters changed the City Charter and the mix of Board members requiring that a majority of the
Board be independent of the City. Also, the Charter now requires that a 15-year amortization period be used for
the UAAL beginning in fiscal year 2009; however, the SDCERS Board, in conjunction with the actuary, is using a
20-year amortization period with no negative amortization and has taken the position that the Board is legally
responsible for establishing the valuation parameters, including the amortization period.
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On November 7, 2006, the citizens approved an amendment to Article 9, Section 143 of the City’'s Charter,
requiring voter approval of certain increases in retirement system benefits for public employees. Specifically, this
amendment requires a majority approval of the public of any ordinance that amends the City’s retirement system
by increasing the benefits of any employee.

Additional details of retirement benefits can be obtained from SDCERS. SDCERS is considered part of the City of
San Diego’s financial reporting entity and is reported as a pension and employee savings trust fund. SDCERS
issues stand-alone financial statements which are available at its office located at 401 West A Street, Suite 400,
San Diego, California 92101 or at www.sdcers.org.

b. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — Pension

Basis of Accounting - The pension trust fund uses the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual
basis of accounting. Contributions are recognized as additions in the period in which the contributions are due and
a formal commitment to provide the contributions has been made. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due
and payable in accordance with the Plan.

Method Used to Value Investments - SDCERS investments are stated at fair value. The SDCERS custodial agent
provides market values of invested assets with the exception of the fair value of directly owned real estate assets
which are provided by the responsible investment manager and independent third party appraisal firms.
Investment income is recognized in accordance with GASB 25 and is stated net of investment management fees
and related expenses.

c. Contributions and Reserves - Disclosure Related to Long - Term Contracts and Other Agreements

Funding Contracts: Union Agreements

The City has historically picked up a portion of the employee’s retirement contributions. The fiscal year 2006
MOUs and the changes to current and future employee benefits therein were introduced to the City Council in
June 2005, and the changes in benefit eligibility were approved by Council Resolution 300600.

The agreement in the MOUs (agreements with the police union were not reached) was to reduce the amount of
individual employees’ pension contributions which are paid for by the City, effective fiscal year 2006. The
agreements with labor unions resulted in the reduction of City offset of the employee pension contribution by 3%
for the Municipal Employees’ Association (MEA), the International Association of Fire Fighters Local 145, and the
Deputy City Attorney Association (DCAA) and a unilaterally imposed reduction of 3.2% for the San Diego Police
Officers Association (POA). In addition, the American Federation of State and County Municipal Employees
(AFSCME) Local 127 negotiated a 1.9% salary reduction in lieu of a City “pick up” contribution reduction and a
benefit freeze.

The agreements with the bargaining units explicitly indicate that savings to the City must be used to help address
its UAAL within the timeframe of the respective contracts. The labor contract with Local 127 states that “By June
30, 2008, if the City has not dedicated a total of $600,000,000 or more to the UAAL reduction, including the
amount received by leveraging employee salary reduction and pension contribution monies, the AFSCME salary
reduction monies with interest will revert to SDCERS Employee Contribution Rate Reserve for benefit of Local
127 unit members to defray employee pension contributions.”

In June 2006, the City leveraged a portion of the employee pick up savings by contributing $90,800 from
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securitization of future tobacco settlement revenues, $9,200 of current tobacco settlement revenues, and $8,300
from the remaining balance in the employee “pick-up” amount as part of meeting its negotiated commitment. The
$100,000 payment in excess of the ARC from tobacco settlement revenues is 100% backed by general fund
revenues, and therefore was directly allocated to reduce the Net Pension Obligation of the general fund only. The
additional contribution of $8,300 in excess of the ARC, however, was allocated Citywide as a reduction to the
NPO. In June 2007, the City contributed approximately $7,000 in addition to the ARC from the savings of the
employee “pick-up” reduction, and in July 2007 the City contributed approximately $27,300 in addition to the ARC.
Upon the conclusion of the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, the City was not able to meet the outstanding
commitment in its entirety. As such, the City reached agreements with both MEA and Local 127. The MEA
settlement required the City to return prior year savings to MEA members and eliminated 2% of the employee
pick-up. The Local 127 settlement required the City to return prior year savings to Local 127 members as well as
eliminate the 1.9% salary reduction.

Funding Commitments Related to Legal Settlements

The City employer contributions for fiscal years 1996 — 2003 were not based on the full actuarial rates. Instead,
employer contributions were less than the full actuarial rates in accordance with agreements between the City and
SDCERS, commonly referred to as Manager's Proposal 1 (MP-1) and Manager's Proposal 2 (MP-2). Subsequent
to the adoption of MP-2, the City settled a class action lawsuit regarding alleged breaches of fiduciary duty and
law regarding the City’s underfunding of the pension system resulting from the adoption of MP-1 and MP-2. The
Gleason Settlement Agreement addressed the issues raised regarding the City’s underfunding of the pension
system by imposing specific requirements on the City for fiscal years 2005 through 2008 including requirements to
contribute $130,000 in fiscal year 2005, pay its full ARC beginning in fiscal year 2006, repeal Municipal Code
Sections that legitimized the City's contribution obligations related to MP-2, and provide a total of $375,000 of real
property as collateral for payments required under the Gleason Settlement Agreement. The Gleason Settlement
also stipulated that certain actuarial assumptions be fixed, notably, that the amortization period be reset to a 29-
year closed period commencing with the June 30, 2004 Annual Actuarial Valuation. These assumptions were to
remain in place for the duration of the settlement.

On July 1, 2004, the City made the Gleason Settlement-required contribution of $130,000 for fiscal year 2005 in
addition to providing real property totaling $375,000 as collateral to be returned in annual installments of
$125,000. On July 1, 2005, the City made the annually required contribution of $163,000 for fiscal year 2006.
Additionally, the City made a contribution in excess of the ARC in the amount of $108,300 on June 30, 2006. On
July 3, 2006 the City made its full annually required contribution of $162,000 as well as an additional $7,000
contribution in excess of the ARC for fiscal year 2007 and on July 2, 2007, the City made its full annually required
contribution of $137,700 as well as an additional $27, 900 contribution in excess of the ARC for fiscal year 2008.
The final installment of $125,000 of real property collateral was returned to the City on November 9, 2007.

The annual required contributions for fiscal years 2005, 2006, and 2007 did not include the effects of the Corbett
Settlement because the SDCERS'’ Board viewed those benefits as contingent (see section a. for a description of
the Corbett Settlement). Subsequent to those payments, the City determined that the Corbett Settlement liabilities
are not contingent. As a result, the ARC for financial reporting was restated from the original ARC calculated by
SDCERS' actuary to include Corbett Settlement liabilities. As a result, the City’s NPO includes the effects of the
Corbett Settlement.

In September 2006, the City entered into a settlement of McGuigan v. City of San Diego (the “McGuigan

Settlement”) related to the underfunding by the City of the pension system. Under the McGuigan Settlement, the
City is obligated to pay into SDCERS $173,000 no later than June 8, 2011. An additional requirement of the
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McGuigan Settlement is that the City provides SDCERS real property collateral totaling $100,000 (Non-
Depreciable Capital Assets — Land). These amounts are in addition to those required by the Gleason Settlement
and are to be returned upon the full payment of the settlement. The City provided the real property collateral at
the time of the settlement; subsequently, the City provided a cumulative amount of approximately $143,200 of
additional payments to SDCERS in an attempt to meet the terms of the McGuigan Settlement. This leaves an
outstanding obligation resulting from the McGuigan Settlement of approximately $35,000, including interest. The
McGuigan Settlement was partially funded through the securitization of future tobacco revenue, transfers of actual
tobacco revenue receipts, additional employee “pick up” savings, and City contributions made in addition to the
ARC. This contribution is further discussed in the Funding Contracts: Union Agreements section above.

d. Funding Policy and Contribution Rates

City Charter Article IX Section 143 requires employees and employers to contribute to the retirement Plan. The
Charter section, which was amended in fiscal year 2005, stipulates that funding obligations of the City shall be
determined by the Board of SDCERS and are not subject to modification by the City. The section also stipulates
that under no circumstances may the City and Board enter into any multi-year funding agreements that delay full
funding of the retirement Plan. The Charter requires that employer contributions be substantially equal to
employee contributions (SDCERS' legal counsel has opined that this requirement applies to the normal cost
contribution only). Pursuant to the Charter, City employer contribution rates, adjusted for payment at the
beginning of the year, are actuarially determined rates and are expressed as a fixed annual required contribution
as well as percentages of annual covered payroll. The entire expense of SDCERS’ administration is charged
against the earnings and Plan assets of SDCERS.

The following table shows the City’s contribution rates (weighted average of each employee group) for fiscal year
2008, based on the valuation ended June 30, 2006, expressed as percentages of active payroll:

Employer Contribution Rates

General Members Safety Members
Normal Cost* 11.42% 19.92%
Amortization Payment* 8.07% 15.19%
Normal Cost Adjusted for Amortization Payment* 19.49% 35.11%
City Contribution Rates Adjusted for Payment at the
Beginning of the Year 18.77% 33.78%

* Rates assume that contributions are made uniformly during the Plan year.

Normal Cost = The actuarial present value of pension plan benefits allocated to the current year by the actuarial cost
method.

Amortization Payment = That portion of the pension plan contribution which is designed to pay interest on and to
amortize the unfunded actuarial accrued liability.

Members are required to contribute a percentage of their annual salary to the Plan on a biweekly basis. Rates
vary according to entry age. For fiscal year 2008, the City employee contribution rates as a percentage of annual
covered payroll averaged 9.87% for general members and 11.87% for safety members. A portion of the
employee’s share, depending on the employee’s member class, is paid by the City (commonly referred to as the
Employee Offset). In fiscal year 2008, the amount paid by the City ranges from 1.4% to 5.89% of covered payroll
for general members and the rate for safety Plan members ranges from 2.4% to 4.3%. Employee contributions
paid by the City, amounting to approximately $16,570 in fiscal year 2008, are made from the City’s operating
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budget. The amount paid on behalf of the employees has been renegotiated through the meet and confer
process which ultimately reduced the amount of the employee contribution paid by the City.

On September 2, 2008, Council approved 0-19781 which amended Chapter 2, Article 4, Division 15 of the San
Diego Municipal Code. The intent of the amendment was to eliminate the concept of “Surplus Earnings” (earnings
in excess of those earned using the assumed actuarial rate of return) which was the historical term for the funds
used to pay for supplemental and contingent benefits. In accordance with these revised SDMC sections, annual
distributions of these benefits are paid from Plan assets and take place in priority order. The Plan assets are
distributed to various SDCERS system reserves, SDCERS budget, and contingent benefits. The order of
distribution and a more detailed discussion of each distribution follows: First, Plan assets are used to credit
interest, at a rate determined by the SDCERS Board, which is currently 7.75%, to the Employer and Employee
Contribution Reserves and DROP member accounts. Second, Plan assets are used to fund the SDCERS Annual
Budget. Third, Plan assets are distributed for supplemental or contingent payments or transfers to reserves.
These items include in a priority order: 1) Annual Supplement Benefit Payment (“13th Check”) paid to retirees
generally equal to approximately $30 (whole dollars) times the number of years of employment. 2) Corbett
Settlement Payment paid to retirees who terminated employment prior to July 1, 2000 (Corbett Settlement
payments not paid in any one year accrue to the next year and remain an obligation of SDCERS until paid). 3)
Crediting interest to the Reserve for Supplemental Cost of Living Adjustment (“COLA").

e. Funded Status and Funding Progress

The following table summarizes the Plan’s funding status as of the most recent valuation date (unaudited):

UAALas a

Actuarial Actuarial Percentage

Actuarial Value of Accrued Funded Covered  of Covered
Valuation Assets Liability UAAL Ratio Payroll Payroll

Date (a) (b) (b-a) (alb) (c) ((b-a)lc)

6/30/2008  $ 4,660,346 $ 5963550 $ 1,303,204 78.15% § 535774  243.24%

The actuarial assumptions used for the fiscal year 2008 valuation include an Entry Age Normal actuarial funding
method, an Expected Value of Assets smoothing method, a 20-year closed amortization schedule (with no
negative amortization), a 7.75% earnings assumption and a 4% inflation rate. The required schedule of funding
progress immediately following the notes to the financial statements presents multiyear trend information about
whether the actuarial value of Plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued
liability for benefits.

f.  Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation

Annual Pension Costs

The normal cost (i.e. the actuarial present value of pension Plan benefits allocated to the current year) and the
UAAL amortization cost (i.e. the portion of the pension Plan payment designed to amortize the UAAL) were
determined using the Projected Unit Credit (PUC) actuarial cost method. The following are the principal actuarial
assumptions used for the fiscal year 2006 valuation (additional assumptions were used regarding a variety of
other factors):

a) An8.0% investment rate of return, net of administrative expenses.*
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b) Projected salary increases of at least 4.25% per year.**

c) An assumed annual cost-of-living adjustment that is generally 2% per annum and compounded. In
addition, there is a closed group of special safety officers whose annual adjustment is equal to inflation
(4.25% per year).

**Both (a) and (b) included an inflation rate of 4.25%.

The actuarial value of assets was determined using a methodology that smoothes the effects of short-term
volatility in the market value of investments over a five-year period. In fiscal year 2007, the SDCERS Board
approved a different asset smoothing method by marking the actuarial value of assets to market value in the fiscal
year 2006 actuarial valuation, the result of which caused the UAAL to decrease by approximately $183,800. The
method used by the actuary in fiscal year 2005 was not a commonly used method. The expected actuarial value
asset smoothing method commenced with the fiscal year 2007 valuation. The UAAL for funding purposes,
pursuant to the Gleason Settlement, is being amortized over a fixed 30-year closed period for the fiscal years
2006, 2007, and 2008. As of June 30, 2006, the valuation year used to compute the fiscal year 2008 annually
required contribution, there were 27 years remaining in the amortization period. For valuations effective June 30
2007, SDCERS’ Board of Administration decided to use a 20-year closed amortization schedule with no negative
amortization. Beginning with the valuation dated June 30, 2007, the normal cost and UAAL amortization cost will
be determined using the Entry Age Normal actuarial method, the result of which will cause the UAAL used in the
determination of the fiscal year 2009 ARC to increase by approximately $252,200.

The following table shows the City's annual pension cost (“APC”) and the percentage of APC contributed for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 and two preceding years (in thousands):

Fiscal Year Ended Percentage
June 30 APC Contributed Net Pension Obligation
2006 $ 175,879 154.28% $ 194,720
2007 169,762 99.63% 195,356
2008 145,077 114.82% 173,852

Net Pension Obligation

Net Pension Obligation (NPO) is the cumulative difference, since the effective date of GASB 27 (fiscal year 1998,
with a 10-year look back), between the annual pension cost and the employer's contributions to the Plan. This
includes the pension liability at transition (beg